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About the Company

Company History and Evolution

Digitide's roots lie in Quess Corp, where digital
sendices graw Into a powerful capabllity, bullding full-
scale  platforms, delivering  enterprise-grade Al
solutions and managing critical operations for glebal
clients across various industries. As these capabilities
deepened, the need for a distinct digital identity
became clear and Digitide was formed in 2024

following the strategic demerger of Quess Corp.

This transition marks more than a new name. |t
represents a focused shift toward deep digital
specialization,  enabling
inclependently in high-growth, tech-driven markets, It

the business to scale

has given the digital arm its own space, clarity and
momentum to pursue innovation at speed and scale,

Today, Digitide stands for everything the original team
evalved into: a sharp, capable company that solves
madern problems using data, technology and Al

With this structural change came a purpose: to bulld a
digitally native organization that could adapt faster to
shifting markets and rising customer expectations.
Since its Inception, Digitide has combined proven
strengths In Al, automation, cloud, digital assurance,
and platforms, supported by 55000+ associates
across 40+ global locations. Its evolution has been
deliberate, shaped by market demand, sharpened by
internal capability and aligned to deliver full-stack
digital sclutions across industries.

While the brand is new, it carries forward a strong legacy of delivery excellence, deep domain insight, and global

execution built over the years.

10+

Years of legacy

20+

Technology partners

5+

Countries

68.3

Best-in-class NPS
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300+

Custormers

Great Place
to Work®

& consecutive years

55k+

Employees

10+

Digltal COEs

40+

Global locatlons

50+

Proprietary Al
accelarators
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Enduring Client Relationships: 1he Foundation of

Sustainable Growth

Digitide's growth story is anchored in deep, lasting client partnerships. Our top 30 clients now contribute 59% of total

revenues, reflecting the strength and scale of these engagements. Within this, the top 10 clients account for 36% and
the top 20 for 50%. indicating a healthy concentration built on value delivery and trust.

These relationships are long-standing. 69% of revenue from our top 30 clients and 70% from our top 100 clients
comes from associations that have lasted over five years. This tenure is a testament to Digltide's consistent execution
and evolving capability,

Revenue from the top 30 clients grew from 10,282 million in FY22 to F19285 millen in FY25, marking a 18%
annualized CAGR. These rising numbers underscore our ability to scale alongside our clients, grow within existing
accounts and retain trust over time.

Revenue Contribution

Top 10 36%
Top 20 50%
Top 30 59%
Revenue from Top-30 Clients (¥ million) Tenure of Revenue among Top-30 and Top-100 Clients

Tenure of revenue
from top-30
CuUstomers <5 Years

* 18% 19,285

»>a5 Years
10,282
Tenure of revenus
from top-100
custamers {5 YE‘EFS
FY 22 Fr 25° >=5 Years

Y 25 numbers indicates number from 10th February 2024 to 31st March 2025, CAGR is calculated on FY 2025 annualized numbers.
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Vision and Mission

Vision : Mission
To unlock the power of Al for every : To help enterprises unlock business value by
customer, not just in vision, but in execution. delivering Al-powered, digitally native solutions

that transform operations, enhance customer
axperiences, and accelerate growth.

Core Values
To deliver Al-led, outcome-driven solutions that simplify complexity, scale operations and unlock measurable business

value for our clients worldwide.

Agility: Integrity: Customer Obsession:

We adapt guickly, build fast and We act with transparency, We keep client ocutcomes at
stay ahead of what's next fairness and accountability. the center of every decision
Innovation: Collaboration: Excellence:

We lead with technology and We believe the best resulls come We deliver with precision,
deliver with creativity from diverse minds working together pride, and performance

Piweal Reoart 202 2020 _E T



About the Company di | jitide

Key Milestones

' Delivery centers Employees
2019-2024

fauess A
ALLSEC
= Ajit Isaac, Founder and Chairman of « Majority stake in India's leading payroll
Digitide platform provider
« Fairfax Group, Canada
FY18
¥ 13,692M 27k 34

Quinowire MPXE)  CONNEQT D B

+ Enters North American IT services market
in 2014

. Enters North American P&C Insurance di --_'ltide
market in 2016

« Augments digital engineering capabilities

in 2017
+ Majority stake in 2nd largest India-to- = Carved out the tech, digital and BPM
India CX player services as a listed company
FY14 F¥25
¥ 3,696M 0.5k ¥32687TM 55k &
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Ajit Abraham Isaac, the founder of Quess Corp, is an entrepreneur who
over a period of 20 years, has been invalved in creating market-leading
enterprises in the business services sector in India. Before becoming an
entreprenaur in the year 2000, he has worked for years in leadership
rales in the private sector including companies like Adecco India
Private Limited. Infrastructure Development Finance Company Limited
and Godrej and Boyce Limited,

His Initiatives in transformative deals, with a focus on operational
efficiency and business development, have helped organisations scale
rapidly. He holds master's degree in arts and Personnel Management
from Madras University and a British Chevening Scholar from Leeds
University.,

Socially committed, he set up Care Works Foundation, which today
supports over 16,000 students across 75 schools. His strong social
commitment to the larger cause is demonstrated in the partnership with
the Indian Institute of Sclence (IISC), Bangalore to set up The |saac
Ajit Abraham lIsaac Centre of Public Health (ICPH), Along with Fairfax group, he has also
anchored the establishment of a paediatric specialty center in CMC
Vellore,

Man-Executive Chairman

Gurmeet Singh Chahal comes with over 25+ years of experience in
digital transformation globally, across industries  including
healthcare, financial services, hi-tech and manufacturing. Prior to his
current role, he was the CEQ — Global Technolegy Solutions (GTS)
Platform for Quess Corp, responsible for driving the business of
GTS platform Services, Al & Digital Services, Technology Services.
Earlier, Gurmeet was the SVP & Global Leader of Digital
Transformation Services at Genpact, where he was instrumental in
repositioning & growing the %1 hillion DQigital Transformation
Business. He also worked at HCL Technoclogies, whera he buik the
Healthcare business from ground up to $500 million. At DXC, a
Fortune 500 global organization, Gurmest managed & played a
pivotal role in revitalizing DXC's $750mn Healthcare and Life
Sclences business

Gurmeet holds an MBA from XLRI, Jamshedpur, and a bachelor’s in
chemical engineering from Punjab University. An avid learner, he
recently completed certifications in Al Strategies for Leading
Business Transformation from Morthwestern University — Kellogg
School of Management, and Al Implications for Business Strategy
from MIT. He holds a USA passport and a resident of Mew Jersey,
UsA,

Gurmeet Singh Chahal
Chief Executive Officer &
Executive Director

Annuat Report 2024 2025 _E |
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Gopalakrishnan Soundarajan is a Managing Director at Hamblin
Watsa Investment Counsel. He has leadership exparience in
handling financial management of various enterprises. He has an
incisive ability to identify as well as address resolutions at
arganizations exposed to financial and business risks including
exposure to legal and regulatory vagaries.

Soundarajan also brings with him Immense experience In
corporate business strategy and capital allocation, a knowledge so
useful in today's environment where maximization of shareholder
value is of utmost concern.

He is a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Madras, He is
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and a
Qualified Chartered Financial Analyst and Member of the CFA
Institute in the US. Before joining Hamblin Watsa, Gopal was the
Chief Investment Officer at ICICI Lombard, the largest private
sector property and casualty Insurance company in India. He held
that position for 18 years and was a member of the insurer's
investment committes as well.

Gopalakrishnan Soundarajan
Man Executive Director

Sunll Bhumralkar has over 38 years of professional experience,
notably with S. R, Batliboi & Associates LLP, a member firm of EY in
India. He has demonstrated expertise in auditing and assurance
services. His leadership role, heading assurance for South India,
and participation in the audit and firm's leadership team highlight
his managerial prowess,

Sunil's extensive Involvement in audits of large multinational and
Indian companies across diverse sectors and his deep knowledge
of Indian GAAP/IND AS, corporate governance, internal financial
controls and relevant regqulatory requirements underscores his
versatility and enhances his value as a trusted advisor, Active
contributions to professional bodies such as the ICAl demonstrate
his commitment to professional standards and sharing knowledge.

He is a commerce graduate from Pune University and a fellow

member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Sunil Bh Ik
un umralkar

Mon Executive Independent Director
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Mr. Pankaj Vaish has more than 39 years of experlence in
Technology-led transformation, Management Consulting,
Leadarship Development, B2B sales and outsourcing, with maore
than 28 years with Accenture, where he bullt businesses from
scratch and scaled them globally.

He has done his MBA from the Carlson Schoal of Management,
University of Minnesota, Minneapolis, USA and holds a Bachelor of
Technology degres in Mechanical Engineering from Indian Institute
of Technolagy, Banaras Hindu University, Varanasi (IIT-BHU). He has
been awarded the Distinguished Alumni award by the NT-BHLU
Alumni Association for the year 201112,

His career began in 1985 with Accenture and was a founding
member of Accenture India. When he left Accenture in 2014, he was
part of the global |leadership of the Communications, Media &

Pankaj Vaish Technology (CMT) business, where he was MD, Asia Pacific and
Non Execttive Independent Director Global MD, Management Consulting.

Revathy Ashok has spent over 3 decades pursuing capital raising,
business development, financial, risk management and
commercial with an ability to understand and analyze key
financial statements, assess financial viability and performance,
contribute to strategic financial planning and budgets with
strategic goals and priorities. She holds a bachelor's degree In
science from Bangalore University and a Post Graduate Diploma
in Management from the Indian Institute of Management,
Bangalore.

She was awarded the ‘Faculty medal for Best Performance® -
Habitat & Environmental Studies. She has a successful leadership
experience of over three decades spanning variety of industries —
Private Equity, Software & IT enabled services, Manufacturing,
Infrastructure & Real estate, etc. in Senior Management positions.

Im 2011, she was nominated by Cll as one of the top women Revathy Ashok
achievers in Business in South India and in 2005, she was named Non Executive Independent Director
as one of the 10 most powerful women In the Indian IT industry by

Dataquest.

Piweal Reoart 202 2020 _E T
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Anish Thurthi is a highly accomplished Chartered Accountant {ICAl)
with over 20+ years of experience in investment management, mergers
& acquisitions (M&A), and financial advisory. He holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from Bangalore University.

He currently serves as a Director at Fairbridge Capital Private Limited,
an Investment advisory firm managing investments for Fairfax Financial
Holdings Limited and Fairfax India Holdings Corporation. In this role, he
plays a key part in strategic financial planning and investment
management.

Prior to this, Anish spent over 13 years at KPMG India as a Partner in
Deal Advisory, advising more than 200 corporate MEA transactians
and private eqguity investments. His expertise spans financial due
diligence, tax structuring, buyouts, and merger integrations across
sectors such as infrastructure, consumer goods, and industrials, He
began his professional Journey at Deloitte India as an  Articled
Assistant, gaining experience in audit, internal audit, and due diligence.

Anish Thurthi

Mon Executive Director

With a strong background In financial strategy. M&A. and investment
advisory, Anish Thurthi is a seasoned leader in the finance and
investment industry.

Robin Thomashauer is a proven executive with a strong record of
leadership success In diverse healthcare environments including
start-up, growth stage, not-for-profit and for-profit.  Board
experience, including leadership roles in a wide range of
arganizations. She is the founder CEO of CAQH, Washingtan, DC,
dedicated for alliance of health plans that serves as a catalyst for
industry collaboration on initiatives that simplify the business of
healthcare. Her expertise includes full P & L development and
management, Board relations, strategic planning, new product
initiatives, hiring and management of senior leadership, and
development and evolution of organizational structure. Robin has
Partnered with a wide range of industry stakeholders, resulting in
the collective development and implementation of solutions that
provide meaningful, concrete value for the healthcare Industry.

Previously, she was associated with organisations like
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Washington, DC, and Kaiser
Permanente. She Is also on the board of varlous government Robin Thomashauer
committees and Board of Trustees in the field of strategic Non Executive Independent Director
planning, healtheare sector and public initiatives.

Aiweat Repart A0 2440 i_g |




d of Directors d' |t|de

Audit

Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar, Chairperson
Anish Thurthi, Member

Pankaj Vaish, Member

Revathy Ashok, Member

Nomination and Remuneration

Revathy Ashok, Chairperson
Pankaj Vaish, Member
Ajit Isaac, Member

Stakeholders Relationship

Pankaj Vaish, Chairperson
Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar, Member

Anish Thurthi, Member

Risk Management

Pankaj Vaish, Chalrperson

Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar, Member
Anish Thurthi, Member

Gurmeet Singh Chahal, Member

Suraj Prasad, Member

Corporate Social Responsibility

Gopalakrishnan Soundarajan, Chairman
Robin Jill Themashauer, Member
Gurmeet Singh Chahal, Member

Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar, Member

Administration and Investment

Ajit Isaac, Chairperson
Gurmeet Singh Chahal, Member

Suraj Prasad, Member
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Demerger Update: ~

: We're not here to reinvent what already
works. We're here to strengthen it by
deepening our core, building thoughtful
adjacencies, and selectively exploring
new frontiers that create lasting value!

— Gurmeet Singh Chahal

FY 2024-25 was a ‘defining year in our journey,
marked by the successful execution of the Composite
Scheme of Arrangement for the demerger of Quess
Corp Limited. On March 4, 2025, the Hon'ble Mational
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Bangalore Bench,
approved the proposal, resulting in the formal creation
of three independent, publicly listed entities — Quess
Corp Limited, Digitide Sclutions Limited and Bluspring
Enterprises Limited. This moment represented more
than a legal restructuring; it was the launchpad for a
bold new phase of growth, innowvation, and wvalue

creation.

The demerger was a strategic move designed to
unlock long-term value by allowing each entity to

pursue its core business with sharper focus and
greater agility. For Digitide, this milestone marks our

Piweal Reoart 202 2020 _E |
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emergence as a distinct,

transformation company that unites the power of Al

future-ready  digital

automation, proprietary platforms, and deep doemain
expertise. We now stand independently with the
mandate to drive purposeful innavation and deliver
measurable outcomes for clients worldwide.

Geographically, our growth priorities are clearly
defined. In India, Digitide will focus on strengthening
its presence in banking & financial services, insurance,
fast-growth technology, and auto & manufacturing. In
Morth America, our strategy will sharpen around
banking & financial services, Insurance, healthcare,
and the technelogy sector, enabling us to align closely
with market demand and client priorities in these
regions. Complementing this geographic focus,
Digitide is doubling down on service lines such as
digital engineering and application management, data,
analytics and Al, and business process services, These
areas not only reinforce our core strengths but also
allow us to build adjacencies and selectively explore

new frontiers that promise enduring value.

Digitide now operates with clarity of purpose: to help
businesses navigate complexity, build intelligent digital
ecosystems, and accelerate transformation. QOur
portfolic spans Tech & Digital Services, Business
& Platforms,
underpinned by deep investments in Al, Data
Analytics, Digital and Cloud-first

solutions.,

Process  Services, and Products

Engineering,

This structural shift empowers us to accelerate growth
with sharper leadership, invest at scale in next-gen
technologies, and deliver greater stakeholder value
through agility and efficiency. The demerger is not just
a reorganization—it is a reinvention. Backed by strong
talent, enduring custoemer relationships, and a bold
vision, Digitide carries forward a proud legacy of
excellence with a renewed focus on building what's
next,
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Digitide’s BSE Listing:

BSE”

June 11, 2025

Fy 2024-25 was a landmark year for Digitide, marked by two defining milestones. On March 4, 2025, the Hon'ble
Mational Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Bangalore Bench, approved the Compaosite Scheme of Arrangement for the
demerger of Quess Corp Limited. This paved the way for the creation of three independent, publicly traded entities
— Quess Corp Limited, Digitide Solutions Limited and Bluspring Enterprises Limited.

The second milestone came on June 11, 2025, when Digitide was officially listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE) and Mational Stock Exchange (MSE). The ringing of the opening bell was more than a ceremonial moment it
marked Digitide’s arrival as a standalone, Al-first, digitally native value creator, ready to accelerate its journey of
growth and innovation.

The listing builds on a strong foundation. Quess’s earlier market issuances raised over 1,270 crores, capital that
seeded the businesses which evolved into Digitide and Bluspring. Fairfax's 2013 investment provided an even
earlier inflection point, giving the confidence and resources to scale. Together, these milestones highlight how
capital markets have enabled the enterprise to grow and unlock long-term value.

Digltide today serves 300+ global customers, generates and employs 55,000+ professionals across 41 locations.

With sharp focus on banking & financial services, insurance, fast growth tech, manufacturing, healthcare, and
investments in digital engineering, Al, data, and business process services, we are building for the future.

Piweal Reoart 202 2020 _E T
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Digitide Brand Launch: Euilt for the Future of
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On June 11, 2025, we unveiled the Digitide brand, a celebration of vision, strategy, and innovation. The event
brought together representatives from 55+ unique brands, with a total of 140+ customers and technology partners
from these organizations, reflecting strong cross-industry confidence in our purpose across sectors such as

Banking & Financial Services, Insurance, Fast Maving Consumer Goods, Fast Growth Tech, Healthcare, Automotive,
and Manufacturing,

The launch was immersive, with interactive demo pods showcasing realworld applications of four proprietary
platfarms:

« PulseCXM.ai — Intelligent customer lifecycle management for CX transfarmation,

« Assurance Intelligence — Al agents powering next-gensration test automation.

« Cognitive Automation — Low-code, data-led intelligence for faster decision-making.

« PulseEXM.al — Al-driven employee experience, automating HRMS from hire to retire,

The focus was clear—demonstrating realtime, customer-relevant innovation that drives future revenue growth, The
launch reinforced our position as a future-ready, Alfirst enterprise, committed to leading with intelligence, impact,
and platforms.

Annual Report 2024 -2025
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Empowering People, Driving Excellence

Al In Learning & Development

At Digitide,
structured funnel approach to ensure inclusive growth
across all levels—from EVOLVE far first-time managers,
to LEAP, CATALYST, and CRUCIBLE for progressively
senior roles. Targeted programs like GROW 2.0

leadership development follows a

empower women in middle management, enhancing
business acumen, leadership, and well-being. We have
other structured programs like Super TL, ACE, and
DICE. Owver 1100 L1 Supervisors and 123 Managers
have been trained in the past two years. These
interventions are aligned with business needs and
conducted outside working hours to  maximize
participation With 44% of leadership positions filled
internally, our approach reflects a strong pipeline of
capable, future-ready leaders.

Employee Engagement

Employee engagement at Digitide is driven by a
culture of ownership and excellence. Initiatives like the
Samural Awards and Project Nikki recognizes
contributions across levels, while DEl programs and
road safety pledges have seen participation from over
1,000 employees. Weekly cadence calls ensure
continuous feedback and recognition.

GPTW Recognitions

Digitide has been certified as a Great Place to Work for
six consecutive years. We have also been placed in
the top 10 for Health & Weliness and recognized
among the top 50 for our innovation-driven culture.
These accolades reflect our commitment to nurturing a
high-trust, high-performance workplace.

Annual Report 2024 -2025

Performance Highlights

Our performance culture emphasizes accountability
and excellence. Al-led retention strategies have
reduced attrition by up to 20%, while automated
scheduling and job-fit scoring have ensured 95% on-
time hiring. These metrics underscore our operational
efficiency and alignment with client SLAs.

Leadership Development
At Digitide,
structured funnel approach to ensure inclusive growth
across all levels—from EVOLVE for first-time managers,

to LEAP, CATALYST, and CRUCIBLE for progressively
senior roles, Targeted programs like GROW 2.0

leadership  development follows a

empower women in middle management, enhancing
business acumen, leadership, and well-being. We have
aother structured programs like Super TL, ACE, and
DICE. Over 1100 L1 Supervisors and 123 Managers
have been trained in the past two years. These
interventions are aligned with business needs and
conducted outside working hours to maximize
participation With 44% of leadership positions filled
internally, our approach reflects a strong pipeline of
capable, future-ready leaders,
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Key Financial |

F¥25 Performance Snapshot

320,672 92% 8%

from Business Process from Tech and
million Revenue Management Services Digital Services

2,909 X943

million EEITDA million PAT

Key Financial

FY25 Performance Snapshot

132,687 73% 27%

million Revenue from Business Process from Tech and
Management Services Digital Services

4,728 1,378

million EBITDA million PAT

MNote: FY25 numbers indicates number from 10th February 2024 to 315t March 2025,
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The digital shift is accelerating and reshaping Customer Impact
husinesses, Digitide adapts to this shift by leading
transformation powered by Al-first strategies, platform-
led innowvation, and agile business services. Our dual-
service model: Business Process Services and Tech &

« Elevated CX through Al-powered personalization
and omnichannel support.
« Higher recovery rates through  intelligent

: : : collections strategies.
Digltal Services enables us to deliver measurable

impact across every layer of the enterprise, helping
husinesses stay resilient, efficient, and future-ready.

« Faster turnaround and improved accuracy in back-
office operations.

« Stronger employee engagement and Improved
compliance with digital EXM tools.

Business Process Management

Services

Business Process Management (BPM) Services remain
a comerstone of Digitide's performance, contributing
73% of FY25 revenue, Our partfolic spans Customer
Experience Management ({CXM), intelligent Back-Office
processing, Collections, and seamless Employee
lifecycle management solutions engineered to deliver
operational  efficiency, accuracy, and measurable

results for our clients.

With a clear focus on profitability and growth, we are
advancing our BPS capabilities to be Al-native, insight-
led, and performance-driven, ensuring stronger client
cutcomes and creating long-term wvalue for our
stakeholders.

Core Capabilities

« Al-Powered Digital ©CCaaS - Omnichannel
engagement across voice, chat, email, and social,
enriched with real-time analytics.

« Genfl-led CX Management — Pulseai enables
predictive routing, real-time agent assistance, and
hyper-personalized interactions.

« Future-Ready Collections — DigiCollegt integrates
predictive intelligence, automated outreach, and a
human-first recovery approach,

« Back-Office Operations — Automated and
streamlined processes for disbursements,
reconciliations, and servicing.

« Employee Experience Management — Digital HR,
payroll, and compliance automation driving
efficiency and engagement.

Annual Report 2024 -2025
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Tech and Digital Services

Tech & Digital Services form the innovation backbone » Smart enterprise modernization through intelligent

of Digitide, focused on building the digital enterprises automation, cloud migration, and Al-integrated

of tomaorrow. Contributing 27% to FY25 revenue, this infrastructure upgrades.

segment is poised for 5x growth in next 6 years by « End-to-end cybersecurity built-in including Al

delivering cyber-resilient, cloud-native, and intelligent driven threat protection, Zero Trust frameworks,

platform-led solutions ensuring we remain at the identity governance, and 24/7 response.

forefront of digital transformation. » End-to-end SAP selutions including
implementation, migration, testing, and automation

Core Capabilities to optimize enterprise resource planning.

« Accelerated application development with GenAl- » GenAl integrated across service lines enhancing

powered low-code platforms  enabling faster CX, data analytics, digital assurance, and

deployment, reduced complexity, and intuitive application development for faster, smarter

workflows. outcomes,

« Intelligent quality engineering through Al-enabled » Evolving from infrastructure management to Al-

digital assurance, script-less automation, and powered, cloud-native platforms  that  drive

i resilien labili n imi rfarm :
comprehensive performance testing. esilience, scalability, and optimized performance

+ Al-driven insurance platform streamlining the policy
! ; j Customer Impact
life cycle with automated workflows, real-time data

validation, requlatory compliance, faster delivery, » Infrastructure  resilience  and  performance

and 24/7 customer support. improvement through scalable IT foundations.

. Unified APl integrations and platform-based » Faster time-to-market and reduced dewvelopment

engineering that eliminate silos, automate efforts via low-code platforms.

processes, and enhance business interoperability. + Enhanced quality and agility with Al-powered
. Alfirst digital experience transformation (TX) to testing and GenAl-driven engineering.
modernize legacy systems and deliver scalable, » Future-ready enterprise enabled by Intelligent

customer-centric applications. modernization and secure operations.

— % =
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Dear Shareholders, Partners, and Valued
Stakeholders,

The fiscal year 2024-25 marks Digitide Solutions' first
year as an independent, publicly listed company and
represents a significant step in our commitment to
advancing digital transformation.

This transformation goes well beyend a structural shift.
Digitide's successful debut on the stock exchange with
a new brand identity will allow the company to carry a
shared legacy and value of growth from Quess. As a
listed company, Digitide has now got a platform to
grow Iindependently, gain greater accountability,
access to public markets, and an abllity to attract
employees, investors, and customers seeking digital
transformation.

A Decade of Strategic Vision

Digitide grew from a simple idea of using technology
to build scalable businesses into a trusted enterprise
driving digital change. With early backing from Fairfax
and carefully chosen acquisitions like Tata Business
Support Services, Allsec and MFX Infotech, we built a
strong base for steady growth. The Quess IPO and the
IPP together raised about $1,270 million, enabling key
investments across India and the Americas. These
formed the base for Digitide Solutions,

As you will see in the below table, the investments
have deliverad a significant shareholder value with a
22% annualized yield. At a purchase price to FY25
EBITDA multiple of just 1.7%, we have shown disciplined
capital allecation, acquired quality assets, and built
market-leading platforms to create lasting advantage.

Particulars Purchase

Price of acquisition)

EBITDA (at time

Ajit Isaac

Chairman

"FY 2024-25 marks a defining
milestone for Digitide Solutions
as we emerge ags an
independent, publicly listed
company. With a balanced
portfolio  spanning  Business
Process Management and Tech
& Digital Services, anchored
firmly in Al-driven transformation,
we are uniguely positioned to
seize emerging opportunities
and create sustainable value for
all stakeholders." , 5

{Ir INR million except CAGR of EBITDA and RO

8PM B.151 754
Tech & Digital 1,385 200
Total 7,536 954

Mote: "Annualised Business segment EBITDA in FY25

FY 25 CAGR of ROI (Annual
EBITDA’ EBITDA Yield)
3.402 252% 23%
929 251% 16%
4,321 25.0% 22%

Piweal Reoart 202 2020 ‘_E-
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Post acquisition, our investments have delivered an
equally compelling trajectory of organic growth. From
just 5,000 employees across 2 dellvery centres in
2014, we have evolved into a global powerhouse with
55,000+ professionals spanning 40+  locations
worldwide. In the last three years, Digitide’s revenue
grew at a CAGR of 12% - double the industry average.

32 EB87
26,643
24 Bag
20,496
Revanue{T™n)
Fy22 FY23 Fra4 Fy2h5
#Dwllvey 38 g 38 a1
canmars
#FEmployees 45k S1k 52k | 55k
Annualised

FY 25: Exceptional Financial Performance

Deaspite challenging glabal macroeconomic conditions,
we dellvered solid results In FY 2024-25 with a
revenue at T32.687 milllon, EBITDA at ¥4728 million
and PAT at ¥1,378 millian.

Our BPM business is the bedrock of our revenue,
serving over 100 enterprises with customer support,
collections, back-office, HR, and revenue services. It
delivers 73% of revenue (¥23,930 millicn) with a 16.8%
EBITDA margin and a strong MET Promoter Score of
68. Our Tech & Digital Services arm, contributing 27%
(¥8,757 million) of the revenue at a 12.4% EBITDA
margin, is driving growth through Al, analytics, digital
assurance, engineering, and cloud solutions.

The journey to a $1 Billion in revenues

We alm to build Digitide into a $1 billlon company by
203, growing at a six-year CAGR of high teens. Our 3x
growth is anchored in three key verticals and service
lines, supported by  strong  leadership,  service
innovation, and advanced digital capabilities. A
sharper global focus will reshape our revenue mix.

=
)
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Today, 64% of Digitide’s revenue comes from India and
38% from global markets. By 2031, our goal is to
achieve an equal split, with international business
contributing 50%. During this course, we remain
committed to creating lasting walue for all
stakeholders. With Al now moving from trials to full-
scale adoption, our independence gives us the focus,
capital, and clarity to help clients unlock the potential,

Al-First Transformation at Scale

At the heart of our competitive advantage lies Pulse.ai-
our proprietary platform that combines deep domain
expertise, process intelligence, and cutting-edge Al to
deliver scalable, intelligent enterprise outcomes dally.
Our Al ecosystem spans industry-specific solutions like
Banking.ai and Healthcare.ai,
experience platforms  including  PulseCxXM.ai  and
PulseEXM.ai, and executive-level copilots such as
PulseCOO.ai and PulseCFO.al. Al is not an add-on to
our services- it Is embedded across every layer of
Digitide's value proposition.

human-centric

Strategic partnerships with global leaders including
AWS, Microsoft, Oracle, and Verint amplify our
capabilities and accelerate our innovation velocity,
ensuring we remain at the forefront of technological
advancement.

Our People: The Foundation of Excellence

Our 55000+ strong global workforce across 40+
locations is our most wvaluable competitive asset.
Beyond technical skills, our culture of inclusivity,
meritocracy, and empowerment drives innovation and
builds resilience. This year, 44% of our leadership roles
were filled through internal promaotions, demonstrating
our deep commitment to talent development and
career advancement.

Our workplace excellence iz externally wvalidated:
recognized as a Great Place to Work for six
consecutive years, ranked in the Top 10 for Health &
Wellness, and Top 50 for Innovation. Our culture is a
powerful beacon of trust, ambition, and belonging.

‘ n_
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Purpose-Driven Impact

At Digitide, we believe purpose and profit go hand in
hand ito drive lasting success. Through the Quess
Faoundation, we support the education and health of
thousands of children in the government schools. Our
sustainability charter focuses on cutting our carbon
footprint, tracking progress on envirenmental and
social goals, and upholding fair, ethical practices
across our supply chain.

Looking Forward with Gratitude

As we embark on this new chapter, we owe our
journey to our clients, employees, and investors. To
our clients, thank you for trusting us with your most
critical transformation needs. Your partnership pushes
us to innovate and excel. To cur employees, your
talent, energy and commitment are the foundation of
everything that we achieve. To our investors, thank
you for your belief in Digitide's long-term vision. Your
support gives us the confidence to aim higher and
deliver lasting value for all stakeholders.

Digitide is not just starting a new company, it Is
shaping a new kind of enterprise: one that creates
tomorrow’s solutions today, combining human insight
with Al efficiency with creativity, and growth with
impact. We are ready to lead this change..

Warm regards,

Ajit Isaac
Chairman
Cigitide Solutions Lid.
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Message from

Gurmeet Singh Chahal

CEO & Executive Director

£6

From launching our brand to
ringing the bell at BSE, FY25 was
not just a year of milestones it was
the beginning of a bold new
chapter. We are not just writing
Digitide’s next chapter we are

shaping the next generation of

enterprise transformation. , ,

I will never forget the morning of June 1, 2025- the
day Digitide officially stood on its own as a publicly
listed company. Watching our global team gathered
across offices and homes, celebrating this milestone
together, | was struck by what truly set us apart; not
just the scale of our ambition, but the shared belief
that we were ready to build something bold, resilient,
and lasting,
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That day was not just the culmination of a demerger. It
was the beginning of Digitide's new journey as an Al-
first, digital-native enterprise a journey defined by
focus, agility, and the conviction that the future
belongs to those who can harness intelligence
responsibly and at scale,

FY25: A Year of Transformation

FY25 was, in every sense, a year of transformation. We
sharpened our strateqy, streamlined our structure, and
reinforced a culture of speed and ownership. With
revenues of F32687 Mn and year-on-year growth of
6%, we built not only financial momentum but also the
foundation for long-term, sustainable value creation.

We successfully launched the Digitide brand,
completed our demerger and stock listing, and
implemented a new organizational structure. We also
won 35 new logos, forged 8+ strategic partnerships
with global tech leaders, and hosted our first client
summit, Converge, in Mumbai, These milestones were
matched by financial strength.

A Diversified Business with Proven Scale

Digitide today stands as a uniquely positioned
enterprise- diversified across service lines, verticals,
and geographies, and operating at a scale that few
can match. Our portfolio spans Digital Engineering and
Apps. Data and Al, and BPM and BPaa5 services, each
powered by over 50 proprietary Al platforms and
accelerators such as Pulse.al and Nikki.ai. This breadth
allows us to deliver transformation that Is both deep In
capability and wide In impact.

Our wvertical reach extends across Banking and
Financial Services, Insurance, Healthcare, Fast Growth
Tech, and Auta & Manufacturing, with a strong
geographical presence in India, North America, South
East Asia and beyond. This global spread not only
mitigates concentration risk but also ensures that our
innovations are tested, scaled, and proven across
markets of varying maturity.
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What truly sets Digitide apart is the scale of execution
we have already achieved. Each year, we manage $3B
in collections, process $25B+ in premiums on our
proprietary platform, enable 1B+ customer connects,
manage 1,000+ data servers, and process over 15M
payroll transactions. These are not just statistics; they
are proof of our ability to deliver mission-critical
services at scale, with precision and reliability,

This foundation of diversification and proven scale
gives Digitide both resilience and momentum. |t
enables us to weather cycles, capture growth across
multiple adjacencies, and embed Al-first solutions at
the core of enterprise transformation worldwide,

Financial Performance and Resilience

FY25 also showcased Digltide's ability to deliver
consistent growth with a well-diversified portfolio
across services, geographies, and wverticals. BPM
continued to be our growth engine, contributing 73%
of rewvenues (23,930 Mn), while Tech & Digital
senvices accounted for 27% (T8.757 Mn), reflecting the
increasing demand for our data, Al and digital
engineering capabilities.

Geographically, revenus was balanced between
domestic markets, which contributed 64% and
international markets, which contributed 36%. This
balance underlines our ability to scale both at home
and abroad, providing stability as well as growth
optionality.

Across  Industry  verticals, Banking and Financial
Services led with 44% of revenue, followed by
Insurance at 10%, Healthcare at 1%, Manufacturing at
5%, and Fast Growth Tech at 7%, with the remaining
24% coming from a diversified mix of other sectors.
This distribution reflects both our stronghold in
regulated industries and our expansion into new
growth segments.

The top 10 clients contributed 36% of revenue, the
next 20 clients added 23%, and the remaining 40%
came from a broad and diverse customer set. This
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diversity is a testament to the depth of our client
relationships and the resilience of our portfolio,
Impartantly, nearly 70% of our customers have been
with us for more than five years, a true testament to
the delivery excellence and walue we consistently
bring to these relationships.

Together, this mix provides Digitide with both stability
and headroom for growth, ensuring that no single
service line, geography, or client dependency defines
our trajectory. As we accelerate towards our $1B
revenue goal by FY31, this balanced portfolio will
remain a core strength- helping wus capture
adjacencies, expand globally, and embed Al-led
offerings across industries.

The 3x3x3 Strategy to $1B

Qur ambition is bold yet grounded: to triple our
revenues to $1 billion by FY31. We call this our 3x3x3
strategy, focused on,

3x Growth- Growing 2x faster than the market,
improving EBITDA margins by 200 bps, and doubling
billing realization per FTE,

3x Verticals- Expanding across Banking & Financial
Services, Insurance, Healthcare, Fast Growth Tech,
Auto & Manufacturing.

3x Service Lines- Scaling Digital Engineering & Apps,
Data & Al, and BPM including BPaas.

This strategy is anchored in five clear pillars:

Leadership: A seasoned team with over 250 years of
collective experience, supported by a diverse and
engaged board.

Talent: A sharply defined strategy to build a
performance-driven, innovation-focused culture with
continueus upskilling and inclusion,

Agility: A future-ready operating model with faster
decision-making, stronger sales and marketing
engines, and adaptive delivery.
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Al-Led Offerings: An "all-in on A" approach, anchored
by Pulse.ai, our proprietary transformation engine.

Selective Inorganic Growth: Targeted acquisitions to
strengthen  capabilities,
accelerate time-to-market.,

expand globally, and

Guided by Principles, Built for Value

At Digitide, our journey is anchored In the twin
principles of market-leading growth and value creation
for all stakeholders. We are committed to tripling
revenues to $1 billion by FY31, outpacing industry
growth by a factor of two, and expanding margins by
200 basis peoints through innovation and operational
excellence. To accelerate momentum, 25-30% of our
growth will be fuelled by carefully chosen Inorganic
opportunities  that strengthen our capabilities and
expand our reach. At the same time, we remain
committed to safeguarding financial strength through a
disciplined balance sheet and maintaining leverage
below 2%, ensuring agility for future bolt-on
acquisitions,

Culture and People at the Core

Our team of over 55,000 people remains at the heart
of Digitide's success. From engineers solving complex
problems at speed, to consultants co-creating
transformation journeys, to delivery leaders ensuring
flawless execution across time zones- our people are
the foundation of everything we achieve. In FY25, 44%
of job roles were promoted from within, a reflection of
our commitment to inclusive growth and leadership
development, | am egually proud that Digitide has
been recognized as a Great Place to Work for six
consecutive years. These accolades reaffirm that our
workplace is not only high-performing, but also built on
a culture of trust, ownership, and resilience.

To meet the needs of global enterprises, we continue
to expand our footprint across Morth America, the
Middle East, and Southeast Asia. Establishing over 40
global delivery centers and innovation hubs in these

regions positions us closer to clients, enabling
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true 24x7 responsiveness and faster cycles of
innovation. At the same time, India remains the heart
of our operations, with its talent, Innovation
ecosystems, and governance frameworks serving as
the bedrock of our growth.

Looking Ahead

As we ook forward, our prigrities are clear; deepen
client relationships, expand globally, strengthen
margins through operational excellence, and embed
ESG principles into everything we do. Because at
Digiticle, we believe how we grow is just as important
as how fast we grow.

FY26 will be a year of acceleration. We will push
further with Al-led transformation, deepen our global
partnerships, and unlock new levels of efficiency and
impact. With resilience as our anchor and intelligence
as our compass, Digitide is not just prepared for the
future, we are determined o create it.

This defining year would not have been possible
without you, our investors, for your confidence: our
customers, for your trust; and our employees, for your
relentless commitment. Together, we are not just
writing Digitide’s next chapter, we are shaping the next
generation of enterprise transformation,

As Peter Drucker once said, "The best way to predict
the future is to create it.” That is the spirit with which
we began this journey and the spirit that will guide us
as we build the Digitide of tomorrow.

With gratitude and determination,

Gurmeet Singh Chahal
Chief Executive Officer
Digitide Solutions Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This repert is intended to convey management's
perspective on the business outlook, financial position
and the corresponding results of operations for the
period ended March 31st 2025. Please read the
following discussion and analysis in conjunction with
the Financial Statements. This discussion may contain
forward-looking statements and reflects current views
with respect to future events and financial
perfarmance and involves numercus risks  and
uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those
described in the section entitled “Risk Factors”. Unless
otherwise stated or unless the context otherwise
requires, the financial information of our Company
used in this section has been derived from the Audited

Financial Statements.

Your Company was Incorporated on February 10,
2024, with its first financial year commencing frem the
date of incorporation and ending on March 31, 2025.
Accordingly, all references to a particular Financial
Year are to the considered accordingly. The Board has
approved the Financial Statements for the period
ended March 31, 2025 on June 26th, 2025 and
approve the audited financial statements for the first
financial year ended March 31, 2025 in accordance
with the SEBI Listing Regulations,

The information in this section includes extracts from
publicly available infarmation, data and statistics and
has been derived from wvarious publications and
industry sources. The data may have been re-
classified by us for the purposes of presentation.
Industry and government publications are also
prepared based on information as of specific dates
and may no longer be current or reflect current
trends.
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A. Industry structure and developments

Global Economy

According to International Monetary Fund (IMF), global
growth is projected to fall from an estimated 3.3
percent In 2024 to 2.8 percent in 2025, before
recovering to 3 percent in 2026. This is lower than the
projections In the January 2025 World Economic
Outlook (WEQ) update, by 0.5 percentage point for
2025 and 032 percentage point for 2026, with
downward revisions for nearly all countries. The
downgrades are broad-based across countries and
reflect in large pant the direct effects of the new trade
measures and their indirect effects through trade
heightened uncertainty, and
deteriorating sentiment. The swift escalation of trade

linkage spillovers,
tensions  and extremely high levels of policy
uncertainty are expected to have a significant impact
an global economic activity,

Growth in advanced economies is projected to be 1.4
percent in 2025, Growth in the United States is
expected to slow to 1.8 percent, a pace that is 0.9
percentage point lower relative to the projection in the
January 2025 World Economic Outlook (WEQ) update,
an account of greater policy uncertainty, trade
tensions, and softer demand momentum, whereas
growth in the euro area at 0.8 percent is expected to
slow by 0.2 percentage peint. In emerging market and
developing economies, growth is expected to slow
down to 3.7 percent in 2025 and 3.9 percent in 2026,
with significant downgrades for countries affected
most by recent trade measures, such as China. For
India, the growth outlook is relatively more stable at
62 percent in 2025, supported by private
consumption, particularly in rural areas, but this rate is
0.2 percentage point lower than that in the January
2025 World Economic Outlook (WED) update on
account of higher levels of trade tensions and global
uncertainty.
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WORLD ECONOMIC OUTLOOK GROWTH WITH PROJECTIONS

PROJECTIONS

Real GDP, annual percent change

Advanced Economies

United States 28 1.8 1.7
Euro Area 09 08 1.2
Germany 0.2 Q.0 0.9
France 11 0.6 1.0
Italy 07 0.4 0.8
Spain 332 25 1.8
Japan 02 06 0.6
United Kingdom 11 11 1.4
Canada 15 1.4 18
Other advanced Economics 2.2 1.8 20

Emerging Market and Developing Economics

Emerging and developing Asia 5.3 4.5 4.6
China 50 4.0 4.0
India 6.5 6.2 6.3
Emerging and developing Europe 3.4 21 21
Russia 4.1 1.5 0.9
Latin America and the Caribbean 24 20 24
Brazil 34 20 20
Mexico 15 0.3 1.4
Middle East and Central Asia 24 30 3.5
Saud| Arabia 13 30 7
Sub- Saharan Africa 4.0 3B 4.2
Nigeria 3.4 30 27
South Africa 06 1.0 1.3
Memorandum

Emerging Market and Middle-lncome Economias 4.3 37 38
Low- Income Developing Countries 40 42 5.2

Source - IMF, Warld Economic Outlook, April 2025

Aweal Repart 200 -202p ‘_E-



Management Discussion &

I :.I =y - % s - -.~I P e o
" 1AL Y 2

- = 3
b w AN RSN L
>

Global IT/ITeS {IT Services and BPM) Industry

The global IT Services and BPM market (which
includes Data Analytics & Al) is “USD 1.5 trillion,
growing at 6-7% annually over the next 5 years.

As businesses worldwide accelerate their digital-first
initiatives, the demand for next-generation IT and BPFM
solutions continues to surge, driven by next-gen
aperational axcellence,
automation, cloud migration, and Al adoption. Uptick in

customer  experience,
IT spending is contributed by organizations’ need to
adapt guickly to new challenges and business models,
growth of e-commerce; and the need for digital
collaboration tools. The increasing complexity of
business operations, couplad with the need for cost
optimization, has led enterprises to pariner with
speclalized BPM firms to manage processes efficiently.

Faor India IT Services, Gartner estimates that despite
the global services market being characterized by
cautious spending, macroeconomic uncertainty, and
higher capltal costs, IT services spending in India was
“USD 26 billion and expected to grow at B-5% over
the next 5 years. India's |T-BPM sector remains
positioned for long-term growth, supported by a strang
talent pipeline, technological innovation, and evolving
business models.

The IT-BPM industry is wvalued at USD 30 billien In
2024, This pertains to the IT and BPM services spend
by companies based in India and excludes all exports.
90% of the market is [T services, growlng at 8-9%,
while the remaining is BPM market growing at
6-7%. Business (“BPM™}
solutions have become integral to modern enterprises,

Process  Management
enabling organizations to streamline operations,
enhance efficlency, and drive innovation. Across
various industries, BPM plays a crucial role in
optimizing workflows, ensuring compliance, and
improving customer experiences,

India's Dominance in the Global IT-BPM Market

India remains a dominant force in the global IT-BPM
industry, primarily driven by exports. The country
accounts for 55% of the global IT sourcing market,
making it the preferred destination for outsourcing
BPM services.
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Factars such as cost efficiency, a wvast skilled
digital
contribute to India's leadership in this space. With

workforce, and a  robust infrastructure
continuous advancements in  automation, artificial
intelligence, and cloud-based BPM solutions, India's IT-
BPM sector is poised for sustained growth and global
competitiveness. As per Masscom's Technology Sector
in India: Strategic Review published in February 2025,
Fr25 witnessed the industry strengthening its position
as the global technology and innovation hub.

This is reflected in the fact that despite uncertainties
due to elections in several countries, the industry Is
expected to witness resilient growth in FY25 with
revenue (including hardware) estimated to reach USD
283 Billian (5.1% y-o-y growth), an addition of nearly USD
14 Billion owver last year. Exports are expected to grow
4.6% y-o0-y to USD 224 Billion,

With improving market conditions, the industry’s net
hiring this year increased to 126K employees, taking the
total employee base to 5.80 Million (2.2% y-o-y growth),

B. Company overview and Outlook

Our Business

Your Company is an artificial intelligence (%Al17) first
digital transformation partner driving responsible and
trusted [T, digital and BPM solutions, with presence in
both domestic {in India) and international markets (in
the United States of America, Canada and Rest of the
World). Our digital solutions encompass (i) Al, data and
analytics; (i) tech and digital services; and (iii) Business
Processes Management ("BPMT), offering cutting-edge
and scalable technologies that drive business
efficiency, enhance customer experience and grow
customer revenue.

As an Al-first, digital-native solutions provider, we
focus on  enabling enterprise success  through
comprehensive digital transformation. With a global
footprint across 30+ delivery and technology centres,
we are committed to making a meaningful impact
across industries, We support cusiomers across 3
range of sectors including BFSI, fast growth tech (FGT),
healthcare, automotive, manufacturing, retail, e-
commerce, telecommunications and the public sector.
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Our market-leading platforms in insurance, CX, cellections, HR and payroll, talent acquisition, and finance and

accounting demonstrate our focus on delivering intelligent and tailored solutions to address diverse business

challenges, empowering organizations to achieve their goals and drive sustainable growth. We operate a
dedicated Al Center of Excellence, which allows us to leverage artificial intelligence and analytics to provide [T,
Digital, and BPM solutions. Our next-gen platforms, such as Insurance Data Hub, Pulseal, Smart Payroll, and

SmartHR, offer innovative, scalable, and future-ready solutions tailored to our clients’ evolving needs.

Set out below are our key business segments:

Business Segment Particulars of services

Business Process
Management

Intelligent Customer Experience, Enhanced Employee Experience (HRO), Intelligent
Finance & Accounting Services, Al-driven Tailored Industry Specific Operations including

Collections for Banking and Financial Services sector

Technology and Digital

Digital Engineering, Enterprise Solutions, Infra and Cloud Services, and Cyber Security

GenAl-based use cases, Advanced Analytics, Business Intelligence and Visualization,
Data Modemization and related services

Each segment is strategically positioned for expansion,
supported by Digitide’s cutting-edge  technology
capabilities, deep domain expertise, and a robust
client base spanning multiple industries in  key
geographies.

Qur proven scale & impact underline the operational
depth, Al-led
scalability of the business. E.g., $3B+ in callections

efficiency, and enterprise-grade
handled annually, $25B+ in insurance premiums
processed, 1B+ customer interactions annually, 15M+
payrall transactions, 20+ healthcare specialty lines and
1K+ servers managed,

With a well-established footprint across Morth America
and APAC, we have built a strong presence in key
global markets. This enables us to serve clients with
localized expertise while |everaging global best
practices. QOur geographical reach, combined with
vermacular expertise and a strong delivery presence
{multiple locations across five countries comprising of
three delivery centers in India, Canada and Philippines
and eight business centers in India, USA, Canada,
LUAE, Philippines, Sri Lanka, Singapore and Malaysia),
provides us with a competitive edge in tapping into
high-growth industries,

= ==

By ensuring business  continuity, regulatory
compliance, and seamless service delivery across
multiple regions, we sclidify our position as a trusted

partner in the BPM space.

Our experience in tech and digital sclutions dates to
2014 when Quess Corp Limited, India's leading
business services and staffing provider, expanded into
tech and digital services pursuant to an acquisition of
an IT professional service provider, in 2014, Quess
Corp Limited achieved major milestones in the IT
services, including entering the IT services market and
P&C insurance markets in 2014 and 2016, respectivaly,
Between 2017 and 2021, Quess Corp entered in the
customer experience management market through an
acquisition of majority stake in one of the largest India-
to-India TX player. Subsequently, Quess Corp Limited
acquired a stake in one of India's leading listed payroll
services providers in 2019 and digital consulting and
product engineering company in 2024,

These businesses have scaled considerably and in
order to further gain momentum, Quess Corp Limited
was demerged, and business undertaking was
transferred to your company as an independent
company for Tech and Digital and BPM services.
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For the period, Company reported total revenue of
F32,687 million, The company delivered an EBITDA of
F4728 million, translating to an EBITDA margin of
14.5%, demonstrating continued operational resilience
and disciplined cost management. Adjusted PAT for
the period stood at 1,656 million, with a net margin of
51%. Our growth was underpinned by a resilient and
diversified portfolio across services, geographies,
verticals and client segments.

Performance by Segments - BPM segment revenue
stands at $23.930 million (73% of total revenue) during
the period, with EBITDA margin of 16.8%. Tech & Digital
segment revenue stands at 8757 million {27% of total
revenue) during the period, with EBITDA margin of
12.4%.

Performance by Geography - 36% of total revenue
comes from international geography. 64% of total
revenue cames from Domestic geography,

Performance by Industry Vertical - Vertically, BFSI
remained the largest contributor at 54% including 10%
from Insurance, followed by MFG (10%), Healthcare
(5%) and FGT is [7%), highlighting our sectoral depth,
This balanced mix ‘across wverticals reduces
dependency on any single sector and positions the

company well for resilient growth.

Performance by Client Segments - QOur client
concentration remained healthy, with the Top 10 clients
accounting for 36% of revenue, and the balance well
distributed across other cohorts. This  diversity
positions us to drive sustainable growth, even amidst
market volatility, while our strategic investments in Al
automation, and platform sclutions are expected to
yield long-term value,

Opportunities and Challenges - Your Company Is
well-positioned to capitalize on several emerging
opportunities  within  the rapidly evolving IT-BPM
landscape. The accelerated adoption of digital
transformation and cloud services across enterprises
presents significant headroom for growth, enabling
the Company to expand its offerings in areas such
as cloud migration, infrastructure management,
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cybersecurity, and enterprise automation. Additionally,
the rising global focus on customer experience is
creating strong demand for Al- and analytics-driven
solutions. Company’s capabilities in applying Al
powered analytics and automation within contact
centers allow it to deliver enhanced engagement and
operational efficlency. The growing enterprise appetite
for generative Al technologies also opens new
avenues for end-to-end Gendl solutions, including Al-
powered application development, wvirtual assistants,
and automated document processing. Structural shifts
in sectors such as BFSI, Healthcare, Manufacturing,
and Retail—driven by regulatory mandates and digital
adoption—further create demand for domain-led,
compllant, and scalable services. Maoreowver, as global
enterprises  seek
transformation journeys, the Company can despen
strategic partnerships with Fortune 500 clients. The
growing digitalization of small and medium-sized
businesses (SMBs) alse represents a compelling
opportunity for the company’s platform-led. bundled
“as-a-service” offerings.

reliable  partners  for  their

Despite a favorable demand enwvironment, your
Company navigate a range of threats that could impact
its competitive position and growth trajectory. The
company faces intensifying competition from both
large multinational IT-BPM firms and agile digital-native
startups, putting pressure an market share and
Additionally, while Al adoption fuels
innovation, it also brings the risk of disrupting

margins.

traditional service models, potentially leading to talent
displacement and reskiling challenges. Regulatory
developments such as the GDPR and India’s Digital
Personal Data Protection Act introduce increased
compliance burdens, particularly in  cross-border
outsourcing. Talent shortages—especially in  high-
demand domains like Al, cloud, and cybersecurity—
continue to drive up hiring costs and attrition,
particularly in North America. Broader macroeconomic
risks, including inflation, recession concerns, trade
restrictions, and changing visa policies, may delay
client decision-making or reduce outsourcing spends.
Lastly, the heightened frequency and sophistication of
cyberattacks necessitate continuous investments in
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cybersecurity Infrastructure and regulatory
compliance, as a breach could result in operational
disruption, reputational damage, and financial
penalties.

Our Strategies

Growth, Core Verticals and Service Lines

We are implementing a comprehensive 3X strategy to
drive growth and success, focusing on three pivotal
mowves: growth, core verticals, and service lines.

Growth: The growth strategy includes unifying the
workforce under 'One Digitide’ with future-ready and
differentiated talent, prioritising technology-driven
global initiatives, fostering a robust ecosystem through
partnerships and collabarations.

Core Verticals: We are concentrating on three core
verticals taillored to  international and domestic
markets: insurance and banking, healthcare, and fast
growth tech (FGT) for the international market, and
insurance and banking, manufacturing and automotive,
and FGT for the domestic market,

Service Lines: - To deliver value across these verticals,
your Company is focusing on two primary service
lines, Tech and Digital Services [including Data,
Analytics, Al services) and BPM (BFaa%) Services,

This structured approach aims to enhance Digitide's
capabilities, establish a strong market presence, and
deliver exceptional value to its clients.

Capturing market opportunities
We are strategically positioned to capitalize on market
opportunities by engine

internationally with dedicated farming and hunting

industrializing  sales

motions, and large deals focus, Strategic acquisitions
in adjacent markets and leveraging ecosystem
partners are key to enhancing service offerings and
competitive advantage. We are committed to global
expansion in BPM services, particularly in  high-
demand regions, and will leverage market-specific
expertise, We prigritize investments in  up-skilling
talent, fostering innowvation, and emphasizing sales
leadership and change management,

= ==
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To achieve growth aspirations, we will leverage core
focus areas, pursue inorganic growth in select industry
verticals and service lines, and prioritize strateglc
capital  allocation,  including  profitability-driven
investments, operational efficiencies, automation for
cost efficiencies, and collaboration/co-investment
opportunities with ecosystem partners.

Continue to leverage Al-focussed technology

We benefit significantly from the growing global
customer experience market by leveraging its Al-
powered analytics and automation in contact centres
to enhance customer engagement and efficiency. The
accelerating adoption of cloud services presents
another oppartunity for Digitide to expand its offerings
in  cloud migration, infrastructure management,
cybersecurity, and enterprise automation services.
Additionally, the Increasing demand for Al-driven
solutions to foster innowvation and personalise user
experiences positions us to offer generative Al-driven
application development, data engineering solutions,
Al-powered  wirtual assistants, and automated
document processing. Strengthening partnerships with
global enterprises, particularly Fortune 1000 clients,
also presents a strategic opportunity for us to expand
its market presence both

internationally, We plan to enhance its offerings by

domestically and

embedding Al and digital automation into existing

services, creating new  Alfirst  offerings, and
augmenting internal capabilities for operational
efficiencies.

Leveraging industry tailwinds

The North American Tech & Digital Services market is
also set for robust growth, with cloud infrastructure
services remaining resilient despite scrutiny of IT
spending. Cloud adoption is expected to increase,
driven by significant investments required for Al
implementation. The application managed services
market will grow substantially as organizations
integrate Al and machine learning into workflows.
GenAl will support growth in IT services, particularly in
knowledge center

management and contact

augmentation, with the addressable Al Services

market for IT firms expected to nearly double by 2028,
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The Business Process Management (BPM) market in
India is poised for significant growth, with an expected
annual increase of 5-6% over the next five years. The
BFS] sector, 8 major vertical, is set to evolve rapldly
through Al-driven automation for custemer experience,
risk management, and fraud detection. The adoption
of cloud-based banking operations will enhance
scalability, while a stronger emphasis on cybersecurity
and regulatory compliance will address rising digital
fraud risks. The Manufacturing and Automotive sectors
are being transformed by Al-powered supply chain
intelligence, ESG compliance, and Industry 4.0
innovations. The Fast Growth Tech (FGT) sector,
particularly e-commerce and fintech, will see a surge in
Al-driven

outsourcing  and  hyper-personalized

customer support.

In Morth America, the BPM market is expected to grow
at a faster rate of 7-8% annually. The BFSI sector will
see moderate growth driven by mid-sized and regional
banks, with a focus on Al-driven automation and cloud-

C. Financial Performance of the Company

dicjitide

based digital banking. The Healthcare sector will
expand with Al-powered patient engagement and
telehealth support, aiming to improve operational
efficiency and personalized care. The FGT sector will
continue to grow rapidly, with Increased outsourcing
for AVML model training and regulatory compliance.

The IT-BPM industry is poised for sustained growth as
businesses to  digitally
operations, products, and customer interactions. The

continue reinvent  their
convergence of cloud, Al, automation, cybersecurity,
and data intelligence Is expected to redefine business
strategies, drive operational resilience, and foster
long-term competitiveness. As enterprises prioritize
cost efficiency, innovation, and digital transformation,
the demand for agile, scalable, and technology-driven
BPM solutions will remain strang, shaping the future of
the global IT services and outsourcing landscape.
Digitide is well-equipped to lead this transformation
and deliver long-term wvalue to its clients and

stakeholders.

The following sets forth information with respect to the key components of Audited Financial Statements of your
Company for the period between the date of incorporation of our Company i.e. February 10, 2024 to March 31,

2025,

(i} Income

Particulars

{in INR millions)

For the period from February 10, 2024 to March 31, 2025

Revenue from operations
Other incoms

Total

3268727
192.26

32,879.53

Other income comprises of (i) interest income and (i) other gains and losses.

Revenue from Operations comprises of EPM and Tech and Digital business segment.

{il) Expenses

(in INR millicns)

For the period from February 10, 2024 to March 31, 2025

Employee benefits expense
Other expenses

Total

2316257
4782.38

27.944.95
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Cther expenses comprise of information technology services, consultancy or professional fees, postage, telephone,
printing, stationery and miscellaneous expenses. This excludes depreciation, finance Cost, taxes and exceptional

items, if any.

(i) Our Tax Expenses

(in INR millions)
Particulars For the period from February 10, 2024 to March 31, 2025
Current tax 579.56
Deferred tax (6.82)
Total 57274

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the period as determined In accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 Deferred tax is recognized based on the
difference between taxable profit and book profit due to the effect of timing differences. Our deferred tax is
measured based on the applicable tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

relevant balance sheet date.

{iv) Profit before Tax

Cur Company earned a profit before tax of ¥ 1,950,22 million for the period ended March 31, 2025, (in INR millions)

For the period 10 For the periad 10
February 2024 to 31 February 2024 to 31
March 2025 March 2025
Revenue 3268727 2067244
Less: Cost of Materials and Stores and Spare Parts Consumed 14.26 14.26
Less: Employee Expenses 2316257 15.067.06
Less: Other Expenses 478238 268215
EBITDA 4.728.06 2,908.97
EBITDA Margin 14.46% 14.07%
Add: Other Income 192.26 57419
Less: Finance Costs 4832.56 383,33
Less: Depreciation & Amaortization Expense 2,20775 1,418.91
Less: Exceptional ltem 278759 46269
Profit Before Tax 1,950.22 1,218.23
Profit Before Tax Margin 5.97% 5.89%
Less: Tax Expense 57274 27439

sl Reort 2022040 ‘_E-
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{in INR millions)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone

Profit After Tax

Profit After Tax Margin

Add: Other Comprehensive Income! (Losses)
Tatal Comprehensive income for the year

Diluted EPS (in T)

(V) Key Highlights:

Revenue from operations

The company's consolidated revenue
sales of T32 68727 million,

registered

EBITDA
The company's consolidated EBIDTA for the period is
T4,728.06 million.

Other Expenses

On a consolidated basis. Other expenses majorly
comprise of repairs and maintenance $1,53018 million,
sub-contractor charges T993.21 million, consultancy
and professional fees T488.88 million, travelling and
conveyance $384.96 million, power and fuel $291.08
million. Remaining other expense relates to printing
and stationery, rate and taxes,
expenses, miscellaneous expenses etc. This excludes
depreciation, finance Cost, taxes and exceptional
items, if any.

commumnication

Finance Cost

On a consclidated basis, finance cost for the period is
F483.56 million of which ¥1310 million belongs to
borrowings and related costs, ¥25.92 million against
defined benefit plans and ¥344.53 million against
lease liabilities.

Depreciation and Amortization
Consolidated depreciation & amortization expenses

Aweal Repart 200 -202p ‘_E-

For the period 10

For the period 10

February 2024 to 31 February 2024 to 31

March 2025 March 2025
1,377.48 94334
4.21% 4.56%
an -20.81
138159 922.53
72 6.30

for the period is ¥2,20775 million out which ¥585.36
million pertains to property, plant and eguipment,
F1.376.10 million pertains to Right to Use assets and
T246.29 million pertains to intangible assets.

Exceptional ltems

On a consolidated basis, the company incurred
charges for professional services, certain employes
benefits expense and Stamp duty aggregating to
T265.42 million, Additionally, on a consolidated basis,
company booked a gain of $170.80 million towards
sale of Labour Law Compliance (LLC) Division on a
going concern basis by way of slump sale. Company
also made a provision of T2 million towards
indemnification of liability arising on account of non-
collection of trade receivables, The Company also
transferred certain customer contracts pertaining to
payroll compliance business to the buyer to whom the
LLC division was sold, pursuant to the request of those
customers In order to avail all their statutony
compliance services with one service provider and
recorded a gain of ¥&10 million. The company also
wrote off certain recelvables and other assets
amounting to FI82.27 milllen pursuant to managemeant
decision to discontinue certain projects.

Income Taxes
Tax expenses during the period is T572.74 million.
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Leverage Metrics

Debt/Equity 0.43x
Waorking Capital Metrics

Receivable DSO 7 days
Return Metrics

RoCE (post-tax) (#) 10.5%

RoE (post tax) 13.2%

#Return Metrics are annualised

« Goodwill of 212673 million comprise of $860.05 million from acquisition of Connegt Business Solutions Limited,
32978 million from Brainhunter Systems Limited Canada, $572.79 million from MFXchange Holdings Inc. and
#5641 million from Alldigi Technologies Limited.

+ Investments: Investments of $15.47 million pertains to subscription of equity shares of KMG Infotech by
MFXchange Haldings Inc.

- Receivable DSO: Receivable (Billed and Unbilled) DSO stood at 71 days for the period 10 Feb 2024 to 31st March
2025.

+ Cash and Cash Eqguivalents: The cash and cash equivalent balance including bank balances and current
investments stood at $2,671.39 million as on March 31st 2025

+ Borrowings: Long term debt consisting of vehicle loan stood at $50.77 million and short term debt stood at
#579.35 million as on March 31st 2025

+ Non-Controlling Interest of $802.95 million on account of non-controlling interest of 2663% in Alldigi Tech
Limited.

- Cash Flow from Operations: Cash flow from operations stood at ¥3,684.43 million on a consclidated basis and
¥2135.78 on a standalone basis as on March 31st 2025

Financial Ratios

DSO days Total trade Receivables Revenue 71 days
Interest Coverage Ratio Earnings before interest and tax Interest on outstanding delbt 5 26X
Current Ratio Current Assets Current liabilities 1.56x
Debt Equity Ratio Long term debt + short term debt  Total Equity 0.43x
EBITDA Margin EBITDA Revenue 14 46%
Net Profit Margin Met Profit Revenue 4.21%
Return on Net Worth Met Profit Total Equity 13.2%
Debtor Turnover Ratio Revenue Trade Receivables 151x
Working Capital Turnover Ratic Revenue Current assets - Current llabilities  10.19x

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E-
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Unusual or Infrequent Events or Transactions
Except as described in “Risk Management”, there have
been no events or transactions to our knowledge that
have in the past or may in the future affect our
business operations or financial performance which
may be described as “unusual” or “infreguent”,

Significant Economic Changes

Our business has been subject, and we expect it to
continue to be subject, to significant economic
changes that materially affect or are likely to affect
income from continuing operations. See “Risk

Management”

Known Trends or Uncertainties

There are no known trends or uncertainties that have
or had ar are expected to have a material adverse
effect on our revenue or income from continuing

opearations.

Future Relationships Between Expenditure and
Income

Other than as described in “Risk Factors®, "Company
Overview”, to our knowledge there are no known

factors which we expect will have a material adverse

financial

""!_'" __

impact on our business operations,

perfarmance and growth prospects.

i
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—
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Mew Product or Business Segments

Other than as described in *Company Overview" there
are no new products or business segments in which
we operate.

Supplier or Customer Concentration

We do not have any material dependence on a single
ot few suppliers. We have a wide customer base and
do not have any material dependence on any
customer.

Related Party Transactions
The details of the related party transactions have been
provided in “Financial Statements”

Seasonality

The Company's business is not seasonal in nature.

Competitive Conditions

We expect competitive conditions in our industry to
further intensify as new entrants emerge and as
existing competitors seek to emulate our business
model and offer similar products. For further details,
please refer to “Risk Management” and “Company

Overview"” respectively.

D. RISK MANAGEMENT

In the ever-evolving business landscape, marked by a strong emphasis on automation, digital transformation, and
data protection, the risk dynamics undergo continuous shifts. At Digitide, we meticulously evaluate both external
and internal factors to identify, assess, control, and effectively manage associated risks. Our meticulously crafted
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework, which comprehensively covers all aspects of our operations,
enables us to gauge the likelihood and impact of identified risks, ensuring proactive risk mitigation. Anchored by a
robust Risk Management Framework, we uphold our commitment to aligning with the company's strategic
objectives by comprehensively evaluating risks inherent in our operations.

Annual Report 2024 -2025
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We've embraced a seamlessly integrated ERM Framework, operationalized throughout the organization by our
dedicated Risk Management Team. Tailored to accommaodate our diverse business needs, our ERM Framework draws
from the gold standards of CO50 and 150 31000, ensuring alignment with best practices and principles.

Risk Culture

Risk Committes

L]

Quarterly Mitigation Status
Dashboard

Mitigation Impact
Assessment Report

Risk Gowveman

Rizk Reviews with Leadership
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Risk
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Risk Management
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Reparting & Communication

Our framework facilitates systematic and proactive risk identification, actively engaging Business Leaders, Functional
Heads, and Process Owners. By discerning and mitigating risks, our organization optimizes performance and
expedites decision-making. Furthermore, our ERM framework comprehensively identifies strategic, operational,
financial, compliance, and sustainability risks, considering both internal and external dimenslons across all categories.

Supported by a robust and dynamic internal control system, our ERM Framework boasts the following features:

« Dur Board-approved Risk Management Policy delineates a structured and disciplined approach to risk

management, aiding strategic decision-making. The Risk Management Committee, composed of Board members

and C-suite Executives, diligently reviews and oversees the progress of mitigation plans, offering essential

guidance and directian,

« The Corparate-level Risk Management Team maintains constant engagement with independent Internal Auditors

to pinpeint areas necessitating strengthened processes and internal controls for enhanced risk management. The

Audit Committee conducts in-depth discussions and evaluations of audit findings, including the status of

management action plans.

+ Business SOPs and policies, alongside centrally issued directives, serve as guiding principles for our internal

controls, fortifying our risk management processes,

Piweat Repurt 0% 20 ‘_E-
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Risk Category Description

Strategic Risks Strategic risk involves uncertainties arising from an organization's leadership decisions on
long-term goals, competitive position, and successful execution of strategy. For example,

risks associated with business model, service offerings, target markets, etc

Risks that impact our service delivery and business practices due to inadequate or failed
internal processes, systems, or people. For example, risks associated with day-to-day
operations, such as errors in procedures, technology failures, and the ability to scale

Operational Risks

based on business needs,

Financial Risks Risks affecting the financial stability and profitability of the business, such as SLA

management, fluctuations in market conditions, credit defaults, interest rate changes, etc.
Compliance Risks Mon-adherence to central, state, and international laws governing business activities may
result in financial and reputational risks. For example, compliance with labour laws,
licenses, and permits, etc.

Risk refers to potential threats posed by environmental, social, and governance (ESG)
factors that could adversely affect a company's long-term viability and reputation. These
factors include carbon footprint, diversity, inclusion, business ethics, atc,

Sustainability Risks

Key Business Risks

Risk Description

Mitigation Actions

large share of  Digitide is proactively pursuing a client diversification strategy aimed at

Revenue A

Dependance
on Key Clients

revenue comes from
a few major clients,

reducing dependence on a few major clients. The company is expanding
its client base by entering new industry verticals and geographical

exposing the regions. Efforts are also underway to structure multi-year contracts that
company to  rsks  ensure revenue stability, In addition, wvalue-added offerings and
fram contract solutioning models are being developed to increase client stickiness and

changes or client-
specific challenges.

differentiate Digitide from competitors. A focused key account
management (KAM) structure has been established to strengthen client

engagement and proactively address delivery and commercial concerns.

Warking Timing  mismatches The company continues to strengthen its working capital practices
Capital and between client through tighter oversight of receivables, improved billing hygiene, and
Cash Flow collections and focused liguidity planning. Ongoing digital initiatives and governance
Cycles operating expenses, mechanisms are expected to support timely collections and efficient cash

Annual Report 2024 -2025
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intensive or annuity-
led businesses, may
impact liquidity.

flow management across business lines.
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Key Business Risks

Risk Description Mitigation Actions

Transition
Risks Post-
Demerger

Technology
and
Cybersecurity

Talent
Availabllity and
Alttrition

Geopolitical
Risk

Competition
Risk

The company Iis
system

undergaoing
and governance
transitions as part of its recent
create

demerger, which may

short-term operational or

stakeholder alignment challenges,

Increasing digitalization exposes
the business to cyber threats,
data breaches, and potential IT
disruptions affecting operations
ancl compliance,

Demand for skilled professionals,

especially in niche roles, and
workforce attrition pose delivery

and cost risks.

The company operates through
subsidiaries and clients across

multiple international markets.
Paolitical instability, changes in
foreign policy, trade barriers, or
conflict zones can lead to

regulatory uncertainty, delays in

senvice delivery, or cost

escalations.

The IT services, BPM, and staffing
seciors are  highly competitive,
with both global regional
players offering similar solutions,
Agagressive  pricing, evolving
customer expeactations,
digital
growth and margins.

and

and

disruption may impact

nt Discussion &
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Digitide is managing the transition through a structured and
phased approach, with oversight mechanisms to track
progress across key areas, Interim arrangements are in place
to ensure continuity of critical services, while internal
capabilities are being gradually strengthened to support long-

term independence,

Digitide continues to invest in strengthening its cybersecurity
posture and system resilience. Periodic reviews, governance
oversight, and alignment with evolving best practices are
undertaken to mitigate technology-related risks and ensure
business continuity,

The company continues to refing its talent strategy through
ongoing enhancements in sourcing, skilling, and engagement
practices. Efforts remain focused on building a resilient
needs

workforce pipeline  aligned to  business ACrOsS

geographies and service lines,

The company monitors geopolitical developments through a
combination of internal assessments and external expert
inputs. Business continuity planning and flexible deliveny
meadels help maintain operational stability.

The company focuses on differentiated walue delivery,

solution-led selling, and relationship-based client

engagement. Continued investments in capability-building
and innovation help maintain competitive relevance,

Our approach to risk management is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that our assets
are safeguarded and the business risks are being assessed and mitigated. All information that must be disclosed, is
reported to the senior management including the Chairman, CED, CFO, Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee of the Board.

Piweat Repurt 0% 20 ‘_E-
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Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

The Company, maintains a robust Internal Control
System (ICS), meticulously aligned with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, and tailored to the scale,
scope, and Intricacy of its business operations. The
Company has established internal financial controls
through comprehensive policies and procedures, duly
adopted by the company. These measures ensure the
smooth and effective functioning of s business,
compliance with all pertinent laws, regulations, and
directives from regulatory bodies, protection of assets,
autharization of transactions, prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information

Grant Thormton Bharat LLP conducts intermal awdit
reviews, with the scope and authority stipulated by the
Audit Committee. To maintain independence, the
Internal Auditor reports directly to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, The Internal Auditor  diligently
monitors and evaluates the efficiency of the company’s
ICS, ensuring adherence to laws and accounting
policies. Management meticulously reviews these
reparts and implements corrective actions to bolster
controls, Summaries of periodic audit findings are
presented to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committes, reviews Internal Audit reports
submitted by the Internal Auditor. The Committee
meticulously scrutinizes and evaluates key audit

Annual Report 2024 -2025 ”
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findings to ensure the robustness of financial and
internal controls, risk management systems, and
processes. Regular audits and reviews serve to
reinfarce these systems. The Internal auditor provides
guarterly updates to the Committee on the status of
key audit findings to ensure swift implementation of
resolutions.

Deloitte Haskins and Selis, the company's statutory
auditors, audit our financial statements and issue a
report on our internal contraols over financial reporting,
as defined under Section 142 of the Companies Act,
2013, which s included In our annual report
Additionally, in accordance with Sectien 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 17 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Statutory Auditors, along
with the Audit Committee, have opined that the
company maintains, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system  over
financial reporting and that such controls operated
effectively during the year,

Management views the enhancement of IC5 as an
ongeing endeavour and will persist in efforts to fortify
controls, with a focus on preventive and automated
measures over manual ones. The company boasts
robust ERP and other supplementary IT systems,
integral components of its internal control framewaork.
Continual technological advancements are leveraged

to further fortify internal controls.




Notice of AGM

Motice is hereby given that the First Annual General
Meeting (“AGM") of the members of DIGITIDE
SOLUTIONS LIMITED ("Company”) will be held on
Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 4.30 PM I5T through
Video Conference ("WC")/ Other Audio Visual Means
{("OAVM")  (“hereinafter referred to as Electronic
Mode") to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY EUSINESS:

ltem Mol - To receive, consider and adopt the
Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company for the first financial year ended March 21,
2025, together with the Auditors' Report and Board's
Report thereon:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial
statements of the Company which includes the
Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the first financial year
(from the date of incorporation till March 31, 2025) and
the Cash Flow Statement together with report of the
Statutory Auditors and the Board of Directors thereon,
as circulated to the members, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

Item MNo. 2 - To receive, consider and adopt the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the first financial year ended March 31,
2025, together with the Auditors' Report thereon:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resalution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company which includes the
Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss far the first financial year
{from the date of incorporation till March 31, 2025} and
the Cash Flow Statement together with report of the
Statutory  Auditors thereon, as circulated to the
members be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

Piweial Rt A0 4020 |_E |
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Item No.3 - To appeoint Mr Ajit Abraham lsaac
(DIN:OOOB7168) as a director, liable to retire by
rotation:

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Ajit Abraham Isaac
(DIMN:00087168), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resalution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013, the approval of members of
the Company be and is hereby accorded to reappoint
Mr. Ajit Abraham Isaac (DIN: 00087168), as a Director,
liable to retire by rotation.”

Item Mo.4 — To appoint the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of 5 consecutive years:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139 and 142 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the said Act read with Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 made thereunder and
other applicable rules, SEB! (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re- enactment thereof),
and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered
Accountants (Firm registration number: 00B0725), be
and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years to hold
office from the conclusion of this first Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of sixth Annual General
Meeting at such remuneration and expenses as may
be determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company (including its Committees thereof) from time
to time, in addition to applicable taxes and
reimbursement of actual ocut of pocket and traveliing
expenses incurred in connection with the audit and
billed progressively.”
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Special Business:

ltem Mo 5 — To appoint Mr. Parameshwar G Bhat,
Practicing Company Secretary (FCS-B860; C.P. No.
11004) as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 20123 read with Rulee 9 of the
Companies and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification{s) or re-enactment thereof),
Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 and other

[Appointment

applicable provisions, if any, as amended from time to
time, and recommendations of the Audit Committes
and Board of Directors of the Company, M
Parameshwar G Bhat, Practicing Company Secretary
(FCS-8860; C.F. Mo. 11004) be and is hereby appointed
as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term
of five consecutive years commencing from financial
year 2025-26 till financial year 2029-30, at such fees,
plus applicable taxes and other out-of-pockst
expenses as may be mutually agreed upon between
the Board of Directors of the Company (including its
Committees thereof) and the Secretarial Auditors.

Item Mo 6 — To approve the payment of Commission
to the Independent Directors of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Crdinary Resolution:

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 1 August 2025

Registered Office:

3/3/2, Bellandur Gate,

Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru 560103
CIN: US2099KA2024PLC184626
Website: www.digitide.com;

Email: corporatesecretarial@digitide.com
Tel No.: 080-6105 6001

dicjitide

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 197 and 198, and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) and the rules
made thereunder read with Schedule V of the Act
lincluding any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force). and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Regulations, 2015, as
amended and the Articles of Association of the

Disclosure  Requirements)

Company, the approval of the members be and Is
hereby accorded for the payment of remuneration to
the Independent Directans) by way of commission, in
addition to the sitting fees paid to them for attending
the meetings of the Board of Directors or [ts
Committees, for a perlod of five years commencing
from April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2030, as may be
determined by the Beoard of Directors, based on the
recommendation of Momination and Remuneration
Committee from time to time, within the overall
maximum limit prescribed under Section 197 of the Act,
e, 1% (one percent) per annum of the Net Profits of
the Company.

"RESOLVED FURTEHR THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company (including Its committees thereof), be
and |15 hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as may be deemed proper,
necessary, or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution and for matters connected
therewith, or incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board of Directors of
Digitide Solutions Limited

Sd/-

Neeraj Manchanda

Company Secretary and Head Legal
Membership No. 20060
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MOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 102 and 110 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act®) stating all material facts and the
reasons thereof for the proposed resclutions set
forth in the Motice is annexed and forms an integral
part of this Motice. Further, the relevant details with
respect to “Director seeking appointment and re-
appointment at this AGM™ are also provided below
[Regulation 36{3) of the Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India],

2.The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") permitted
holding of the AGM through WVC/OAVM, without
physical presence of the Members at a commaon
venue, In compliance with the MCA Circulars, AGM
of the Company is being held through WVC/OAWM,
The Registered Office of the Company shall be
deemed to be the venue for the AGM, [General
Circular Nos, 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, in relation to
"Clarification on passing of ordinary and special
resolutions by companies under the Companies Act,
2013", General Circular Mos. 2072020 dated May 5,
2020 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard,
the latest being 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024
in relation to "Clarification on holding of AGM
through VO OAVM, (collectively referred to as "MCA
Circulars™"] and The Securities and Exchange Board
of India ("SEBI") also issued Circular Mo, SEBIHO/
CFD/CMDVCIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, and
the latest being Circular Mo, SEBIVHOICFDVCMDZ/
CIR/P/2021 M dated January 15, 2021, Circular Mo,
SEBI/ HO/CFDVCMD2/CIR/P/2022/62, dated May 13,
2022, Circular Mo,  SEBYHO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CI
R/2023/ 4 dated January 05, 2023 and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD- 2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated
October 3, 2024, (hereinafter together referred as
"Circulars”), has permitted the Companies to
conduct the Annual General Meetings (“AGMT)
through VC/OAVM  and the
Regulation 44{4) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulatians 2M5 ("Listing
Regulations”) is dispensed.

requirement  of
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3.In compliance with these Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM
facility, which does not require the physical
presence of members at a common wvenue,
Accordingly, the facility for the appointment of
proxies by the members will not be available for the
AGM and hence the Route Map. Proxy Form and
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Motice.
However, in pursuance of Sections 112 and 13 of
the Act, representatives of members such as Body
Corporates, the President of India or the Governor
of a State can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
and cast their votes through e-voling. The recorded
transcript of the AGM will be hosted on the website
of the Company post the AGM.

4.In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only
such joint holder who is first by the order in which
the names stand in the register of members will be
entitled to vote,

5.To suppeort the 'Green Initiative” we urge members
to support our commitment to environmental
protection by choosing to recelve the Company's
communication through e- mail. Members who have
not registered their e-mall addresses are requested
to reglster the same with thelr Depository
Participants {"DP") in case the shares are held by
them In electronic form and with RTA in case the
shares are held by them in physical form.

&.Electronic copy of the Motice of the First AGM of the
Company inter alia indicating the process and
manner of ewvoting along with Annual Report is
being sent to all the members whose email IDs are
registered with  the Company/ Depository
Participants{s) for communication purposes unless
any member has requested for a hard copy of the
same. Members may please note that the Notice of
AGM and Annual Report will also be available on
the Company's website www.digitide.com and
website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. Mational Stock
Exchange of India Ltd and BSE Limited at hitps:/
wownwinseindia.com!/ and https:Awwwibselndia.com/
respectively and also on the website of CDSL at
wwhwevotingindia.com. Members can attend and
participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility
anly.
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7.The Register of Directors and Key Managerial requested to submit a duly filled and signed Form ISR

FPersonnel and their shareholdings, maintained
under section 170 of the Act and the Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors
are interested, maintained under section 189 of the
Act, will be made available for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during normal
business hours, in accordance with the applicable
statutory reguirements based on requests received
by the Company upto the date of this AGM.

8.4As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and
SEEI Circular Mos. SEBVHO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/
P/CIR/2021 /655 dated Movember 03, 2021, and
SEEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD- PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated
March 16, 2023, the facility for making nomination is
available for the members in respect of shares held
by them. Members who have not yet registered their
nominations are reqguested to register the same by
submitting Form MNo. SH- 13, If a member desires to
opt-out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a
fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in
Form ISR-3 or SH-14 (as the case may be). Members
are requested to submit the said details to their DP.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any,
pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail
numbers, FAM,
registering of nomination, power of attorney

address, telephone/mobile
registration, bank mandate details, etc. to their DPs
in case the shares are held in electronic form and to
the RTA in prescribed Form [ISR-1 and other forms
pursuant to the above SEBI Circular. Further,
members may note that SEBl has mandated the
submission of PAN by every participant in securities
market.

SEEl has mandated the Listed Companies to
process service requests (Request for issue of
duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed
suspense account; renewal’exchange of securities
certificate; endorsement; subdivision/ splitting of
securities certificate; consolidation of securities
certificates/falios; transmission and transposition) for
issue of securities in dematerialized form only,
subject to folio being KYC compliant. Members are

- 4, the format of which is available on the Company's
website at httpsi/digitide.com/finvestors/ [Investor
Forms tab) and on the website of the Company's RTA.
Integrated Registry and Share Transfer Agent at
https./fipostatus.integratedregistry.in/Rycregisteraspx
It may be noted that any service reguest can be
processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant,

9.5EB| vide Circular Nos, SEBI/HO/OIAE! OIAE_1AD-1/

F/CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, and SEBI'HOY
OIAES QIAE_|1AD-1 P/ CIR/2023NM35 dated August 04,
2023, read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/ OIAE/
OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023145 dated July 31, 2023
jupdated as on August 11. 2023), has established a
common Online Dispute Resclution Portal ("CDR
Portal®) for resclution of disputes arising in the Indian
Securities Market, Pursuant to above- mentioned
circulars, post exhausting the option to resolve their
grievances with the RTA/ Company directly and
through existing SCORES platform, the investors can
initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal
(https://smartodrin/login) and the same can also be
accessed through the Company's website at https./
digitide.com/investors/.

10.Members holding shares in electronic mode may

note that bank particulars registered against their
respective depository accounts will be used by the
Company for payment of dividend, if any. The
Company or Integrated cannot act on any reguest
received directly from the members holding shares in
electronic form for any change of bank particulars ar
bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only
to the Depository Participant (DP) by the members.

N.Members seeking any information regarding the

financial statements or any matter to be placed at the
AGM are requested to write to the Company at least
seven (7) days before the meeting, through e-mail on
investorrelations@digitide.com. The same will be
replied to by the Company suitably.

12.In this Mofice and Annexure(s) thereto the terms

“Shareholders”  and "Members" are  used

interchangeably,
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Vioting through electronic means

13.Pursuant to Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20
of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations
and $5-2 and the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars,
the Company is pleased to provide remote e-voting
facility ("remote e-voting”) to all its members to cast
their votes on all resclutions set out in the Motice of
the AGM through e-voting services provided by
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL),
Additionally, the Company is providing the facility of
voting through an e-wvoting system during the First
AGM ("e-vating").

14. The remote e-voting period commences on Friday,
September 26, 2025 (9:00 AM. IST) and ends on
Monday, September 29, 2025 (500 PM. IST)
Curing this period, members holding shares either
in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on
Tuesday, September 23, 2025 ie, cut-off date, may
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting moduls
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter,
Once the vote on a resclution is cast by the
member, it shall not be allowed to change the vote
subsequently.

15.Members have the option to cast their vote on any
of the resolutions using the remote e-voting facility,
either during the pericd as mentioned above or e-
voting during the AGM. Members who have cast
their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may
also attend/ participate in the AGM through W/
OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote on
such resolution again. However, members who
have voted on some of the resolutions during the
remote e-voting period are also eligible to vote on
the remaining resoflutions during the AGM.

16.The wvoting rights of the members shall be in
propartion to their shares in the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date.
The voting rights for the shares of the Company are
one vote per equity share, registerad in the name of
the member, A person, whose name is recorded in
the register of members or the register of beneficial
owners maintained by the depositories as on the
cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail of the

dicjitide

facility of voting through remote e-voting. Any person
who Is not a member, as on the cut-off date and
this notice shall

receives treat the same for

information purposes only,

17. The Company has appointed M/s. DPV & Associates

18.

LLP, Practicing Company Secretary, Firm Registration
Number L2021HROOS500 as
conducting the remote e-voting and the e-voting
process at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

the Scrutinizer for

Any person who acquires shares of the Company and
becomes member of the Company after dispatch of
the notice and helding shares as of the cut-off date
may obtain the USER ID and password by sending a
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. However,
if hefshe is already registered with CDSL for remote e-
voting then he/she can use hisfher existing user 1D
and password for casting the vote.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO VOTE
ELECTRONICALLY:

CDSL eVoting System — For e-wvoting and Joining
Virtual meetings.

As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due
to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings
of the companies shall be conducted as per the
guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020,
Circular No17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, and Circular
Mo, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, The forthcoming
AGM will thus be held through video conferencing
(VC) or other audie-visual means (OAVM), Hence,
Members can attend and participate in the ensuing
AGM through VC/QAVM,

. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations
2015 {as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08,
2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company
is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members
in respect of the business to be transacted at the
AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into
an agreement with Central Depository Services (India)
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Limited ([CD5L) for facilitating woting through
electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member
using remote e- voting as well as the e-voting
system on the date of the AGM will be provided by
CDSL,

3.The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM
mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by
following the procedure mentioned in the Motice.
The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/
OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000
members on first come first served basls. This will
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders
holding 2% or moare shareholding), Promoters,
Instituticnal Investars, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersans of the Audit Committee,
Momination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc,
who are allowed to attend the AGM  without
restrictions on account of first come first served

hasis,

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM
through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of ascertaining the guorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-
VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE
AS UNDER:

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-
Vioting system in case of individual shareholders
holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in
case of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in demat
mode.

(i} The voting period begins on Friday, September 26,
2025 (200 AM. IST) and ends on Monday,
September 29, 2025 (500 PM. IST). During this
period shareholders of the Company, holding shares

Annual Report 2024 -2025
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elther in physical ferm or in dematerialized form, as
on Tuesday, September 23, 2025 the cut-off date
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for wvoting
thereafter.

(i) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the

meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeating-venue.

{lilPursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBIYHO/CFD/CMD/

CIR/P/2020/242 dated 0912.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India  (Listing  Obligations and  Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders'
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the
participation by the public non-institutional
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible
level.

Currently, there are multiple ewoting service
praviders (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on
various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 1Ds
and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting
process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-vating to all the demat
account holders, by way of a single login credential,
through their demat accounts/ websites of
Depositories/ Depository  Participants. Demat
account holders would be able to cast their vote
without having to register again with the ESPs,
thereby not only facilitating seamless authentication
but also enhancing ease and convenience of
participating in e-voting process.

Step 1: Access through Depeositories CDSL/NSDL e-
Voting system in case of individual shareholders
holding shares in demat mode.
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(V) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBIYHO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining wvirtual meetings for Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholder Legin Method

Individual Shareholders  Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user

holding securities in id and password, Option will be made available to reach eMoting page without any
Demat mode with further authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl
CDSL Depository website www.cdslindia.com and click an login icon & My Easi New (Token) Tab.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e- Voting option for
eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e\oting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e\oting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e- Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit
the e-\oting service providers’ website directly,

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & My Easi New (Token) Tab and then click on
registration option,

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from an eoting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able toses
the e-Voting option where the evating is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers,

Individual Shareholders  If you are already registered for NSDL 1DeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of

holding securities in NSDL, Open web browser by typing the following UBRL; https://eservices.nsdl.com either
demat mode with on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched,
NSDL Depository click an the “Beneficial Owner® icon under “Login® which is available under ‘|DeAS’

section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password, After

successful authentication, yvou will be able to see eVoting services, Click on “Access to e-
Voting™ under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
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Type of shareholder Login Method

company name or e-Voling service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-\Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote eVoting period or
Jeining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is avallable at hitps:/Y
eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online  for [DeAS "Portal or click at  https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReq.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/fwww.evoting.nsdl.com! either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-\Voting system Is launched, click on the icon "Login™ which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member” section. & new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (Le. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with N5DL), Password/CTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will
be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherain you can see e-\Voting page.

Individual Shareholders  Click en company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to

holding securities in e-vVatlng service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-\Voting period
demat mode with or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting
N5SDL Depository For OTP based Ilogin you can click on hitpsy/feservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeby/

evoling/evotinglogin.jsp.

You will have to enter your 8-digit DP 1D, 8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and
generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/moblle number and click on
login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or eVoting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remete e - Voling period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.

Individual You can alse login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Shareholders Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful
thalding securities login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-\Voting option, you will
in demat mode) be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
legin through their can see eVoting feature. Click on company name or eMoting service provider name and
Depository you will be redirected to e-Meting service provider website for casting your vote during
Participants (DP) the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User IDY Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual

Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
secyrities in Demat tequest at helpdesk evating@edslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 0881
mode with CDSL

Individual

Shareholders holding  Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
securities in Demat request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at; 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000
mode with NSDL

Step 2: Access through CDSL eVoting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v} Login method for e-Voting and Joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than
Individual holding in Demat form.

. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evolingindia.com.

. Click on “Shareholders™ module.

. Mow enter vour User D

. For CD5L: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

. For NSDL: B Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

. Mext enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

. If you are holding shares In demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted an an earlier e-
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

9. If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

T = L I 1 T I o

For Physical shareheolders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in

Demat.

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric “PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Shareholders whe have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are reguested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or
contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details  Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth {in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in

OR Date of Birth your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

(DOB) If both the details are not recorded with the depaository or company, please enter the
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field,
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(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on
“SUBMIT" tab.

iwil) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will
then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form
will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are reguired to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat
holders for woting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote,
that

company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. |t

provided

is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost

care to keep your password confidential.

(vill) For shareholders holding shares in physical form,
the details can be used only for e-voting on the

resolutions cantained in this Matice,

(ix) Click on the EVSN for DIGITIDE SOLUTIONS
LIMITED on which you choose to vote,

(x} On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION
DESCRIPTION™ and against the same the option
"YES/NO™ for voting. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES Iimplies that you assent to
the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

(i) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish
to view the entire Resolution details,

(i} After selecting the resolution, you have decided to
vote on, click on “SUBMIT™. A confirmation box will
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click
on "OK", else to change your wvote, click on
*CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote,

ixiil) Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify your vote,

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking
on “Click here to print” option an the Voting page.
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{xv) If a demat account holder has fergotten the login
password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password &
enter the details as prompted by the system.

{xvl) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA
if any uploaded, which will be made awvailable to
scrutinizer for verification.

(xwvii) Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders
and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.

« Mon-Individual shareholders (l.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc) and Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and
register themselves in the "Corporates”™ module.

« A scanned copy of the Reglistration Form bearing
the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evating@cdslindia.com.

« After receiving the login details a Compliance
User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be
able to link the accountis) for which they wish to
vate on.

« The list of accounts linked in the login will be
mapped automatically & can be delink in case of
any wrang mapping.

« [tis Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board
Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if
any, should be upleaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

« Alternatively MNon Individual shareholders are
required mandatory to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc, together with

the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote,

attested specimen signature of
to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address viz;
corporatesecretarial@digitide.com  (designated
email address by company), if they have voted
from individual tab & not uploaded same in the
CDSL e-vating system for the scrutinizer to verify

the same.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENMDING
THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting an
the day of the AGM |s same as the instructions
rmentioned above for e-vating,

2 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be
agvailable where the EVSMN of Company will be
displayed after successful legin as per the
instructions  mentioned above for  e-voting.
Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-
Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
AGM.

3. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting
through Laptops / IPads for better experience,

4. Further shareholders will be reguired to allow
Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meaeating.

5. Please note that Participants Connecting from
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audioideo loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network, It is therefore recommended to
use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any
kind of aforesaid glitches,

6. Shareholders who would like to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their
request in advance at least 7{Seven) days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
corporatesecretarialédigitide.com. The
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the
AGM but have gueries may send their gueries in

T(Seven) meeting

mentioning their name, demat account number/

advance days prior to
folio number, email id, mobile number at
corporatesecretarialé@digitide.com. These queries
will be replied to by the company suitably by email,
7. Those registerad
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to

shareholders  who  have

express their viewsfask questions during the
meeting.
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8. Only those sharehalders, who are present in the
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Woting and are otherwlse not barred from doing
so, shall be eligible to wvote through e-\Voting
system available during the AGM.

9. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through
the e-voting available during the AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the
meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes
cast by such shareholders may be considered
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the
meeting is available only to the sharehalders
attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE
EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES,

1. For Physical shareholders - Please provide
necessary details like Folio Mo, MName of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy
of PAM card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA
email id.

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your
email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders - Please
update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is
mandatory while e-Voting & joining wirtual
meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending
AGM & e-Vating from the CDSL e-Voting System, you
can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll
free no, 1800 21 09911, All grievances connected with
the facility for voting by electronic means may be
addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL)
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, & Wing,
25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatial Mill
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Compounds, M M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbal - 400012 or send an email to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no, 1800 21 09911,

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 01 August 2025

Registered Office:

3/3/2, Bellandur Gate,

Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru 560103
CIN: UB2099KA2024PLC184626
Website: www.digitide.com;

Email: corporatesecretarial@digitide.com
Tel No.: 080- 6105 6001

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Act read with
Regulation 17{11) of the Listing Regulations, the
following statement sets out all material facts relating
and GSpecial
menticned in the accompanying Notice:

to Ordinary business businesses

Item No 4:

This explanatory statement is in terms of Regulation
36(5) of the Listing Regulations, This is not required
under Section 102 of the Act.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. Deloitte Haskins &
Sells, Chartered Accountants having firm registration
number: 00B0O725, were appointed as the First
Statutory Auditors of the Company from the date of
incorporation i.e. February 10, 2024, till canclusion of
first AGM of the Company. Accordingly, their term is
expiring at the ensuing first Annual Ganeral Meating,

After evaluating and considering various factors such
as industry experience, competency of the auditors,
efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc, the
Board of Directors of the Company, based on the
recommendations of the Audit Committee, at its
meeting held on O August 2025, has proposed the
appointment of M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells,
Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company,
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By Order of the Board of Directors of
Digitide Solutions Limited

Sd/-

MNeeraj Manchanda

Company Secretary and Head Legal
Membership No. 20060

starting from the conclusion of first Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of sixth Annual General
Meeting to be held for FY 2030, at a remuneration as
may be decided by the Board of Directors/ or
committee thereof from time to time.

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells have consented to their
appointment as the Statutory Auditors and have
confirmed that the appointment, if made, would be
within the limits specified under Section 141{3){g) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified
to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors in terms of
the provisions of Section 139 and 141 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

Auditor Profile

Deloitte Haskins & Sells ("DHS") was constituted in the
year 1998 and is a firm of Chartered Accountants
registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India {ICAl) under Registration MNo. 0080725, DHS
forms an integral part of the Deleitte Haskins & Sells &
Affiliates, which is a network of firms registered with
the ICAL This network, in turn, is a constituent of the
wider Deloitte global network, one of the largest
professional services organizations in the world,
operating through independent legal entities in over
150 countries.

As part of this extensive global and national network,
DHS delivers a broad spectrum of professional
services designed to meet the complex needs of
clients operating in a dynamic and highly regulated
environment.
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Through its affiliation with the global Deloitte network,
DHS has access to industry-leading methodologies,
cutting-edge technologies, and an extensive pool of
global expertise, allowing it to offer value-driven and
Innovative solutions tailored to the unigue needs of
clients ranging from start-ups to large multinational
corparations and public sector enterprises.

The proposed fees for FY2025-26 In connection with
the statutory audit shall be INR 75,00,000/- (Rupees
Seventy-Five Lakhs Only) plus applicable taxes and
other out-of-pocket expenses up to the conclusion of
the Second Annual General Meeating. For subsequent
year(s) of their term, such fees may be mutually agreed
between the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors.
Besides the audit services, the Company would also
obtain certifications from the statutory auditors under
various statutory regulations for which fees will be
agreed separately (the “Fees"). The Board, In
consultation with the Audit Committee, shall approve
revisions, if any, in the remuneration of the Statutory
Auditars for the remaining part of the tenure. The fees
exclude remuneration from being paid to subsidiary
audit firms for the purpose of statutory audit of
subsidiaries including owverseas subsidiaries and
remuneration to be paid for other permitted services
obtained from the Statutory Auditors. The Board of
Directors, in consultation with the Audit Committes,
may alter and wary the terms and conditions of
appointment, including remuneration, in such manner
and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the
Statutory Auditors.
The Board of based on the
recommendations  of the  Audit

Diractors,
committee,
recommends ltem No. 4 for approval by the Members
by way of Ordinary Resolution. None of the Directors
or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are
interested financially or otherwise in the resolution, by
virtue of their directorship and to the extent of their
shareholding in the Company.

Item Mo 5:
The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, at its meeting held on
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01 August 2025, after evaluating and
industry  experience,
competency of the audit team, efficiency in conduct of
audit, independence, etc., approved the appointment
of Mr. Parameshwar G Bhat, Practicing Company
Secretary (FC5-8860; C.P. No. 1004), a peer reviewead
firm as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, for a
term of flve consecutive years commencing from
financial year starting April 01, 2025, subject to the
approval of the members.

considering

various factors such  as

The appointment of Secretarial Auditors shall be in
terms of the amended Regulation 24A of the Listing
Regulations vide SEBI Motification dated December 12,
2024, and provisions of Section 204 of the Act and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Auditor profile

Mr. Parameshwar Ganapati Bhat Is a Peer Reviewed
Company Secretary in Practice based in Bengaluru. He
halds multiple academic and professional
gualifications, including a B.Com., LLE, LLM, MBA, and
is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (FCS). He has been practicing as a
Company Secretary since 2012, providing professional
services to corporates in the areas of Company Law,
FEMA, SEBI Regulations, and other corporate legal
matters.

He has handled various sessions for the Farmer
Producer Organisations at various places in Karnataka
providing insights on the Companies Act provisions
applicable to FPOs and participated in VAIGA - 2021
promoted by SAMET], under Government of Kerala

He has shared its willingness and confirmed that if
appointed, the appointment will be in accordance with
Section 204 of the Act and that he is not disgualified
to be appointed as a Secretarial Auditor of the
Company. The services to be rendered by him as
Secretarial Auditors is within the purview of the said
regulation read with SEBI circular no. SEBIYHO/CFDY
CFD-PabD-2/CIR/P/2024185 dated December 31, 2024,



L1 Fa1 B
i %l

Notice of A

LY

The proposed fees In connection with the secretarial
audit for FY 2025-26 shall be INR 2,25,000/- (Rupees
Twe Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable
out-of-pocket  expenses. For
subsequent year(s) of the term, such fees may be
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and
Secretarial Auditors. In addition to the secretarial audit,

taxes and other

they shall provide such other services In the nature of
certifications and other professional work, as approved
by the Board of Directors. The relevant fees will be
determined by the Board, as recommended by the
Audit Committes in consultation with the Secretarial
Auditors. The Board, in consultation with the Audit
Committee shall approve revisions, if any, in the
remuneration of the Secretarial Auditors for the
remaining part of the tenure.

The Board of based on the
recommendations of the  Audit

Directors,
committee,
recommends ltem Mo, 5 far approval by the Members
by way of Ordinary Resolution.

Mone of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or
their relatives are interested financially or othervise in
the resolution, by virtue of their directorship and to the
extent of their sharehalding in the Company.

ltem No 6

The Independent Directors of your Company bring
extensive professional expertise and a wealth of
experience across various domains, including
business, technology, strategy, policy matters, and
corporate governance, In line with the Company's
Moamination and Remuneration Policy, it is proposed to
grant commission to the Independent Directors,

commensurate with their roles and responsibilities.
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As per the said policy, they are eligible to a
commission based on a percentage of the Company’s
profit, along with sitting fees for attending meetings of
the Board and its Committees.

In terms of Regulation 17(6){a) of the Listing
Regulations, approval of the members In a general
meeting is required for payment of all compensation to
the Independent Directors. Further, as per section 197,
the remuneration payable to directors who are neither
managing directors nor whole-time directors shall not
exceed one percent of the net profits of the Company,
except with the approval of the company in general
meetings, The Company seeks the approval from its
members for payment of commission as approved by
the Board on the recommendations of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, to the Independent
Directors of the Company commencing from April 1,
2025 to March 31, 2030, not exceeding 1% (one
percent) of the net profits of the Company for the
relevant financial year, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of section 198 of the Act, read with the
Rules made thereunder.

The Independent Directars are deemed interested in
this matter to the extent of the commission proposed
for them.

The Board of Directors recommends tem Mo, 6 for
approval by the Members by way of Ordinary
Resolution.

Mone of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or
their relatives (except the Independent Directors) are
interested financially or otherwise in the resolution, by

virtue of their directorship and to the extent of their
shareholding in the Company.
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Additional information of Director seeking appointment under Item Mo. 3, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (55-2):

Mame Mr. Ajit Abraham Isaac

Age 58 years

Date of first
appaintment

2703.2025

Clualification He holds master's degree in arts and Personnel Management from Madras University and
a British Chevening Scholar from Leeds University.

Experience and Ajit Abraham Isaac, the founder of Quess Corp, is an entrepreneur who over a period of
expertise In specific 20 years, has been involved In creating market-leading enterprises In the business
functional areas services sector in India. Before becoming an entrepreneur In the year 2000, he has

worked for years In leadership roles in the private sector including companies like
Adecco India Private Limited, Infrastructure Development Finance Company Limited and
Godrej and Boyce Limited.

His initlatives in transformative deals, with a focus on operational efficiency and business
development, have helped organisations scale rapidly.

Socially committed, he set up Care Works Foundation, which today supports over 16,000
students across 75 schools. His strong social commitment to the larger cause is
demonstrated in the partnership with the Indian Institute of Science (IISC), Bangalore to
set up The Isaac Centre of Public Health (ICPH). Along with Fairfax group, he has also
anchored the establishment of a paediattic specialty center in CMC Vellore,

Remuneration last Ml

drawn

Directorships and Listed Co. Directorship: Quess Corp Limited, Alldigi Tech Limited and Bluspring
Memberships of Enterprises Limited.

Committees of the Membership:

Board held in other « Corporate Social Responsibillty Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
listed Companies Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Risk Management & ESG Committee

of Quess Corp Limited.
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Name

Directorships held in
other

public limited
Companies

Relationship with other
Directors and Key
Managerial

Personna|

MNumber of meetings of
the Board attended
during FY 2024-25

Terms and
conditions of
appointment/re-
appointment

Shareholding in the
Company including
shareholding as a
beneficial owner as on
date of the Motice

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 01 August 2025
Registered Office:
3/3/2, Bellandur Gate,

Sarjapur Main Reoad, Bengaluru 560103
CIN: UB2099KA2024PLC184626

A ~~ K A
L
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Mr. Ajit Abraham Isaac

- Momination & Remuneration Commitiee and Risk Management Committee of Alldigi
Tech Limited
- Momination and Remuneration Committee of Bluspring Enterprises Limited

Chairman: Administration & Investment Committee of Quess Caorp Limited, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Administration &
Investment Committee of Alldigi Tech Limited

Mil
Mot Applicable
1({being a newly reconstituted Board)

Terms and conditions of original appointment shall remain unchanged.

He helds 17,896,832 equity shares of face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each,
representing 12.02% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the
Company. He holds 1,53,65.824 eqguity shares of face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten)
each, representing (10.32%) as a beneficial owner through Isaac Enterprises LLP.

By Order of the Board of Directors of

Digitide Solutions Limited
Sd/-

Meeraj Manchanda
Company Secretary and Head Legal
Membership No. 20060

Website: www. digitide.com;

Email: corporatesecretarial@digitide.com

Tel Mo.: 020- 6105 6001
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Dear Members

The Board of Directors take great pleasure to present the First Annual Report on the financial and operational
performance of Digitide Solutions Limited (“Digitide”/ “the Company”™) and the Audited Financial Statements for the
period ended March 31, 2025 (“the year under review" or “the year" or "F¥25"), together with the Auditor's Report
thereon in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act") and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (*Listing Regulations”).

1. Financial Performance
The Company’s financial performance {standalone and consclidated), for the period ended March 31, 2025, is

summarised below:
(In INR milliens)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

February 10, 2024 to | February 10, 2024 to

March 31 2025 March 31 2025
Revenue from Operations 2067244 3268727
Other Income 57419 192.26
Total Income 21,246.63 32,879.53
EBIDTA 2908.97 4728.06
EBIDTA (%) 14.07% 14.46%
Depreciation and amortization expenss 1489 220775
Finance Costs 383.33 48356
Profit before exceptional items and tax 168092 2.229M
Exceptional items 462.69 27879
Profit before tax 1,218.23 1950.22
Profit after tax 943.34 1,377.48

A detalled performance analysis of various business segment operations are provided in the Management Discussion
and Analysls which forms part of this Repaort.

2. Significant Developments during the Reporting Period
Digitide Solutions Limited was incorporated as a public limited company under the Act, upon issue of Certificate of
Incorparation by the Registrar of Companies, Bengaluru on February 10, 2024,

Your Company is an artificial intelligence first digital transformation company driving responsible and trusted IT, digital
and BPM solutions, with presence in both domestic (in India) and international markets (in the United States of
America, Canada and Rest of the World). Qur digital solutions encompass (i) Tech and digital services including
Artificial Intelligence, data and analytics; and (i) Business Processes Management ("BPM”), offering cutting-edge and
scalable technologies that drive business efficiency, enhance customer experience and grow customer revenue. Your
Company focuses on enabling enterprise success through comprehensive digital transformation.

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E-



Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
amengst Quess Corp Limited ["Quess’ Demerged
Company™), Digitide Solutions Limited and Bluspring
Enterprises Limited and their respective shareholders
and creditors ("Scheme”) approved by the Hon'ble
Mational Company Law Tribunal on March 04, 2025,
demerged undertaking of Quess was transferred and
vested into your Company from the Appointed date of
the Scheme, i.e., April 01, 2024,

In  consideration, your Company has allotted
148,549,413 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the
record date Le. Aprl 15, 2025, in the “Share
Entitlement Ratio” of every 1 equity share of face and
paid-up value of Rs. 10 sach held in Quess, the
Company has allotted 1 equity share of face and paid-
up wvalue of Rs. 10 each” and the previous 10,000
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, of the Company which
allotted to Quess were cancelled.

Further, a significant milestone in your Company's
Jjoumey was reached on June 11, 2025, with its
successful listing on BSE Limited {BSE Scrip Code:
544413) and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE Symbol: DIGITIDE) creating wealth for all
the members of the Company, who were allotted
shares as part of the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement,

3. Transfer to Reserves
The Company has not transferred any amount to the
general reserves during the year under review.

4. Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education
and Protection Fund

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with
the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
{"|EPF Rules"), any dividend, if not claimed for a period
of seven years from the date of transfer to Unpaid
Dividend Account of the Company along with
corresponding shares are liable to be transferred to
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

During the wear under review, there were no
unclaimed dividend or corresponding shares which
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were due to be transferred to IEPF Authority by the
Company and there are no amount lying In unpaid
Dividend account of the Company.

5. Dividend
The Board of Directors have not recommended any
dividend during the year under review.

In terms of Regulation 43A of the Listing Regulations,
the Board of Directors of the Company has adopted
the Dividend Distribution Policy, which sets out the
parameters and circumstances to be considered by
the Board in determining the distribution of dividend to
its shareholders. These parameters include Company’s
distributable profits, utilization and future plans, capital
expenditure and such other factars as may be
considerad by the Board for optimum dividend pay-
outs. The Dividend Distribution Palicy Is available on
the Company's website at hitps://digitide.com/wp-
content/uploads/2025/05/7.-Dividend-Distribution-
policy. pdf

6. Share Capital

Your Company was incorporated with an authorised
and paid-up share capital of INR 10,000,000 divided into
1.00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the authorised capital was
increased to INR 1750000000 divided into
175,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each pursuant to
Clause 331 of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement,

Further, the paid-up share capital of the Company was
increased to INR 1,48.94.94130 by way of issuance
and allotment of 14,8949 413 equity shares of INR 10
each to the equity shareholders of Quess/Demerged
Company, as on the record date of April 15,
2025, Further, consequent to the Composite Scheme
of Arrangement, all the existing equity shares held by
Qiuess, (the erstwhile promoter and holding company),
were cancelled,

Your Company has not issued any preference shares
nor has issued any debenfures, bonds, sweat equity
shares, commercial papers, shares with differential
rights, nor any non-canvertible securities during the
reporting period,
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7. Subsidiaries and Assocciate Companies

Pursuant to the implementation of the Scheme, yvour
Company has four {4) subsidiaries and six (6) step-
down subsidiaries.

As per the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act. a
separate statement containing the salient features of
the financial statements of all subsidiaries and
associate companies [/ joint ventures of the
Company (in Form AOQC - 1) is attached to the
financial statements of the Company. Alldigi Tech
Limited (formerly known as Allsec Technologies
Limited) and Brainhunter Systems Limited are the
material subsidiary of the Company as on March 31,
2025,

In terms of Section 134 of the Act and Rule B(1) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, the financial
position and performance of the subsidiaries are
included in the Consolidated Financial Statemeants.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Sectlon 136 of
the Act, the standalone and consolidated financial
statements of the Company, along with audited
financial statements of the subsidiaries, are available
on the Company's official website at: hitpsy/
digitide com/investors-updates

The Company also has a policy for determining the
materiality of subsidiaries and the same is uploaded
on the Company's website which can be accessed
using the following link- hittpsJ/digitide.com/wp-
content/uploads/2025/04/Policy-for-Determining-
Material-Subsidiary.pdf
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8. Directors

Your' Board comprises of eight (8} Directors, out of
which one (1) is the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director, three (3) are Non-Executive
Directors and four (4) directors are Independent
Directors, including two Woman Director  The
composition of the Board is in accordance with
Section 149 and 152 of the Act read with Regulation 17
of the Listing Regulations read with such other
applicahle provisions and regulations.

The Company has a Non-Executive Chairman, and the
number of Independent Directors is not less than half
of the total number of Directors, A detailed update on
the Board and its Committees' composition have been
given in the Report of Corporate Governance forming
part of this Report,

i. Director retiring by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of
the Act, read with the rules made thereunder, Mr, Ajit
Abraham |saac (DIN: 00087168), MNon-Executive
Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, has
offered himself for re-appointment. A  resolution
seeking shareholders' approval for his re-appointment
forms part of the AGM Notice,

il. Appointment and Resignation of Directors

As part of implementation of the approved Composite
Scheme of Arrangement, the entire Board of Directors
was reconstituted in accordance with regulation 17 of
the Listing Regulations read with other applicable
regulations. During the period under review, the
following appointments and resignations  were
affected including changes as on the date of this
report: -
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Name ‘ Designation Date of Appointment

Ajit Abraham |saac Non-Executive Chairman March 27, 2025 Appointment
Gurmeet Singh Chahal Maon-Executive Director March 27, 2025 Appointment
Gurmeet Singh Chahal Chief Executive Officer and -

April 1, 2025 Appointment

Executive Director

Anish Thurthi Mon-Executive Director March 27, 2025 Appointment
Revathy Ashok Mon-Executive
: March 27, 2025 Appointment
Independent Director
Pankaj Vaish Mon-Executive
Independent Director March 27, 2025 Appaintment

Sunll Ramakant Bhumralkar Non-Executive

Independent Director March 27, 2025 Appointment
Gopalakrishnan Mon-Executive Director
) March 29, 2025 Appaintment
Soundarajan
Guruprasad Srinlvasan Maon-Executive Director .
April 01, 2025 Cessation
Kamal Pal Hoda Mon-Executive Director i )
April 01, 2025 Cessation
Ruchi Ahluwalia Man-Executive Director )
April 01, 2025 Cessation
Robin Jill Themashauer Mon-Executive )
April 21, 2025 Appointment

Independent Director

Mone of the Directors of the Company Is disgualified from being appointed as Director as specified in Section 164{2)
of the Act and Rule 14{1) of the Companies (Appaintment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

A brief profile for each Director, detailing their expertise and experience, is available on the Company's website
(www.digitide.com) at Board of Directors — Digitide Solutions.

ili. Appointment of Key Managerial Personne|
As on the date of this report, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as follows:
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MName of KMPs | Designation

Gurmeet Singh Chahal Chief Executive Officer and

Executive Director

Suraj Prasad Chief Financial Officer

Meeraj Manchanda Company Secretary and

Head Legal

iv. Meetings of the Board and Committees of the
Board

During the year under review, the Board of your
Company met 8 (eight) times. A detailed update on the
Board and its Committees' composition, terms of
reference and the number of meetings held during the
year have been given in the Report of Corporate
Govermance forming part of this Report.

v. Board Diversity and Policy on Momination and
Remuneration

The Beoard of Directors wvalues the significance of
divarsity diversity of
background, gender, geography, expertise, knowledge

and firmly believes that

and perspectives, leads to sharper and balanced
decision-making and sustainable development,

The Board is of the opinion that all Directors including
the Independent Directors of the Company possess
requisite qualifications, integrity, expertise, experience
and such other criteria as formulated through the
Momination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

In terms of the requirement of Section 178 of the Act
and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, the Board
of Directors has adopted Policy on Board Diversity and
Policy on Momination and Remuneration, The Policies
framed on the subject can be accessed from the
Company's website at the web link: htips:
digitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/04/
Momination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf

In furtherance, additional details on Board Diversity
and Board Skills are elaborated in the Board Skills
Matrix of the Corporate Governance Report.
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April 1, 2025 Appointment

April 1, 2025 Appointment

March 29, 2025 Appolntment

vi. Annual Board Evaluation

In view of the re-constitution of Board of Directors
pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
and listing requirements, a formal evaluation of the
performance of the Board, its Committeses, and
individual Directors for the financial year ended March
31, 2025, was not undertaken. The Board recognizes
the importance of regular
component of good corporate governance and

intends to implement a structured performance

evaluation as a key

aevaluation framework in the ensuing financial year, in
line with the prowvisions of the Act and applicable
Listing Regulations.

vil. Familiarisation Programme

To facilitate smooth transition and ensure effective
particlpation in Board deliberations, the Cempany
conducted a familiarisation programme for its directors
on June 10, 2025. The programme covered an
averview of the Company's structure, business
operations, key policies, regulatory environment, and
their roles and responsibilities as Directors under
applicable presentations,
updates, and access to internal policies and charters
were also provided to enable directors to gain a
deeper

governance framework.

laws. Relevant business

understanding of the Company and its

The Company will continue to conduct such
programmes on a periodic basis to update the
Directors on significant developmeants in the regulatory

and business landscape,

viil. Declaration by Independent Directors

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Act, the Company has
received declarations from all Independent Directors
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence



as specified in Section 149(6) of the Act, as amended,
read with rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16{1)
(B} of the Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation
25(8} of the Listing Regulations, the Independent
Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of
any circumstance or situation which exists or may be
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact
their ability to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgement without any external influence
and that they are independent of the Management.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that
they shall/ have complied with the Company’s Code of
Conduct and that they are registered on the databank
of Independent Directors maintained by the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs and that they are not
debarred from holding the office of director under any
SEBI arder ar any other such authority.

The Board of Directors of the Company have taken on
record the aforesaid declarations and confirmations
submitted by the Independent Directors.

9. Audit & Auditors

a. Statutory Auditors

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration Mumber Q080725), were appointed
as the first statutory auditors of the Company to hold
office until the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the company pursuant to Section 139 of the
Act.

In view of the above, it is proposed to appeint them as
the Statutory Auditors of your Company for a term of
five (5) consecutive financial years, commencing from
the conclusion of the ensuing first Annual General
Meeting and ending at the conclusion of the sixth
Annual General Meeting te be held in the year 2030,
subject to approval of members at the ensuing AGM.

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed their eligibility
and submitted a certificate affirming that they are not
disqualified from holding the office of the Statutory
Auditor,

The report provided by the Statutory Auditor on the
financial statements of your Company forms part of the
Annual Report, The Statutory Auditors have issued an
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ungualified / unmodified audit report on the
annual accounts of your Company for the year ended

March 31, 2025,

Further, during the year under review, the Auditors
have not reported to the Audit Committee amy
instances of fraud committed against the Company by
its officers or employees under Section 143(12) of the
Act and therefore no detalls are reguired to be
disclosed under Section 134(3) (ca) of the Act.

b. Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act
and rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors had
appointed Mfs. RLS & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors to undertake
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year
ending March 31, 2025,

In compliance with Regulation 24A of the Listing
Regulations and Section 204 of the Act. the Board at
its meeting held on August 01, 2025, based on the
recommendations of the Audit Commitiee, has
approved the appointment of Mr. Parameshwar G Bhat,
a peer reviewed Practicing Company Secretaries
(Membership No. FEBED, C.P, No. 11004) as Secretarial
Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive
years commencing from FY2025-26 till FY2029-30,
subject to approval of members at the ensuing AGM.

The Company has received necessary consent and
eligibility letter to the effect that they satisfy the
conditions under the Act for the above appointment.
As  required under the Listing Regulations, the
Secretarial Auditors have also confirmed that they hold
a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Secretarial Audit Report for financial year ending
March 31, 2025 is annexed as Annexure — A and
forms an integral part of this Report. The Secretarial
Audit Report does not contain any gqualification or
adverse remark for the year under review, During the
year under review, the Secretarial Auditors have not
reported to the Audit Committee any instances of
fraud committed against the Company by its officers or
employees under Section 143(12) of the Act and
therefore no details are required to be disclosed under
Section 134(3){ca) of the Act.
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Further, as per the amended Regulation 244 of the
Listing Regulations, the Secretarial Compliance Report
of the Company for the financial yvear ended March 31,
2025 is annexed as Annexure — B.

€. Internal Auditors

The provisions of Section 138 of the Act were not
applicable to the Company, therefore there was no
reqguirement to appoint Intermal Auditors during the
period under review (FY2024-25)

d. Cost Audit

Maintenance of cost records as speciflied by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Act, Is not required by the Company and
accordingly, such accounts and records are not
maintained.

10. Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits under
Chapter V of the Act during the financial year and as
such, no amount on account of principal or interest on
deposits from public is outstanding as on 31 March,
2025,

11. Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Pursuant to Sectlon 186 of the Act and Schedule WV to
the Listing Regulations, disclosure on particulars
relating to Loans, Guaranteess and Investments are
provided as part of the Notes to financial statements.

12. Debentures:
As on March 31, 2025, the Company does not have
any debentures.

13. Corporate Governance

A detailled Report on Corporate Governance, pursuant
to the requirements of Regulation 34 of the Listing
Regulations, forms part of this Report.

14. Risk Management

Rizk Management is an integral part of the Company’s
business process. To have a sharper focus, the
Company has
Committee  to

constituted a  Risk Management
focus on risk management and

mitigation Including determination of Company's risk
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assessment, risk categories, action plan, risk tolerance
and risk mitigation strategies [risk identification, risk
guantification and risk ewaluation) ete. The Risk
Management policy, as approved by the Board, is
displayed on the website of the Cempany and can be
accessed by using the link https://digitide.com/wp-
content/uploads/2025/05/4 -Risk-Management-
Policy.pdf

Detailed update on risks posed before the Company
has been covered under the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report forming part of this Annual Report,

15. Internal Financial Control and Adequacy

The Company has established a robust framewark for
internal financial contrals. This framewark is having
adequate safeguards and procedures & policies for
ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of business,
including adherence to the Company's policies and
safeguarding of its assets. Board has adopted
adequate policies and procedures for prevention and
detection of frauds
completeness of accounting records and timely

and errors, accuracy and

preparation of reliable financial information,

During the year, such controls were tested, and no
reportable material weaknesses in their design or
operation were observed. Accordingly, the Board is of
the opinion that the Company's internal financial
controls were adequate and effective during FY25 and
their adequacy is included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this
Report,

16. Related Party Transactions

There was no related party transaction entered into by
the Company during the financial year 2024-25 apart
from the ones that have been transferred as part of the
Demerged Undertaking 1 pursuant to the Scheme.
Information on transactions with related parties, if any,
pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are
given in Form AOQC-2 and the same forms part of this
report as Annexure C. Details pertaining to the related
party transactions entered during the year under
review are also provided in the notes to the Financial
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Statements, forming part of this Report. None of the

Directors of the Company have any pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other
than disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report,

forming part of this report.

Al related party transactions entered during the year
were on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary
course of business. Apart from this, there were no
materially significant related party fransactions enterad
by the Company during the year that required
shareholders' approval under Regulation 23 of the
Listing Regulations. The Company has adopted a policy
for dealing with related party transactions and the same
is made awvailable on the Company's website
at hitps://digitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/8.-
Policy-on-Criterial-for-determining-RPT. pdf.

The Audit Committee reviews all transactions enterad
into pursuant to the omnibus approvals so granted on a
quarterly basis.

17. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Paolicy

In compliance with Section 177(9) of the Act and
Regulation 22 of Listing Regulations, the Company has
a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the
necessary vigil mechanism for Rirectors and employees
in confirmation with the above laws, to report concerns
about unethical behaviour, violations of system, actual
or suspected by the
employees, The details of the Policy have been
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which

fraud or grave misconduct

forms part of this report and is also available on the
website of the Company at hitpsy/digitide.com/wp-
content/uploads/2025/04/ Whistle-Blower-Policy. pdf
Mo member has been denied access to Wigil
Mechanism and no complaints have been received
during the vear through Wigil Mechanism.
18. Sustainability

a. Corporate Soclal Responsibility

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act were not
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applicable to the Company during the review period,
therefore there was no requirement to spend any
towards Corporate 5Social Responsibility
["CSRT) activities. Howewver, the Board has constituted
CSR Committee an April 21, 2025, the details of which
have been disclosed in Corporate Governance report.

amount

The CSR policy describing the Company’s philosophy
on CSR can be accessed by following the link: hitps:/
digitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/04/Corparate-
Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf

b. Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report
Regulation 34{2){f) of Listing Regulations are not
applicable to the Company as on March 31, 2025 since
the Company got listed on June 11, 2025 on the Stock
Exchange(s)

c. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Cutgo
The Company, being in the service Industry, reguires
minimal energy consumption, and every endeavour is
made to ensure optimal use of energy, avold wastage
and conserve energy as far as possible.

The Company has an in-house Information technoloagy
team which constantly works on the adoption and
implementation of new technology into the businesses
of the Company.

The detalls of the earnings and expenditure in foreign
currency are given below:

« Expenditure in foreign currency: 119934 million
= Earnings in foreign currency: 243.49 million

19. Particulars of Employees

Upon implementation of the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement and as part of the transfer of business
undertaking from Quess/ Demerged Company to your
Company, all
transferred

Company employees have been

from Quess/ Demerged Company,
on or around 1 April 2025 or joined directly after that

date.
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Accordingly, the information as per Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 relating to
employess, is not applicable on the Company and
therefore, not been included as part of Boards report.
Details of such transferred employees, wherever
regquired and applicable, may be considered as part of
the Demerged Company (till 31 March 2025).

20. Information Required under Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company is committed to providing a safe and
conducive work environment to its employees and has
zero tolerance for any actions that may constitute
sexual harassment at the workplace.

Your Company has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules
thereunder. There are regular sessions offered to all
employees to increase awareness on the topic and the
senior  members  have

Committee and other

undergone a training session.

An Internal Complaints Committee, known as the
Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) Committee,
has been constituted to enguire into complaints, and
to recommend appropriate action, wherever required,
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

As the employees have been transferred with effect
from 01 April 2025, there were no complaints
pertaining to sexual harassment at workplace as
detailed below:

{(a) number of complaints of sexual harassment received

in the year: Mil
(B} number of complaints resclved during the year: Nil

(¢} number of cases outstanding for over ninety days: Nil
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21. Other Disclosures

i. Disclosure as per Securities and Exchange Board of
(Employees Stock Option
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 2011-

India Scheme and
The Board based on the recommendation of the
Momination and Remuneration Committee adopted
Digitide Solutions Limited — Special Purpose Stock
Owinership Plan 2025 ("Special S0P 20257, to create,
offer, issue and allot up to 2668102 restricted stock
units (*Option/ RSUS") to eligible employees pursuant
12 of the Composite

to  Clause Scheme of

Arrangement,

ii. Significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company's operations in future —
il

ili. Details of difference between amount of the
valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and
the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks
or Financial Institutions aleng with the reasons
thereof — Not Applicable.

iv. Details of application made or any proceeding
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 during the year along with their status as at the
end of the financial year — Not Applicable.

v. Material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year and
the date of the Report — MNaone

vi. Voting rights which are not directly exercised by
the employees in
subscription/purchase of which loan was given by
your Company (as there is no scheme pursuant to
which such persons can beneficially hold shares as
envisaged under Section 67(3)(c) of the Act) — Not
Applicable

respact of shares for the

vii. Statement by the Company with respect to the
compliance to the provisions relating to the Maternity
Benefits Act, 1961: The Company has complied with
the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961,
including all applicable amendments and rules framed
thereunder,

= |



Board’s Report

22. Annual Return

In terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of
the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual return as
on March 31, 2024 is available on the Company’s
website at — hitps)//digitide.com/investors-updates/
#Foorporate-governance

23. Management Discussion & Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis as
prescribed under Part B of Schedule WV read with
Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations is provided

a5 a separate section and forms part of this Report.

24. Code of Conduct

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for
the Directors and senior management of the Company.
As prescribed under Regulation 17 of the Listing
Regulations, a declaration signed by the Chief
Executive Officer & Executive Director of the Company
affirming compliance with the Code of Conduct by the
Directors and senior management personnel of the
Company for FY25 forms part of the Corporate
Governance Report

25, Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 124{5) of the Act, the
Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and
information and explanations
Company, confirm that:

received from the

a. In preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation refating to material departures, if
any.

b. They had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit er loss of the Company for that period;

c. They had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adeguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
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for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irreguiarities;

d. They had prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis,

e. Proper internal financial controls were in place and
that the financial controls were adeguate and were
operating effectively; and

f. Proper systems were in place so as to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and were adequate and operating effectively.

26. Secretarial Standards

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118 of the Act,
the Company has complied with the applicable
provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India {*ICSI1") and
notified by the Ministry of Corparate Affairs ("MCA").

27. Acknowledgements
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the shareholders,

and state governments, and all other business
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Limited and the Mational Stock Exchange of India
Limited {NSE) for successful and timely listing of
equity shares of the Company on Stock Exchanges.
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achieve encouraging

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Digitide Solutions Limited

5d/-

Ajit Abraham lsaac

Chairman
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule S of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

DIGITIDE SOLUTIONS LIMITED

31312, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road, Bellandur,
Bangalore, Bangalore South, Karnataka, India, 560103

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by DIGITIDE SOLUTIONS LIMITED [Corporate [dentity No, USZ2099KA2024PLC184626]
{hereinafter called “the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recards
maintained by the Company and also the infermation provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that In my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according te the provisions of:

iy The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent
applicable;

{ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA) and the rules made there under,

{iiiy The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(v} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment.;

(v} | have reviewed the systems and mechanisms established by the Company for ensuring compliances under the
other applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under various laws which are applicable to the
Company and categorized under the following major heads/groups;

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (1C51),

During the pericd under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, and Standards etc. mentioned above.

| further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted, The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all Directors before schedule of the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Based on the verification of the records and minutes, the decisions were carried out with the consent of majority of
the Board of Directors / Committee Members and there were no dissenting members views recorded in the minutes.
Further, in the minutes of the General Meeting, the members who voted against the resolution(s) have been properly
recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines,

As per our verification of records of the Company, We, further report that:

a. The Company has not amended the MOA & ADA during the year under review.

b. The company has not declared any dividend during the year under review.

c. During the year, the Company has not entered into any contract or arrangements with related parties falling
within the purview of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. The transactions entered into by the Company with the existing related
parties are in the ordinary course of its business and on an arm's length basis.

d. Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement, the Demerged Undertaking 1 of Quess Corp Limited
(*Ques/Demerged Company”) has been transferred and vested into Digitide Solutions Limited from Quess with
effect from March 31, 2025 (Effectiveness of the Schemae).

e. The Statutory Registers as reguired under the Companies Act has been maintained.

—

. All Minutes has been kept properly for all meeting (Board and General Meetings).

During the year under review the company has filed all forms with Registrar of Companies (ROC) within due dates
as prescribed under Companies Act.

Place: Chennai FOR RLS & ASSOCIATES
Date: 26.06.2025 Sd/-
UDIN: A020312G000661975 RAJIBLOCHAN SARANGI
Peer Review No.2491/2022 PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

M No. A20312, CP NO. 17498

This report to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this
report.
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Annexure-A

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company, My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit,

2. | have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
comect facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | have followed to
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company since the same had been subjected to review by the statutory auditors and other designated
professionals,

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management, My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random check
basis,

&. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectivenass with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like Direct & Indirect tax laws
has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial audit and
other designated professicnals,

Place: Chennai FOR RLS & ASSOCIATES
Date: 26.06.2025 Sd/-
UDIN: 4020312G000661975 RAJIBLOCHAN SARANGI
Peer Review No.2491/2022 PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

M No. A20312, CP NO. 17458
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF DIGITIDE SOLUTIONS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2025

Pursuant To Regulation 24A Of SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure

- Requirements), Regulations, 2015

The Members,

DIGITIDE SOLUTIONS LIMITED

3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road, Bellandur,
Bangalore, Bangalore South, Karnataka, India, 560103

We have conducted the review of the compliance of applicable statutery provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by DIGITIDE SCLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN: US2099KAZ024PLC184626) (hereinafter referred as the
“Listed Entity®), having its registered office at 3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road, Bellandur, Bangalore,
Bangalare South, Karnataka, India, 560103,

The Secretarial review was conducted in a manner that provided us with a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corparate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion therean.

Based on our verification of the Listed Entity's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Listed Entity and also the information provided by the Listed Entity, its officers, agents and
autharized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, we hereby report that the Listed Entity has,
during the review pericd covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Listed Entity has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter;

I, Rajib Lachan Sarangi, Practicing Company Secretary have examined:

a. all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by the Listed Entity,
b. the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

¢. website of the Listed Entity,

d. any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification,

for the year ended March 31, 2025 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEB! Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines
issued there under; and

b. the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA"), rules made there under and the Regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued there under by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (*SEBI™);

and we would like to state that as the securities of the Listed Entity were not listed as on 315t March 2025, the Listed
Entity is not required to comply with the requirement of obtaining an Annual Secretarial Compliance Beport from a
Practicing Company Secretary for the financial year ended 31st March 2025. However, the Listed Entity has
subsequently listed its securities on BSE and NSE with effect from 11 June, 2025 and hence this reguirement is
applicable to the Listed Entity from the upcoming financial year anding 21 March 2026 onwards,
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Nevertheless, this report is being submitted as a matter of prudence as per the prescribed format. Further, it must be
noted that the remarks made by us in this report are limited to the extent to which the provisions are applicable te the
Company for the year ended 31st March 2025.

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued there under, have been examined,
include:-
a. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
b. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018,
. Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,
d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
e, Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021,
f. Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;
g. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regrading the Companies Act and dealing with Client.

| hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed Entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued
thereunder to the extent applicable, except in respect of matters specified below:

Observations |

B Acti Type /Remarks of
lation/ ction ail
Compliance | EHulanon of i) Fine |the Practicing Management
Sr Mo. | ; Circulars/ |Deviations Taken of Remarks
Requirement Act Amount| Company Response

Guidelines by | Violation
ion Secretary

(PCS)

(k) The entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars! guidelines
issued there under insofar as it appears from my examination of those records.

Observations/ — . | Details of = dtai Comments
ti i emedia
Sl ) e violation/ " | ofthe PCS
made Requirement i actions, if
deviations and on the
in the secretarial Regulations/ . any .
1 é i actions taken / el actions
i rt | Circulars/guidelines| aken
Secretary in the S el PP ARRIIS S penalty imposed, if ¥ taken by
. for the year ended | including specific the listed :
previous reports) any, on the listed ! the listed
; 31.03.2025 clause : entity ;
(PCS) entity entity

Remarks
Of the Practicing
Sr Mo. | Company
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| hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed entity with the following
reguirameants:

Particul Compliance Status| Observation s/
articulars

(Yes/ No/MA)  Remarks by PCSY

Secretarial Standards:
The compliances of the listed entity are in accordance with the
applicable Secretarlal Standards (35) Issued by the Institute of
4 Company Secretaries of India (ICSl) as notified by the Central s Al
Government under Section ME(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

mandateorily applicable

Adoption and timely updation of the Policies:
« All applicable policies under SEEl Regulations are adopted with
the approval of board of directors of the listed entities.
% + All the policies are in conformity with SEBI Regulations and have ves AL
been reviewed & updated on time, as per the regulations/

circulars/guidelines issued by SEBL

Maintenance and disclosures on Website:
« The listed entity is maintaining a functional website.

« Timaly dissemination of the documents/ information under a Yes, to the
3. separate section an the website. extent il
« Web-links provided In annual corporate governance reports under. applicable

Regulation 27(2) are accurate and specific which redirects to the
relevant document(si/section of the website.

Disqualification of Director(s):
4 Mone of the director(s) of the listed entity is/ are disqualified under Yes il
Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 as confirmed by the listed entity

Details related to subsidiaries of listed entities have been examined
5 whrt.: " -
” ) ) . Bs i
« ldentification of material subsidiary companies.

+ Disclosure requirement of material as well as other subsidiaries.

Preservation of Documents:
The listed entity is preserving and maintaining records as prescribed
6. under SEBl Regulations and disposal of records as per policy of Yes il
preservation of documents and archival policy prescribed under SEBI
LODR Regulations, 2015.

Performance Evaluation: Mot Applicable as
The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation of the board, the entire Board
7. independent directors and the committees at the start of every MA was reconstituted
financial year/during the financial year as prescribed in SEBI during the said
Regulations, financial year

Al Reours 2021 4025 ‘_E |
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Compliance Status| Observation s/

Sr Mo. Particulars :
(Yes/ Mo/NA) Remarks by PC5*

Related Party Transactions: Mot Applicable
« The listed entity has obtained prior approval of audit committes as the Listed
for all related party transactions; Entity has been
3. « In case no prior approval obtained, the listed entity shall provide A listed on BSE and
detailed reasons along with confirmation whether the NSE with effect
transactions were subsequently approved/ratified/rejected by from June N
the audit committee, 2025

Disclosure of events or information:

The listed entity has provided all the required disclosure(s) under
Regulation 30 along with Schedule |l of SEBl LODR Regulations,
2015 within the time limits prescribed thereunder,

Prohibition of Insider Trading: Yes, to the extent  The Listed Entity
The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI applicable has been listed
10.  (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, on BSE and MNSE

with effect from
June 11 2025

Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if any:

Mo action(s) has been taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/
directors! subsidiaries either by SEBlI or by Stock Exchanges
{including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI
through wvarious circulars) under SEB| Regulations and circulars/

n. MNA MA
guidelines issued thereunder (or)

The actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges are specified in
the last column.

Resignation of statutory auditors from the listed entity or its
material subsidiaries:
In case of resignation of statutory auditor from the listed entity or
4 any of its material subsidiaries during the financial year, the listed NA A
entity and / or its material subsidiary(ies) has / have complied with
paragraph 61 and 6.2 of section V-D of chapter V of the Master
Circular on compliance with the provisions of the LODR Regulations

by listed entities.

Additional Non-compliances, if any:
13. Mo additional non-compliances observed for any SEB| regulation/ A A
circular/guidance note etc, except as reported above.

Poweal Repart 00 4020 ‘_E |
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Assumptions & limitation of scope and review:

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished, are the
responsibilities of the management of the Listed Entity.

2. Our responsibility is to report based upon our examination of relevant decuments and Information. This is neither
an audit nar an expression of opinien,

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of account of the Listed
Entity.

4. This report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Listed Entity nor of the efficacy or
effectivenass with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Listed Entity.

Place: Chennai FOR RLS & ASSOCIATES
Date: 26.06.2025 Sdf-
UDIN: AD20312G000661986 Rajib Lochan Sarangi
Peer Review No.2491/2022 (Practicing Company Secretary)

ACS No.: 20312 CP No. 17498
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Board of Dlrectors

Form No. AOC-2
Particulars Of Contracts / Arrangements Made With Related Parties
(Pursuant To Clause (H) Of Sub-Section (3) Of Section 134 Of The Companies Act,
2013 And Rule 8(2) Of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with
related partles referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, Including certain arm's length
transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:
During the year under review, there were no such contracts or arrangements or transactions, which were not at arm's
length basis. The Company has ensured compliance with the applicable provisions.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Mature of Duration of the | Salient terms of Date{s) of Amount paid as

Corporate identity | Name(s) of the

related party contracts/ contracts/ the contracts or | approval by the | advances, if any

foreign company | and the nature | arrangements/ | arrangements/ | arrangements or

number (CIN) or
Board, if any
registration number | of relationship | transactions transactions transactions
{FCRN) or Limited
Liability Partnership
number (LLPIN) ar

Foreign Limited

including actual /
expected
contractual
amount
Liability Partnership
number (FLLPIN) or
Permanent Account
MNumber
{PAM)/Passport for
individuals or any
other registration
number

Mot Applicable

Thera was no related party transaction entered into by
the Company during the financial year 2024-25 apart
from the ones that have been transferred as part of the
Demerged Undertaking 1 pursuant to the Scheme, The
details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at
arm's length basis for the financial year ended 31
March, 2025, are detailed in the Motes to Financial
Statement annexed to the Annual Report for which
appropriate approvals have been taken as applicable
from time to time,

Transactions entered into  with  wholly  owned
subsidiaries of the Company are generally exempied

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E-

under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, Apart
from this, there were no material contracts or
arrangements or transactions entered during the
financial year ended 31 March, 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Digitide Solutions Limited

Sd/-
Ajit Abraham |saac
Chairman

Bengaluru, August 01, 2025 DIM: 00087168
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Your Board of Directors are pleased to present the
Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the
financial year ended 31 March 2025, in compliance
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regquirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations").

1. Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

The Company believes in high standards of
governance and observes good corporate practices
with a constant and determined effort to improve
and adopt the best practices. Your Board recognizes
that governance expectations are continuously
evolving with the time, and it is committed towards
the good governance and  standards  of
transparency, in letter and spirit of law and its own
demanding levels of business ethics.

The Company's philesophy  on  corporate
governance has been emphasized amongst [ts
management and employees vide various internal
policles to strengthen the system. Adherence to
business ethics, transparency in dealing with all
stakeholders. adequate and timely dissemination of
information and commitment to corporate social
responsibility are the baslc elements of the
governance philosophy of the Company.

The Company acknowledges adherence to all the
requirements regarding Corporate Governance, as
stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 read with
Schedule V' and clauses (b) to {i) of Regulation 4&(2)
of the Listing Regulations. A report on these Is
detailed below.

2. Corporate Governance at Digitide:
a. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company guides,
oversees and monitors strategy, performance and
governance. The Board establishes the governance
architecture in consonance with the highest
standards and owns a fiduciary respansibility to
ensure that the Company's actions and objectives
are aligned to sustainabllity, shareholder value and
its growth. Apart from shaping the long-term vision,
the Board exercises independent judgement in
overseging management performance against
defined goals and strategy on behalf of the
shareholders and ather stakeholders and hence,

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E |
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plays a vital role in the oversight and management
of the Company.

b. Board Committees

The Board delegates its functioning In relevant
areas to the designated Board Committees to deal
more effectively with complex or speciallsed issues
and to use directors’ time more efficlently.
Committees brief the Board on their discussions and
make recommendations, if any, for action to the full
Board, which retains collective responsibllity for
decision making,

c. Separate posts of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

Pasitions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer in the Company are held by
separate individuals. While the Board is headed by a
Mon-Executive Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
is respaonsible for business strategy deployment,
overall financial & operational performance and

sustainability,

The indicative performance criterla of Chief
Executive Officer & Executive Director include
financial parameters such as Growth in Revenue
Market Share, Gross Revenue, EBITDA margin,
Operating Free Cash Flow etc. and non-financial
parameters such as talent management, diversity
and culture, business sustainability, and Succession
Planning.

. Board of Directors:

a. Board Composition

As on the date of this report, the Board comprises
eight (8) directors. The composition of the Board is
in conformity with Regulation 17(1) of the Listing
Regulations read with Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Act™).

Qut of total eight (8) directors, three (3) directors are
Man-Executive Maon-Independent Directors, ane (1)
director is the Chief Executive Officer & Executive
Director, and four (4) directors are Independent
Directors, including two Woman Director. The
Chairman of the Board is 2 Non-Executive Director
and therefore number of Independent Directors is
not less than half of the total number of Directors.
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As on March 31, 2025, Company was having seven (7)
Directors, and one (1} position of Independent Director
was vacant. This position was filled on April 21, 2025,
by way of appeintment of Ms. Robin Jill Thomashauer
Indepandent The approval of
shareholders for the appointment of Ms. Robin Jill

as an Director.
Thomashauer was taken by way of postal ballot and e-
voting on July 19, 2025, Apart from above, all other
Director appointments were approved by shareholders
in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on March 29, 2025.

Pursuant to Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations,
nane of the Directors hold directorships In more than
seven (7) listed companies or in mere than ten (10)
public companies ar act as an Independent Director in
more than seven (7) listed companies. Also, none of
them is a member of more than ten (10) committees or
Chairperson of more than five (5} committees across all
the public companies in which they hold directorships
in terms of Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations.

Further, in terms of the annual disclosures given by the
Directors, none of them is disqualified under Section
1842} of the Act read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, Mone of the Directors of the Company have
been restrained ar debarred from holding the office of
director by wirtue of order by SEBI or any other
authority.

Attendance Directorships

MName, Category in Board in Public
and DIN of the

Director

Companies
(including
Digitide)®

Meetings
during the
FY 2024-25

Mr. Ajit Isaac, 1 4
Chairman {Non-

Executive Non -

Independent) (DIN:

oooaTes)”
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Mone of the Directors are related inter-se or are a

member of an extended family. MNone of the
employees of the Company are related to any of the
Directors. Mone of the Directors holds any eguity
shares and convertible Instruments In the Company
except, M. Ajit Isaac, Chairman of the Company holds
22.34% equity shares (directly and indirectly) in the
Company as on the date of this report, Nane of the
Directors have received any loans or advances from

the Company during the year.

The Directors of the Company are appeinted by
shareholders at the General Meetings and minimum
two-third of total number of Directors (other than
Independent Directors) are liable to retire by rotation
pursuant to the provisions of the Act,

The Board cpines that all the Independent Directors of
the Company strictly adhere to corporate integrity,
possess the reguisite expertise, experience and
qualifications to discharge the assigned duties and
respansibilities as mandated by the Act and Listing
Regulations diligently. The Company has obtained
Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance for all its directors of
such guantum and such risks as required.

The composition of the Board, the number of
directorships, membership and chairmanship held by
each Director on the Board/ Committees of the Board
of other Companies is as under,

MNumber of
chairmanship
/membership held
in Committees of
Public Companies
{including
Digitide)#

Directorship in other
listed entity (Category
of Directorship)

Chairman Member

1. Quess Corp  Limited (Mon-
Executive Director)

2. Alldigi Tech  Limited (Non-
Executive Director)

3. Bluspring Enterprises Limited
(Non- Executive Director)
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Number of
chairmanship
/membership held
in Committees of
Public Companies
(including

Directorships
in Public

Companies

Attendance
Name, Category in Board
and DIN of the

Director

Directorship in other listed entity

Meetings ; 4
(Category of Directorship)

during the
FY 2024-25

{including
Digitide)

Mr. Anish Thurthi
[(Man-Executive
Director Non —
Independeant)
(DIN:OBT13000)™

Ms. Ashok Rewvathy
(Independent MNon-
Executive Director)
(DIN:00057539)"

Mr. Gopalakrishnan
Soundarajan  (Mon-
Executive Director
Mon — Independent)
(DIN:D5242795)"

Mr. Gurmeet Singh
Chahal (Whole Time
Director and Chief
Executive  Officer)
DIMN:10S97957)

Mr. Pankaj Waish
(Independent Mon-
Executive Director)
(DIMN:D036ET424)*

Mil

Mil

Al Reours 2021 4025 ‘_E |

Digitide)#

Chairman Member

= 5
s 7
- 3
1 5

1. Bluspring Enterprises Limited
{Non- Executive Director)

. 360 One Wam
Independent Director

. Sansera Engineering Limited,
Independent Director

. Barbeque Nation Hospitality
Limited, Independent Director

. Astrazeneca
Limited, Independent Director

Limited,

Pharma India

1. Quess Corp Limited, Director

. GoDigit General Insurance
Limited, Director

. IFL Finance Limited, Director

. Thomas Cook India Limited,
Director

. Bluspring Enterprises Limited
(Mon- Executive Director

. Alldigi Tech Limited (Mon-

Executive Director)

. Digispice Technolagles Limited,
Independent Director

. Xchanging Solutlons Limited,
Independent Director
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Attendance Directorsh
in Board
Meetings

during the

FY 2024-25

Name, Category
and DIN of the
Director

ips in Public

Companies
{including
Digitide)

Mr. Sunil Ramakant 1 5
Bhumralkar

(Independent Non-

Executive Director)

(DIN:DD177658)"

Ms. Robin Jill Mil il
Thomashauer

(Independent Mon-

Executive Directar)

(DIN: 1N032811)%

Mr. Guruprasad 8 5
{Nan-
Executive Director

Srinivasan,

Mon- Independent)
(DIN:07596207)

Mr. Kamal Pal Hoda 8 3
(Non-Executive

Director Non -

Independent)

(DIN:09808793)

Ms. Ruchi Ahluwalia 8 2
(Non-Executive

Director Non -

Independent) (DIM

10273851

Number of
chairmanship
/membership held
in Committees of

Public Companies
{including
Digitide)#

Chairman Member

4 7

Ml il il
Mil Mil

il 2

Mil il il

dicjitide

Directorship in other listed entity
(Category of Directorship)

1. BirlaNu  Limited (Previously
known as  HIL  Limited),
Independent Director

2. Alidigi Tech Limited,
Independent Director

3. Tanla Platforms Limited,

Independent Director

1. Quess Corp Limited (Whole-
time Director & CEQ)

1. Bluspring Enterprises Limited,
(Whale- time Director and CED)
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Mote:

‘Directorships do not include directorships of private
limited companies, foreign companies and companies
registered under Section B of the Act, whereas
includes directorships of public and deemed public
companies,

# For the purpose of determining the limit of the Board
Committees, chalrpersonship and membership of the
Audit Committee and Stakeholders’
Committes has been considered as per Regulation
26(1){b) of the Listing Regulations.

* Appointed with effect from March 27, 2025
“Appointed with effect from March 29, 2025
“**Resigned from the office of Directorship of the
Company w.ef April 01, 2025.

‘Appainted with effect from April 21, 2025

Relationship

b. Independent Directors

Independent Directors being non-executive directors
as defined under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing
Regulations and Section 149(8) of the Act along with
rules framed thereunder, have confirmed that they
satisfy the criteria of Independence as indicated In the
Act and the Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation
25(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Independent
Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of
any circumstance or situation which exists or may be
reasonably anticipated, that could impalr or impact
their ability to discharge their duties.

The Board of Directors of the Company confirm that in
their opinion, the Independent Directors fulfil the
conditions specified in Listing Regulations and are
independent of the Managemeant of the Company.

The number of Companies in which each Independeant

Director of the Company holds office as an
Independent Director is within the limits prescribed
under Regulation 174 of the Listing Regulations. Nane
of the Independent Directors have exceeded the
tenure prescribed under Regulation 25 of the Listing
Regulations and Section 149(10) of the Act. None of the
Independent Director exceeds 75 years of age. Ms.
Robin Jill Thomashauer will attain the age of Seventy-
Five years (75 years) during her tenure of five years
and accordingly approval of shareholders by way of

special resolution through postal ballot has been

\ T i "l | .-' ™ ™
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obtained on July 19, 2025, for continuation of her
directorship as an Independent Director beyond the
age of 75 years till the expiry of her term i.e. April 20,
2030,

Considering the date of appointment of all the
Independent the Company, the
requirement of holding a separate meeting of the
Indepandent Directors of the Company as stipulated
under Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV of the Act
and Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, was not
applicable for the financial year 2024-25, hence such
separate meeting of Independent Director was not
convened for the reporting perlod.

Directors of

The Familiarisation programme(s) for Independent
Directors of the Company are regularly conducted with
a focus on the Company's operations,
industry and working environment and regulatory
framework. Upon appointment of all Independent
Directors, one such detailed program was conducted
on 10 June 2025. The familiarisation programme for
Indepandent Directors Is disclosed on the website of
the Company at https:/digitide.com/investors/.

business,

Further, immediate updates on significant issues, if
any, are provided to all the Directors immediately on
the occurrence of such an event Periodical
presentations are made to the Independent Directors
on the Company's strategies and business plans, The

Independent Directors are alse regularly informed

about material regulatory and statutory updates
affecting the Company,
As  required under Rule & of the Companies

[Appointment and GQualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, all the Independent Directors have completed
the registration with the Independent
Databank. The Company is complying with Regulation
25(7) of the Listing Regulations.

Directors

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment
to all the Independent Directors of the Company in the
manner as provided in the Act including the tenure of
appointment.  The  terms
appointment of the Independent
disclosed on the official website of the Company at

and conditions of

Directors  are
woww digitide.com/investors/disclosure-under
regulation-46/
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c. Board Skills Matrix

The Board comprises gualified members who possess the required skills, expertise and competencies that allow
them to make effective coentributions to the Board and its Committees. The fellowing skills/ expertise/ competencies
have been identified for the effective functioning of the Company and are currently existing with the Board:

Skills Description

Corporate strategy

and capital allocation

Corporate and Board

Governance

Global Business
Management

Services Business
Management

Technology-led
transformation

Finance and risk
management
professional

Environment,
Sustainability and
Governance (ESG)

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E-

Experience in developing long-term strategies to grow consumer/business, consistenthy,
profitably, competitively and in a sustainable manner in diverse business
environments and changing economic conditions.

Experience in developing and implementing good corporate governance practices,
maintaining board and management accountability, managing stakeholders' interests and
Company's responsibilities towards customers, employees, suppliers, requlatory bodies
and the communities in which it operates,

Experience in driving business success in global markets with an understanding of
diverse business environments, economic conditions, cultures and requlatory frameworks
and a broad perspective on global market opportunities,

Service on a board of a public company to develop insights about maintaining board and
management accountability, protecting shareholder interests and observing appropriate
governance practices.

A significant background in technology, resutting in knowledge of how to anticipate
technological trends, generate disruptive innovation, and extend or create new business
models, intellectual property in information technology domain and knowledge of
technology trends including BCP and digital transformation of services,

Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finance function of an enterprise,
resulting in proficiency in complex financial management and financial reporting
processes, or experience in actively supervising a person performing similar functions.

Experience in identifying and evaluating the significant risk exposures to the business
strategy of the Company and assessing the management's actions to mitigate the
strategic, legal and compliance, and operational risk

EXPOSUres,

Experience in leading the sustainability and ESG visions of organisations, to be able to
integrate these into the strategy of the Company.
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While all the Board members possess the skills, their core areas of expertise are given below:

Environment,
Sustainability Gopala | Sunil 7 *Guru ["Kamal
and . krishnan ' 7| Ramakant prasad Pal

Governance i Srinivasan| Hoda
(ESG)

Corporate
strategy and
capital
allocation

Cerporate
and

Board
Governance

Global

Business v v v W W v v v
Management

Services

Business W v v v vy v W v v W

Management

Technology-
led
transformat
ion

Finance and
risk
management
professional

Environment,
Sustainability

and W v v W vy v v v v

Governance
(ESG)

* Resigned from Directorship with effect from April 01, 2025,
*Appointed with effect from April 21, 2025
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d. Board Processes

The Board meets at least once in each quarter to
review the matters specifically reserved for the Board
that It exercises full control
significant  strategic, financial, operational
compliance matters. Additional beard meetings are

and to ensure over

and

held as and when required, to approve the Business
and other strategic proposals of the Company. The
Board
activities

is regularly briefed and updated on key
of the and provided with
presentations on operations, financial statements, risk

business
and controls, subsidiary performance and other
specific matters concerning the Company.

The maximum time gap between two meetings does
not exceed 120 days. The schedule of the Board
s
communicated in advance to the directors to enable

meetings and its  committee  meetings
them to attend the meetings. Upon listing of the
Company at stock exchanges, use of a web-based
paortal to notify notice, board agenda, detailed notes to
agenda of each board meeting and presentations to
directors has been initiated in compliance with the
Secretarial Standard on Meeting of the Board of
Directors (55-1) issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India.

The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of
all laws applicable to the Company, as well as steps
taken by the Company for implementing robust system
of ensuring timely compliances. The Board is also free
to recommend any inclusions in the agenda items for
discussion, in consultation with the Chairman. The
Board has no restrictions on accessing any information
or officer of the Company.

All the discussions and decisions taken at every
meeting of the Beard are recorded in the form of
board minutes, The draft minutes are circulated to the
Board and suggestions or comments for changes, if
any, are suitably incorporated in the minutes and the
minutes are duly signed.

The process specified for the Board Meeting above is
followed for the meetings of all the committees
constituted by the Board, The minutes of the meetings
of the committees of the Board are placed befare the

dicjitide

Board for records.

Al
Directors before the meeting or placed at the meeting,
including minimum information required to be made
avallable to the Board as prescribed under Part-A of
Schedule |l of the Listing Regulations. To enable the
Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively and
make informed decisions, the management apprises
the Board through a presentation at every Meeting on
the Company’s overall performance.

material information was circulated to all the

e. Board Evaluation
As
constituted/ re-constituted on and after March 27,
2025, and the shares of the Company got listed on 11
June 2025, the pravisions relating to evaluation of the
performance of the Board, committees of the Board
and individual directors including chalrman will be
carried out from the FY 2025-26.

the entire Board and its committess were

f. Board Meetings:

The Board met Eight (8) times during the year under
review, le, May 08, 2024; June 06, 2024; July 25,
2024; October 28, 2024, January 29, 2025, March 05,
2025, March 27, 2025, and March 29, 2025. Board
Meetings were called, convened and held as per the
regulatory requirements under the Act, the Listing
Regulations and the Secretarial Standards on Board
Meetings (55-1) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

g. Agenda for the meetings and information furnished
to the Board:

Infarmation is provided to the Board Members on a
continuous basis for their review, inputs and approval
from time to time. More specifically, we present our
annual strategic plan and operating plans of our
business to the Board for their review, input and
approval. Likewise, our quarterly financial statements
and annual financial statements are first presented to
the Audit Committee and subsequently to the Board of
Directors for their approval. Important managerial
decisions and statutory matters are presented to the
respective Committees of the Board and later with the
recommendation of Committees to the Board for their
approval, as applicable.
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Infarmation ta the Directors is submitted along with the
agenda papers well before the Board meeting. All
material Information is incerporated In the agenda
along with supporting documents and  relevant
presentations. Where it |s not practicable to attach a
particular document to the agenda, the same |s tabled
at the meeating with specific reference to this effect In
the agenda. Additional or supplementary items on the
agenda are permitted in special and exceptional
circumstances,

The Company provides the information as set out in
Regulation 17(7) read with Part A of Schedule || of the
Listing Regulations to the Board and the Board
Committees to the extent it is applicable and relevant.
Al information, except critical unpublished price
sensitive Information (which is circulated at a shorter
notice than the pericd prescribed under the
Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of
Directors), Is given to the Directors well in advance of
the Board and the Committee meetings.
h. Code of Business Conduct & Ethics:

The Company has adopted a Code of Business
Conduct & Ethics ("the Code”) which is applicable to
the Board of Directors and all the employees of the
Company. The Board of Directors and the members of
the Senior Management Team of the Company are
required to affirm the Annual Compliance of this Code.
Al Board Members and Senior Management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct. A declaration signed by the Chief Executive
Officer & Executive Director of the Company to this
effect is placed at the end of this report,

The Ceode reguires directors and employees to act
hanestly, fairly, ethically and with integrity, conducting
themselves in a professional, courteous and respectful

manmner.

The Ceode is displayed on the Company's official
website gt hitps:fwww. digitide.com/wp-content/
uploads/2025/05/2 -Digitide-Code-of-Business-
Conduct-and-Ethics.pdf
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i. Conflict of Interests:

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis
about the Board and Committee positions, including
Chairmanships, that she or he holds in other firms, as
well as any changes that occur throughout the year
Members of the Board avoid conflicts of interest in the
decision-making process while performing their duties.
Members of the Board refrain from discussing or
voling on transactions in which they are concerned or
hawve an interest.

j. Code of Conduct for Prevention and Prohibition of
Insider Trading:

The Company has adopted ‘Code of Conduct for
Prevention and Prohibition of Insider Trading™ in
accordance with the SEBI {Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 ("PIT Regulations"), as
amended from time to time which is uploaded at
https://'www.digitide.com/wp-content/
uploads/2025/07/Code-of-Conduct-for-prevention-
and-Prohibition-of-Insider-Trading-01. pdf

The Code, inter alla, lays down the procedures to be
followed by DPs while trading/ dealing in the Company
shares and while sharing Unpublished Price Sensitive
Infarmation (UPSI). The Code includes the obligations
and responsibilities of DPs. obligation to maintain the
structured digital database, mechanism for prevention
of insider trading and handling of UPSI, process to
familiarise with the sensitivity of UPSI, transactions
which are prohibited and manner in which permitted
transactions in the securities of the Company shall be
carried out etc.

The Company periodically circulates the informatory e-
mails along with the FAQs on Insider Trading Code,
Da's and Don'ts etc, ta the employees (including new
employees) to familiarize them with the provisions of
the Code, The Company alsoe conducts frequent
training sessions to educate and sensitise the
employees/Designated Persens, It is noteworthy to
mention that your Company is listed from 11 June
2025,
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4. Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors has constituted warious
Committees to focus on speciflc areas and to make
informed decisions  within  their authority. Each
Committee is directed by its charter andf/or policy
which outlines their scope, roles, responsibilities and
powers. All the decisions and recommendations of the
Committee are placed before the Board for their
approval.

The Board Committees are set up under the formal
approval of the Board, to carry out clearly defined
rales. The Minutes of the meetings of all the
Committees are placed before the Board for review,
The Company's guidelines relating to Board meetings
are applicable to Committee meetings as far as
practicable.

The Board has statutory
committees and one (1) non-statutory committee as

constituted  five (5)

follows:

« Audit Committee,

« Momination and Remuneration Committes,

« Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committes,
« Risk Management Committee, and
Administration and Investment Committee.

-

A, Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company functions in
accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the
Act and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.

Terms of reference of the Audit committee:

a. Owverseeing the Company's financial reporting
process and disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient
and credible;

b. Recommending to the Board, the appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of the
statutory auditor of the Company;

c. Review and monitor the auditer's independence
and performance and effectiveness of audit process;

d. Approval of payments to statutory auditors for any
other services rendered by statutory auditors;

e. Reviewing with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor’'s report thereon
before submission to the Board for approval, with
particular reference to:

i. Matters reguired to be included in the Director’s
responsibility statement to be included in the Board's
report in terms of Section 134(3)ic) of the Companies
Act, 2013;

ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices
and reasons for the same;

fii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based
on the exercise of judgment by managemeant;

iv. Significant adjustments made In the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

v. Compliance  with
reguirements relating to financial statements;

vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
vii. Modifled apinions in the draft audit report.

listing and other legal

f. Reviewing with the management. the quarterly, half-
yearly and
submission to the Board for approval;

annual  financial statements  before

g. Scruting of inter-corporate loans and/ or advances
made by the Holding Cempany in the subsidiary
exceeding INR 1000 Million or 10% of the asset size of
the Subsidiary, whichewver is lower;

h. Scruting of inter-corporate investments;

I. Waluation of undertakings or assets of our Company,
whearever it s necessary,

J. Ewaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

k. Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of our Company with related parties;

I. Reviewing with the management, the statement of
uses/application of funds raised through an |ssue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc), the
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
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and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitering the utilization of proceeds of a public or
rights and

recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this

Issue, making appropriate

matter;

m. Establishing a wvigil mechanism/whistle blower
mechanism, In case the same Is existing, for directors
and employees to report their genuine concerns or

grievances and reviewing the said mechanism;

n. Reviewing, with the management, the performance
of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the
internal control systems;

o. Reviewing the adequacy of the intermal audit
function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniarity of the official
heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

p. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant
findings and follow up thereon;
internal

the of

investigations by the internal auditors into matters

g. Reviewing findings any
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal contral systems of a material nature

and reporting the matter to the Board,

r. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, aboul the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertaln any area of

Concern;

Composition and Meetings of the Audit Committee

F
-
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5, Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors. debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

t. Approval of appointment of the chief financial
officer (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any
other person heading the finance function or
discharging the function) assessing  the
gualifications, experience and background, etc. of the
candidate;

after

u. Carrying out any other functions as is mentionead in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee; and

v. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances
from [ Investment by the holding company in the
subsidiary exceeding INR 1000 million or 10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary,
including existing loans / advances / investments
exlsting as on the date.

whichaver s lower

the of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 at least once in a

financial year and shall verify that the systems for

w. Review compliance with provisions

internal control are adequate and are operating
effectively.

¥. Conslder and comment on the rationale, cost
benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc. on the listed entity and

its shareholders,; and

Y. approval any subsequent modification of

transactions of the company with related party.

ar

The Audit Committee was constituted with effect from March 28, 2025 and no meetings were convenad during the
financial year 2024-25. Composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar
Anish Thurthi
Pankaj Vaish
Revathy Ashok

Independeant Chairman
Non-Executive Member
Independeant Member
Independent Member

Motes: The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer iz the Secretary to the Committes.

As required under Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, the Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent

Director. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company is the Secretary to the Audit Commitiee.
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B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Momination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company functions in accordance with Section
178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations.

Terms of Reference of the MNomination and
Remuneration Commities;

a. Formulate the criteria  for  determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration of the directors, key

managerial personnel and other employees;

b. For ewvery appointment of an independent
director, the MNomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experlence on the Board and on the
basis of such ewvaluation, prepare a description of
the role and capabilities required of an independent
director. The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an independent director shall have
the capabilities identified in such description. For
the purpose of identifying sultable candidates, the
Committes may:

i. use the services of an external agencies, If
required;

il. conslder candidates from a wide range of
backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and

iii. consider the time commitments of the
candidates.

c. Formulation of criteria  for evaluation of
perfarmance of Independent Directors and the
Board,

d. Devising a policy an Board diversity;

e. |dentify persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid
down and recommend to the Board of Directors
their appointment and removal,

f. Analysing, monitaring and reviewing varlous
human resource and compensation matters;

dicjitide

g. Determining our Company's policy on specific
remuneration packages for executive directors
including pension rights and any compensation
payment, and determining remuneration packages of
such directors;

h. Determine compensation levels payable to the
senior management personnel and other staff (as
deemed necessary}, which shall be market-related,
usually consisting of a fixed and variable component;

i. Reviewing and approving compensation strategy
from time to time in the context of the then current
Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

J. Perform such functions as are required to be
performed by the compensation committee under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

k. Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure
that there is no wviolation, by an employee of any
applicable laws in India or overseas, including:

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
as and when the same come into force; or

= The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practices relating to the Securities Market)
Regulations, 2003

I. Whether to extend or continue the term of
appointment of the independent director, on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors;

m. Perform such other activities as may be delegated
b the Board of Directors andfor are statutorily
prescribed under any law to be attended to by such
committes; and

n. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management
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Composition and Attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Committee was constituted with effect from March 28, 2025, The Committee met once during the year under
review on March 29, 2025, Composition and Attendance at the Committee Meetings are as follows:

—

Revathy Ashok Independent Chairman 1
Pankaj Waish Independent Member 1
Ajit |saac Mon-Executive Member 1

Motes: The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer |s the Secretary to the Commities

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors

The entire Board and its committees were re-constituted/constituted on and after March 27, 2025, and the Company
got listed on 11 June 2025, the provisions relating to evaluation of the performance of the Board, committees and
individual directors will be carried out from the FY 2025-26. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall lay
down criterla for the performance evaluation of Independent Directors, taking into consideration the following
parameters:

« Attendance at Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,

« Chairpersonship of the Board and Board Committeses,

« Contribution and deployment of knowledge and expertise at the Board and Committee meetings and
Guldance and support provided to Senior Management of the Company.

Remuneration to Directors

a. Mon-Executive Directors

In terms of Section 178 of Act and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations, the Company has framed a policy on
Momination and Remuneration and published on the Company's website at https://digitide.com/investors/.

Independent Directors are entitled to receive sitting fees of INR 100,000/- per Board meeting and INR 50,000/- for
the committes meatings.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Independent Directors for the year ended March 31,2025 are given
below:

Independent Directors

Name of the Director Sitting Fees

Pankaj Vaish INR 150,000
Revathy Ashok INR 1,50,000
Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar INR 1,000,000

Piweal Repart 200 S0 ‘_E-
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In addition to above, the approval of the members is being sought as part of the notice of AGM for payment of
remuneration to the Independent Directar(s) by way of commission, for a period of five (%) years commencing from
April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2030, within the cverall maximum limit prescribed under Section 197 of the Act, e, 1%
{one percent) per annum of the Net Profits of the Company, as may be determined by the Board of Directors,
based an the recommendation of Nominatien and Remuneration Committee from time to time.

Other Non-Executive - Non-Independent Directars are neither paid sitting fee nor any commission.

b. Executive Director:

Mr. Gurmeet Singh Chahal s the Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director of the Company with effect from 1
Aprll 2025, who was transferred from the demerged company/ Quess Corp Limited as part of demerger and
transfer of business undertaking to the Company. In Quess Corp Limited, he was responsible for the Global
Technology Solutions platform and was not the Director or Key Managerial Personal (KMP) in terms of the
Companies Act, 2013/ regulations.

Mr. Chahal has incredibly rich experience, a proven track record, growth-oriented mindset and an unwavering
commitment to ensuring client satisfaction. His twenty-five years of experience In diverse leadership roles and
extensive knowledge of Information Technolegy! ITES industry, makes him the ideal leader to steer the Company
into the future,

Mr. Chahal is also helding Executive Director position in MFXchange US Inc, a subsidiary of the Company shall
continue to receive remuneration, in accordance with the terms of appointment of MFXchange US Inc. and

applicable local laws of USA,

Appointment and Remuneration of Mr. Chalal was approved in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on 29 March 2025.

C. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committes has been constituted and functions in accordance with Section 178 of
the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations.

Terms of Reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

i. Resolving the grisvances of the securlty holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual repaort, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate
certificates, general meetings, etc;

i, Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

iii. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent; and

iv. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the guantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of
the Company.

Composition and Attendance of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committes

The Committee was constituted with effect from March 28, 2025 and no meetings were convened during the
financial year 2024-25, Composition of the Committee is as follows:
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*Pankaj Vaish Independent Chairperson
Anish Thurthi Mon-Executive Member
Sunil Ramakant Bhumrealkar Independeant Member

Motes: The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is the Secretary to the Committee
"Pankaj Vaish was appointed as the Chairperson of the Committee with effect from June 26, 2025,

Investor grievances recelved and redressed

NMumber of complaints received and redressed during the year under review are as follows:

Mo. of Complaints

MNo. of Complaints not solved to the Mo. of Complaints
Mo, of Complaints resolved

received satisfaction of pending
shareholders

D.Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee has been constituted and functions in accordance with Regulation 21 of the
Listing Regulations.

Terms of Reference of the Risk Management Committes:

i. The Risk Management Commitiee shall evaluate significant risk exposures of the Company and assess
management’s actions to mitigate the exposures in a timely manner (including one-off initiatives, and ongoing
activities such as business continuity planning and disaster recoveny planning & testing).

ii. The Risk Management Committee will coordinate its activities with the Audit Commitiee In instances where
there is any overlap with audit activities (e.g. internal or external audit issue relating to risk management policy or
practice).

iii. The Risk Management Committee shall make regular reports! recommendations to the Board.

iv. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

« A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in particular
including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber
security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committes.

« Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.

« Business continuity plan.

v. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
assoclated with the business of the Company.

vi. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of
risk managemeant systems.

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E-
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vii. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once In two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity.

viili. To keep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations and
actions to be taken.

ix. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer {if any) shall be subject to review by
the Risk Management Committes,

Compasition and Attendance of the Committee

The Committee was constituted with effect from March 28, 2025 and no meetings were convened during the
financial vear 2024-25. Composition of the Committee is as follows:

Pankaj Vaish Independent Chairpersan
Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar Independent Member
Anish Thurthi Non-Executive Member
Gurmeet Singh Chahal Chief Executive Officer Member
Suraj Prasad Chief Financial Officer Member

Motes: The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is the Secretary to the Committee

. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been constituted and functions in accordance with Section 135
of the Act.

Terms of Reference of the CSR Committee

i. Formulate and recommend to the Board a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy ("C5R Policy™) and the activities to
be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Act;

il. |dentifying the areas of CSR activities;

ili. Recommending the amount of expenditure to be Incurred on the identified CSR activities:

iv. Implementing and monitoring the CSR Policy from time to time;

v. Coordinating with “Quess Foundation™ or other such agency in implementing programs and executing initlatives
as per the C5R Policy of the Company;

vi. Reporting progress of various initiatives and making appropriate disclosures on a periodic basis;

vii. Formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan in pursuance of its C5R policy;

wviil. Review Sustainability initiatives of the company and provide guidance on aspects of sustainability policies and
programs including environmental sustainability, climate change, responsible sourcing, biodiversity, energy and
water conservation;

ix, Overseeing the Company's initiatives and reviewing the risk and opportunities related to Environment, Social and
Governance ("ESG").

®. Review regularly and making recommendations about changes to the charter of the Commities;
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*i. Carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory
notification, amendment or modification as may be applicable.

xii. The Committee shall oversee the process of joint C5R efforts in case of collaboration with other company(ies) to
ensure that the Company can meet its reporting obligations in this regard.

xiil. The Committee shall monitor the administrative overheads in pursuance of C5R activities or projects or programs
so that they do not exceed the prescribed thresholds; and

xiv. The Committee shall formulate necessary monitoring mechanism to enable the Board to satisfy itself that the
funds disbursed for CSR activities or projects or programs have been utilized for the purposes and in the manner as
approved by it

Composition and Attendance of the Committee

The Committee was constituted with effect from April 21, 2025 and no meetings were convened during the financial
year 2024-25, Compasition of the Committes is as follows:

Gopalakrishnan Soundarajan MNon-Executive Chairperson
Rokin Jill Thomashauer Independent Member

Chief Executive Officer and
Gurmeet Singh Chahal ] Member
Executive Director

Sunil Ramakant Bhumralkar Independant Member

Note: The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committes.

5, Senior Management:

Senior Management shall comprise the officers who are part of the core management team of the Company. These
are the members of the management ane level below the Board or Managing/Executive Director or Whole Time
Director or Manager (including Chief Executive Officer and Manager, in case they are not part of the Board of
Directors) and shall specifically include the functional heads, by whatever name called and the persons identified
and designated as key managerial personnel, other than the board of directors, by the listed entity. The provisions of
Reg 16 (1) (d) were not applicable to the Company as an March 31, 2025 as the company was listed on June 11, 2025,

The Senior Management of your Company comprises of the following positions and the officers occupying

respective positions are as follows:

MName of Senior : Date of
Designation
Management Personnel appointment
Mr. Gurmeet Chahal Chief Executive Officer (KMP) April 01, 2025
Ms. Ruchi Ahluwalia Group Chief People Officer April 01, 2025
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Mame of Senior . Date of
Designation

Management Personnel appointment

Mr. Saket BEhatnagar Revenue and Growth Officer April 01, 2025

Global Head of Operations and

Mr. Mohan Chennasamudram : i April 01, 2025
Practices, Tech and Digital
Global Head of Operations and
Mr. Natarajan Laxsmanan April 01, 2025
Business Processing
Mr. Suraj Prasad Chief Financial Officer (KMP) April 01, 2025

Company Secretary & Compliance

Mr. Meeraj Manchanda )
Officer (KMP)

March 29, 2025

6. General Body Meetings:

a. Annual General Meeting(“AGM")
The Company was incorporated on February 10, 2024, hence there was no reguirement to convene the AGM

during the FY 2024-25 as per the provislons Sectlon 96 of the Act. The first AGM of the Company Is scheduled to
be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025.

b. Extra-ordinary General Meeting (“EGM")
During the year under review, extraordinary general meeting of shareholders was held on March 29, 2025.

c. Postal Ballot

During the year under review, none of the businesses/ resolutions were passed through Postal Ballot. However,
following special resolution was passed by the shareholders by the requisite majority by way of postal ballot
threugh e-voting during the financial year 2025-26 through postal ballot:

Date of postal ballot . : Approval :
Resolution passed Voting results Scrutinizer

notice date

Appointment of Ms.

Robin Jill
Thomashauer (2IN;
1103281 ﬂi‘_ Voting in Mis. DPV &
June 1, favour; 99,98% Associates LLP,
Non- _ : duly 19, 2025 oE
2025 ) Vating against: Practising Company
Executive
0.02% Secretary
Independent
Director of the
Company.
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d. Procedure for postal ballot:

The postal ballot was carried out as per the provisions of Sections 108 and 10 and other applicable provisions of
the Act, read with the Rules framed thereunder and applicable circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs from time to time.

7. Means of Communication:

+ Financial Results - Prior Intimation of the Board Meeting to consider and approve Unaudited/Audited
Financial Results of the Company is given to the Stock Exchanges and disseminated on the official website of
the Company. The aforesaid Financial Results are intimate to Stock Exchanges and uploaded on Company's
website; immediately upon approval in the Board Meeting.

» Newspapers - The quarterly, half-yearly and annual Financial Results of the Company are generally published
in widely circulated daily Newspapers, viz,, “Financial Express” (English) and "Hosa Digantha” (Kannada).

» Press Releases - Official Press Releases including Press Release on Financial Results of the Company are
sent to the Stock Exchanges and the same are simultaneously hosted on the official website of the Company.

» Investor Calls — Prior Intimation of Investar Calls, Presentations to be made thereat and the Audio Recoerding/
Transcript of Investar Calls are appropriately intimated to Stock Exchanges and simultaneously uploaded an
the website of the Company.

» Corporate announcements of material information - The Company electronically submits the reguisite
corporate announcements, material information, periedical fillings etc. through respective web portals of NSE
and BSE.

» Website - The Company's official website hitps.//digitide.com/investors/ has a separate section “lnvestor
Infarmation®; which contains infarmation of investor interest, including Financial Results, Shareholding Pattern,
Press Releases and Company's Policies.

= E-Mail ID - Company has a designated e-mail address investorrelationsgdigitide.com exclusively for investor
services and to address investor grievances.

- SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-
based complaints redressal system. Centralised database of all complaints received, online upload of the
Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the Company and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the
complaint and its status are updated/ resolved electronically in the SEBI SCORES system.

= Annual Report: The Annual Report circulated to members and others entitied thereto shall also be
disseminated to Stock Exchanges and uploaded on the Company’s official website.

B. General Shareholder Information:

a. CIN L&e2099KA2024PLC1B4626

b, Registered Office Address 3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road,
Bellandur, Bangalore, Bangalore South, Karnataka, India, 560103

O1st April to 31st March
i i 10th
= Financlal Year {Since the Company was incorporated on 10th February, 2024,
the first financial year of the Company is from 10th February

2024 to 31st March, 2025))
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d. Annual General Meeting Tuesday, September 30, 2025
i Dividend Payment Date Mot Applicable
h. Listing on Stock Exchanges Exchange Address Scrip Code
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy
imited, M i Towers, Dalal Street,
BSE Limited, Mumbai owers F}a al Street E 44413
(BSE)} Mumbai = 400001
The Mational Stock Exchange Plaza,
Indi -
Exchange of India Bandra - Kurla DIGITIDE

Limited, Mumbai
{NSE)

Complex Bandra (East),
Mumbai — 400050

Annual Listing Fees for FY 25 have been paid to both

i Annual Listing Fees

j. Market Price Data —
The market price data is not available as on March 31,
2025 as the Company was listed on June 7, 2025

k. Share Price Performance in comparison to broad
based indices

The Share Price Performance in comparison to broad
based indices is not available as on March 31, 2025 as
the Company was listed on June 1, 2025,

I. Registrars and Share Transfer Agents

Integrated Registry Management 5Services Private
Limited Unit: Digitide Solutions Limited

2nd Floor, Kences Towers, Mol Ramakrishna Street,
Morth Usman Road, T Nagar, Chennal 600 017,

Tel. No: 080 23460815/816/817/818

Toll Free No: 1800 21 0991

E-Mail ID: bangaloredp@integratedindia.in

Website: www.integratedregistiin

m. Share Transfer System

As on 31 March 2025, 100% of the equity shares of the
Company were in electronic form., Transfers of these
shares are made through the depositories with no
involvemeant of the Company.
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the Stock Exchanges (BSE & MNSE). The annual custodial fees

have been paid to NSDL and CDSL,

The Registrars and Share Transfer Agent have put in
place an appropriate share transfer system to ensure
timely share transfers.

Share transfers are registered and returned in the
normal course within the prescribed time limit, if the
documents are clear in all respects.

Your Company confirms that the voting rights on these
shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of
such shares claims the shares,

SEBI, vide its Circular Mo, SEBVLAD-MRO/ GN/2018/24
dated 8 June 2018, amended Regulation 40 of the
Listing Regulations, pursuant to which after 5
December 2018, transfer of securities could not be
processed unless the securities are held in the
dematerialised form with a depository.

n. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense
account/ unclaimed suspense account

The Company had transferred 2416 fully pald-up
equity shares, which could not be credited to the
respective shareholders’ demat accounts on the date
of allotment {i.e., April 21, 2025), to a separate account
named as ‘'Digitide Solutions Limited-Unclaimed
Securities-Suspense Escrow Demat Account’,
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The woting rights on the shares In the above-
mentioned unclaimed suspense accounts shall remain
frozen till the rightful owners claim the shares.

o. Distribution of Shareholding

The Distribution of shareholding information as on
March 31, 2025, is not available as the Company was
admitted to listing and trading on the Stock
Exchange(s) on June 11, 2025.

p. Dematerialization of Shares and Liguidity

The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in
dematerialized form on the Stock Exchangels) with
effect from Jume 11, 2025, As on March 31, 2025, the
entire equity share capital of the Company was held in
dematerialised form.

q. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any
Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely
impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/
Warrants or any convertible instruments in the past
and hence as on March 31, 2025, the Company does
not have any cutstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instruments.

Further, the Company had not raised any funds
through preferential allotment or gqualified institutional
placements.

r. Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk
and Hedging Activities

The Company does not deal in the Commuodities and
hence the disclosure is not required to be given.
Detailed information of this is awvailable under
“Exchange Fluctuations” section in  Management
Discussion and Analysis report,

5. Details of utilization of funds raised through

preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (TA):

During the year under review, the Company has not
raised any funds from public issue, rights issues,

preferantial issue or through preferential allotment or
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gualified institutions placement as specified under
Regulation 32 (7A) of the Listing Regulations.

t. Plant/Office locations

Your Company is a newly incorporated company and
did not undertake any direct business operations
during FY 2024-25. Pursuant to the Composite
Scheme of Arrangement, the Demerged Undertaking 1
of Quess Corp Limited ("Quess™) has been transferred
and vested with your Company from Guess with effect
from March 31, 2025 (Effectiveness of the Scheme). As
a result of this transfer, your Company now has a
network of offices located across India and its
subsidiaries are present in 5 countries.

u. Address for Investor Correspondence

Investor Cell

Digitide Solutions Limited,

3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapura Main Road, Bengaluru
-560103, Karnataka.

Tel: 0BO 6105 6001

E-mail: corporatesecretarial@digitide.com
investorrelationsddigitide.com

v. Credit Ratings
As on the date of this report, the Company has not
abtained any credit ratings.

9, Other Disclosures

a. Related Party Transactions

There was no related party transaction entered into by
the Company during the financial year 2024-25 apart
from the cnes that have been transferred as part of
Demerged Undertaking 1 pursuant to the Composite
Schema of Arrangement. (Appointed Date April 1,
2024). During the financial year ended 31 March 2025,
the Company did not have any ‘material’ related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large.

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a
Related Party Transactions Policy pursuant te the
requirements of Section 188 of the Act and rules
framed thereunder and Regulation 23 of the Listing
Regulations.
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The said Related Party Transactions Policy has been
uploaded on the official website of the Company at
https://digitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/8.-
Policy-on-Criterial-for-determining-RPT.pdf.

The Disclosure on Related Party Transactions forms an
integral part of the MNotes to Financial Statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2025 (both standalone and consolidated) as included
in this Report.

b. Details of non-compliance, penalties and strictures
imposed during last 3 years

There were no instances of non-compliance, penalties
or strictures imposed by any regulatory authorities
since the date of incorporation of the Company, i.e.,
February 10, 2024,

c. Whistle — Blower Mechanism/Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a whistle blower
mechanism to provide an avenue for reporting
concerns  about  unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of
conduct and provide adeguate safeguards against
victimization of whistle blowers,

The Whistle Blower policy contains the process to be
followed for dealing with complaints and in exceptional
cases, also provides for direct access to the
Chairperson of the Audit Committes. The Company
affirms that no person has been denied access to the
Audit Committee. The policy is awvailable on the
Company's website at https://www.digitide.com/wp-
content/uploads/2025/08/10.-Whistle-
BlowerPolicy.pdf

d. Compliance with Mandatory Requirements

As on the date of this report, the Company is fully
compliamt  with  the applicable mandatory
reguirements of Regulation 34 and Schedule WV of the
Listing Regulations. The Company has complied with
the corporate governance requirements specified in
Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b} to (i) of Sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing
Regulations.
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e. Adoption of Non-Mandatory Requirements

Part E of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations contains
certain non-mandatory requirements that a Company
may implement at its discretion. The status of
compliance of the non-mandatory requirements is as
follows:

1. Appointment of MNon-Executive Chairperson and
Separate Positions for the posts of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer;

2. The quarterly financial results will be published in
leading financial newspapers, uploaded on the
Company’s website and any major developments
shall be covered in the press releases issued by
the Company and posted in the Company's
website;

3. The Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the FY 25 do not contain any qualifications and
the Statutory Auditor's Report do not contain any
adverse remarks; and

4, The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors of the Company. The
Audit Committee is empowered to hold separate
meetings and discussions with the Internal Auditor,

f. Website Disclosures:

Website Disclosures in ling with Regulation 46 of the
Listing Regulations have been complied with and are
hosted at https:fwww.digitide com/finvestors/
disclosure-under-regulation-4a/
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The Company has also formulated policies in line with the statutory and good governance requirements as is hosted
and published on the Company's website at following links:

https:/fwwwdigitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/04/
Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy. pdf
https:fenww. digitide.comiwp-content/uploads/2025/05/4.-Risk-
Management-Policy. pdf

Corporate Social Responsibility

Risk Management Policy

httpsyhwwwdigitide. comdwp-content/uploads/2025/05/7.-
Dividend-Distribution-policy. pdf

Dividend Distribution Policy

https:.fwww.digitide com/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/3.-Policy-
on-Board-Diversity.pdf

Board Diversity Policy

https./www. digitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/04/

T e

MNomination and Remuneration Paolicy

https:/fwww.digitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/04/Policy-
far-Preservation-of-Documents-and-Archival-Policy. pdf

Archival Policy

hitps:Aewww.digitide.comiwp-content/uploads/2025/05/2 .-
Digitide-Code-of-Business-Conduct-and-Ethics.pdf

Code of Conduct

https.//www.digitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/08/Digitide-

Related Party Transactions Polic
L ¥ Policy-on-Criterial-for-determining-RPT.pdf

hitps.//www.digitide.com/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/Digitide-
Whistle-Blower-Policy. pdf

Whistle-blower Palicy

https:fwww digitide. com/fwp- t loads/2025/07/ -of-
Code of Conduct for Trading by Insiders tps gitide:comiwircontentiipioa e
Conduct-for-prevention-and-Prohibition-of-Insider-Trading-01. pdf

https:fwwanldigitide.comiwp-content/uploads/ 202 5/04/Policy-
Material Subsidiary Paolicy D ginde ‘e Hp i QLY.

far-Determining-Materlal-Subsidiary. pdf

g. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory
auditer and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part — Detalls are
mentioned in the financial statements which forms part of this Report

h. Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Company has in place a policy on the prevention of sexual harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, An Internal Complaint
Committee s in place to redress the complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees are coverad
under this policy. During the year, no cemplaints were received by the Internal Complaints Committee,

i. Loans and Advances in the nature of loans to firms/Companies in which Directors are interested
During the year, the Company did not extend any loans or advances to any firms / companies in which Directors are

interested in terms of Section 184 of the Act.

J- Subsidiary Companies — As on March 31, 2025, the Company has the following subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries:
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a. Alldigi Tech Limited (formerly known as Allsec Technologies Limited)
b. Heptagon Technologies Private Limited

c. Quess Corp (USA) Inc.

d. Brainhunter Systems Limited

e. MFXchange Holdings Inc.

f. Mfxchange US, Inc.

g. Mincwire Systems Limited

h. Alldigl Tech inc.

I. Alldigi Tech Manila Inc.

|. Quessgts Canada Holdings Inc.

The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the financial statements of these subsidiaries at periodic intervals. In
terms of Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors formulated a policy for determining material
subsidiaries and the policy is available on the official website of the Company at hitps:/digitide.com/wp- content/
uploads/2025/04/Pallcy-for-Determining-Material-Subsidiary. pdf

The detalls of material subsidiaries, companies regarding date/place of incorporation and details of statutory
auditors are as follows:

Date of
MName of
: Date of : Appaintment
Subsidiary : Place of Incorporation | Statutory
Incorparation : of Statutory
Auditors
Auditors
Deloitte
o Haskins and
Alidigi Tech :
= 24/081998 India sells, 02/08/2024
Limited
Chartered
Accountants
Brainhunter KMAN
Systems 02M0/2009 Canada FProfessional 28M05/2025
Limited Corporation

k. Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice

A Certificate confirming that none of the Directors on the Board has neither been debarred nor disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The Company has obtained a Certificate to this effect from M/s. RLS
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, as mandated under Schedule V, Part C, Clause 10 (i} of the SEBI Listing
Regulations which forms part of the Annual Report.

|. Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board, which is mandatorily
required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along with reasons thereof — Not Applicable
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10. Transfer
Education and Protection Fund

of unclaimed amounts to Investor

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read
with the Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authaority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)
Rules, 2016 ("IEPF Rules"), dividend, if not claimed
for a period of seven years from the date of
transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the
Company, are liable to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF").

Further, all the corresponding shares in respect of
which dividend has remained unclaimed for seven
consecutive years or more from the date of
transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be
transferred to IEPF Authority,

During the year under review, there were no
unpaidiunclaimed dividends nor corresponding
shares that were due for transfer to Investor
Education and Protection Fund. Also, no amount
was lying in Unpaid Dividend account as on March
31, 2025.

Pursuant to the Composite Schems  of
Arrangement, Digitide has allotted fully paid-up
equity shares of face wvalue INR 10 each to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company as on
the Record Date, ie., Aprl 15, 2025, in
accordance with the share entitiement ratio of 111,
Accordingly, in this regard, on April 21, 2025, the
Company allotted and transferred 79772 fully
paid-up equity shares to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF), corresponding to the
shareholding of such
Demerged Company as on the said Record Date.

shareholders in  the

The voting rights on the shares transferred to IEPF
Authority  shall rightful
owners claim the shares.

remain frozen till the

Shareholders can claim such shares by following
the procedure prescribed wunder the (EPF
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)

mance  dicjitide

Rules, 2016, as amended (“IEPF Rules”). The
Company has provided an access link to the

webpage of [EPF Authority on its website.

Further, In accordance with the IEPF Rules, the
Board of Directors have appointed Mr Neerg)
Manchanda as Modal Officer of the Company and
for the purposes of verification of claims of
shareholders pertaining to shares transferred to
IEPF, and for coordination with |EPF Authority.

11. Agreements binding the Company under Clause

12.

13.

5A of Para A of Part A Schedule Il of the Listing
Regulations

There are no agreements that reguire disclosure
under clause S5A of paragraph A of Part A of
Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations,

Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate

The Company has complied with the Corpaorate

Governance specified  under
Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b} te (i) of sub-

regulation (2) of Regulation 48 of the Listing

reguirements as

Reqgulations.

A certificate from M/s, RLS & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, confirming compliance to
conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated
under the Listing Regulations, forms part of the
Annual Report,

CEO / CFO Certificate:

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) / Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) certification in terms of the Listing
Regulations forms part of the Annual Report.
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CONFIRMATION ON THE CODE OF CONDUCT

|, Gurmeet Singh Chahal, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company hereby declare that
pursuant to Regulation 26(3), 34(3) read with Schedule V(D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; all the members of the Board and senior management personnel of the Company
have affirmed compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

June 26, 2025 Sd/f-
Gurmeet Singh Chahal

Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Al Repart 2021 4025 _E e
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members

DIGITIDE SOLUTIOMS LIMITED

3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road,

Bellandur, Bangalare, Bangalore South, Karnataka, India, 560103.

| have examined all relevant disclosures received from the Directars of DIGITIDE SOLUTIONS LIMITED, having its
registered office at 3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road, Bellandur, Bangalore, Bangalore South, Karnataka,
India, 560103 {hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced befere me by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10{l) of Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinian and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Mumber (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gowvin) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the
Company & its officers, | hereby certify that nane of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies, by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India, Ministry of Carporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority as on March 31, 2025,

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director aon the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This
cerificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectivenass with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR RLS & ASSOCIATES

Place: Chennai 5d/-
Date: 01.08.2025 Rajiblochan Sarangi
UDIN: A020312G000908694 Practicing Company Secretary
Peer Review No.2491/2022 ACS MNo. 20312

CP No. 17498
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CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members,

DIGITIDE SOLUTIONS LIMITED

3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road,

Bellandur, Bangalore, Bangalore South, Karnataka, India, 560103

| have examined all relevant records of DIGITIDE SOLUTIONS LIMITED, having its registered office at 3/3/2, Bellandur
Gate, Sarjapur Main Road, Bellandur, Bangalore, Bangalore South, Karnataka, India, 560103, for the purpose of
certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b} to (i) and
(t) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule ¥V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Regulation 34{3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, | have abtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of cerification,

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management, My examination
was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance, This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company, It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinicn and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me and the
representations made by the Directors and the Management, | certify that the Company has generally complied
regarding the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

FOR RLS & ASSOCIATES

Place: Chennai 5d/-
Date: 01.08.2025 Rajiblochan Sarangi
UDIN: A020312G000508859 Practicing Company Secretary
Peer Review No.2491/2022 ACS No. 20312

CP No. 17498
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CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER TO THE BOARD AS PER
REGULATION 17(8) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS,
2015

We hereby certify to the Board:

A We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

[. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

li. these statements together present a true and fair view of company's affairs and are In compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D, We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee

i. significant changes in internal contral over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements; and

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial
reporting.

Place: Bangalore Sd/- Sel/-
Date: June 26, 2025 Gurmeet Singh Chahal Suraj Prasad
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

& Executive Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Digitide Solutions Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone
financial statements of Digitide Solutions Limited (the
"*Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the pericd 10 February 2024
('Date of Incorporation’) to 31 March 2025 (‘Financial
year') and notes to the financial statements, including a

Income), the

summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
"Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
("Ind A5") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit, total
comprehensive Income, Jjts cash flows and the
changes in equity for the financial yvear ended 31
March 2025.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ["SA"s) specified under section 143010) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section
of our repart.

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E-

Independent Auditor’s Report On

:--\[ e F =
- -
i L

dicjitide

MNafTC

=1 -
b ¥ L L S

We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the standalone financial statements under the
pravisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these reguirements and the ICAl's
Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence
abtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 40 to the standalone
financial statements in respect of Composite Scheme
Arrangement amongst  Digitide  Solutions  Limited
("Resultant Company 17 Mthe Company")., Bluspring
Enterprises  Limited ("Resultant Company 2").and
Quess Corp Limited ("Demerged Company”) and their
respective shareholders and creditors ("the Schema"),
from the appointed date of 1 April 2024, as approved
by the Hon'ble Mational Company Law  Tribunal,
Bengaluru Bench by an Order dated 17 March 2025.
Consequently, upon the Scheme becoming effective,
the standalons financial statements have been
prepared after giving effect to  the
acquisition of the Transferred Businesses 1 from the
date of incorporation of the Company (i.e, 10 February
2024).

aforesaid

Qur opinian is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional
Judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period.
This matter was addressed in the context of our audit
of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on this matter. We have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit
matter to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

1 Revenue recognition: Principal audit procedures performed:
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The Company enters into large number of Our audit approach was a combination of test of
contracts with its customers with wvarying contrals  and substantive procedures  which
commercial terms and revenues from such included amongst others the following:

contract is recognized and measured based

on effarts incurred or unit of work delivered « Tested the effectiveness of controls relating to
multiplied by agreed rate in the contract accuracy and occurrence of revenue and unbilled
with customers. revenue.

The Company’s invoicing cycle s on + For a sample of contracts,

contractual  pre-determined dates and

recognized as recelvables based on - tested revenue recognition by agreeing key

customer acceptances for efforts or delivery terms used for recording revenue with terms in

of work. Revenue for the post billing period the signed contracts and confirmation received

is recognized as unbilled revenues. Unbilled from customers for efforts incurred or units of

revenues are invoiced subseguent to the work deliverad.

financial year-end based on customer - tested unbilled revenues with subsequent

acceptances. invoicing based on customer acceptances or
internal records, if customer acceptances are not

We identified revenue recognition as a key available.

audit matter since:

«There are significant efforts reguired to
ensure that revenue is recorded based on
contractual  terms  which  are  legally
enforceable, and work delivered is duly
acknowledged by customer.

«At year end, significant amount of unbilled
revenue related to these contracts are

recognised on the balance sheet.

Refer Mote 2.21 and 23 to the standalone
financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor's Report Thereon

« The Campany’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the Board's Report, Annexures to the
Board's Report, Management discussion and

analysis, and Report on Corporate Governance but

does not include the consclidated financial
statements, standalone financial statements and
our auditor's report therean. These are expected to
be made available to us after the date of this

auditor's report.

+ Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements
does not cover the other information and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion therean.

« In connection with our audit of the standalone
financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider

thi

inconsistent

information
the
statements or our knowledge obtained during the

other

with

whether is  materially

standalone  financial
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

« When we read the Board's Repeort, Annexures to
the Board's Report, Management discussion and
analysis, and Report on Corporate Governance, if
we conclude that there is a material misstatement
tharein, we are reguired to communicate the

matter to those charged with governance as

required SA 720 'The Auditor's

responsibilities Relating to Other Infarmatian’,

under

= 2
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of
Directors for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including
ather compraehensive Income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Ind A5 specified under section 133 of the Act,
This responsibility also
adequate accounting records in accordance. with the
pravisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the

includes maintenance of

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other Irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

accounting  policies;  making
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adeguate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
2rror

In preparing the standalone financial statements,
management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liguidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible
for overseeing the Company’'s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whather
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we

professional  judgment and  maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

EXErcise

- |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial
controls relevant to the audit in order to design
gudit procedures that are approprizte in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adeguate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

S
b
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies wused and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriatensss of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
baszed on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are reguired to draw attention in ouwr auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events
ar conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and
content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reascnably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced.
We consider guantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with govemance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
financial controls that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought te bear on our
independence, and
safeguards.

where applicable, related

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine the matter that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matter. We describe this matter
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determing that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The standalone financial statements Include the
financial infarmation of the Transferred Businesses 1 of
Cluess Corp Limited (Refer note 40 of the standalone
financial statements) for the period 10 February 2024
to 31 March 2024, This financial information of the
Transferred Businesses 1 for the period 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2024 has been extracted by the
Management from the financial information of Quess
Corp Limited for the financial year ended 31 March
2024, which were audited by us,

On opinion on standalone financial statements is not
modified in respect of above matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b) In cur opinion, except for (a) not keeping backup on
a daily basis of one application maintained in
electronic mode in a server physically located in India
(Refer Mote 46 to the standalone financial statements)
and {b) not complying with the requirements of audit
trail as stated in (ijvi) below, proper bocks of account
as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
fincluding Other Comprehensive  Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in
equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

&) On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

fi The observations relating to the maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewlth, are
as stated in paragraph (b) above.
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g} With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report In “Annexure A" Our report expresses an
unmadified opinion on the adeguacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's Internal financial
controls  with  reference to  standalone  financial
statements.

h) With respect to the other matters to be Included in
the Auditor's Report In  accordance with  the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the financial year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act,

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
LIS

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements - Refer MNote 35 to the
standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresesable losses.

iii. There ware no amounts which are reguired to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

Ee————
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iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
note 44 to the standalone financial statements no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities  (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate
Beneficiaries,

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
note 45 to the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(c} Based on the audit procedures performed that
have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has «caused us to Dbelieve that the
representations under sub-clauvse (i) and (i) of Rule
e}, as provided under (a) and (k) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any
dividend during the financial year and has not
proposed final dividend for the financial year.

e B
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vi. Based on our examination, which Included test
checks, the Company has used accounting software
systems for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended 31 March, 2025 which have the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the financial year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software
systems, except for the instances noted below (Refer
note 47 to the standalone financial statements):

+ In respect of one accounting software, audit trail
feature was not enabled at certain tables and
database level to log any direct data changes,

« In respect of another accounting software, for
maintaining the books of account in respect of
revenue processes, audit trall feature was not
enabled,

« The Company has used two other accounting
softwares, which is operated by a third-party
software provider, for maintaining the books of
account in respect of financial reporting and payroll
processes. In the absence of coverage of audit trail
requirement at the database level in the System
and Organisation Centrols (SOC 1) Type 2 Report,
we are unable to comment whether audit trail
feature of the said softwares was enabled at the

and operated throughout the
financial year for all relevant transactions recorded

database level

in the softwares.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 26 June 2025
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Further, during the course of audit, we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with us, in respect of said accounting
software for the period for which the audit trail feature
was enabled and operating.

Additionally, reporting  under Rulefig) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, relating to
the preservation of audit trail as per statutory record
retention requirement, is not applicable, as these are
the first financial statements of the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (*the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we
give in “Annexure B" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No.00B072S)

Gurvinder Singh

Partner

Membership No. 110128

UDIN: 25T110128BMHZVH5446
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ANMEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Reguirements' section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to standalone financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial contrals with
reference to standalone financial statements of
Digitide Solutions Limited (the “Company”) as at 31
March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended on that date.

Board of
Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

Management's and Directors'

The Company's management and Board of Directors
are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial contrels with reference to standalong
financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ower
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adeguate internal financial controls that were
ocperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherance
to the company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errgrs, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as reguired under the
Companies Act, 2013,
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respansiblility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company based
an our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeguate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference  to  standalone  financial  statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of intermal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls  with reference to standalone financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference
to standalone financial statements

A company's Internal financial contrel with reference to
standalone financial statements is a process designed
to  provide regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial

reasonable assurance

external in

accordance  with generally accepted accounting

statements  for purposes
principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to standalone financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made anly in
accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements,

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 26 June 2025
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls

with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial

controls  with reference to standalone financial
staternents, Including the possibility of collusion or
improper managemeant override of controls, material
misstatements due to errar or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial contrals with reference to standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to
the that the with

reference to standalone financial statements may

risk internal financial control
become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
ar that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In cur eopinion, to the best of ocur information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate
internal financial contrals with reference to standalone
internal financial

financial statements and such

controls  with  reference to standalone  financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March
2025, based on the criteria for internal financial contral
with reference to standalone financial statements
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Controls Ower

the

Mote on Audit of Intermal Financial
Reporting issued by
Chartered Accountants of India.

Financial Institute  of

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.00B072S)

Gurvinder Singh
Partner
Membership No. 110128
UDIN: 2511012BBMHZVH5446
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ANMEXURE ‘B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to
the Members of Digitide Solutions Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanation sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the narmal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company's Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets and Other intangible assets:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details and
situation of Property, plant and equipment, and relevant details of Right-of-Lse assets.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Other intangible assets.

b) The Company has a program of verification of Property, plant and equipment, and Right-of-use assets so to
cover all the assets ance in three years which, in cur opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, no Property, plant and equipment and Right-
of-use assets were due for verification during the financial year and were not physically verified by the
Management during the financial year,

c] Based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deed of the
immovable property, ([other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the standalone financial statements included in
Property, plant and eguipment is not held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. The
details are as below:

Description of Description; Land and building located at ICC Devi Gaurav Tech Park,
Property Building office No.301 and 302, Third Floor, Mumbai-Pune Highway, Pimpri,
Plot No. 4854, B Wing, Pune, Maharashtra - 411018

Identification  number:  BP/PimprilLayout/46/2007  and  BP/Pimpri/
Layout/52/2009

Gross carrying value Land: INR 470.00 million
as at 31 March 2025 Building: INR 354.40 million
Total: INR 22440 million

Held in name of Conneqt Business Solutions Limited
(Erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary of Quess Corp Limited. Conneqgt is the
division of the Company pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement)

Whether promoter, Mo
director or their

relative or employee

Poweal Repart 00 4020 ‘_E-
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Period held Since 01 November 2012, the property is held by Conneqgt Business Solutions
Limited. Past merger, with effective date of 01 December 2023, and appointed
date of 01 April 2021 the property is held by Quess Corp Limited. Post demerger
the Company is In the process of transferring the title in its name.

Reason Conneqt Business Solutions Limited (‘Conneqgt’) was merged with Quess Corp
Limited in FY 2023-24 and became the division of Quess Corp Limited.
However, the registration process of transfer of title in the name of Quess Corp
Limited was in progress. In the FY 2024-25, the business of Connegt got
demerged from Quess Corp Limited and got merged with the Company. As at
the Balance sheet date, the Company is in the process of transferring title in its
awrn name.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and eguipment (including Right-of-Use assets) and
Other intangible assets during the financial year.

Mo proceedings have been initiated during the financial year or are pending against the Company as at March
2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in
2016) and rules made thereunder,

{a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3lifa) of the Order is not
applicable,

(b} Quess Corp Limited has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR & crore, in aggregate, at
points of time during the financial year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Pursuant to the
Scheme of Arrangement, loans were allocated to the Company. Quess Corp Limited has submitted the
guarterly book debt statements to its banks, which includes the receivables pertaining to the Company. Quess
Corp Limited and Bluspring Enterprises Limited for the guarters ended 30 June 2024, 30 September 2024, 31
December 2024, and 31 March 2025. In our opinion and accoerding to the information and explanations given
to us, the guarterly statements comprising book debt statements filed by Quess Corp Limited with such banks,
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company, Quess Corp Limited and Digitide
Solutions Limited of the respective quarters.

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secure or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other parties during the year, and hence reparting under clause(ii) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of loans granted, investments made and guarantees provided, as applicable,

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under clause 3{vi) of the Order is
not applicable,
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vil. In respect of Statutory Dues:

{a) (i) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, cess, and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally
been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though there has been a delay in respect of
remittance of Provident Fund, Professional tax and Employees State Insurance dues.

(i} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

2025 on account of disputes are given below:

Disputed amount

Detalls of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on 31 March

Skl (INR million) Forum where
Mame of Statute NS o BaShe dispute is
Dues Amount Amounts Paid Amount not pending
Relates involved under deposited
(A) pratest (B) (A-B)
Employees’ Provident FY 2015 to 26.90 - 86.90 Regional
Provident fund Fund 2022 EPFO
and Commissioner,
miscellaneous Pune-|
Provslons Ach | meiian FY 2016 to 28.81 6.80 22.01 EPFO
ik Fund 2007 Commissioner,
Hyderabad
Provident FY 2018 to 2874 - 2874 EPFO
Fund 2022 Commissionet,
Hyderabad
Maharashtra Electricity Fy 2009 to 21.00 10.54 10.46 Maharashtra
State Dues 2010 State
Electricity Electricity
Distribution Distribution
Co. Ltd Co. Ltd
Goods and GST FY 2017418, 787 1.06 6.81 Additional
Service Tax FY 2018-19 and Commissioner
Act, 2017 FY 2020-21 (Appeals)
FY2017-18 to 16.50 0.58 15.93 Joint
Y 2020-21 Commissionear
(Appeals)
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viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as
income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the financial year.

i (@) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the financial year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

{c} To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied
by the Company during the financial year for the purpeses for which the loans were obtained,

(d} On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the financial year for long-term purposes by the
Company

(e} On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f} The Company has not raised loans during the financial year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries.

¥ (&) The Company has not raised moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the financial year and hence reporting under clause 3{x){a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b} During the financial yvear, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

¥i. (8) As represented to us by the Management, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the financial year.

(b} Mo report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the financial year and up to the date of this report.

{c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the

financial year and provided to us, when performing our audit,

xil. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xli) of the Order is not applicable.

®il. In our opinion, the Company Is In compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

¥iv. {a) In our opinion, the Company has an adeguate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the financial year under audit, issued to the Company
during the financial year till date, in determining nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

=
)
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s Inoour opinion, during the financial year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

i, (@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvil(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicabile,

(b} In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvil{d) of the Order
is not applicable

xvil. The Company has not Incurred cash losses during the financlal year covered by our audit. This being first
financial year of the Company hence reporting relating to immediately preceding financial year will not be
applicable.

xviii, There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the financial year,

¥ix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and Management plans and based on cur examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
howewver, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting Is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

x¥. This being first financial year of the Company, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx} of the Order Is not applicable,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.00OB0O72S)

Gurvinder Singh
Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No. 110128
Date: 26 June 2025 UDIN: 25110128BMHZVH5446
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Standalone

Particutars

Assels
Mon-Cierent Assots

Property, plant and squpment
Right-of-use assets

Cagital wore-in-pragress

ool

Oiber intang@le ety

Intangisle assets under developrment
Fnanclal msants

|nvessmesis

Other fimancial asseb
Dhefeared tas mwsets et}
Income (e assets {net)

Chier pan-curnent axseis

Total non-current assets
Currant assuts

Financiai assets
Trede receivables
Billad
Unbed
Cash and cash sguivakenis
Bark batmnces other them cesh and cash oquiveions abave
Other firancial assets
Chher currens oxsets
Todal cuirrent assets
Todak assets
EGILNTY AND LIASILITIES
Equity
Equity shara capnal
Cither eqidty
Total eguity
Lianilities
Mon-current ilabiites
Financial Mablities
Bomreings
Lieasa liabedities
Provsions
Total non-current liabiltins
Cuirrent labilites
Financial Eabilities
Borrowings

]
Trastes purytartsles
Tosnl cutstanting duss of micr entergraes and smill enemnses

Lsrs Joait

Total cubsténdng dues of aredibors other than mice enbEprees and small erdsphses

by linancial labiies

Cunrenl bax fabilities jret)
Potrvmions

Ottyer current linkilities
Teqal current Habililsas
Tokal Babilitias

Tetal equity and liabillties

The accomparang robes famm an mlegral pars of {be siandaians francial sintemends
A e aur report of even date sitached.

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Sccountants

Firm's Regetratian Mo; D0H0725

Gurvinder Singh
Farinar

Membershio Mo: THA2E
Place: Bangahuru

Date: 26 Juna 3025
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{Amount In INR milllons)

i e
31 Maieh 30325

3a| 128220
i 1965448
3da| E1.48
4 GG
L] £kl
4 21
] 3, B35 05
] 405548
7 .06
7 TBEOE
a 753
888780
g 132245
k] 64232
] 1153
i 13z
12 w®|rag
12 LA
546172
#3132
" 1,489 49
15 EE34
B.678.83
15 nog
3 el 147334
7 s
175818
168 19075
ER ] T6E 36
i1 2168
L 34547
Fatl 1,510
b 9153
xa 5167
ER-irovy]
5,640.39
a1z

far arad on behall of the Board of Directors of
Digitide Soluthors Limited

Ajit lsaac

Chairman

Dike Qo0
Place: Bangaluru
Diaba: 26 lune 2025

Gurmiget Singh Chahal
Chial Exarutie Do
and Exercubive Director

Pl M Jersey
Dt 26 Jume 2025

DiM: 0957957

Sura] Prasasd Maera] Manchanda

Chied Financial QMcer Company Secrelary

Place: Bangalury Membership NoACS-20060

Dape: 376 June 2026 Flasia; Bengaiing .
Date: 26 June 2025 fi I




o
-

FY 2024 - 25

I0itide

Standalone Statement of (Amount in INR millionhs, except per share data)

For the pariod year anded 40 Fobruary 2024 1o

Particutars A1 March 2025 |Fnancial year]
Income

Rauene Trem HerElnm 3 25T A4
ke income 24 57419
Total ncoumss 21,245.63
Expenses

Croed of madesinl nred shores ard spene parks corsumesd 25 1426
Empiorgtie benefits expense 26 1506706
Firemee costs 27 IEII3
Dhspreceation nrd emorisobon sxpense 28 1489
Oiher evpensay 24 2GE215
Total axpeniss 18,565.71
Prafit befaie tax and exceplional beins 1,680.92
Excephonal jbema loms M A2 ES
Profit before tax 121823
Tax (edpenselcredil

CLureant tawx 7 253000
Income 1aa relaing io sarller yeas T Frr vl
D livesd Eai 7 na
Tokal fax axporiss |274. 89
Prefit far the Minancial yaar 943,38

Dither comprebensive Incemel (loas)
Nesme 1hal will fot Be reclassifiad subasgeenthy o peilil o loss

Pe-misasg i Iegses o chefired Bapsh plars 3B 27659
Income (o redating 1o #ems thed will ol e reclassfied 10 rot o o T cap
Cither caomprebensnee loss for the financial year, net of necims tax [2RET
Todsl comprehamaive income for the financial year 33,53
Earrmngs per equety share (Fsce value of INE 1000 cach)

Basic [in IMR) G G35

Driurtesd (I R ] 630
Waiphiad smézrage squty shares ised i camplling eamings per squsty share

Basic ] 148620544

Dired 3G 149151027

Thia accamaamying nodes farm an intagrad par of the standalone Bnancial ststement tor and an behall of the Baard af Diractars al
Digitidie Solutiors Limited
&5 pr our report of aven date attnchod
for Dedoitte Hazking & Soits &jit Isaac Gurmeet Singh Chahal
i b et Chairman Chief Exerutive Officer
Dk GO0E e and Execubive Director

Firm's Reglstration Ka: 0085725

Place Bengaluru Prace| bayw Jorsey

Gurvinder Singh Diabe: 26 June 2025 Ditir 26 Jurse 2035

Pariner DM Wraa7asT?

Membarship Mo 1WA2E

Flace: Bangalu Suraj Prasad Megraj Manchands

DOate: 26 june H02% Chied Financial Qfcer Company Secretary
Place: Bangalury Membership MoACS-20060
Date: 36 June 2025 Fiace; Bengasini

Dafee 26 Jura 2035
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Standalone Statement of | (Ameunt in INR millions)

Fpr the parip

Parficiiars

Cash flows from aperating activites

Profit afier tax 94334
Adjustments to reconcile met profit to net cash provided by operoting scteities:
Tay enpenss 77489
Intorgst an tarm degosits (B ET)
Prafit on sale of property, plant and suipment, rel [2A5)
Dotk rnd Caies oo | nveestmedins. i Jubs E0320
Emphoyaa modd option cost LIS
Firemee costs IEII3
[Dhs pee=cation nrd emorisobon 141893
Expected credf boss on financial asdets, ned ea9
Exceptionsl ibems

C=marqer related expense 34,

Impaiment of advarces of Subsiceries 18,00

Impaiment on oiber advances and frode recetsbles 18237
Faraign exchanps gain A0S
Diparating prodli bofors wosking capltal changes 2.509.55
Changes In cparating assets and labtes
Changes in trade raceivahies and unbied revanus 1324.59)
Changes § ans, oibar financial assals ard olbsr assais 2A007
Changes In frade payaties 2R 80
Charges imather financinl labilities, oihar dablikes ard provisans (A3E1Z)
Cash genorated from oparaiions 250584
Income 1aaEs paid MTCIE
Met cash flows from operating acthities (&) 213578
Cash flows from investing actvites
Expernilung an piapery, olam and sgquig ] ingangibies 276,700
Prsteadd roim sale af property, A smaipme ared asg b 12.42
D] recensed dnel of B deducted il souroe) 50219
Plsssamesrd of bank deposi {57
Intzrest recehvrd on temm depasis BLG9
Fat cash Teans / jused bn) et ng acthvities [B) 1a.02
Cash flows from financing octivities
Rapayments ol wioaking caplial loan (GS6.64)
e payments of velick Inan 159
Rapayment of leass abdities 138765
Intargst Paid EOI5
et cash used in financing activitkes (£} {2.0040.63)
Met increase o cadh and cash eguivalents (A+@eC) 16418
Cagh At cash eguivalests transfeired due 10 sckeme of afrangemeil FETIS
Cash and cash equivalenis at the and of the financlal year frefer noba 104 153
Cash pnd cash equivalents
Cash or
Balarnces with barks

Im curent sceounis aa719
Im EEFC acoaunls 2434

Cash and cosh equivalents as per standalone balance sheot o83

Reconciiation of mevements of llabliities to cash fiows anising from financing actities

Dbl am at 10 Fabrusry 20248° BE3.47

Interest Expenae and ofier BoeTowing coss E0M5

Ropayments of wiosking capital lnan IERE &)

Repayments ol yvenichs Isan |4.98)

Intsirest ol obher Dorrasdng ot pand Py (5]

Dbt as ot 31 March 2028 201.84
*incliudes balances transfered on sccawnt of Scheme of Amangemant. Fefer nobo 40y far and on behalt of the Board af Diractars of

Digtide Salutkons Limdted

The proompardrg netas fomn aniniegeal par of ihe slardatans Tnanclal ststemanis Ajit lznac Gurmset Singh Chahal

AL per aur rapo of even fae altacned Chalrman Chiaf Exacutie Qe

ior Delaltie Haskins & Sells Bk g00E7E and Exeouliue Director

Chamared ACCourans Flace Bangalucy Flaca: Maw Jorsay

Flinn's Rerciestratanm Mo, DOE0T25 Diaba: 28 Jung 3025 Dadec 26 Jumg 2005

Carvinder Singh oind; WEaany

Partner Sura) Prasad Meeraj Manchandn

Mesnbsarzhip Mo 110028

Flace: Bangalusu Chied Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date; 26 June @5 Place Bengaluru Membership Mo 5- 20060
— Diabe: 26 June 2025 Place: Bengaiun s =

| Dete- 26 _bure 2005 [ |
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Standalone Statement of {Amaount In INR millions)

Hems of other
Echitty comprehenshve income ; Total equity

Particulars share abla to equity

capital Capital Retained Ig- surement of the e

- y Company
rESEre EArTHngS autstanding E it benafit d

account liabHity/assat

Balance as at 10 February
2024

Additions on account of 40 0o 6,241.86 5 "W7.03 35899
Scheme of Arangement

Profit for the financial year , , 0943.34 : 943.3

Less ! Profit for the period - {16191 [(3:35) 1.52 [1863.74)
before appointed date (10th

February 2024 to 31 March

2024) included in capital

resemne

Equity share capital to be 19 {00y : {0
cancelled pursuant to the
seharme

Pending allotment of shares STl 1,485,449 148049
pursuant to the scheme of
demergasd

Other comprehensive 120.81) [20.81}
income net of tax)

Total comprehensive 78143 (3.35) [19.29) 224818
Income
Share based payments 39 - - - Tlas - TLBE
Tatal T1LBG - Fa 0<1<)
Balance as at 31 March 148949 624186 78143 185.24 {12.29) B.678.83
2025
The accompanying necss fom an rmegral pam of the siandeons Tnanclal smemsans. e frd an behall of the Basrd of Directars. of
A e i réport of even date atlached, Digitide Salutions Limited
for Dalairte Haskins & Salls
Chastared Acconrdanis Alit lzaac Gurmest Singh Chahal
Fiir's Ragesimation Mo, QCE0725 Chalrman Chial Execute Officer
e Exike OO08 M8 and Exsoutive Diractar
urvinder Sing
P Flace: Bangalury Prasce: M Jprsey
Memnbarshio Mo 128 Draba: 2& June 2025 Date 25 Jupe 2035
Flace; Bargalun) [HM: 30997967
Data: 26 June H25
Suraj Prasa Maera] Manchandi
Chigd Firancial Offcear Company Secredary
Place: Bamgalury Membership Mo 520060
Dabe: 76 June 2025 Placa: Beriaiuni

D 26 Rure FRIS
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Motes to the standalone financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2025

1. Company overview

Digitide Solutions Limited (the Company”) Is a listed
public limited company incorporated and domiciled in
India. The shares of the company are listed on the
Bombay Stock Exchange Stock
Exchange. The registered office of the Company Is
located in Bengalury, Karnataka, India.

and Mational

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, Quess Corp
Limited has transferred the Demerged Undertaking 1
to the Company. Demerged Undertaking 1 including its
subsidiaries which are primarily invelved in business
process management and tech and digital services.

The Company was incorporated on 10 February 2024
and this being the first financial year of the Company,
the financial statements have been prepared for the
period 10 February 2024 to 31 March 2025 (financial
year'} in accordance with the provisions of the section
2(41) of the Companies Act 2013.

The standalone financial statements are approved by
the board of directors and authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 26
June 2025,

2. Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of compliance

This is the first financial year of the Company post its
incorporation pursuant to the demerger of Quess Corp
Limited under the approved scheme of arrangement.
The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS™ as notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E-
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2.2 Basis of preparation

The Standalene Financial Statements comprises the
Standalone Balance sheet of the Company as at 31
March 2025, Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), Standalone
Cash Flow Statement, Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 31
March 2025, material accounting policies and other
explanatory information have been prepared by the
Company In the following manner using information
maintained by Quess Corp Limited (Demerged
Company) for the financial year:

1. Based on a historical cost basls, except for:

a. Certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

b, Defined benefit and other long-term employes
benefits where plan asset Is measured at fair
value less present value of defined benefit
abligations ("DBO") and

c. Expenses relating to share based payments are

measured at fair value on the date of grant.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods or
SEnices.

2. The assets, liabilities, revenue from operations, and
expenses specifically pertaining to Transferred
Businesses 1 (as defined in Scheme of

Arrangement) were extracted from the books of

account of Quess Corp Limited (Refer Mote 40),

and

3, Commaon expenses were apportioned based on a

reasonable  basis, which includes specific
identification, headcount, usage, payroll, time

spent, net assets etc.

The material accounting pelicy information related to
preparation of the standalone financial statements
have been discussed below.
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Going concern:

The directars have, at the time of approving the

standalone financial  statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate resaurces
to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, Thus, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the

standalone financial statements.
2.3 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the standalene financial statements
in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised, and in any future periods
affected. The following are the significant areas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financial statements:

i) Impairment of non-financial assets:

Mon-financial assets are tested for impairment by
determining the recoverable amount, Determination of
recoverable amount is based on value in use, which is
present value of future cash flows. The key inputs
used in the present value calculations include the
expected future growth in operating revenues and
margins in the forecast period, long-term growth rates
and discount rates which are subject to significant
judgement. (Refer note 4.1)

ements  dicjitide

il) Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognises loss allowances using the
Expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss.
Less allowance for trade recelvables (billed and
unbilled) with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all
ather financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an ameunt equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime ECL, The loss rates for the trade
receivables considers past collection history from the
customers, the credit nsk of the customers and have
been adjusted to reflect the Management's view of
economic conditions over the expected collection
period of the receivables (billed and unbilled). (Refer
note 32(i))

iii) Measurement of defined benefit obligations:

For defined benefit obligations, the cost of providing
benefits is determined based on actuarial valuation. &An
actuarial valuation is based on significant assumptions

which are reviewed on a yearly basis. (Refer note 38)

iv) Property, plant and eguipment and intangible
assets:

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets are determined by the management
at the time the asset is acguired and reviewed
periodically. Ind AS 103 requires the identifiable
intangible assets acquired in business combinations to
be fair valued and significant estimates are required to
be made in determining the value of intangible assets.
These valuations are conducted by external experts.
(Refer note 3(a) and 4)
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V) Income taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining
provision for income taxes, including (a) the amounts
claimed for certain deductions under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 and (b) the amount expected to be paid or
recovered in connection with uncertain tax positions.
The ultimate realisation of deferred income tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which the temporary
differences become  deductible.  Management
considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax
ligbilities and the projected future taxable income in
making this assessment. Based on the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future
taxable income over the periads in which the deferred
income tax assets are deductible, management
believes that the Company will realise the benefits of
those deductible differences, The amount of the
deferred income tax assets considered realisable,
however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry
forward periods are reduced. (Refer nate 7}

2.4 Current and non-current classification

Current and non-current classification: The Company
presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based an current/ nen-current classification. An asset
is treated as current when it is:
« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in normal operating cycle
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading
+ Expected to be realised within twelve months after
the reporting peried, or
« Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

Al other assets are classified as non-current.

Ee————
|

Annual Report 2024 -2025 ‘

g = - - _ i . I ™4
MYy r=ir1ANNE ~) -
LA L. . | [

cements diC)itide

A liability is current when:

« It is expected to be settled In normal operating
cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after
the reparting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its setttement by the issue of
equity Instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-

current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle for the business activities of the
Company covers the duration of the specific project or
contract and extends up to the realisation of
receivables within the agreed credit period normally
applicable to the respective lines of business. Based
on the nature of services rendered to customers and
time elapsed between deployment of resources and
the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the
consideration  for such  services rendered, the
Company has considered an operating cycle of 12

months.

2.5 Business combinations

(i} Business combinations {common control business
combinations):
Business combination involving entities that are
contralled by the company are accounted for using the
pooling of interest method are as follows:
- The assets and liahilities of the combining entities
are reflected at their carrying amounts,
- MNo adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or
recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments

are only made to harmonise accounting policies.
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« The financial information in the standalone financial
statements in respect of prior periods is restated as
if the business combination had oceurred from the
beginning of the preceding peried in the financial
statements, irrespective of the actual date of the
combination. However, where the business
combination had occurred after that date, the prier
peried infarmation is restated only from that date.

« The balance of the retained eamings appearing in
the standalone financial

transferor is aggregated with the corresponding

statements of the

balance appearing in the standalone financial
statements of the transferee or Is adjusted against
general resene,

« The identity of the reéserve are preserved and the
reserves of the transferor becomes the reserves of
the transferse.

+ The difference, if any, between the amounts
recarded as share capital issued plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or
other assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferor is transferred to capital reserve and s
presented separately from other capital reserves.

(i) Business combinations (other than commaon
control business combinations):

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Company accounts
for the business combinations (other than comman
control business combinations) using the acquisition
method when contral is transferred to the Company.
The cost of an acquisition s measured as the fair value
of the assets given, eguity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange.
The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of
any contingent consideration. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition,
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except to
the extent related to the issue of debt or equity
securities.

Ee————
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2.6 Foreign currency transactions and balances

The standalone financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupees (*INR"] which is also the Company's
functional currency and all amounts have been
rounded off to the nearest millions.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are translated Into the functional currency at
exchange rates in effect at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and |losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and such translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency and measured at fair value are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date
when the fair value was determined. Mon-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency and measured at historical cost are translated
at the ewchange rate prevalent at the date of
transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the
fair value of foreign exchange derivative instruments,
which are accounted at fair value through profit or loss

except  exchange differences arising from the
translation of the following items which are recognized
in OCL

- equity investments at fair value through OCI
(FvocCl)

= a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net
investment in a foreign operation to the extent that

the hedge is effective;
- and qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that
the hedges are effective.




2.7 Property, plant and equipment
{i) Recognition and measurement:
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if any.

Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised
until the property, plant and equipment are ready for
use, as intended by the managemeant.

Subseqguent expenditures relating to property, plant
and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with these
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
when incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at sach reporting
date is classified as capital advances under other non-
current assets and the cost of the assets not ready for
intended use are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-
progress’.

ii} Depreciation;

The Company depreciates property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method., The estimated useful lives of
assets are as follows:

Asset category Estimated useful life

Building 60 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Vehicles 3-5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Plant and machinery 3 - Byears
Computer equipment 3-5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed periodically, including at each financial
vear end. The useful lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation
of future events, which may Impact their life, such as
changes in technology.

Piweal Reopars 2021 2020 ‘_E-
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If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items ({major components)
of property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over lease
term or estimated useful life whichever is lower,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and eguipment are
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year
end,

An  item of property, plant and eguipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss,

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are
derecognised  from  the
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and
the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

standalone  financial

2.8 Leases

The Company as a lessee:

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of
leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease If the contract conveys
the right to contral the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right fo
contral the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of
an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (ill) the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Company recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liahility for all lease arrangements
in which it Is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the option to
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised. The ROU assets are initially
recognised at cast, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or pricr to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives, They are subseguently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencemeant
date an a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenewver
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose  of impairment testing, the recoverable
amoeunt (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the wvalue-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised
cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are re-
measured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related ROLU asset if the Company changes its
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assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or
a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its shortterm leases of buildings (ie.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option) For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease,

2.9 Goodwill

The excess of the cost of acquisition owver the
Company’s share in the fair value of the acquiree's
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is
recognised as goodwill. If the excess is negative, it is
considered as a bargain purchase gain, Any gain on a
bargain  purchase is recognised in OClI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists
clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as resulting in a
bargain purchase. Goodwill is tested for impairment on
an annual basis and whenever there is an indication
that goodwill may be impaired, relying on a number of
factors including operating results, business plans and
future cash flows.

2.10 Intangible assets

(i) Recognition and measurement

Internally generated: Research and development
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software
product development costs are expensed as incurred
untess technical and commercial feasibility of the
praject is demonstrated, future economic benefits are
probable, the Company has an intention and ability to
complete and use or sell the software and the costs
can be measured reliably. The costs which can be
capitalised include the cost of material, direct labour,
overhead costs that are directly attributable to
preparing the asset for its intended use.




FY 2024 - 25

Separately acquired Intangible assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carfed at cost less
accumulated

accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are
recagnised initially at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Others

Other purchased intangible assets are initially
measured at cost. Subseguently, such intangible
assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amaortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure,  including  expenditure on  internally
generated software Is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as and when incurred.

(iii) Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their respective
individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis, from the date that they are available for use. The
estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset
is based an a number of factors including the effects
of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry,
and known technological advances), and the level of
maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash  flows from the asset
Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed
periodically including at each financial year end.

The amaortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.
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The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as
fallows:

Asset category Estimated useful life

Computer software 3 years

Customer relationships 9 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
ar loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

Tangible and Intangible Assets (excluding Goodwill)
At the end of each reporting year, the Company
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset or the cash generating unit to which the
intangible asset s allocated may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
af maney and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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If the recoverablea amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) Is estimated to be less than it's
cartying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An Impairment loss Is recognised immediately
in the statement of profit and loss. If events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be Impaired,
they are tested for impairment more frequently.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for
impairment at least annually, For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated are tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amaunt of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal,

212 Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in  equity instruments issued by
subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment.
Dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised when
its right to receive the dividend is established. The

acquired investment in subsidiaries are measured at
acquisition date fair value,

= 2
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Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written
down Iimmediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of investments in subsidiaries the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recagnised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

213 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comptriseé cash In hand and
in banks, demand deposits with banks which can be
withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penalty
an the principal and other short-term highly liguid
investments with original maturities of three months ar
less,

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalent includes cash on hand, in banks, demand
deposits with banks and other shart-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and are considerad part of the
cash management system.

214 Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash
distributions to equity holders of the Company when
the distributions is authorised and the distribution is no
longer at the discretion of the Company. Final
dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the
date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of

declaration by the Company's Board of Directors
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Equity instruments grantad to the employees of the
Company are measured by reference to the fair value
of the instrument at the date of grant. The expense Is
recagnised In the statement of profit and loss with a
corresponding  increase In equity (stock options
outstanding account). The equity instruments generally
vest in a graded manner over the vesting period. The
fair value determined at the grant date is expensed
over the vesting period of the respective tranches of
such grants (accelerated amortisation). The stock
compensation expense s determined based on the
Company's estimate of eguity instruments that will
eventually vest.

2.16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the
net profit! (loss) attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares
ocutstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit/
{loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic eamings per egquity
share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential eguity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted
as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they
have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented. The number of equity shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for
bonus shares, as appropriate.

2.17 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event,
the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settie the obligation.

==,
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Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the
expenditure reguired to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date, taking Into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the liability. The unwinding of discount is
recognised as finance cost.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when
the expected benefits to be derlved by the Company
fram a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs
of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of lower of the expected net cost of
fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of
terminating the contract.

2.18 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity entity,
instruments are recognised in the Company's balance

instrument of anocther Financial
sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

a) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are
initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument,

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value except for trade receivables which are initially
measured at transaction price, Transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset
(other than financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of
the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of

financial assets are accounted for at trade date,




b) Financial assets 4. All financlal assets not classified as amortised cost
or FVTOC| as described above are measured at

FYTPL. On initlal recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial

(i) Classification and subsegquent measurement
asset  that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at PVOC] as at FVTPL, if doing
« amortised cost, &0 significantly
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,

For the purpose of subseguent measurement, a

financial asset is classified and measured at

eliminates  or reduces an

« fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) - debt investment;

« fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) - equity investment; or

+ fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets; Subsequent measurement and gains
and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL

1. A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if

both the following conditions are met: These assets are subsequently measured at fair
+ the asset is held within a business model whose value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
dividend recognised in the

statement of profit and loss,

objective is to hold assets to collect contractual or income are
cash flows: and

« the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise on a specified date to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

princip;ﬂ amounts 'Dl.lt.ﬁtﬁl'lljil'lg. Financial assets at amortised cost

. A debt investment is measured at FVTOC! if both of

the following conditions are met:

the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flow and selling financial assets ; and

« the contractual terms of the financial assets give

Poweal Reoart 2021 2020 ‘_E |

rise on a specified date to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amounts outstanding,

. On initial recognition of an equity investment that is

not held for trading, the Company irrevocably
elects to present subseguent changes in the fair
in  OCI FYTOC-equity
investment). This made on an

value {designated as
election 1Is

investment-to-investment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Any gain or loss an derecognition

is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt investments at FWTOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in @Cl On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss
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Equity investments at FVTOCI recognised

These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Dividends are recognised as income in the
statement of profit and loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment, Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss,

(i} Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies
expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement
and recognition of impairment less. The Company
follows ‘'simplified approach' for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables (billed
and unbilled) based on expected lifetime credit losses
at each reporting date after initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets, the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent
period, credit guality of the instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts
to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
menth ECL,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a
prowvision matrix to determine impairment loss on
portfolio of its trade receivable and contract assets,
Depending on the diversity of its customer base, the
company has considered to group its customers into
two  fypes:
government customers,

government customers  and  non-
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The provision matrix fer non-government custaomers Is
based on Its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivable and Is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates, The provision
matrix for government customers Is primarily based on
the time-based movement within the life cycle of
customer receivable further adjusted for forward-
looking estimates

ECL impairment loss allowance [or reversal) is
recognised as an income/expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset Is derecognised only when the
Company:

- has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial asset; or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
abligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients,

Where the company has transferred an asset, the
Company evaluates whether i has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the company has neither transferred a financial
asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Company has not retained control
af the financial asset,

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the trade receivables (billed
and unbilled} is in severe financial difficulty or the
dispute with the customer is not resolved and there is
no realistic prospect of recovery, Any recoveries macde
are recognised in profit or loss,
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{€) Financial liabilities

(i) Classification, subsequent measurement and gains
and losses

Financial liabilities are Initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs, and are subseguently
measurad at amortised cost through effective interest
method, Financial liabilities are subseguently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognised in a
business combination which 15 subseguently
measured at fair value through profit or loss. For trade
and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair walue due to the short maturity of these

instruments,

{ii} Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified party fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee,
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
recognised  less  cumulative

amount  initially

amortisation,

{iii} Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
Company's obligations are discharged or cancelled or
have expired, An exchange with a lender of debt
instruments  with substantially  different terms s
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability,

= 2
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Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to
the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as
an extinguishment of the criginal financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability dereccgnised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a lagally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
aither to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously:

219 Measurement of fair values

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair
valua hierarchy based on the degree to which the fair
value measurements are observable and significance
of the inputs to fair value measurements:
» Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
+ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly
= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Company uses different methods and assumptions
based on observable market inputs. All methods of
assessing fair value result in general approximation of
value, and such value may not actually ba realised.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reparting
period during which the change has occurred. For
financial assets and liakilities maturing within one year
from the balance sheet date and which are not carried
at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair

value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
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The Company earns revenue primarily from providing
business process management services and tech and
digital services.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for
recagnition and measurement when the contract has
been approved by the parties to the contract, the
parties to contract are committed to perform their
respective obligations under the contract, and the
contract is legally enforceable. Revenue Is recognised
upon transfer of control of promised products or
services (“performance cbligations") to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company has received or expects to receive in
exchange for these products or services (“transaction
price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability,
revenue recognition s

uncertainty is resolved.

postponed until such

The contract with customers, generally contains a
single performance obligation and is measured based
on the transaction price, which is the consideration,
adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits,
performance bonuses, price concessions and
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the
customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from

customers.

Revenue from business process management and
tech and digital is recognised over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits as the Company renders the services. The
invoicing for these services is either based on cost
plus a service fee or fixed fee model.

The Company has concluded that it is the principal in
all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor and has pricing latitude which establishes
control before transferring products and services to
the customer.

Ee————
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The Company's receivables are rights to consideration
that are unconditional. Unbilled revenues comprising
revenues in excess of Invoicing are classified as
financial asset when the right to consideration is
unconditional and is due only after a passage of tima.
Unbilled revenues are presented under Trade
receivables, while invoicing In excess of revenues are
classified as unearned revenue.

Other income

Other Income comprises primarily interest income on
depasits, dividend income and gain/ (loss) on disposal
of financial assets and non-financial assets. Interest
income is recognised using the effective interest
method. Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established,

2.21 Employee benefits

a) Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees In respect of wages and salaries in the
period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service. Short-term employes
benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis as
the related service is provided.

b) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitied to
compensated absences. The employees can camy
forward a portion of the wunutilised accumulating
compensated absences and utilise it in future periods
or receive cash at retirement or termination of
employment. The Company records an obligation for
compensated absences in the period in which the
employee renders the services that increases this
entitiement.

The obligation is determined by actuarial valuation
performed by an external actuary at each balance

sheet date using projected unit credit method,
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Accumulated compensated absences, which are
expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short term
employes benefits and those expected to be availed
or encashed beyond 12 months frem the end of the
year are treated as other long term employee benefits

c) Defined contribution plan

Under a defined contribution plan, the Company's only
obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation
to pay further contributions if the fund does not held
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits, The
Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards Employee Provident Fund te Government
administered Provident Fund Scheme which is a
defined contribution plan. The expenditure for defined
contribution plan is recognised as expense during the
period when the employee provides service.

d) Defined benefit plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
the Company provides for a lump sum payment to
eligible employees, at retirement or termination of
employment based on the last drawn salary and years
of employment with the Company. This gratuity
scheme for eligible employees is administered through
g third party manager. The present value of gratuity
obligation under such defined benefit plan s
determined based on actuarial valuations carried out
by an external actuary using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The Company recognises the net abligation
of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an
asset ar liability.

The Company recognises the following changes in the
net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statemnent of profit and loss:

« Service costs comprising current service costs,
past service «costs, gains and
curtailments and naon-routine settlements; and

losses  on

« MNetinterest expense or income,

Ee————
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Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, Further, the statement of
profit and loss does not include an expected return on
plan assets. Instead, net Interest recognised in the
staternent of profit and loss is calculated by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
abligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The actual return on the plan assets above or below
the discount rate is recognised as part of re-
measurement of net defined liability or asset through
ather comprehensive income.

Re-measurement comprising actuarial gains or losses
and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are
not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in
subsequent periods:

2.22 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of gualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.
Investment income eamed on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss inthe period in which they are incurred,

2.23 Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense within profit or
loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain
the performance of the Company for the peried, the
nature and amount of such ifems is disclosed

separately as Exceptional items,
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2.24 Restructuring Expenses

Restructuring expenses is recognised when the
Company develops a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised valid expectation in those
affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it. The measurement of
restructuring  provision includes only the direct
expanditures arising from the restructuring, which are
those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by
the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the entity

2.25 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in eguity or in
other comprehensive income.

Current income tax for current and prior periods is
recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or
recoverad from the tax authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
standalone financial statements. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is mo longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised,

Deferred  income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and are expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or setiled. The effect of
changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets
and labilities is recognised as income or expense in
the period that includes the enactment or the
substantive enactment date. Deferred tax assets are
recegnised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the

==,
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deductible temporary differences can be used.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets,
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognisedireduced to the
extent that it is probable/no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current
tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and where it intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.26 Contingent liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company, or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liakility also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be measured
reliably, The Company does not recognise a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
standalone financial statements.

2.27 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,
whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cperating cash receipts or
payments and tem of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

2.28 Segment reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating segments,
segment information has been disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and
no separate disclosure on segment information is
glven in these standalone financial statements,
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3. (a) Property, plant and equipment and Capital Work-in-progress

(Amount in INR millions)

= Tl Tokal
Fumiiire

Particulars 3 ompte praparty,

' plarl snd

mmchinery iutures:
machinery fiutures EqLEmmEn]

Gross cArmying

e ATE00 IE4.40 350 42 12828 6254 43.65 135741 26378 045
February 2024

Addiiors - - 1205 EBh - eH48 1E8.3E 138.53
Dispresals g g {239 1437} rid=h i} 1,52} nea4) (2983}

Capitaksed during The . 7551 7551 (75510
frrancial year

Balonce ss ot 31

March 2035 47000 354.490 350 13768 23074 5383 4213 158296 87129 G345
Accumulated

dapraciatian as at atm 237 8533 13912 a525 743 LO0ES2 1,752,563

0 Feliruary 2024°

Crapargcigtion fon

e finarcs year ] 77 030 nyz |5 826 233 332 25475

Disposals - - {267 fan (7E3) 43 2o (2824

Balonce as at 31

March 2028 Ba.28 247 Saa8 16336 angs 38.33 1,211.64 158504

Med canying amount

&4 at 3 March 30265 47000 00Az 103 32.80 T6.98 7as 580 s 128220 6346

* Includes balances transferred on account of 3cheme of Arrangement. (Refer note 40)

The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of
proofit and loss.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

The title of the land and building is in the name of Quess Corp Limited. Post demerger, the Company is in the
process of getting the title transferred to its name. Where the Company is lessee, the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee.
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Description: Land and building located at 1CC Devi Gaurav Tech Park, Building office No.301

Description of and 302, Third Floor, Mumbai-Pune Highway, Pimpri, Plot Mo. 4854, B Wing, Pune,
Property

Maharashtra - 411018
ldentification number: BP/PimprifLayout/46/2007 and BP/PimprifLayout/52/2009

Gross carrying Land: INR 470,00 million
value as at 31 Building: INR 354.40 million
March 2025 Total: INR 824.40 million

Held in name Conneqt Business Solutions Limited
of (Erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary of the Quess Corp Limited)

Whether

promoter,

director or Mo
their relative or
employee

Since November 01, 2012, the property Is held by Connegt Business Solutions Limited. Post
merger, with effective date of December 1, 2023, and appointed date of April 1, 2021, the
property is held by Quess corp limited. Post demerger the Company Is In the process of
transferring the title to Digitide Solutions Limited.

Period held

Conneqgt Business Solutions Limited ([Connegt’) was merged with Quess Corp Limited in FY
2023-24 and became the division of Quess Corp Limited, However, the registration process
of transfer of title in the name of Quess Corp Limited was in progress. In the FY 2024-25,
the business of Connegt got demerged from Quess Corp Limited and got merged with the
Company. As at the Balance sheet date, the Company is in the process of transferring title
in its own name,

Capital Work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

63.46 i - - 6346

Project in progress are reviewed by the Management on a regular basis and deployed as per business
requirement.
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3. (b} Right-of-use assets
(amount in INR millions)

2 o Computer
EUIII‘:" ng-’ l EqUiﬂmE nts Tﬁta1
Balance as at 10 February 2024* 2.502.44 175.09 267753
Additions 505.93 39.44 54537
Disposals (169.38) - (169.38)
Cepreciation for the financial year (931.05) (152.95) 1,084.04)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,807.94 61.54 1,969.48

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement. (Refer note 40)

The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of
profit and loss.

3. [c) Lease liabilities
(c) (Amount in INR millicns)

Farticulars gl
31 March 2025

Mon-current lease liabilities 1473.34
Current lease liahilities 766.86
2.240.20

The following is the movement in lease liabilities: (Amount in INR millions)

Particulars For the period year ended 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Balance as at 10 February 2024" 2,96713
Add: Additions 541.56
Less: Deletions (177.51)
Add: Finance cost accrued during the financial year 296.85
Less: Repayment of lease liabilities (1,387.85)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,240.20

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement. (Refer note 40)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2025 on an
undiscounted basis; (Amount in INR millians)
As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Less than one year 94734
One to five years 160447
Mare than five years 5910
Total 2,650.92



4. Goodwill, other intangible assets and intangible assets under development (Amaunt in INR milllans)

Goodwill I

{refer nate 4.9) Computer Custamer Total olter development
softwara relationships Intanglhbles assets frefer note 4.2)

I FIIZE!I'II_:.lItIFE' assels under

Particulars

Gross carrying amount as at 660.05 165.68 54618 711.86 2059
10 February 2024°

Additians - 261 2.61 624
Capltalised during the financial = 24,83 = 24.83 [24.83)
year

Balance as at 31 March 2025 E660.05 19342 54618 73930 270
Accumulated amortisation . 152.86 48517 G638.03

and impalrment as at 10
February 2024"°

amortisation for the financial yaar an 61.01 7012

Accumulated amortisation . 161.97 B4d618 TJOB1S

and Impalrment as at 31

March 2025

Met carrying amount as at 31 660,05 315 - NS 270
March 2025

The aggregate amartisation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of
profit and loss.

‘Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement. [(Refer note 40)
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As at 31 March 2025, the Company has INR 660.05 million of goodwill allccated to Connegt cash generating unit
{CGLU). The recoverable value was determined based on value in use.

The cash flows related to revenue and operating margins have been estimated based on historical trends and
future market expectations specific to the CGLU.

Cther key assumptions used by the Company for impairment assessment are captured in the table belaw,

As at
Connegt CGU 31 March 2025

Pre-tax discount rate 25.82%
Revenue growth 15.00%
Operating Margin 17.79% - 17.89%
Terminal growth rate 4.00%

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions:

Any reasonable possible change in the key assumptions will not result into an impairment for these significant
CGEUs specified abowve.

4.2 Intangible assets under development ageing schedule:

Amount in intangible assets under development for the period of:

Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in
progress

As at 31 March 2.70 - - - 270
2025

Project in Progress are reviewed by the management on a regular basis and deployed as per business
requirement.
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5. Non-current investments
(Amount in INR millions)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Unguoted, Investment carried at cost

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries

7,000,100 Commaon Shares of Brainhunter Systems Limited, fully paid up (refer note 51)° 17.51
1 Common Stock of Quess Corp (USA) Inc. of USD 100,000 each, fully paid-up 361.07
67422 fully paid up equity shares of SGD 40,038.59 each of MFXchange Haldings Inc.* 21786

36,021 fully paid up equity shares of par value of INR 10.00 each of Heptagon

Technologies Private Limited (refer note 5.9) 2370
Less: Impairment in value of investments of Heptagon Technologies Private Limited (refer (25770)
note 51"

Quoted, Investment carried at cost

NM182,912 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up of Alldigi Tech Limited 329961
Total non-current investments 3,896.05
Aggregate value of unguoted investments 85414
Aggregate value of guoted investments 3,289.61
Aggregate amount of impairmeant in value of iInvestments (25770)

* Investments includes day one fair value recognition for corporate guarantse given to subsidiaries amounting to INR 13.96
million,

51 During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company acquired 100% interest in Brainhunter Systems {Canada)
Limited ("BSL") from ICICI Bank, Indfa. Prior to acguisition of BSL by the Company, equity shares of BSL were
originally owned by Zylog Systems Limited ("Z5L") and were pledged in favour of ICICI Bank as security for loans
availed by Z5L from ICICI Bank. Z5L defaulted on loan repayments and ICIC Bank invoked the pledge and sold the
shares to the Company.

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company received a notice from the official liquidator of Z5L, alleging
that the acquisition of the equity shares of BSL by the Company was not in accordance with law and therefore vaid-
ab-initic, as such sale and transfer of the equity shares of BSL had taken place subsequently to an order passed by
the Hanorable Madras High Court appointing the official liquidator for Z5L0 liquidation, Further, the Company has
also received letter from the RBI stating its inability to take on record the transfer of equity shares of BSL until the
winding up proceedings of Z51 have been completed and resolved. The Company obtained a legal opinien dated
May 2, 2016, which specifies that the case does not have merit and the sale is bonafide based on the following
anakysis:

a. There is an adequate precedent that upholds the principle that a secured creditor can independently exercise his
rights outside winding up proceedings;

b. ICICI Bank has enforced its security to realize its rights as @ secured creditor and the sale is in compliance with
Canadian Law; and

c. That the sale of equity shares of BSL is not prejudicial to the parties and that the same has been undertaken in
accordance with the provisions of the law,

The Company also obtained an opinion dated March 14, 2016, from Canadian legal counsel, which has confirmed
that the acquisition is appropriate from a Canadian jurisdiction perspective.

i
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“*Movement of impairment loss allowance on investments
(Amount in INR millions)

Balance as at 10 Feb 2024 (257700
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2025 (257.70)

5.2 There is no movement in investment in equity of subsidiaries during the period ended 31 March 2025,

&. Other non-current financial assets
(Amount in INE millicns)

‘ As at

Security deposits® 191,96
Bank deposits (due to maturity after 12 months from the reporting date)™ 214.02
405.98

* Security deposits include deposits given for premises taken under leases, electricity and water connections.,

“Bank deposits to the tune of INR 209,90 million are lien marked against guarantees,

7. Taxes

A. Amount recognised in profit or loss

(Amount in INE millicns)

Particulars For the financial year ended 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Current tax:

In respect of the current year (293.00)
Related to prior years 120
Deferred tax:

Attributable to:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 10.91
Income tax expense reported in the standalone statement of (274.89)

profit and loss
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B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

(Amount in INR millions)

S Ty For the financial year ended 10 February
s 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Re-measurement of the net defined beneafit llability/ asset:

Before tax (27.69)
Tax (credit)/expense recognised in other comprehensive 6.88
income

Met of tax (20.81)

C. Amounts recognised directly in equity

Mo tax expense has been recognised directly in equity.

D. Recaonciliation of effective tax rate

(Amount in INR milllons)

Bkl For the financial year ended 10 February
* 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Profit before tax 1,218.23
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate of 25168% (306.60)
Effect of:

Mon-deductible expenses (16.58)
Income tax relating to prior years 720
Others’ 41.09
Income tax expense reported in the standalone statement of (274.89)

profit and loss

*Others includes the tax impact of INR.41.09 million on profit before tax for the period from 10 February 2024, 2024 to March 31,
2024, which is not taxable as the Company is liable to pay income tax from April 1, 2024 (appointed date) in accordance with the
scheme of arrangement approved by NCLT,

E. The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of 31 March 2025

tamaunt In INR milllons)

e As at

Income tax assets 47036
Income tax liabilities (29010
Met income tax assets as at the end of the period 180.06
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F. Deferred tax assets (net)

(Amount in INR millions)

As at
21 March 2025

Particulars

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are attributable to the following:

Loss allowance on financial assets 94.68
Provision for employee benefits G815
Provision for disputed claims 5.97
Provision for Bonus 20.62
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (8.48)
Others 8012
Met deferred tax assets 291.06

5. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Mowvement of deferred tax assets / liabilities presented in the balance sheet:
(Amount in INR millions)

Particulars Opeaning Balance Recognised in Recognised Clasing Balance as at

as at 10 Feb 2024* profit or loss in QCl 31 March 2025

Deferred tax assets on:

Loss allowance on financial assets 61.27 334 . 94.68
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (0.65) (783§ - {8.48)
Provision for employee benefits 8278 849 5.88 G815
Provision for disputed claims 760 (1.&3) . 5897

Provision for Bonus 2315 [2.53) - 2062
Others 9912 {19.00) - 8012
Deferred tax assets 273.28 10.91 6.88 29106
Met deferred tax assets 273.28 10.91 6.88 291.06

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement. (Refer note 40)

Deferrred tax others- Majorly comprises of Deferred tax on Right of use asset net of lease liabllites.
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B. Other non-current assets
fAmount in INR millions)

Particulars i
31 March 2025

{Unsecured and considered good)

Prepaid expenses 10.94
Balances with government authorities* 64.37
75.31

"Balance with government authorities includes amount paid under protest of INR 35.44 million towards outstanding demand
from Employes's Provident fund Crganisation (Refer note 35.100).

9. i) Trade receivables - billed
{amaount in INR millians)

Particul As at
ey 31 March 2025
Trade receivable billed - considered good - unsecurad 360872
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (282.27)
Trade receivable billed - considered good - unsecured 3,323.45
Trade receivabie billed - credit impaired - unsecured 10.23
Less; Allowance for expected credit loss (10.23)
Trade receivable billed - credit impaired - unsecured -
Total trade receivables - billed 3,323.45

ii) Trade receivables - unbilled
tAmount in INR millions)

i As at
PaIGEuars 31 March 2025
Trade recelvables - unbilled 66613
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (23.81)

642.32

Includes billable to related parties INR 2615 millicn (refer note 37).
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Trade receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2025

(Amount In INR milllons)

Outstanding for th ring periods from due date of ¥
Particulars Unbilied =
. | : m e Th?n ) n
-] years
Lindisputed trade receivables BEE1S 24459 1,091.00 21701 108.97 2566 18.49 427185
- conskderaed good
U'.'IdIEPI.FtE'd trade receivables _ X 5 1.07 5.41 o7 304 1023
- credit impaired
Total B66.13 2144.58 1.091.00 218.08 114.28 2637 2153 428208
Less; allowance for expected [316.31)
credit loss
Tatal trade receivable 3,8965.77

91 Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:
tAmount in INR millions)

. As at
Particulars

31 March 2025

Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 37) 360.67
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (43.02)
Met trade receivables 317.65

10. Cash and cash equivalents
tamaount In INR milllons)

As at
31 March 2025

Particulars

Balances with banks

In current accounts 88719
In EEFC accounts 24.34
Cash and cash equivalents as per standalone balance sheet 911.53

11. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above (Amount In INR millions)
7 As at
Fadcilarg 31 March 2025
In deposit accounts (maturity within 12 months from the

reporting date)’ e

2.32

‘Bank deposits are lien marked against guarantees.,
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12. Other current financial assets

fAmount in INR millions)

Particulars i
31 March 2025

Security deposits® 173.54
Interest accrued but not due 23.55
197.09

* Security deposits include deposits given for premises taken under leases.

12, Other current assets
{tamount in INR milllons)

’ As at
Particulars

31 March 2025

Advances to suppliers 4.50
Travel advances to employees 2.52
Other advances 5.94
Prepaid expenses 366.97
Balances with government authorities 5.08

385.01

14, Equity share capital
{Amount In INR milllons)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Authorised
100,000 equity shares of par value of INR 10.00 each * 1.00
1.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

10,000 equity shares of par value of INR 10.00 each, fully paid 010

up

Equity share capital to be cancelled pursuant to the scheme** (10.10)

Pending allmtmer.!t of shares pursuant to the Scheme 1480940

(148,949 413 equity shares of par value INR 10 each)™ y
1,489.49

‘Pursuant to the approval of the Scheme of Arrangement by the National Company Law Tribunal (‘the NCLT'), the Company
Increased its authorized share capital from INR 1 million to INR 1,750 million on 3 April 2025 (Refer to Note 40}

“*The record date for determining the eligibility of the shareholders of Guess Corp Limited for the allotment of equity shares in
Digitide Solutiens Limited, in the ratio of one fully paid-up new equity share of INR 10 each In the Company for every one equity
share of INR 10 each in Guess Corp Limited (pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement), was fixed on April 15, 2025, The
Company recorded INR 1,489.49 million (148,949,413 equity shares of par value INR 10 each) as "Pending allotment of shares
pursuant to the Scheme” and disclosed it under Equity Share Capital, This amount (net of existing Equity Share Capital} has been
adjusted against the Capital Reserve in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer to Note 40).

Subsequent to March 31, 2025, the Company allotted these shares on April 21, 2025, and necessary corporate
actions were undertaken in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement. The shares of the Company were listed
on both NSE and BSE and commenced trading on June 11, 2025

==,
|
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14.1 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

tAmount in INR millions)

S Ty As at 31 March 2025
Mumber of shares Amount in INR millions
Equity shares
At the commencement of the financial year 10,000.00 010
At the end of the financial year 10,000.00 010

14.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to
dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as
declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll {not on show of hands) are in
proportion to the share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. On winding up of the Company, the holders of
the equity shares will be entitled te receive the residual assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts {If any) In proportion to the number of equity shares held.

14.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

. As at 31 March 2025
Particulars

Number of shares

Equity shares
Equity shares of par value of INR 10.00 each
Quess Corp Limited 9.994.00 99.94%

As of 31 March 2025, Quess Corp Limited helds 99.94% stake In the Company. Pursuant to the approval of the
Scheme of Arrangement, the Company is yvet to allot equity shares to the eligible shareholders of Quess Corp
Limited in the ratio of one fully paid-up new equity share of INR 10 each in the Company for every one equity share
of INR 10 each in Quess Corp Limited. As of 31 March 2025, Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited, Ajit Isaac and
Izaac Enterprises LLP holds 3415% (5,08,53.455 equity shares), 12.02% (178,96 832 equity shares) and 10.32%
(1.53,65.824 equity shares) respectively in Quess Corp Limited.

Subsequent to March 31, 2025, the Company allotted these shares on April 21, 2025, and necessary corporate
actions were undertaken in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement. The shares of the Company were listed
on both NSE and BSE and commenced trading an June 11, 2025

=
)
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14.4 Details of shareholding of promoters:

As at 31 March 2025

Promoter name/ promoter group name
Number of shares % held

Quess Corp Limited 9,994.00 99 94%

As of 31 March 2025, Quess Corp Limited holds 99.94% stake in the Company. Pursuant to the approval of the
Scheme of Arrangement, the Company is yet to allot equity shares to the eligible shareholders of Quess Corp
Limited in the ratio of one fully paid-up new equity share of INR 10 each in the Company for every one equity share
of INR 10 each in Quess Corp Limited. As of 31 March 2025, Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited, Ajit 1saac, lsaac
Enterprises LLP and Hwic Asia Fund Class A Shares are the existing promoters of Quess Corp Limited holding
3415% (50853455 equity shares), 12.02% (1,78.96,832 equity shares), 10.32% ({1.5365824 equity shares) and
0.50% (748100 equity shares) respectively in Quess Corp Limited.

Subsequent to March 31, 2025, the Company allotted these shares on April 21, 2025, and necessary corporate

actions were undertaken in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement. The shares of the Company were listed
on both NSE and BSE and commenced trading on June 1, 2025

15. Other equity” {Amaunt In INR millions)

’ As at
Particulars 31 March 2025

Capital reserve 6,241,86
Stock options outstanding account 185.34
Other comprehensive loss (19.29)
Retained earnings 78143

7.189.34

* For detailed movement of reserves refer standalone statement of changes in equity.

1. Capital reserve; Capital Reserve represents the surplus arising from capital transactions, including the difference
between the fair value of net assets acguired and the consideration paid in business combinations or under
schemes of arrangement. Capital reserve is not freely available for distribution.

2. Stock options outstanding account: The Share options outstanding account is used to record the value of equity-
settled share-based payment transactions with employees. The amounts recorded in share options outstanding
account are transferred to securities premium upon exercise of stock options and restricted stock unit options by
employees.,

3. Other comprehensive loss: Actuarial gains and |losses on remeasurements of the defined benefit plans are
recognised in other comprehensive income, net of taxes and presented within equity in remeasurement of the
defined benefit plans.

4. Retained earnings: Retainad earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes.

Ee————
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(Amount in INR millions)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Secured
Vehicle loan [refer note 16.1] 16.87
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrawings {(578)

.09

18.1 Terms and condition of cutstanding borrowings are as follows: {Amount in INR millions)

Particulars i Coupon/ Period of Carrying amount as at
articulars eneney Interest rate maturity 31 March 2025

Wehicke loan (Secured by hypothecation of the INR 7.65% 10 9.65% 2028 16.87
vehicles financed)

17. Provisions tamaunt in INR millians)

iy As at

Provision for employee benefits
Prowision for gratuity (refer note 38) 27375
27375

18. Current borrowings (tmeunt in INR milllons)

) As at
Particulars 31 March 2025

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 16) 578
Secured =
Cash credit and overdraft facilities -
Working capital loan (refer note 181 and 32) 184.97
19075

1841 . Quess Corp Limited (Demerged Company) took working capital loan from banks having interest rate ranging
from 7.65% p.a to 10.60% p.a, These facilities are repayable on demand and are secured primarily by way of pari
passL first charge on the entire current assets of Demerged Company on both present and future and collateral by
way of pari passu first charge on the entire movable assets of the Demerged Company (excluding charge on
vehicles/equipments purchased /o be purchased under lease agreements/ hire purchase agreements) both
present and future,

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, these borrowings were allocated to the Company, Quess Corp Limited
{Demerged Company) submitted the gquarterly book debt statements to its banks, which includes the receivables
pertaining to the Company, Quess Corp Limited and Bluspring Enterprises Limited for the quarters ended 30 June
2024, 30 September 2024, 31 December 2024, and 31 March 2025, The quarerly statements comprising book
debt statements filed by Quess Corp Limited with such banks, are in agreement with the unaudited books of
account of the Company, Quess Corp Limited and Bluspring Enterprises Limited for the respective quarters.



The Company's exposure to liquidity risk related to other current financial liakilities is disclosed in note 32(ii).

19. Trade payables tAmount in INR milllons)

Particulars il
31 March 2025

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.68
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 37) £5.52
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 293.90
and small enterprises and related parties X
37110
Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2025: {Amount In INR millions)
Duistanding for the followlng perlods from the transactlon date
Particulars - i
Lessa than 1 ywoai \ 1= 2 yaard Mﬂ::;_'_'::" =
Dutstanding dues to MSME® 2126 0.24 .08 2168
Others 333 87 003 529 0.22 349.42
Total trade payables 6513 037 538 0.22 370

*‘MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

19.1 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has |ssued an Official Memorandum dated 26 August 2008
which recommends that the Micra and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers
the Entrepreneurs Memeorandum Mumber as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. The Company has not
recelved any claim for interast from any supplier under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act,
2006,

tamaount In INR milllons)
As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

The principal amount and the interest thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of the accounting year,;

- Principal 2168
- Interest 022

The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 20086}, along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year,;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under this Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year;

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, 022
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of this Act.

=
)
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(tAmount In INR milllons)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Capital creditors 8147

Other payables

Accrued salarles and benefits 1,248.9

Provision for bonus and incentive 8277

Prowision for expenses”® 501.90

Amount payable to related parties (refer note 37) 4.05
1,919.10

‘Includes related party balances INR 2771 million {refer note 37).

21. Provisions {Amount In INR milllans)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for compensated absences (refer note 38) 9253
52.53

22. Other current liabilities (Amount in INR millions)

o As at

Unearned revenue 4323
Balances payable to government authorities 498.61
Security deposits - Received from vendors 0.03

541.87
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23. Revenue from operations

tAmount in INR millions)

Particulars For the period year ended 10 February
= 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Sale of Service

a) Business Process Management 19.074.90
b) Tech and Digital 1,507.54
Met deferred tax assets 20,672.44

{i} Trade receivables and unearned revenue

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a trade receivable billed
or unbilled. Invoicing in excess of earnings are classified as unearned revenue,

Trade receivables are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

The following table provides information about trade receivables and unsarmed revenue from contracts with
customers.

tamount in INR milllons)

Particulars A
: 31 March 2025

Trade receivables

Billed {refer note 9(i)) 3.323.45
Unbilled {refer nate 9{il}) 64232
Unearned revenue (refer note 22) 4323

The following table discloses the movement in trade receivables (unbilled) as disclosed in Mote 9 ;
tamount in INR millions)

For the period year ended 10 February

Falucagls 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)
Balance as at 10 February 2024° 1953.56
Add: Revenue recognised during the financial year 66613
Less! Invoiced during the financial year {1,971.27)
Less : Loss allowance recognised during the financial year (6.10)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 642.32

*Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement. (refer note 40}
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The following table discloses the movement in unearned revenue balances:

tAmount in INR millions)

Particulars For the period year ended 10 February
= 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Balance as at 10 February 2024° 26.9
Less: Revenue recognised during the financial year 126.91)
Jldc_i: Invaiced during the vear but not recognised as revenue 43.23
during the financial year

Balance as at 31 March 2025 43.23

‘Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement. refer note 40)

{ii) Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the amount of the transaction price yet to be
recagnised as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to
recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has
not disclosed the value of remaining performance obligations for:

{i) contracts with an original expected duration of one year or less and
(il contracts for which the Company recognises revenue at the amount to which it has the right to invoice for
services performed.

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as of 31 March 2025,
other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned above, is INR 20,66 million. Out of this, the Company
expeacts to recognise revenue of around 29.14% within the next one year and the remaining thereafter.

24. Other income
{Amount In INR milllons)

e e For the period year ended 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

a) Interest Income
Interest income under the effective interest rate method on:
Deposits with banks 4862

b) Dividend Income
Dividend income on investments in subsidiaries (refer note 37) 503.20

c) Other non-operating Income

Foreign exchange gain 9.0

Profit on sale of property, plant and eguipment and intangible 12.46

assets

Miscellaneous income 0.90
57419

e_————= 1}
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(tAmount In INR milllons)

For the period year ended 10 February

Fattictiars 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Inventory at the beginning of the period -
Add: Purchases 14.26
Less: Inventory at the end of the period

Cost of materials and stores and spare parts consumed 14.26

26. Employee benefits expense
tamaount in INR millions)

For the period year ended 10 February

RIS 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)
Salaries and wages 1366474
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,018.53
Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plan
(refer note 38) Fo
Staff welfare expenses 262.02
Expense on employee stock option scheme (refer note 39) 5175

15,067.06

27. Finance costs

tamount in INR millions)

Particulars For the period year ended 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost 68.52
Interest cost on defined benefit plan (refer note 38) 1794
Interest expense an lease liabilities (refer note 3(c)) 296.85
Other borrowing costs 0.02

383.33

28. Depreciation and amortisation expense
{Amount in INR millions)

Particulars For the period yvear ended 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Depreclation of property, plant and eguipment [refer note 3(a)] 26475
Depreciation of rights-of-use-assets [refer note 3(h)] 1,084.04
Amaortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 1012

1,418.91

Annual Report 2024 -2025 I‘_E-



FY 2024 - 25

Particulars

dicjitide

(tAmount In INR milllons)

For the period year ended 10 February

2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Sub-contractor charges

Recruitment and training expenses

Rent

Power and fuel

Repairs and maintenance

- buildings

- plant and machinery

- others

Legal and professional fees [refer note 29.1]
Rates and taxes

Technological support services

Printing and stationery

Stores and tools consumed

Travelling and conveyance

Communication expenses

Loss allowance on financial assets, net

- Trade receivablesibilled and unbiilled) [refer note 32(i)]
Equipment hire charges

Insurance

Database access charges

Bank charges

Bad debts written off

Business promaotion and advertisement expenses
Loss on sale of property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets, net
Foreign exchange loss, net

Miscellaneous expenses

291 Payment to auditors (net of service tax / GST: included in legal and professional fees)

500.03
8727
80.97

187.87

164.33
498.46
184.92
325.88
an
13.99
759
133
26343
122.90

na.32
14.31
21.38
263
10.50
58.57
456
o.M
1.96
763
2,68215

tamaunt In INR milllons)

Particulars For the period year ended 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Audit fees
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29.2 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not

applicable in the first yvear of incorporation of the Company

30. Exceptional items

(Amaunt in INR millions)

Particular For the period year ended 10 February
o 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Demerger related expense (Refar note 30.1) 541
Professional services (Refer note 30.1) 2121
Impairment on other advances and receivables (Refer note
182.27
30.3)
Impairment of advances of Subsidiaries {Refer note 30.2) 15.00
462.69

30.1 During the finacial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company incurred charges for professional services, certain
employee benefits expense and Stamp duty aggregating to INR 265.42 million.

30.2 During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company assessed the recoverable value of advance
given to one of its subsidiary and recognised an impairment loss of INR 15.00 million

30.3 During the financial year ended 21 March 2025, the Company has written off certain receivables and other
assets amounting to INR 182.27 million pursuant to management decision to discontinue certain projects.
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31. Financial instruments - fair value and risk management

Financial instruments by category

dicjitide

(Amount in INRE millions)

31 March 2025

Particulars Amortised
Cost
Financial Assets:
Trade receivables 5 3,965.77
Cash and cash equivalents 10 911.53
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents above n 2.32
Other financial assets 6 and 12 B03.07
Total financial assets - 548269
Financial Liabilities:
Lease liabijities 31} 224020
Bomrowings 16 and 18 201.84
Trade payables 19 370
Cther financial liabilities 20 1,519.10
Total financial labilities 4732.24

Imvestment in subsidiaries carried at cost is not appearing as financial asset in the table above being investment in
subsidiaries and associates accounted under Ind AS 27, Separate Financial Statements and is hence scoped out
under Ind A5 109.

Accounting classification and fair value
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Fair value hierarchy
The zection explains the judgment and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financlal instruments
that are:

a) recognised and measured at fair value

b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standard:
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Fair value hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Level 1: This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This comprizes of investment
in mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds,
over-the-counter derlivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included In level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable market data, the instrument is included
i lewvel 3.

Fair valuation method

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

A Financial assets:
1 Loans, trade recelvables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and
other financial assets are short term and their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of their fair value.

B Financial liabilities:

1 Borrowings: The current borrowings which includes cash credit and overdraft facilities and working capital loan,
are classified and subseguently measured in the financial statements at amaortised cost. Considering that the
interest rate on the loan is reset on a monthly/quarterly basis, the carrying amount of the lean would be a
reasonable approximation of its fair value,

2 Trade payables and other financial liabilities: Fair values of trade payables and other financial liabilities are
measured at carrying value, as most of them are settled within a short period and so their fair values are
assumed to be almost equal to the carrying values,
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32. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

« Creditrisk
« Liguidity risk; and
« Market risk

The Company was incorporated on 10 February 2024 and core business of the Company acquired from Quess
Corp Lid{"Quess") which was operating as division of Quess till 31 March 2025, This Financial risk management is
extracted from Quess to the extent it s applicable till 31st March 2025. Subsequent to the perioed end, Board of
Directors of the Company approved its Risk Management policy.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors of the Company has owverall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company. through [ts training and management standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
thelr roles and obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how managemeant monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both reqular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the audit committee.

(i} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument falls to
meet its contractual abligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables (both billed and unbilled)
from customers, loans and other financial assets. The abjective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent
losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit guality of the counterparties, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. The carrying amount of financial asset represent the maximum
credit exposure.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances and bank deposits is limited as the Company
generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. Other
financial assets represent security deposits given to suppliers, lessors and others. Credit risk associated with such
deposits is relatively low. Loans are given to subsidiaries and associates and are tested for impairment where there
is an indicator.
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Trade receivables (including unbilled)

Trade receivables (including unbilled) are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue from customers
primarily located in IndiaThe Company has established a credit policy under which each customer is analysed
individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are
offered.

Expected credit loss assessment for customers are as follows:

The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivable (billed and
unbilied). The Company's customers are bifurcated into two groups - Government and Mon-Government customers.
For Nen-Government customers, the Company derives the loss rates based on historical credit loss experience,
which s adjusted for forward logking information over the expected collection period. Exposure to customers is
diversified and there is no single customer contributing mare than 10% of trade receivable billed and unbilled. For
government customers, given the insignificant credit risk, provision is recorded to reflect allowances for time value
based on historical pattern of collections. Further, specific provision is recorded for customer specific disputes.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables (including unbilled) is as follows:

{Amount In INR milllons)

e As at
articulars 21 March 2025

Balance as at 10 February 2024 195.50

Add: loss allowance recognised 179,41

Less; bad debts written off (58.60)

Balance as at the end of the financial year 316.31
i) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial labilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's appreach to
managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputation.

Management monitors rolling forecast of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the
basls of expected cash flows. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between cash ocutflow and inflow.
Usually, the excess of funds is invested in fized deposits and other financial Instruments. This is generally carried
out in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. The limits vary to take into account the liquidity of
the market in which the Company operates.



Financing arrangement
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabllities as at 31 March

2025, The amounts are gross and undiscounted contractual cash flows and includes contractual interest payments
and exclude netting arrangements.

As at 31 March 2025 (Amount in INRE millians)

Contractunl cash fows

Particulars Note
Carrying = .
Tt 01 years 1-2 years 2.5 vears B ywears and above
amount 4 2 yhe e e X

Borrewings 16 and 18 201.84 201.84

Trade payables 19 370 37130 = =

Lease liabiiities 3ich 2, 24020 947.34 735.99 BEE.48 9910
Other financial liabilities 20 1,91530 191510 - =

The Company has a strong focus on liguidity and maintains a robust cash position to ensure adequate cover for
responding to potential short-term market dislocation, Cash generated through operating activities remains the
primary source for liguidity along with undrawn borrowing facilities and levels of cash and cash equivalents.

iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all
market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and pavables and long term debt.
The objective of market risk management is o manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return,

a) Currency risk

The Company is nol significantly exposed to currency risk as the Company's functional currency in INR and
revenues and costs are primarily denominated in INR and therefore disclosures required under "ind AS 107 -
Financial Instruments: Disclosures” have not been given.

b} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company's borrowing comprises of working capital loan which carries
variable rate of interest.
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(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting pericd are as
follows:

(Amount In INR milllons)

‘ As at

Variable rate borrowings 20184

{b) Sensitivity

{tamount in INR milllons)

Paricaiars Profit and loss Equity, net of tax

1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Variable rate borrowings {2.02) 2.02 {1.51) 1.51

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liakility outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management persennel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates,




FY 2024 - 25

The Company's policy Is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Company monitors the return on capital as well
as the level of dividends on its equity shares. The Company's objective when managing caplital is to maintain an
optimal structure so as to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt” to 'equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as aggregate of borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company's policy Is to keep the ratlo below 2.00. The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio were as
follows:

famount in INR millions)

Particulars reat
31 March 2025
Gross debt 2.442.04
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 911.53
Adjusted net debt 1,530.51
Total equity 8,678.83
Met debt to equity ratio 018

34. Capital and other commitments
(amount in INR millians)

oy As at

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for el

Corporate guarantees given as security for loan availed by 118756

related parties (refer note 341 and 34.2) ek
1.315.87

341 The Company has given guarantees to banks for the loans availed by related parties to make good any default
made by its related parties in repayment to banks, Total loan availed and outstanding as at 31 March 2025 is INR
288.59 million,

34.2 Movement of corporate guarantees given to related parties during the current financial year are as follows:

(amount in INR millions)

; As at Given during | Expired during As at
Related parties
L 10 February 2024 the year the year 321 March 2025
MF¥change Holdings Inc. 1187.56 = & 1187.56
Total 1187.56 = = 118756
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35. Contingent Liabilities
tamaunt in INR millians)

' As at
FEticGars ‘ 31 March 2025
Provident fund {refer note 35.9)" 12766

137.66

‘Orders / notices were received in the name of Conneqgt Business Solutions Limited (formerly a subsidiary of Quess Corp
Limited, which was merged into Quess during the financial year 2023-24). Pursuant to the approved scheme of arrangement,
these matters will now be handied by the Company,

351 (i) The Company received a show cause notice ('notice”) dated 26 December 2022 under Section 14E and
Section 70 respectively of the Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act1952 ("EPF Act™), Act
for belated remittances of provident fund{PF) made during the period from 14 April 2018 to 26 December 2022
show causing as to why the damages and interest should not be levied amounting to INR 2875 million (including
damages of INR 1B.86 million and interest of INR 9.89 million}). The Company had time and again submitted letters/
responses to the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation highlighting the difficulties being faced by them as
regards the non-generation of the Universal Account Number(UAN)Y non-seeding of UAN with Aadhaar during
onboarding process of the new employees which caused the delay in the timely payment of the necessary
Provident Fund dues for the pericd 14 April 2018 to 26 December 2022,

The Company filed writ petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Telangana on 05 October 2023 & awaiting Court
proceedings to commence,

The Company has disclosed INR 2875 million as a contingent liability. The management is of the view that the
above claims shall be contested by the Company and no provision is required to be made at this stage, pending
outcome of the matter.

(il The Company has received an order dated 25 September 2023 from the Regional Provident Fund
Commissicner - Pune 1{RPFC) stating that the Company has paid allowances by way of 'conveyance' and ‘incentive’
generally to all employees but has excluded the same for computation of contributions under the EPF Act for the
period of September-15 to August-2022. Accordingly, PF dues on the aforesaid allowance's under section 74 has
been ordered by RPFC and directed to deposit an amount of INR, 86.90 million against the alleged PF remittances.
The Company's contention is that the incentive has been paid by the Company to its employees in accordance with
an incentive scheme which prescribes the rates at which it is earned by the employees on the basis of additional
targets achieved by them. The said incentive, therefore, would not qualify as basic wages in terms of the law laid
down in the authorities.

Company filed a writ petition with the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay challenging the order and seeking stay. The
honourabie High court dated 23 November 2023 granted a stay on order and directed that no coercive action
should be taken by the RPFC up to the next date of hearing.

Amount paid under protest Is INR 35.44 million till date.

The Company has disclosed INR 86.90 million as a contingent liability. The management is of the view that the
above claims shall be contested by the Company and no provision is reguired to be made at this stage, pending
outcome of the matter.
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i) During the previous years, the Company has received an order from the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner
(RPFC) stating that the Company has paid allowances by way of '‘conveyance' and ‘incentive’ generally to all
employees but has excluded the same for computation of contributions under the Act for the FY 2014-15.
Accordingly, PF dues on the aforesaid allowances u/s 74 of EFF Act has been ordered by RPFC and the Company
is directed to deposit an amount of INR. 22.01 million against the alleged PF remittances. The Company's
contention is that incentive has been paid by the Company to its employees in accordance with an incentive
scheme which prescribes the rates at which it is earned by the employees on the basis of additional targets
achieved by them. The said incentive, thergfore, would not qualify as basic wages in terms of the law laid down by
the authorities.

The Company has already fled writ petition in respect of simllar matter against RPFC Pune-l and outcame of the
matter is pending. The Company has disclosed INR 22.01 million as a contingent liability. Hence, the management is
of the view that the above claims shall be contested by the Company and no provision |s required to be made at
this stage, pending outcome of the matter.

36. Earnings per share
[Amount in INR millions except number of shares and per share data)

For the period year ended 10 February

Paiticifars 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)
Mominal value of equity shares (INR per share) 10.00
Profit after tax for the purpose of earnings per share {INR in million) 943.34
v p . ; .

Weughted average number of shares used in computing basic 148,620,544
eamings per share

Basic earnings per share (INR) 6.35
Weu_;!hmd average number of shares used in computing diluted 149751027
earnings pear share

Ciluted earnings per share (INR) 6.30
Effect of Fﬂlluwe commaon equivalent shares - share options 1130,483
outstanding

37. Related party disclosures

(i Name of related parties and description of relationship:

Entities having significant Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited
influence joint control” Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited
FFHL Group Ltd.
Fairfax (Barbados) International Corp.

Isaac Enterprises LLP {formerly known as "lsaac Enterprises
Private limited”)
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(i} Name of related parties and description of relationship:

Subsidiaries (including step Brainhunter Systems Limited
subsidiaries) Mindwire Systems Limited

MFXchange Holdings, Inc.

MFxchange US, Inc.

Alldigi Tech Limited (formerly known as “Allsec Technologies
Lirmited")

Alldigi Tech Inc, USA (formerly known as "“alisectech Inc.
Usan)

Allsectech Manila Inc. Philippines

Heptagon Technologies Private Limited

Cluess Corp (UISA) Inc.

Quess GTS Canada Holding Inc.

Entity controlled by promoters Careworks foundation

and promoters group Iris Realty LLP
Isaac Healthcare Services LLP
Fairbridge Capital Private Limited
Thomas Cook {India) Limited
Met Resources Investments Private Limited
HWIC Asia Fund Class & Shares
Bluspring Enterprises Limited
Vedang Cellular Services Private Limited
Monstercom (India) Private Limited
Monstercom.5G PTE Limited
Monstercom HEK Limited
Agensi Pekerjaan Monster Malaysia Sdn. Bhd
Trimax Smart Infraprojects Private Limited
Terrier Security Services (India) Private Limited
Agency Pekerjaan Quess Recruit SDN. BHD
Quess Corp Limited
Quess (Philippines) Corp.
Quesscorp Holdings Pte, Ltd
Cluessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Cluess Corp Lanka (Private) Limited

e_————= 1}
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(i} Name of related parties and description of relationship:

Entity controlled by promoters Quesscorp Singapore Pte Limited
atd pramaters group Cuess Corp Vietnam LLC

Excelus Learning Solutions Private Limited
Quess International Services Private Limited
Cluess Selection & Services Pte Limited
Cluess Malaysia Digital SDN. BHD.
Quesscorp Management Consultancies
Quesscorp Manpower Supply Services LLC
Billion Careers Private Limited

Guess Corp NA LLC

Stellarslog Technovation Private Limited
Cluess Recruit, Inc

Charitable trust for CSR activites Cluess Foundation
Key executive management personnel

Ajit Isaac Chairman

Gurmeet Singh Chahal Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director (w.ef. 1st April
: 2025}

Suraj Prasad Chief Financial Officer (w.ef st April 2025)

Meera)] Manchanda Company Secretary & Compliance Officerfw.e.f. 29 March

2025)

* As per SEB| {ICDR) Regulations, promoters and promoters groups are considered to be persons acting in concert, Further as
per SEBI Regulations "Persans acting in concert” are considered to exercise joint control over the Company
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(ii) Related party transactions during the year:

Mature of transaction

and relationship

Mame of related party

tAmount In INR millions)

For the period year ended 10
February 2024 to 31 March
2025 {Financial year)

Revenue from operations

Subsidiaries Alldigi Tech Limited 33.68
Brainhunter Systems Limited 1.40
MFXchange Holdings Inc, 40178
Heptagon Technologies Private Limited 23.85
Entity controlled by promoters Fairbridge Capital Private Limited 0.87
and promoter group Terrier Security Services (India) Private 144
Limiteq y
Monster.com (India) Private Limited 294
Billion Carriers Private Limited 364
Vedang Cellular Services Private Limited 2.87
Quesscorp Holdings Pie Limited,
7 T7.21
Singapore
Qdigi Services Limited 1.02
Other expenses
Subsidiaries MFXchange Holdings Inc, 4443
Alldigi Tech Limited 5.B7
Alldigi Tech Limited® 18.35)
Entity controlled by promoters Guessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 2.48
and promater group Quesscorp Lanka Private Limited 0.22
Ti.arr_u-'_rr Security Services (India) Private 28 65
Limitexd
Monstercom (India) Private Limited 0.65
Quesscorp Manpower Supply Services 55196
LLC
Billion Carriers Private Limited Q.66
Dividend income on investments
Subsidiaries Alldigi Tech Limited 503.23

Powial Repart 200 2020 ‘_E |
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Investments made and sale of equity instruments and convertible debentures of related parties refer note 5.1
Guarantees provided to banks on behalf of related parties refer note 34.2
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss on receivables from related parties refer note 91

{iiiy Balance receivable from and payable to related parties as at the reporting date:
{Amount in INR millions)

MNature of balance and As at
relationship 31 March 2025

Mame of related party

Trade receivables - billed (gross of loss allowance)

Alldigi Tech Limited 27.86
Subsidiaries MFXchange Heoldings, Inc. 300.04
Heptagon Technologies Private Limited 18.56
Fairbridge capital private limited 01a
Terrier Security Services (India) Private
'‘Entity controlled by promaters Limrilted Y I (B Fri 0.02
and promoter group
Monstercom (India) Private Limited 7653
Billion Carriers Private Limited 6.49
Trade receivables - unbilled {gross of loss allowance)
Subsidiaries MFXchange Holdings, Inc. 25.68
Alldigi Tech Limited 0.47
Entity controlled by promoters Falrbridge Capital Private Limited -
and promoter group
Trade payables
Brainhunter Systems Limited 1.09
Subsidiaries
MFx¥change Holdings, Inc, 32.44
Alldigi Tech Limited 195
I i : : A
Entity controlled by promoters Sluessgiobes IMolaysiay SOn. R e
and promoter group Terrier Security Services (India) Private Limited 10.49
Quesscorp Manpower Supply Services LLC 9.34
Other current financial liabilities (provision for expenses)
Subsidiaries MFXchange Heldings, Inc. 16.35
Alldigi Tech Limited 010

Piweal Repart 200 -20Rp ‘_E |



statements  diC)itide

FY 2024 - 25

Terrier Security Services (India) Private

Limited 248
i Il ; T
Entity sontrolied. by promoters Guuesscorp Lanka Private Limited 0.09
and promoter group
Cluesscorp Manpower Supply Services
199
LLT
Other current financial liabilities (Amount payable to related parites)
Subsidiaries Bralnhunter Systems Limited 4.05
{iv) Guarantees outstanding refer note 34.2

(v} Compensation of key managerial personnel® ; o
tAmount in INR millions)

Particulars Faor the period year ended 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Salaries and other employes benefits to whole-time directors and

24
executive officers 203

*Managerial remuneration does not include cost of employee benefits such as gratuity and compensated absences since
proavision for these are based on valuation carried out for the Company as a whole

{vi) Loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties: refer note 6.2

Mote : Transactions between the Remaining Undertakings of Quess Corp Limited, Demerged Undertakings 1
{Digitide Solutions Limited) and 2 (Bluspring Enterprises Limited), which were transferred pursuant to the demerger,
have not been disclosed as related party transactions, as these transactions eccurred within the same legal entity
prior to the effective date of the business combination.

Quess Corp Limited was hoelding 100% equity in the Demerged undertaking 1 (Digitide Solutions Limited) and hence
considered a holding Company of the Demerged undertaking 1 (Digitide Solutions Limited)

38. Assets and liabllities relating to employee benefits (Amount in INR millions)

Particulars il
ars 31 March 2025

Met defined benefit liability, gratuity plan 27375
Liability for compensated absences 92.53
Total employee benefit liability 366.28
Current (refer note 21) 9253
Mon-current” (refer note 17) 27375

366.28

For details about the related employee benefits expense, refer note 26.

‘The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act1972. It entitles
an employee, whao has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days
wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last
drawn by the employee concerned,

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and

market (investment) risk.

=
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The Company's gratuity scheme for core and associates employees is administered through a third party manager.
The funding requirements are based on the gratuity funds actuarial measurement framework set out in the funding
policies of the plan. The funding is based on @ separate actuarial valuation for funding purpose for which
assumptions are same as set out below. Employees do not contribute to the plan. The Company has determined
that, in accordance with the terms and conditions of gratuity plan, and in accordance with statutory requirements
(including minimum funding requirements} of the plan, the present value of refund or reduction in future
contributions is not lower than the balance of the total fair value of the plan assets less the total present value of
obligations.

The Company expects to pay INR 293.52 millien contributions to its defined benefit plans in FY 2025-26.

B. Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability/assets

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined
benefit llability/ assets and its components:

{Amount In INR millions)

Particulars As ot
31 March 2025

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Obligation at the beginning of the year” 2

Additions due to Scheme of Arrangement 326.05
Current service cost 70.02
Interest cost 2730

Past service cost

Benefits settled (46.69)
Actuarial ([gains) lasses recognised in other comprehensive incoms -

- Changes in experience adjustments {9.21)
- Changes in demographic assumptions 1.97
- Changes in financial assumptions 32.50
Transfer in

Obligation at the end of the year 401.94

Reconciliation of present value of plan assets

Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value® 116.49

Additions due to Scheme of Arrangement

Interest income on plan assets 936
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income (2.43)
Contributions 51.46
Benefits settled (46.69)
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value 128.19
Met defined benefit liability 27375

‘Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement. (Refer note 40)

=
)

Annual Report 2024 -2025




FY 2024 - 25
C. (i) Expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss
tAmount in INR millions)

Particulars A Al
> 31 March 2025

Current service cost 70.02
Interest cost 27.20
Interest income (9.36)
Met gratuity cost 87.96

{ii) Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income
tamaunt in INR millions)

‘ As at
Particulars 31 March 2025

Re-measurement of the net defined benafit liability 25.26
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit asset 2.43
27.69

D. Plan assets
fAmount in INR millions)

o As at
Particulars 31 March 2025

Funds managed by insurer 12819
12819

E. Defined benefit obligation - actuarial assumptions
{tAmaount in INR millions)

; As at

Discount rate 6.40% to 6.59%
Future salary growth 6.00 % to 9.00%
Attrition rate 12.50% to 80.00%

Average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) 1to 17 Years
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Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, the defined benefit obligation would be as shown below,

Core employees

tAmaunt in INR millions)

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars
Decrease Increase
Discount rate (1% movement) 32131 212.54
Future salary growth (1% movement) 21283 31967
Attrition rate (10% movement) 27453 250.06

Associate employees
tamount In INR millions)

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars
Decrease Increase

Discount rate (1% movement) 3.58 349
Future salary growth {1% movement) 3.49 3.58
Attrition rate (10% movement) 3.83 3.32

39. Share-based payments
A. Description of share based payment arrangement

At 31 March 2025, the Company has the following share-based payment arrangements:

Special Purpose Stock Option Plan 2025 {equity settled)

As per the Compaosite Scheme of Arrangement, the unvested Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) granted to transferred
employees (who were transferred as part of business undertaking from Quess Corp Limited), shall stands cancelled
on the Effective Date of the Composite Scheme and in lieu thereof and as per terms of the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement, the Company will grant new RSUs to eligible transferred employes, subject to falr value adjustments.
Subsequent to 31 March 2025, the Company has adopted a Special Purpose Stock Ownership Plan 2025 ("Special
SOP 2025), based on the principles of the Quess Stock Ownership Plan 2020 ("QSOP 2020") of Quess Corp
Limited {Demerged Company’) on terms and conditions no less favorable than those provided under the QS0P
2020, to create, offer, issue and allot upto 26 68102 restricted stock units to eligible transferred employees.

Accordingly, Quess Corp Limited has transferred the opening ESOP Reserve (Stock options outstanding account),
relating to the cancelled RSUs of these employees to the Company. Further, ESOP expenses In respect of these
employees pertaining to QS0P 2020 Scheme, has been apportioned on a reasonable basis between the Company,
Quess Corp Limited and Bluspring Enterprises Limited (Resulting Company -2).

=
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Special purpose stock option plan 2025

The fair value of Employee Stock Options has been measured using Black Scholes Model of pricing.
The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-

settled share based payment plans are as follows:

Weighted average share price at grant date (INR)* 126.98
Exercise price (INR) 10.00
Risk free rate of Interest (adjusted for dividend yield) 498%-737%
Expected volafility# 30.00% -39.00%
Expected life of the option 4 - 9 years
12795

Weighted average fair value at grant date (INR)®

“Adjusted based on the valuation of Quess Corp Limited, Digitide Solutions Limited, and Bluspring Enterprises, as carmied oul by
external valuer pursuant to tha Scheme of Arrangement, with reference to the valuation report dated 16 April 2025,

# The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility of Quess Corp limited (based on the remaining life of the
options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly avallable Iinformation.

MNa options have expired during the current year and previous year.
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The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans were as follows:

Special purpose stock option plan 2025

For the financial year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars MNumber of share Weighted average
options exercise price
Balance as at 10 February 2024* 36752 10.00
Add: Granted during the financial year 767996 10.00
Less; Exercised during the year -
Less: Exarcised during the financial year (117.876) 10.00
Less: Lapsed/ forfeited during the financial year (218,808) 10.00
Add: Due to fair value adjustment on account of 1,869,269 10.00
Scheme of Arrangement#
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2668102 10.00
Options vested and exercisable as at the end of year 16,353

‘Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arangement. (Refer note 40)

# Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and subseguent to 31 March 2025, the Company determined an RSLU entitiement
ratio of 3,34 new RSUs for every RSU cancelled in Quess Corp Limited. This entittement ratio is based on a valuation assessment
carrled out by the external valuer.

The options outstanding as at 31 March 2025 have an exercise price of INR 10,00 and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 474 years

D. Expense recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss

For details about the related employee benefits expense, refer note 26.

40. Composite scheme of arrangement between Quess Corp Limited {"Demerged Company”), Digitide Solutions
Limited {*Resulting Company 1") and Bluspring Enterprises Limited ("Resulting Company 2") and their respective
shareholders and creditors:

The Company received a cerified true copy of the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bengaluru Bench
(“NCLT") order dated 17 March 2025, approving the Scheme of Arrangement between Guess Corp Limited
("Demerged Company”), Digitide Solutions Limited ("Resulting Company 1°/"the Company), Bluspring Enterprises
Limited (“Resulting Company 27, and their respective shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme of Arrangement’), with
an appointed date of 1 April 2024, The certified true copy of the Order was filed with the Registrar of Companies on
31 March 2025 (the “Effective Date”), The Company considered the receipt of NCLT approval as an adjusting event
and accounted for it in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations”,

=
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Pursuant to the approval of the Scheme, the Company recorded the assets (including its related investments in
subsidiaries) and liabilities pertaining to Transferred Businesses 1 (as defined in Scheme of Arrangement) at their
carrying values appearing in the books of accounts of Quess Corp Limited, retrospectively from the appointed date.
Conseguently, the difference between the face value of new eguity shares required to be issued (net of existing
share capital) and the net assets of Transferred Businesses 1 has been credited to Capital Reserve.

In accordance with the Scheme, till the Effective Date, Demerged Company carried out the activities of Transferred
Businesses 1in trust for the Company. These Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared
as of and for the period from 10 February 2024, (Date of Incorporation) to 31 March 2025, in accordance with
Appendix C to Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations” by using the financial information maintained by the Demerged
Company. Common expenses incurred by Demerged Company were apporticned to the Company based on
reasonable basis,

Major class of assets and liabilities transferred to the Company are presented below : ) .
tAmount in INR millions)

Assets

Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-prograss 1,237.99
Right-of-use assets 2,542 54
Goodwill 660.05
Intangible assets 83.65
Mon-current investments 3,895.97
Mon-current assets 879.69
Trade receivables 3.818.09
Cash and cash equivalents T718.67
Deferred tax assets 27163
Current assets 37375
Total assets (A) 14,542.03
Liabilities

Lease Liabilities 281014
Borrowings 845.88
Prowvisions 294.42
Trade payables 155.60
Cther liabilities 2,58762
Total liabilities (B) 6,693.66
Excess of assets over liabilities (C)= (A)-(B) 7,848.37
Equity shares to be issued (D) 1,489.49
ESOP reserve (E) 117.03
Capital reserve on account of Business combination (Fj=(C)-(D}-(E) 6.241.85
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41. In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating segments, segment Information has been provided In the
consclidated financial statements of the Company and no separate disclosure on segment information is given in
these standalone financial statements.

42. Ratios

The fellowing are analytical ratios for the financial year ended 31 March 2025

Current ratio Currant assets Current liabdlities Mumber

Crebt-equity ratio Total Debt® Sharehoider's aquity % 2B14%

Debt service caverage ratio Earnings available for Debt Service” Mumber 283
debt sendice (EFDS)

Return on equity ratic Met profits after taxes Shareholder's equity % 10.87%

Trade receivablas tumower ratio . Revenue from operations Trade receivable Mumber 521

Trade payables turnowver ratio Purchases and adjusted Trade payables Mumber 6.94
ather expenses

Met capltal turnover ratio Revenue from aperations Met working capital Mumber 12.09

et profit ratio Met profits alter taxes Rewvenue from operations k- 4. 56%

Return on capital employed Earning before interest and Capital employed™* 5 15.80%

Return on investment

taxes

Mot Applicable

* Debt represents borrowings and lease liabllities

Mot Applicable

EFDS= Met Profit After taxes + Mon cash operating expenses like depreciation and Other amaortizations + Interest +
other adjustment like profit/{loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

“Principal repayments and lease payments for the current year

" Net worth + Borrowlngs + Lease llabilities - Goodwill - Intangible assets under development - Other Intangible
assets - Deferred tax assets

43, Transactions with the struck off Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 as follows:

Mature of transaction Relationship with

struck off Company

Balance outstanding

Mame of the struck off Company as at 31 March 2028
3 Li L

with struck off Company

Customer

Sales s

Digital Convergence Technologies Pune

*less than INR 1 million
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44, No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
{“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend
or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received
any fund from any party (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

45, The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoever by or aon
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

46. As per the MCA natification dated August 05, 2022, the Central Government has notified the Companies
{Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022. As per the amended rules, Companies are required to maintain back-
up of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and papers’ (books of account’) in electronic mode that
should be accessible in India at all times. Also, the Companies are required to create backup of accounts on
servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

The books of account of the Company are maintained in electronic mode on servers physically located in India and
are readily accessible in India at all times. The Company is maintaining backup of books of account on a daily basis,
except for one application where the Company has maintained the backup on weekly basis,

47. The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature for
recording an audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software, except that:

« In respect of one accounting software, audit trail feature was not enabled at certain tables and database level to
log any direct data changes.

« In respect of another accounting software, for maintaining the books of account in respect of Revenue processes,
audit trail feature was not enabled.

« The Company has used two other accounting softwares, which is operated by a third-party software provider, for
maintaining the books of account in relating to financial reporting and payroll processes. There is no reporting on
audit trail in the System and Organisation Controls (SOC 1) Type 2 Report of third party service provider.

Further, except for the instances noted abowve, wherein audit trail feauture was not enabled, there were no
instances where audit trail feature was beling tampered with in respect of the accounting softwares for which the
aldit trail feature was operating.



48. The Code on Social Security, 2020 ((Code") refating to employee benefits during employment and post-
employment benefits received Presidential assent In September 2020. The Code has been published in the
Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come inte effect has not been notified. The Company

will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the
Code becomes effective.

49, Other Disclosure

491 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Other lender.

49.2 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

49.3 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

50. These standalone financial statements have been prepared as of, and for the period from, 10 February 2024
(the date of incorporation) to 31 March 2025, Accordingly, no comparative figures have been presentad,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members Of Digitide Solutions
Report On The Audit Of The
Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinien

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Digitide Solutions Limited (the
“Parent”) and its subsidiaries (the Parent and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “Group'), which
comprise the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2025, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Incame), the
Consolidated  Statement of Cash Flows and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the
period 10 February 2024 (‘Date of Incorporation’) to 31
March 2025 (‘Financial year’) notes to the financial
statements, material

including a summary of

accounting policies and other explanatory information.,

In gur opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors
on separate/consolidated financial statements referred
to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
confarmity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (*ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 March 2025, and their consolidated Profit,
their consclidated total comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and their consolidated
changes in equity for the for the financial year ended
31 March 2025 (hereinafter referred to as “the
consclidated financial statements”),

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on

Ee————
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Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143 (10) of the
Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are Independent of the Group In
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
staternents under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the consclidated financial
statements.
Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements in respect of Composite Scheme
Arrangement amongst Digitide Solutions  Limited
(“Resultant Company 1" /Mthe Company"), Bluspring
Enterprises Limited ("Resultant Company 2")and
Quess Corp Limited ("Demerged Company”} and thair
respective shareholders and creditors ("the Schame”),
from the appointed date of 1 April 2024, as approved
by the Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal,
Bengaluru Bench by an Order dated 17 March 2025.
Conseguently, upen the Scheme becoming effective,
the consclidated financial statements have been
prepared after giving effect to the aforesaid
acquisition of the Transferred Businesses 1 from the
date of incorporation of the Company (i.e, 10 February
2024),

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current
period. This matter was addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

i =
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matter 1o be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition:

The Group enters into farge number of contracts with its
customers with wvarying commercial terms and revenues
from such contract is recognized and measured based on
efforts incurred or unit of work delivered multiplied by
agreed rate in the contract with customers.

The Group's Invoicing cycle [ on  contractual
determined dates and recognized as recelvables based on
customer acceptances for efforts or delivery of work.
Revenue for the post billing period 5 recognized as
unbilled Unbilied
subseqguent to the financlal year-end based on customer
acceplances,

pre-

revenues. revenues are  invoiced

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter
since:

«There are significant efforts required to ensure that
revenue is recorded based on contractual terms which are
legally enforceable,
acknowledged by customer.

and work delivered s duly

<At financial year end, significant amount of unbilled
revenue related to these contracts are recognised on the
balance sheet.

Refer Note 220 and 28 to the consclidated financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the other The other
comprises the Board's report, Annexures to the
Board's Report, Management
analysis, and Repart on Corporate Governance but
does

infarmation. information

discussion and

not  include  the consolidated financial

statements, standalone financial statements and
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Auditor's Response

Principal audit procedures performed:

Qur audit approach was a combination of test of
controls and substantive procedures which included
amongst others the following:

- Tested the effectiveness of controls relating to
accuracy and occurrence of revenue and unhbilled
revenus,

» Far a sample of contracts,

- tested revenue recognition by agreeing kKey terms
used for recording revenues with terms in the signed
cantracts and confirmation received from customers
for efforts incurred or units of work delivered.

- tested unbilled revenues with subsequent invoicing
based on customer acceptances or internal records,
if customer acceptances are not available,

our auditor’s report thereon. These are expected to be
made avallable to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

financial

« Qur  opinion the consolidated

statements does not cover the other information

on

and and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
« In connection with our audit of the consolidated

financial statements, our responsibility is to read
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the other information, Iidentified abowve when it
becomes available, compare with the financial

statements of the subsidiaries, audited by the other
auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and,
in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other
auditors and consider whether the other information Is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the
otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. Other information so far as it
relates to the subsidiaries, is traced from their financial
statements audited by the other auditors,

course of our audit or

« When we read the Board's report and Annexures
to the Board's Report. Management discussion and
analysis, and Report on Corporate Governance, if
we conclude that there s a materlal misstatemeant
therein, we are
matter to those charged with governance as
required SA 720 'The  Auditor's
respons/bilities Relating to Other Information’.

required to communicate the

under

Responsibilities of Management and Board of
Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent's Board of Directars is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and falr view of
the
financial performance including other comprehensive
Income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of

consolidated  financial  poesition, consolidated

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial contrals, that were operating effectively
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for ensuring the accuracy and completensss of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of

the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for
assessing the ability of the respective entities to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective
Board of Directors either intend to liguidate thelr
respective entities or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respectlve Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit
Consolidated Financial Statements

of the

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report  that
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

includes  our  opinion. Reasonable

are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
professional  judgment
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

axercise and  maintain
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« |ldentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether cue to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatemeant
resufting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of iInternal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial
controls relevant to the audit in order to design
gudit procedures that are appropriate In the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Parent has adequate internal
financial contrels with reference to consolidated
financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
repart to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, f such
disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going cancern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements.

==,
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including the disclosures, and whether the
consclidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain  sufficient appropriate audit  evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consclidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements
of such or entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors, For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by the other auditors, such other auditors
remain respansible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain salely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
cansolidated financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced.
We consider guantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with
governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal financial
controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought
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to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance In the audit of the
consclidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements /
financial information of 7 subsidiaries, whose
financial statementsfinancial information reflect
total assets of INR 430232 millien as at 31
March 2025, total revenues of INR 11,717.46 and
net cash inflows of INR 493,97 million for the

year ended 31 March 2025, as

considered in  the consolidated

Statements. This financial statements/ financial

financial

financial

information have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion an the
consolidated financial statement, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report
in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of
the other auditors.

b. We did not audit the financial statements /
financial information of 2 subsidiaries, whose
financial information reflect total assets of INR
22933 million as at 31 March 2025, total

INR 257 million and net cash

inflows of INR Q.46 million for the financial year

ended 31 March 2025, as considered in the

revenues of

Ee————
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consolldated  financial statements. These financial
statements/financial information are unaudited and
have been furnished to us by the Management and
aur opinion an the consclidated financial statements,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries is based
solely an such unaudited financial statements/financial
information. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the
these financial statements/ financial

information are not material to the Group.

Management,

c. The consolidated financial statements include the
financial information of the Transferred Businesses 1 of
Quess Corp Limited (Refer note 46 of the consolidated
financial statements) for the period 10 February 2024
ta 31 March 2024, This financial information of the
Transferred Businesses 1 for the period 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2024 has been extracted by the
Management from the financial information of Quess
Corp Limited for the financial year ended 31 March
2024, which were audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the
above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements/financial information certified by
the Management,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on the separate financial
statements of subsidiaries, referred to in the Other
Matters section above we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the
statements,

aforesaid consolidated  financial

i =
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. In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consclidated financial statements have been kept by
the Group, including relevant records so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, returns
and the reports of the other auditors, except (a) for not
keeping backup on a daily basis of such books of
account maintained in electronic mode in a server
physically located In India by the Parent Company
[refer MNote 49 to the consolidated financial
statements) and not complying with the requirements
of audit trail as stated in (1)) below.

c. The Conzolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss Including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolldated financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the AcL

& 0On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Parent as on 31 March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the reports of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies, incorporated In India is disgualified
as on 31 March, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act

f. The modifications relating to the maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewith, are
as stated in paragraph (b) above.

g. With respect to the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A" which is based on the auditors' reports

=
)
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of the Parent and subsidiary companies, incorporated
in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
an the adeguacy and operating effectiveness of
internal reference io

financial controls  with

consolidated financial statements of those companies.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
reguirements of section 197(16) of the Act as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the auditor's reports of subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India, the remuneration
paid by the Parent and such subsidiary companies. to
their directors during the year Is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

i. With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auvditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i} The consolidated financial statements disclose the
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group - Refer Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ii) The Group did not have any material foreseeable
losses on long-term contracts including derlvative
contracts.

ili) There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies,
incarporated in India.

iv) (a) The respective Managements of the Parent
and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorparated
in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us and to the other
auditors of such subsidiaries, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
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heen advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Parent Company or
any of such subsidiaries, to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities ("Intermeadiaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Inmtermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Parent or any of such subsidiaries, (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries,

(b)) The respective Managements of the Parent and its
subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in
India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us and to the other
auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the
best of their knowledge and bellef, as disclosed In the
note 48 to the conscolidated financial statements, no
funds have been received by the Parent Company or
any of such subsidiaries, from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in  writing or
otherwise, that the Parent Company or any of such
subsidiaries, shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behall of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

c] Based on the audit procedures performed that have
been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by
the auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act. nothing has come to our
or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 1ie), as provided
under f{a) and (b} abowve, contain any material
misstatement,

=
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v) The final dividend proposed in the previous year
and the interim dividend declared and paid by its
subsidiary which s incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act,
where applicable, during the year is in accordance
with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test
checks and that performed by the respective auditors
of the subsidiary companies and based on the other
report of Its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have

auditor’s

been audited under the Act, the Parent and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India have used
accounting softwares for maintaining their respective
books of account for the financial year ended 31 March
2025, which have a feature of recording audit trail
ledit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the wear for all relevant transactions
recorded in the accounting softwares, except for the
instances mentioned below (Refer note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements):

« In respect of one accounting software used by the
Parent and its one subsidiary company, audit trail
feature was not enabled at certain tables and
database level to log any direct data changes.

« In respect of anaother accounting software used by
the Parent, for maintaining the books of account in
respect of revenue processes, audit trail feature
was not enabled.

« The Parent has used two other accounting
softwares, which is operated by a third-party
software provider, for maintaining the books of
account relating to financial reporting and payroll
processes. In the absence of coverage of audit trail
requirement at database level in the System and
Crganisation Caontrols (SOC 1) Type 2 Report, we
are unable to comment on whether audit trail
feature of the said softwares was enabled at the
database level and operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the
softwares.
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Further, except for the instances noted above wherein we are unable to comment on the feature of audit trail, during
the course of ocur audit and based on the other auditor’s report of its subsidiary companies incorporated In India
whose filnancial statements have been audited under the Act, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting softwares for the period far which the audit trail feature was
operating.

Additionally, reporting under Rulel{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, relating to the preservation

of audit trail as per statutory record retention reguirement, is not applicable, as these are the first financial statements
of the Company.

Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated, has been preserved by the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India as per the statutory reguirements for record retention.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO"/ “the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(1) of the Act,
accarding to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the
auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting under CARO
is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that there are no gualifications or
adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said respective companies included in the
consclidated financial statements except far the following:

Clause Number of CARDO

Mame of the company CIN Mature of relationship report with qualification

or adverse remark

Digitide Solutions Limited ~ UE2099KA2024PLC184626 Parent Clause 3{i)ic), Clause 3{vii}ib)

Heptagon Technologies U72200TZ2015PTCO21609  Subsidiary Clause 3{viijya)
Private Limited

Place: Bengaluru For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Date: 26 June 2025 Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.00OB0725)

Gurvinder Singh

Partner

Membership No. 110128
UDIN: 251M0128EMHZVIS388

Poweal Reoart 2021 2020 ‘_E-
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ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph (g) under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Reguirements' section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the conseclidated Ind
AS financial statements of the Company as at and for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Digitide Solutions
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”) and its

subsidiary  companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.
Management's and Board of Directors'

Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's management and Board of
Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by the respective Companies cansidering
the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Ower Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute  of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)"
include  the  design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal

These  responsibilities

financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective
company's palicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting

Report On
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records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
infermation, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
internal  financial contrels  with  reference  to
consolidated financial statements of the Parent, which
are companies incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Ower Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued
by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed
under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls  with reference to consolidated  financial
statements, Those Standards and the Guidance MNote
require that we comply with ethical reguirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements was established and maintained and if
such contrals operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference
to consclidated financial statements  included
abtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectivenass of internal control
based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have ocbtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
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of the subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated In Indig, in terms of their reports referred
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on  the
reference to consolidated financial statements of the
Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India.

internal  financial controls  with

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements

A company's Internal financial control with reference to
consolidated  financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reperting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes In
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
receipts  and
expenditures of the company are being made only in

accounting  principles, and  that

accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls  with reference to consclidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected.

Report On
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Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to
consolldated financial statements were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference fto
consolidated financial statements established by the
respective  companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ower
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143{3){i} of the Act
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal
consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates
to two subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, Is based solely on the
corresponding  reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not
modified In respect of the above matter.

financial controls  with  reference to

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No.QDBOT72S)
Gurvinder Singh
Partner

Membership No. 110128

UDIN: 25110128BMHZVIS388

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 26 June 2025
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Particulars 31 March
Aanets
Mon-Current Assets
Property, plont and equpment 3 ja| LGETO2E
Right-alaee asgets Fibh 280956
Capiinl wores-pragress 3 ja| 6348
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Chter intangile assety 5 42791
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Fnancial assots
Investments ] 1547
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Financial iablities
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Trsde peyables k1 Ta146
Lewrsin Emhlifies ey 1,004, 34
Otter firsmcinl hiahilities 24 29406
Incame 1 Habiites net) 25 NI 76
Praiend 26 1E55
Ottyer current linkilities a7 58318
Tokal currani Haklliises B.T4E. 30
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Consolidated Statement of Frofit and Los (Amount in INR millions, except per share data)

For the pariod year anded 40 Fobruary 2024 1o

Particutars 31 March 2025 |Fna

Income

Raverie Trian et 2B IZRETIT
Diker income 20 19226
Total ncoumss 32.873.53
Expenaes

Croed of madesinl nred shores ard spene parks corsumesd M 1426
Empioyee benefits expease a 23182 67
Firemee costs Crd 48356
Dhspreceation nrd emorisobon sxpense 33 230775
Oiher evpensay a AT8Z 38
Total wxperiss F0650.52
Profit befare tax and extepiional beins 42280
Excephonal jbema loms ag 27E39
Profit before tax 1,980.22
Tan {expensahicredi

Crent bax B GEETE)
Income 1aa relaing io sarller yeas B T
D livesd Eai B &8
Tokal fax axporiss {572.749)
Prefit far the Minancial yaar 13ATT4E

Dither comprebensive Incemel (loas)
Nesme 1hal will fot Be reclassifiad subasgeenthy o peilil o loss

Re-msasuremen odses o defired Bersnl plars A {5354

I Loy hedaling Lo e (hal will nol be reclassified o profil of o B 02
i Al will B reclassifed subsaquent®y 1o pirofit oF loas

Fargign exchange dif@rancas on fransiating Snanciy statemems of Toraign ocpemtans 0.3
Dither comprebensive loss for the financial year, (net of Incame tax) amn
Totnl comprehansive income for the financial year 138159
Profin attributalls 1o
Diwansirs of the Compary 115577
Fear-gangralling inteesis i) 231N
Total prodit for the linancial year 13T74E
Othr comprahansive itcome atiribulabe o
Diwansirs of the Tompary =00
man-cangralling inferests w [1ag
Tetal ether comprehansiea incams for the Anancial paas an
Total compratlnive § tribatatle to -
Dhwansirs of the Tompary 177
reareganiralling inteests Haaz
Total comprahsnive incame Tar the Ananclal year 1.3E1.58
Earnings per eguity share (face value of INF 10,00 each)
Basic [in ) M T
Celuied gin INR] M T
Wabkghtad avarage edully shares ised in compubing earnings per squily share
Basic H HESIN SIS
Ddinad a1 WaISL0FT
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Digitide Solutions Limited

An por aur report of aven data attachad
for Dedoltte Haskins & Seils
Chartored Accaurtants

Firm's Registration ha: ODBOTIS Ajit lsaac Guaremweat Singh Chakal

Chairman Chigf Exevuthve Dicer
Gurvinder Singh DIk 00873 ari Exacutive Direciod
Partnes Place: Bargaluru Placa: Mow Jemsey
Membership Mo 0125 Dlate: 76 June 2025 Date: 26 June 2028
Plesa; Bengahing (LT e )

Dt 26 June 2025

Surnj Prasad Moo Manchanda
Chial Fmancial Oficar Company Sooretary

Faca: Bongaiun Momberchip Mo&CS. 20080

Dadec 26 Jing 2005

Place: Bengaiimn
Dete: 26 bune 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Cach flow {Amount in INR millions

For ihe: period year en W0 Februany 2024

Particutars
= |r mancinl year]

Cash flows from operating acthetios

Prafit far tha financiol year 137748
Adjustments to reconcile pet profit to net cash provided by operating activities:

Tax i s 57276
Intérest on income tax rahunds (2186)

Excepbonal |bema

(e 0 Bake of Dusiness division mel of ranssction cost MEZ.80
- Gan on sake of custaman ceniicts [N ]]
» Demerges related esperme 3a.90
= i pairmen] o olfssr aoheanoes &l ek jecessaties 162,27
Intarest incamss on tamm deaposis [L=lakn]]
Profit on ssle of property, plant and eguipment, ret feala]
Ermphiy-ae S0k aprticn Const GiTE
Firance casis 443256
D precention nnd emortisabon espense 2 3075
P el & ksl asses-FYTRL 3307
Espectad crad® allovwanco an Bnancial assets H238
Forelgn exchange gamn, ne (2099
Operating profit before working capital chonges AT
Chanpes in eperating assets and FabiSties
Changes in ftrade recebaables and unbibed revane IERLE3)
Changes in loars, other financial nsets and otfer assets 3F344
Changes in trade pedables nzaz
Charges in ather financial babilities, oibar danilges ard provisians 7350
Cash generated from operations. 41588
Ineaims lia paid, et 431.45)
Mot cosh flows from operating activities (A} 3p04.43

Cash flows trom Fvesilng acthdthas

Esperifture on prapery, alam ard equipmen dand inmargibles ray44a)

Proceeds from sale af property plant and equpment ITaE

Imyesrmens in mugual fund R&637
Processs from sale of divEion of 8 sebsdiary 22720
Prscamsand of bank deposils fanat
Intarest recakead on teamn Saposhs =n
Met cash used in investing activities (@) (B86.45)

Cash flows from financing activities

Rapayment af wirking ol [nan EEET
Processs from loag term borowngs 2319
Roporyment af loass liabiibies [aT
Pargrnent af disid éod in acn-contaling indedest of subsidiang AB044]
Inte=resi paid FE9S)
Mat cash used in financing acthdties [T} (2.5094.68)
Mar inoreasaideciease) in s and cash aguivalens (Aa+e) H3.30
Cash and cash eguivalents ranafered due (o 2chiemnme of srangemenl 169247
Effect of exchange raba Aucisstions amcnsh and cash agubalenls k]
Cash and cash equvalerts at the &nd of tha financial year refer note 12) 1,B35.56
Components of cash and cash equivalents {refer note 12) tAmount in INR millions)
Particulars Az at 31 March 3028

Cash and cash egubvalents
CaEn in andg (W +]

Balarces with barks

In et aooalls 1812
In EEFL sccaiais #4.34
Cash and cash equivalents as per cansolidated balance sheeol LIS EG
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Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Particulars Borrowings

Debt as at 10 February 2024 = 1,251.65
Interest and borrowing cost 7895
Repayment of working capital foan (654.71)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 3319
Interest and other borrewing cost paid {78.95)
Debt as at 21 March 2025 63012

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement. (Refer note 45)

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Digitide Solutions Limited
Firm's Registration No: 00B0725

Ajit Isaac Gurmeet Singh Chahal
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Gurvinder Singh DIN: 00087168 and Executive Director
Partner
. DIMN: 10997857
Membership No.: 110128 FisGE Hengalue
Date: 26 June 2025 Place: New Jersey

Place; Bengaluru

Date: 26 June 2025
Date: 26 June 2025

Suraj Prasad Meeraj Manchanda

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Membership Mo:ACS-20060
Date: 26 June 2025 Place: Bengaluru

Date: 26 June 2025

Poweal Reoart 2021 2020 ‘_E |
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Consolidated Statement (Amount in INR millions)

Hemi al othei

hers &

ictery of He

Balance as at 10
Fabruany 2024 - . - . -

Reserye o
RS HLETES

LAl

\SELAD)  (HTET 14132 . - THIET {30465 B2 T6EE62 Fpa gy

ACOtans an
nceourd of Scheme 45 i ~ 6.I4185 ~ - RFATE E = 535853 FAGEGR
! Arangemeni

Prafit for the the

firancial yea wssT? - = 3 = : WesT7 2 137748

Le=s : Profit for the (298,58 £ x £3.35 - naz 0161 |30 BT}
et balang
nppaintad date

{¥rh Februney

T02% o 3 March

S04 Included In
cuprial resesve

Equety shiare capital | o - - .
I e cancedled & L w10} daa
PRIrEANG T0 e

scheme

Panding alicimant 77 L | 45949 148543
of shares pursuanl
1o ihe Scharsa

Chner E . - . . . 5073 a4 73 G0 o ER Ll
comprehenshe
Incosme {net af Eaxl

Tatal

comprehensie BSTFS - 5 : 3.35) 5073 (44,91 2.34555 219,82 256037
iy (hoah

Payment af a1 . P . . a . F B2 4% 13 44

didend to non-
centroding infaresrs

Sharo basod IH End -
penynmisnis 353

. ; - . 7166 : : 7166 : 7156
e x F : : ; 4,68 - . TG {182.85) (110,83
143,07

Balarce as &1 31
March 2025 148848 0BT G02438 14132 . 20835 24830 [TE.06) B.3H46 B02.95 w1224

These mewarves sre acguired from be subsifanies pursuant 2o Scheme of Arrangement (refer Note 46)

The sccamaamying notes farm an intdgral pan of the cansobdated finarcisl statements. foe and an Gohall af the Board of Directars of
]:lglﬂ-l‘.lﬂ Sodutions Limited

A= per our report of even oete sttachied. Ajit Isnac Guemeet Singh Chahal

ior Doloitte Haskins & Solls Charmian Chief Exncuntes Cfficar

Chartarod Accountants Oin; DOoaTEE and Executhe Diroctos

Fimn's Ragshatian Mao: 8080725 Faca: Bengsiun Place: New Iemsiy
Date: 206 Suma 2005 Cutec 306 June 2026

Gurvinder Singh Cib: 10997357

Pariner

Mesnbarship Ne: 180028 Surnj Prasad Moeral Manchanda

Flace: Bangalu Chiaf Financial Officar Camgarry Socratany

Date: 26 June H035 Fisca ki Mamaeship MoACS- 20060

Date: 26 juno 20045

Place: Bengalury
Dot 26 June 2025
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Digitide Solutions Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2025

1. Company overview

Digitide Solutions Limited {'the Company'), together
with Its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the
“Group”, is a listed public limited company
incorporated and domiciled In India. The registered
office of the Company is located
Karnataka, India. The shares of the company are listed
on the Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock
Exchange. The registered office of the Company is

in Bengaluru,

located in Bengaluru, Karnataka, India. These
consclidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (referred to collectively as the "Group').
Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, Quess Corp
Limited has transferred the Demerged Undertaking 1
to the Company. Demerged Undertaking 1 including its
subsidiaries which are primarily involved in business
process outsourcing services and Tech and digital
SETVICeS.

The Company was incorporated on 10 February 2024
and this being the first financial year of the Company,
the financial statements have been prepared for the
period 10 February 2024 to 31 March 2025 (financial
year] in accordance with the provisions of the section
2(41) of the Companies Act 2013,

The consclidated financial statements are approved by
the board of directors and authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 26
June 2025,

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

This is the first financial year of the Company post its
incorporation pursuant to the demerger of Quess Corp
Limited under the approved scheme of arrangement.
The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind
AS" as notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accouniing Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

ytatemen J FY 20-24 ._ ‘.2

2.2 Basis of preparation

The Consclidated Financial Statements comprises the
Consclidated Balance sheet of the Company as at 31
March 2025, Consolidated Staterment of Profit and
Less (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the financial year
ended 31 March 2025, materlal accounting policies
and other explanatory information have been
prepared by the Company in the following manner
using information maintained by Quess Corp Limited

(Demerged Company) for the financial year:

1. Based on a historical cost basis, except for

a. Certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

b. Defined benefit and other long-term employes
benefits where plan asset is measured at fair
value less present value of defined benefit
obligations ("DBQO") and

c. Expenses relating to share based payments are
measured at fair value on the date of grant,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods or
Senices.

2. The assets, liabilities, revenue from operations, and
expenses specifically pertaining to Transferred
Businesses 1 (as defined in Scheme of

Arrangement) were extracted from the books of

account of Quess Corp Limited (Refer Mote 46),

and

3, Commaon expenses were apportioned based on a
specific
payrall,

reasonable basis, which includes

identification, headcount, usage, time

spent, net assets atc.

The material accounting pelicy information related
to preparation of the conselidated financial statements
have been discussed below.
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Going concern:

The directors have, at the time of approving the
consolidated  financial  statements, a
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to

reasonahble

continue In operational existence for the foreseesable
future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consclidated
financial statements,

Basis of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company
disclosed in Mote 47 Control exists when the parent
has power over an investee, exposure or rights to

fits subsidiaries) as

variable returns from its Involvement with the investee
and ability to use its power to affect those returns.
Power is demonstrated through existing rights that
give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which
significantly affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date control commences until
the date control ceases, The Group re-assesses
whether or not it controls an investee If facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to cne
or mare of the three elements of control.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are
consclidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group
balances and transactions including unrealised gain/
loss from such transactions are eliminated upon
consolidation. The financial statements are prepared
by applying uniform policies in use at the Group, The
financial statements of all entities used for the purpose
of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company.

Mon-controlling interest:

Man-contralling interest (*NCI") which represent part of
the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that
are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by
the Group, are excluded. NCI are measured at their
proportionate share of the acguiree's net identifiable
assets at the date of acquisition.

Ee————
|
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Prefit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

In case where the Group has written a put option with
MNCI| in an existing subsidiary on their equity interest in
that subsidiary then the Group evaluates access to the
returns associated with the ownership interest. In case
MCI still have present access to returns associated
with the underlying ownership interest, then the Group
has elected to account for put option as per the
anticipated-acquisition methed, Under the anticipated-
acquisition method the put option is accounted for as
an anticipated acguisition of the underlying NCI, This is
independent of how the exercise price 1s determined
(e.g. fixed or variable) and how likely it is that the
option will be exercised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, any changes in the carrying amount of the
put liability is
statement of profit and loss account,

accounted through consolidated

Change in the Group's equity interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions.

2.3 Use of estimates and judgments
consolidated  financial
ind AS

management to make judgments,

The preparation of the

statements in  conformity  with requires
estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses, Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and wnderlying assumptions are
reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised, and in any future periods
affected. The following are the significant areas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:




e | L Talks

# i
'@l dE L™ & MatTaar:
ONSONUalLedl

neia ]

Statements FY 20‘”24-—%25

i} Impairment of non-financial Assets

Man-financial assets are tested for impairment by
determining the recoverable amount. Determination of
recoverable amount is based on value in use, which Is
present value of future cash flows. The key inputs
used in the present value calculations include the
expected future growth in operating revenues and
margins in the forecast pericd, terminal growth rates
and discount rates which are subject to significant
Judgement. (Refer Note 4(i)

ii} Impairment of financial assets:

The Group recognises loss allowances using the
Expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets and unbilled revenues which are not fair valued
through profit or loss, Loss allowance for trade
receivables (billed and unbilled) with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount egual
to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12-manth ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which
case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The loss
rates for the trade
collection history from the customers, the credit risk of

receivables considers past

the customers and have been adjusted to reflect the
Management's view of economic conditions over the
expected collection period of the receivables (hilled
and unbilled). (Refer Note 37(i)

iii) Measurement of defined benefit obligations:

Far defined benefit abligations, the cost of providing
benefits is determined based on actuarial valuation. An
actuarial valuation is based on significant assumptions
which are reviewed on a periodic basis. (Refer Mote
44)

iv] Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets:

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets are determined by the management
at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed
periodically. Ind AS 103 identifiable
intangible assets acquired in business combinations o

reguires the

Ee————
|
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be fair valued and significant estimates are required to
be made in determining the value of Intangible assets.
These waluations are conducted by external experts.
(Refer Mote 3 and 5)

v} Income taxes:

Significant judgments are Involved
provision for income taxes, Including (&) the amount
claimed for certain deductions under the Income Tax

in determining

Act, 1961 and (b) expected to be paid or recaverad in
connection with uncertain tax positions. The ultimate
realisation of deferred income tax assets, is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during
the periods
become deductible.

in which the temporary differences

Management considers the
scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities and the
projected

assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable

future taxable income In making this
income and projections for future taxable income over
the periods in which the deferred inceme tax assets
are deductible, management believes that the Group
benefits of those deductible

differences. The amount of the deferred income tax

will realise the

assets  considered realisable, however, could be
reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable
income during the carry forward periods are reduced.

{Refer Note 8)

vi) Business Combinations and Intangible assets:

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS
103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 reguires the
identifiable
consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the

intangible assets and  contingent
net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Estimates are
required to be made in determining the value of
aption
arrangemeants and intangible assets. These valuations

contingent cansideration, value of
are conducted by external valuation experts. These
measurements are based on information available at

the acquisition date and are based on expectations

and assumptions that have been deemed reasonable
by the Management.
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2.4 Current and non-current classification

Current and non-current classification: The Group
presents assets and liabillities In the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification. An asset
Is treated as current when it is:

— Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in normal operating cycle

— Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after
the reporting period, or

— Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

— It Is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
— It is held primarily far the purpose of trading

— It is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reparting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlerment of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the opticn of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other liahilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle for the business activities of the Group
covers the duration of the specific project or conftract
and extends up to the realisation of receivables within
the agreed credit period normally applicable to the
respective lines of business. Based on the nature of
senviices rendered to customers and time elapsed
between deployment of resources and the realisation
in cash and cash eguivalents of the consideration for
such services rendered, the Group has considered an
operating cycle of 12 months.

= 2
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2.5 Business Combinations
Business combinations (other than common control
business combinations):

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accaounts for
{other
control business combinations) using the acquisition
method when control is transferred to the Group. The
cost of an acquisition s measured as the fair value of

the business combinations than common

the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange.
The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of
any contingent consideration.
liabilities liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured

ldentifiable assets
acquired and and contingent
initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition,
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except to
the extent related to the issue of debt or eguity
securities.
Business combinations control
transactions):

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts for

(Common

commaon control transaction using pooling of interest
method. It is accounted for at carrying value of the
assets and liabilities in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

2.6 Foreign currency transactions and balances

The functional currency of Company and its domestic
subsidiaries are Indian Rupees (INR). The functional
currency of the overseas subsidiaries are its
respective local currencies. The consolidated financial
statements have been rounded off to the nearest
million.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the rates
prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are translated into the functional currency at

axchange rates in effect at the reporting date.

exchange

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and such translation of
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monetary assets and liabllities denominated In foreign
currencies are generally recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Mon-manetary assets and liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency and measured at fair value are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
assets  and liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency and measured at historical cost are translated
at the ewxchange rate prevalent at the date of
transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the
fair value of foreign exchange derivative instruments,
which are accounted at fair value through profit or
loss,

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations
{including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on acquisition), are translated into INR, the functional
currency of the Group, at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated into INR at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions or an average
rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at
the date of the transaction. The gains or losses
resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under other compaonents of equity,
When a subsidiary is disposed off, in full, the relevant
ameount is transferred to net profit in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. However, when a change
in the parent's ownership does not result in loss of
control of a subsidiary, such changes are recorded
through equity.

2.7 Property, plant and eguipment

1. Recegnition and measurement:

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if ary.

Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised
until the property, plant and eguipment are ready for
use, as intended by the management.

S
1
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Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant
and eqguipment Is capitalised only when it Is probable
that future economic benefits associated with these
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are
recognised In the statement of profit and loss when
incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting
date is classified as capital advances under othar non-
current assets and the cost of the assets not ready for
intended use are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-
progress’,

if) Depreciation:

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment
aver their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as

follows:

Estimated useful life
Buildings 60 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Vehicles 3-5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Plant and machinery 3-8 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed periodically, including at each financial
year end. The useful lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation
of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment.
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over lease
term or estimated useful life whichewver is lower.

The residual wvalues, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year
end.

An item of property., plant
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised In
profit or loss.

and equipment s

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are
derecognised from the financial statements upon sale
or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

2.8 Leases

The Group as a lessee:

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of
leases for buildings and eguipment. The Group
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an |dentified asset for a period of time In
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
Identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the
contract invalves the use of an identified asset {ii) the
Group has substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the asset through the period of the |lease
and (ili) the Group has the right to direct the use of the
asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group
recognises a right-ofuse ([ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it Is a lessee, except for leases with a term of

12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value

-
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leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an aperating
axpense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the option to
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities Includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recegnised at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to
the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

ROLU assets are depreciated from the commencement
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that theair
carrying amounts may not be recoverable, For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGLU) to

which the asset belongs.

The |ease liability is initially measured at amoartised
cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinablea,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are re-
measured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related ROU asset changes its

assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or

if the Group

a termination option. Lease liability and ROU assets
have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet
and lease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
gxemption to its shor-term leases of buildings,
machinery and eguipment {i.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on-a stralght-line basis
owver the lease term.

2.9 Goodwill

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share in the fair value of the acquiree's identiflable
assets, liabllitles and contingent
recognised as goodwlll. If the excess is negative, it is
considered as a bargain purchase galn. Any gain on a
bargain
accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists
clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business comblnation as resulting in a
bargain purchase. Goodwill is tested for impairment on

[iabilities s

purchase s recognised in OCI and

an annual basis and whenever there is an indication
that goodwill may be impalired, relying on a number of
factors including operating results, business plans and
future cash flows.

210 Intangible assets

(i) Recognition and measurement

Internally generated: Research and development
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software
product development costs are expensed as incurred
unless technical and commercial feasibility of the
project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are
probable, the Group has an intention and ability to
complete and use or sell the software and the costs
can be measured reliably. The costs which can be
capitalised include the cost of material, direct labour,
overhead costs that are directly attributable to
preparing the asset for |ts intended use.

Separately acquired Intangible assets:
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
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separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination:
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are
recognised initially at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Others

Other purchased intangible assets are initially
measured at cost Subsequently, such intangible
assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

(ii} Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure |s capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied In
the speclfic asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure,  including expenditure on  internally
generated software is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as and when incurred.

(iii}) Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised owver their respective
individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis, from the date that they are available for use. The
estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset
is based on a number of factors including the effects
of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry,
and known technological advances), and the level of
maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the assel
Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed

periodically including at each financial year end.

The amortisation expense on Intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as
follows:
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Asset category Estimated useful life

Computer software 3 years

Lease term or
estimated useful life
of, whichever is lower

Computer software =
leased

Customer relationships 5-10 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
disposal.
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

use ofr Gains or losses arising from

carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset Is derecognised.

2.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

Tangible and Intangible Assets (excluding Goodwill)
At the end of each reporting year, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there s any indication
that those assets have suffered an Impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated In order to determine the extent
of the Impairment loss (if any).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet

the asset belongs. Intangible assets with
avallable for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
assel or the cash generating unit to which intanglble
asset is allocated may be
amount Is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and

impaired. Recowverable

value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than it's
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset

=,
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lor cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the statement of profit and loss if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired,
they are tested for impairment more frequently.

Goodwill

Goodwill s not amortised but is reviewed for
impairment at least annually. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated are tested for impairment annually,
ar more freguently when there Is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit |s less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the Impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrylng amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrylng amount of each asset
in the unit. An Impairment loss recegnised for goodwill

is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable
amaount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.

212 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash on hand
and in banks, demand deposits with banks which can
be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or
penalty on the principal and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalent Includes cash on hand, in banks, demand
deposits with banks and other shart-term highly liguid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and are considered part of the
cash management system.
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213 Dividend

The Group recognises a liabllity to make cash
distributions to equity holders of the Group when the
distributions is authorised and the distribution s no
langer at the discretion of the Group. Final dividends
on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of
approval by the shareholders and interim dividends
are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by
the Company's Board of Directors.

214 Share-based payments

Equity instruments granted to the employees of the
Group are measured by reference to the fair value of
the instrument at the date of grant. The expense s
recognised In the statement of profit and loss with a
in eguity (stock options
outstanding account). The equity instruments generally

corresponding  increase
vest in a graded manner over the vesting peried. The
fair value determined at the grant date is expensed
over the vesting period of the respective tranches of
such grants (accelerated amortisation). The stock
compensation expense s determined based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will

eventually vest.

215 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the
net profit attributable to owners of the Group by the
equity
outstanding during the period. Diluted earmings per

weighted average number of shares
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Group by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per eguity share and also
the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted
as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they
have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented. The number of equity shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for
bonus shares, as appropriate.

=
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216 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event,
the Group has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an ocutflow of economic benefits will be
reguired to settle the obligation. Provisions are
recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, taking into account the risks and

legal or constructive

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the lability. The unwinding of discount is
recognised as finance cost.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when
the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of
meeating the future obligations under the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of lower of the expected net cost of
fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of
terminating the contract.

2.17 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial
instruments are recognised in the Group's balance
sheet when the Group becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

a) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are
initially recognised when they are criginated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value except for trade receivables which are initially
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset
(other than financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of
the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of
financial assets are accounted for at trade date.
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b) Financial assets « the asset is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

{i)Classification and subsequent measurement cash flow and selling financial assets ; and

» the contractual terms of the financial assets give

For the purpose of subseguent measurement, a rise on a specified date to cash flows that are

financial asset is classified and measured at

amortised cost;

fair walue through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) - debt investment;

fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) - equity investment; or

fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

. A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if

both the following conditions are met:

thie asset is held within a business model whose
ocbjective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise on a specified date to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amounts cutstanding,

salely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amounts outstanding,

. On initial recognition of an equity investment that is

not held for trading, the Group irmevocably elects to
present subsequent changes in the fair value in
OCl (designated as FVTOC|-equity investment).
This election is made on an investment-to-
investment basis.

. All financial assets not classified as amortised cost

or FVTOC! as described above are measured at
FWVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may
asset that
otherwise meets the reguirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVTOC! as at FVTPL, if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

irrevocably designate a financial

accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
2. A debt investment is measured at FYTOC! if both of
the following conditions are met:

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financlal assets at  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest

EVTEL or dividend income are recognised in the statement of profit and lass.,

Financial assets at  1hese assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest reduced by

amortised cost impairment losses, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recagnised in the statement of profit and loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in

the statement of profit and loss.

Debt investments at T1hese assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
EVTOC methed, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the statement of
profit-and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and

losses accumulated in OC| are reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in the
at FVTOCH

recognised

statement of profit and less unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OC| and are not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss.
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ii. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies
expected credit loss ("ECL") medel for measuremeant
and recognition of iImpairment lass. The Group follows
'simplified approach’ for recagnition of impairment loss
allowance on trade receivables and unbilled revenues
based on expected lifetime credit losses at each
reparting date after initial recognition.

Far recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets, the Group determines whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not Increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recagnition, then the Group reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-

month ECL.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision
matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its
trade receivable. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for farward-
lzoking estimates.

At regular intervals, the historically observed default
rates are updated and changes in forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

ECL
recegnised as an income/expense in the statement of

impairment loss allowance {or reversal) is

profit and loss during the period.

iii. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
Group:

- has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial asset; or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.

= 2
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Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.
In such cases, the financlal asset is derecognized.
Wheare the entity has not transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial
asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Group has not retained control of
the financial asset.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the trade receivables (billed
and unbilled) Is in severe financial difficulty or the
dispute with the customer is not resclved and there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit ar loss,

c. Financial liabilities

i. Classification, subsequent measurement and gains
and losses

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs, and are subseguently
measured at amortised cost through effective interest
method, Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognised in a
subsequently
measurad at fair value through profit or loss, For trade

business combination which is
and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair wvalue due to the short maturity of these

instruments.

ii. Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified party fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised

at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
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directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantes.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount  initially  recognised
amortisation,

less cumulative

iil. Derecognition

A financial liability s derecognised when the Group's
obligations are discharged or cancelled or have
expired. An exchange with a debt
substantially different terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original

lender of

instruments  with

financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability.

Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability {(wheather or not attributable to
the financial difficulty of the debtar) is accounted for as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
liability. The
of the

the recognition of a new financial
difference between the carrying amount
financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Fimancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance shest when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultanaously.

218 Measurement of fair values

Fair values are categerised into different levels in a fair

value hierarchy based on the degree to which the fair

value measurements are observable and significance
of the inputs to fair value measurements;
- Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than guoted prices included in
Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directhy or indirecthy

« Level 3:inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inpLis).

Ee————
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In determining the fair value of an asset or a llability,
the Group uses different methods and assumptlons
based on observable market inputs. All methods of
assessing fair value result in general approximation of
value, and such value may not actually be realised.

The Group recognises transfers between lavels of the
fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. For financial
assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date and which are not carried at fair
value, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due
to the short maturity of these instruments

2.19 Revenue Recognition

The Group derives revenue primarily fram providing
business process management and tech and digital
services.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for
recognition and measurement when the contract has
been approved by the parties to the contract, the
parties to contract are committed to perform their
respective obligations under the contract, and the
contract is legally enforceable, Revenue is recognised
upon transfer of control of promised products or
services (“performance obligations”) to customers in
an amount that reflects
Company has received or expects to
exchange for these products or services (“transactian
price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability,

the consideration the
receive in

revenue recognition is  postponed  until  such

uncertainty is resolved.

The contract with customers, generally contains a
single performance obligation and is measured based
on the transaction price, which is the consideration,
adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits,
performance bonuses, price
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the
customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from

concessions and

customers,

Revenue from Bbusiness process management and
tech and digital is recognised over time as the customer
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simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as
the Company renders the services. Revenue from tech
and digital services as and when the performance
obligations are satisfied. The inveicing for these
services is either based on cost plus a service fee or
fixed fee model.

The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all
of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor and has pricing latitude which establishes
control before transferring products and services to
the customer.

The Group's receivables are rights to consideration
that are unconditional. Unbilled revenues comprising
revenues in excess of inveicing are classified as
financial asset when the right to consideration Is
unconditional and is due only after a passage of time.
Unbilled are presented under Trade
recelvables, while Inveicing in excess of revenues are

revenues

classified as unearnad revenus,

Other income

Other Income comprises primarily interest income on
deposits, dividend income and galn/ (loss) on disposal
of financial assets and non-financial asszets. Interest
income is recognised using the effective interest
method. Dividend income is recognised when the right
to recaive payment is established.

2.20 Employee benefits

a} Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits acecruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries In the
period the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service. Short-term employes
benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis as

related service s rendered at the

the related service s provided.

b) Compensated absences

The employees of the Group are entitted to
compensated absences. The employees can carry
forward a portion of the unutilised accumulating
compensated absences and utilise it in future periods.

ytatemen J FY 20-24 ._ ‘.2

dicjitide

The Group records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders
The
valuation

the services that increases this entitlement,

obligation is determined by actuarial
performed by an independent actuary at each balance
sheet date using projected unit credit method.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are
expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as short term
employes benefits and those expected to be availed
or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the

year are treated as other long-term employees benefits,

c) Defined contribution plan
Under a defined contribution plan, the Group's only
obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits, The
Group makes specified monthly contributions towards
Employee Fund to
administered Provident Fund Scheme which

Provident Government
is a
defined contribution plan, The expenditure for defined
contribution plan is recognised as expense during the

period when the employee provides service.

d) Defined benefit plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
the Group provides for a lump sum payment to eligible
employess, at
employment based on the last drawn salary and years
of employment with the Group. This gratulty scheme
for eligible employees is administered through a third
party manager.

The present value of gratuity obligation under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuations carred out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The Group
recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan
in its balance sheet as an asset or liability,

retirement  or  termination  of

The Group recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past
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senvice costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
nan-routine settlements; and
- Met interest expensa or income.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised In other
comprehensive income. Further, the statement of
profit and loss does not Include an expected return on
plan assets. Instead net interest recognised in the
statement of profit and loss is calculated by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The actual return on the plan assets above or below
the discount rate is recognised as part of re-
measurement of net defined liability or asset through

other comprehensive income.

Re-measurement comprising actuarial gains or losses
and return an plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are
not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in
subsequent periods.

2.21 Borrowing cost

Baorrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use ar sale.
Investment  income earmmed on  the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending  their
expenditure on gualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred,

2.22 Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense within profit or
loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain
the performance of the Company for the period, the
nature i disclosed

and amount of such items
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separately as Exceptional items.

2.23 Restructuring Expenses
Restructuring expenses is
Company develops a detailed formal plan for the

recognised when the

restructuring and has raised valid expectation in those
affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it. The measurement of
restructuring provision includes only the direct
expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are
those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by
the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the entity

2.24 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income,

Current income tax for current and prior periods is
recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or
recoverad from the tax authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
retated tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and are expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of
changes in tax rates on deferred income fax assets
and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in
the period that
substantive enactment date.

includes the enactment or the
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences
can be used. Deferred income tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets, unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/
reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will
be realised. Deferred income taxes are not provided
on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where it
Is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

2.25 Contingent liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occcurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Group, or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it Is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
wherg there is a liability that cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not recognise a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial

statements.
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2.26 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,
whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows, The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Group are segregated.

2.27 Segment reporting

Based on the "management approach" as defined in
Inct AS 108, Operating Segments, the Chief Operating
Decision Maker evaluates the Group's performance
and allocates resources based on an analysis of
various performance indicators by business segments.
Accordingly, information has been presented along
these business segments namely Business Process
Management and Tech and Digital.
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3. (a) Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress
fAmount in INR millions)
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Dispcaals i H 143 @ET ram 4 - {137 @73n
Trntialatiai - " 124 - {07 1585 1476
differancess =5 aaenilog
Accumulated
depreciatian as at 21 5428 1375 8585 wIT 221.51 e5E 14B0.05 2.217.88
March 2025
Mad canying ameunt 470,00 IH12 AG.4F 75.50 a3 9,89 56448 603,94 167028 6348

&4 @t 31 March 2026

“Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiaries consolidated
with the Company. (Refer note 48)

The agoregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of
profit and loss.

# Represents translation of tangible assets of forgign operations into Indian Rupees,

The Company and its subsidiaries in India does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The title of the land and building is in the name of Quess Corp Limited. Post demerger, the Company is in the

process of getting the title transferred to its name. Where the Company is lessee, the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee.

= i
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Description: Land and building located at ICC Devi Gaurav Tech Park, Building office No.301
and 302, Third Floor, Mumbai-Pune Highway, Pimpri, Plot No. 48584 B Wing, Pune,
Maharashtra - 411018

ldentification number: BR/PimprilLayout’46/2007 and BR/Pimpri/Layout/52/2009

Description of
Property

Gross carrying Land: INR 470.00 million
IEITEERE S (I 5.iidling: INR 354.40 million
March 2025 Total: INR 824.40 million

Held in name Connegt Business Solutions Limited
of {Erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary of the Guess Corp Limited)

Whether

promoter,

director or Mo
their relative or
employee

Since Movember 01, 2012, the property is held by Connegt Business Solutions Limited.
Post merger, with effective date of December 1, 2023, and appeinted date of April 1, 2027,
the property is held by Quess corp limited. Post demerger the Company is in the process
of transferring the title to Digitide Solutions Limited.

Period held

Conneqt Business Solutions Limited ('Conneqt’) was merged with Quess Corp Limited in
FY 2023-24 and became the division of Quess Corp Limited. However, the registration
process of transfer of title in the name of Quess Corp Limited was in progress. In the FY
2024-25, the business of Connegt got demerged from Quess Corp Limited and got
merged with the Company. As at the Balance sheet date, the Company is in the process of
transferring title in its own name.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars

Projects in progress
As at 31 March 63.48 - - - 63.48
2025

Project in progress are reviewed by the Management on a regular basis and deployed as per business reguirement.
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3. (b} Right-of-use assets tAmount in INR millions)
& ) it Computer Total Right-of-
Balance as at 10 February 2024* 2,949.56 20098 3150.54
Additions 964.61 39.44 1.004.05
Disposals (169.38) - {169.38)
Depreciation for the financial year (1,222.09) (154.01) (1.276.10)
Translation differences# 0.55 - 0,55
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,523.25 86.41 2,609.66

The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of profit and loss,
#Represents translation of right-of-use assets of foreign subsidiaries into Indian Rupees.
* Includes balances transferred on account of 2cheme of Arrangment {refer note 46)

3. (c) Lease liabilities tAmount in INR millions)
Particulars a5
31 March 2025
Mon-current lease liabilities 1.904.79
Current lease liabilities 1,004.34
2,90913
The following is the movement in lease liabilities: (Amount in INR millions)
. _ As at
Balance as at 10 February 2024" 3.486.96
Add: Additions 895585
Less: Deletions (204.26)
Add: Finance cost accrued during the financial year 344.53
Less: Repayment of lease liabilities (1,713.73)
Translation loss# (0.33)
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 290913

# Represents transiation of lzase liabillties of foreign subsidiaries into Indian Rupees.
* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangementand balances of subsidiaries consolidated with the
Company (refer note 46)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2025 on an

undiscounted basis: tamount in INR millions)
] As at
FAITEIHATS 31 March 2025
Less than one year 1185.03
One to five years 207561
More than five years 9610

Total 3,359.93
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4. Goodwill

dicjitide

fAmount in INR millions)

Particulars As at
b 31 March 2025

Balance as at 10 February 2024*

Translation differences

Carrying value at 31 March 2025

2121.70
503

212673

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiaries consolidated

with the Company. (Refer note 46)

The allocation of goodwill to the operating segments is as follows:

Operating segments As at
i Sl 31 March 2025

Business process management

Tech and digital

Carrying value of Goodwill at the end of the year

1,082.85
1.044.08

2126.73

4, (i) Impairment testing

The Group tests goodwill for impairment annually on 31 December 2024 or more frequently based on an
impairment indicator. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of cash generating unit
("CGU7) (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. The recoverable amount is determined based on higher of
value-in-use and fair value less cost to sale of CGU. Value-in-use is calculated using a discounted cash flow
approach.

The Group assessed the recoverable amount of Alldigi Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Allsec
Technologies Limited) CGU having carrying value of INR 56411 millions based on fair value less cost of sale of CGL,
which is measured using a guoted price. The carrying value of CGUs and other key assumptions used by the Group
for impairment assessment are captured in the table below:

Paitiilan MFXchange Brainhunter
il Heldings Inc. Systems Ltd,

Connegt Business

Solutions
Carrying value 57278 32979 660.05
Discount rate {pre-tax) 17.64% 1718% 25.82%
Terminal growth rate 2.00% 2.00% 4.00%
Revenue 10.00% - 38.92% 5.00% -10.00% 15%
Projection pericd 5 years 5 years 5 years
Operating margins 567% - 1716% 3.59% - 71B% 1779% - 17.89%

As at 31 March 2025, the estimated recoverable value of each of the CGUs exceeded its carrying amount and hence
impairment is not triggerad. The carrying amount of the CGU was computed by allocating the net assets to CGUs for
the purpose of impairment testing.



Statements FY 2024 - 25

The discount rate used in the discounted cash flow approach is the risk adjusted weighted average cost of capital
applicable to respective CGUs. The cash flow projections used for assessing the ‘value in use’ are based on the
most recent long-term forecast approved by management. The leng-term forecast includes management's latest
estimate on Revenues and Operating cash flows. The period of projections is for five years and based on financial
budgets/ forecasts which considers historical experience adjusted for uncertainties applicable for respective CGLs,
The cash flows beyond the forecast period are extrapolated using appropriate long term terminal growth rates. The
long term terminal growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average growth rates of the respective industry
and country in which the CGU operates and are consistent with internal/external sources of information.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
Any reasonable possible change in the key assumptions will not result into an impairmeant for these significant

CGUs specified above.
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5. Other intangible assets and intangible assets under development
{Amount in INRE millions)

Other intangible &

Customer Compster Cormputer Total other
Pelationshipg sofbwaie solbivaie - intangible assels
g leased

Gross carrying amount as at 1.076.44 60636 6831 1.750.81 20,59
10 February 2024°

Additions . 18527 : 186,27 15314
Disposals - 00z - 0.02
Capitalised during the financial year - 14765 14765 14765)
Transtation differences# < 84 1 170 BEM
Gross balance as at 31 March 2025 1,076.14 1,033.61 J0.04 247976 26.08
Accumulated amortisation as 993.67 368,88 58.62 142147
at 10 February 2024*
0,88 24629
Amorisation for the financlal year B2.48 153.95
Translation differences# . 82.86 153 E4.29
Accumulated amortisation as 1,076.14 605.69 T0.01 1.751.85
at 31 March 2025
Met carrying amount as at 31 - 427.91 . 42794 26.08

March 2025

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiaries consolidated
with the Company. (Refer note 4G)

The aggregate amortisation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of
profit and loss.

#Represents translation of intangible assets of foreign operations into Indian Rupees.

&## Computer software consists of capitalised development costs being an Imternally generated intangible asset.

5.1 Intangible assets under development aging schedule:

Amaount In intagibie 5 er e\ ment for & period of

Particulars

Less than 1 year

Projects in progress

Az al 31 March 2025 26.08 . - 26.08

Project in Progress are reviewed by the Management an a regular basis and deployed as per business requirement.
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6. Investments famaount in INR millions)

Particulars s Bt
> 31 March 2025

Unguoted

Investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

200,000 fully paid up equity shares of par value of INR 10,00 each of KMG Infotech Limited 15.47
15.47
Aggregate value of ungquoted investments 15.47

7. Other non-current financial assets
tAmount in INR millions)

‘ As at

Security deposits® 29674
Bank depaosits (due to mature after 12 manths from the reporting cate)™* 214.02
51077

* Security deposits include deposits given for premises taken under leases, electricity and water connections.

“*Bank deposits to the tune of INR 209.20 million are lien marked against performance guarantees provided to
customers.

9. Other non-current assets (Amount in INR millicns)
. As at
Balances with government authorities® 17871
Prepaid expenses 12.09
180.80

‘Balance with government authorities mainky includes following amounts paid under protest:

(a) INR 68.8 million towards outstanding demand from Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited
(TANGEDCO) in relation to outstanding demands pertaining to FY 2005-2006 to FY 2010-201 arising out of
reclassification of tariff (refer note 40.2)

(B} INR 35.44 million towards outstanding demand from Employee's Provident Fund Organisation (Refer note 40.11))
{c)INR 40.05 million paid to Ontario Ministry of Finance for Employer Health Tax matter(Refer Note 40.5)

10. Current investments (Amount in INR millions]

] As at

Quoted

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in liquid mutual fund units 82726
827.26
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Details of investments in liguid mutual fund units
{Amount In INR milllons)

‘ As at
31 Mﬂrth 2025

28,65,331.64 Units Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 50.50
3.646.23 Units Axis Liguid Fund - Direct Growth 10,50
36.670.466 Units Axis Money Market Fund Direct Growth 51.59
14,45 ,678.33 Units Axis Short Term Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 4760
6,750.05 Units Axis Treasury Advantage Fund - Regular Growth 20,50
10,08,603.82 Units HDFC Floating Rate Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 50.20
5,01,382.21 Units HDFC Low Duration Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 3070
14.64,331.97 Units HOFC Short Term Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 47.30
6,93.879.68 Units HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Dir Gr 10.50
90,616.50 ICICI Prudential Banking and PSU Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Grawth 3.00
3.97.37.43 Units ICICI Prudential Long Term Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 3860
17,86,852.31 Units ICICI Prudential Banking & PSU Debt Fund Growth 57320
85,32116 Units ICIC] Prudential Savings Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 51.40
19.823.23 Units ICIC| Prudential Savings Fund - Growth 10.60
15.25,235.59 Units ICIC] Prudential Short Term Fund - Growth 89.80
1311493 Kotak Corporate Bond Fund Direct Growth 50.50
79938730 Units Kotak Banking&PSU Debt Fund Direct Growth 53.20
9,09,2959.23 Units Kotak Bond Fund (Short Term) - Direct Plan - Growth 51.27
8,613.70 Units Kotak Low Duration Fund Direct Growth 30,70
2.39,012.07 Units Kotak Savings Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 10.50
176471 Units SBI Magnum Ultra SDF Direct Growth 10.50
14,320.09 Units UTI Low Duration Fund - Direct Plan Growth 50.50

82726
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 827.26
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 827.26

=
)
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11. i) Trade receivables - billed (Amount In INR millions)

Particulars As at

31 March 2025

Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered good - unsecured 463513
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (286.86)
Undisputed trade receivable - considered good - unsecured 4,352.27
Undisputed Trade receivables- Credit impaired - unsecured 894
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (B8.94)
Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired - unsecured -
Disputed Trade receivables- Credit impaired 4499
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (44.99)
Trade Receivable credit impaired- Disputed
Total trade receivables - billed 4,352.27

i} Trade receivables - unbilled (Amount in INR millions)

A As at
Farticulars 31 March 2025

Trade receivables - unbilled - unsecured

1.22319
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (29.30)

1,193.90

The Group's exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in
note 37,

Trade receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2025 ; (Amount In INR millions)

Particulars Unbilled

o More than 3 Total
% WEErY

Undisputed Trade recelvabies- 122319 J005.52 142059 G364 mm 2123 e 586232
considered good

Undisputed Trade receivables

; - - - 58 3.54 D7 112] B.94
— cradit impaired

Undisputad Trade receivables - 583 3052 523 332 44.9%9
- disputed trade recelvables

Total 122319 3,008.52 1.420.59 75.38 145.07 3347 8.3 5.916.25
Less: Allowance for expected [3700E)
credit losses

Total trade receivable 5.,54617

Annual Report 2024 -2025 ”
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111 Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below: (Amount in INR millions)

i As at
: I
Particulars 31 March 2025

Trade receivables (bllled and unbilled) from related parties (refer note 43) 2772

12. Cash and cash equivalents

tAmount in INRE millions)

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 0.10

Balances with banks

In current accounts 18112
In EEFC accounts 2434
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated balance sheet 1,835 56

13. Bank balances other than cash and cash egquivalents (Amount in INR millions)

Particulars As Bt
: 31 March 2025

In deposit accounts (maturity within 12 manths from the reporting date)” 8.57
857
*Fixed deposits to the tune of INR B.57 million are lien marked against performance guarantees issued to customers.

14. Current loans {Amount in INR millions)

. As at

Loans to employees 1.36

1.36

15. Other current financial assets (Amount in INR millions)

] As at

Security deposits® 17374
Interest accrued but not due 23556
Others 4.08

201.38

* Security deposits Include deposits given for premises taken under leases,
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16. Other current assets {Amount in INR millions)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Advances other than capital advances

Prepaid expenses 43760
Advances to suppllers A40.41
Travel advances to employees 252
Balances with government authorities 6.35
Other advances 4786
534.74

17. Equity share capital {Ameunt in INR millians)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Authorised
100,000 equity shares of par value of INR 10.00 sach * 100
1.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
10,000 equity shares of par value of INR 10.00 each, fully paid up 010
Eguity share capital to be cancelled pursuant to the scheme* (0.10)
Pending allotment of shares pursuant to the scheme (148,949,413 equity shares of par value 1,489.49
INR 10 each)™

1,489.49

*Pursuant to the approval of the Scheme of Arrangement by the National Company Law Tribunal ('the NMCLT), the
Company increased its authorized share capital from INR 1 million to INR 1,750 million on 3 April 2025 (Refer Mote
46).

“*The record date for determining the eligibility of the sharehalders of Quess Corp Limited for the allotment of
equity shares in Digitide Solutions Limited, in the ratio of one fully paid-up new equity share of INR 10 each in the
Company for every one equity share of INR 10 each in Quess Corp Limited (pursuant to the Scheme of
Arrangement), was fixed on 15 April 2025. The Company recorded INR 1,482:49 milllon (148,949,413 equity shares
af par value INR 10 each) as "Pending allotment of shares pursuant to the Scheme” and disclosed it under Equity
Share Capital. This amount {net of existing Equity Share Capital) has been adjusted against the Capital Reserve in
accardance with the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Mote 46). Subseqguent to allotment of the aforesaid equity
shares, the existing equity shares has been cancelled.

Subseguent to March 31, 2025, the Company allotted these shares on April 21, 2025, and necessary corporate

actions were undertaken in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement. The shares of the Company were listed
an both NSE and BSE and commenced trading on June 11, 2025,

Anveal Report 20t aveh ”_E-
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171 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31st March 2025
Particulars
= Number of shares Amount in INR millions

Equity shares
At the commencement of the the financial year 10.000 0a0
At the end of the financial year 10,000 010

17.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all eguity shares rank egually with regard to
dividends and share in the Company's resicdual assets. The equity share holders are entitled to recejve dividend as
declared from time to time. The wvoting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in
proportion to the share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. On winding up of the Company, the holders of
the equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts {if any) in proportion to the number of equity shares held,

17.2 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

: As at 31st March 2025
Particulars Number of shares Holding (%)

Equity shares

Equity shares of par value INR 10.00 each
Quess Corp Limited 9,994 99.94%

As of March 31, 2025, Quess Corp Limited holds 99.94% stake in the Company. Pursuant to the approval of the
Scheme of Arrangement, the Company is yet to allot eguity shares to the eligible shareholders of Quess Corp
Limited in the ratic of one fully paid-up new equity share of INR 10 each in the Company for every one eguity shara
of INR 10 each in Quess Corp Limited. As of March 31, 2025, Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited, Ajit Isaac and
Isaac Enterprises LLP holds 3415% (5,08,53,455 equity shares), 12.02% (1,78,96,832 equity shares) and 10.32%
(1.53.65.824 equity shares) respectively in Quess Corp Limited.

Subsequent to March 31, 2025, the Company allotted these shares on April 21, 2025, and necessary corporate
actions were undertaken in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement. The shares of the Company were listed
on both NSE and BSE and commenced trading on June 11, 2025,

17.4 Details of shareholding of promoters:

As at 31st March 2025
Promoter name/ promoter group name

Number of shares Holding (%)

Quess Corp Limited 5,994 99.94%

As of March 31, 2025, Quess Corp Limited holds 99.94% stake in the Company. Pursuant to the approval of the
Scheme of Arrangement, the Company is yet to allot equity shares to the eligible sharehoiders of Guess Corp
Limited in the ratio of one fully paid-up new equity share of INR 10 each in the Company for every one equity share
of INR 10 each in Quess Corp Limited, As of March 31, 2025, Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited, Ajit Isaac, Isaac
Enterprises LLP and Hwic Asia Fund Class A Shares are the existing promoters of Quess Corp Limited halding
3415% (5,08,53.455 equity shares), 12.02% (1,78,96,832 equity shares), 10.32% (1,53,65,824 equity shares) and
0.50% (7.48.100 equity shares) respectively in Quess Corp Limited.

Subsequent to March 31, 2025, the Company allotted these shares on April 21, 2025, and necessary corporate

actions were undertaken in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, The shares of the Company were listed
an both NSE and BSE and commenced trading on June 11, 2025,

R .

=
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18. Other equity™
{Amourt in INR millions)
As at
31 March 2025

Particulars

Stock options outstanding account 18534
Foreign currency translation reserve 248.20
Capital reserve 6,024.28
Other comprehensive loss lexcluding foreign currency translation reserve) {75.06)
Capital redemption reserve 141.32
Retained earnings 30579

6,829.97

* For detalled movement of reserves refer Consolidated Statement of Changes [n Equity.

1. Stock options outstanding account: The Share options outstanding account is used to record the value of equity-
settled share-based payment transactions with employees. The amounts recorded in share options outstanding
account are transferred to securities premium upon exercise of stock options and restricted stock unit options by
employees,

2. Foreign currency translation reserve(FCTR): The exchange differences arising from the translation of financial
statements of foreign operations with functional currency other than Indian rupees is recognised in other
comprehensive income, net of taxes and is presented within equity in the FCTR,

3. Capital reserve: Capital Reserve represents the surplus arising on account of capital transactions, including the
difference between the falr value of net assets acquired and consideration paid in business combinations, as wall
as reserves created under schemes of arrangement or consolidation adjustments. Capital reserve is not freely
available for distribution.

4. Other comprehensive loss (excluding foreign currency translation reserve) Actuarial gains and losses on
remeasurements of the defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive income, net of taxes and
presented within equity in remeasurement of the defined benefit plans.

5, Capital redemption reserve; As per the Companies Act, 2013, Capital redemption reserve is created when a
Comgany purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal 1o the nominal value of
the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve can be utilised in accordance
with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013,

6. Retained earnings: Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings after taxes.

19. Mon-controlling interests

tAamount in INR miflions)

. : As at
BICH S 31 March 2025
Nen-cantrolling interests [refer note 19.7] 80295

B802.95

S
1
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19.1 The following table discloses the movement in non controlling interest for the financial year ended 31 March

2025 tAmaunt in INR milllans)

Db wadedsd @
T — Dher Addition an Pradit il e I:rllu-u:h-_-r.ﬂ paid Lo
Mon comprenens aliocation | comprefrensive r'ri:ll'l-lfl:ll'l1!"{l||'|'|!;|

Ertitins cantroliing

Clesing
Aril 2034 i eaunl af z > : ala Ak
t.r_-:l_ March ive loss for :"': ::I :-1 for tha loss allocation | interest during balancs ok st
z o3 = Scheme o L x £ . 2 31 Marc
glake - i the Finamneisl | A MNiaancial | s the Financial the Rnancial £y r'f‘""_"“
2025 i Arrangemant g o i 2025
year year year year

Alldigi Tech Limited 26.62% 83286 (7.09) 16562 221 {1.89) : 585,44
Total 76562 22171 1.89) - SE5.44
Less: Payment of dividend to non- [182.45) (1B2.43)
controlling interests

Total trade receivable 76562 [182.49) 802.95

20. Non-current borrowings®

{Amount In INR milllons)

As at
Particulars 21 March 2025
Secured
Wehicle loan [refer note 201 and 20.2] 16,87
Unsecured
Other Non-current barrowings 3968
Total borrowings 56.55
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings {refer note 22) (5.78)
5077
‘Information about the Group's exposure to Interast rate and liguldity risk is Included in note 37.
20 Terms and Repayment Schedule
Terms and condition of outstanding berrowings are as follows: tAmount in INR milllons)
. Coupon/ Period of | Carrying amount as
Currenc
{a) Vehicle loan INR 765% 10 965% 2028 16,87
Total borrowings 16.87

20.2Vehicle loans are repayvable in equal monthly instalments over a period of 3-5 periods from the date of
availing respective loan. The same is secured by hypothecation of the vehicles financed. Rate of interest is in
the range of 7.65% to 9.65% p.a. and number of instaiments pending for payments are ranging between 4 - 60
instalments,

21. Non-current provisions
P tAmount in INR millions)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity {refer note 44) 301.84
391.84
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22. Current borrowings
{Amount in INR millions)

: As at
Particulars 31 March 2025
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 578

Loans from bank repayable on demand

secured
Working capital loan {refer note 22.1) 573.57
579.35

221 Details of working capital loan: (Amount in INR millions)

Digitide Solutions Limited® ig4.08 The Company has taken working capital loan from
banks having interest rate ranging from 765% p.ato
1060% p.a. These facilities are repayable an
demand and are secured primarily by way of pari
passu first charge on the entire current assets of the
Company on both present and future and collateral
by way of pari passu first charge on the entire
movable assets of the Company (excluding charge
on  vehicles/equipments purchased fto  be
purchased under lease agreements’ hire purchase
agreements) both present and future,

MFXchange Holdings, Inc. 38850 On November 22, 2019, MFXU entered into a

(MEXU) Working Capital Facility (“Facility™) with ICICI Bank
Canada. The Facility has a maximum bormrowing limit
of 12,500,000 CND. Borrowings under the working
capital facility are due on the maturity date, interest
is charged at a percentage per annum that is an
aggregate of the Canadian CDOR rate & CDOR plus
2.5%,

*Guess Corp Limited (Demerged Company) took working capital loan from banks having interest rate ranging from
765% p.ato 1060% p.a. These facilities are repayable on demand and are secured primarily by way of pari passu
first charge an the entire current assets of Company an both present and future and collateral by way of pari passu
first charge on the entire movable assets of the Company (excluding charge on vehicles/equipments purchased fto
be purchased under lease agreements/ hire purchase agreements) both  present  and  future.
Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, these borrowings were allocated to the Company. Quess Corp Limited
(Demerged Company) submitted the guarterly book debt statements to its banks, which includes the receivables
pertaining to the Company, Quess Corp Limited and Bluspring Enterprises Limited for the guarters ended 30 June
2024, 30 September 2024, 31 December 2024, and 31 March 2025, The quarterly statements comprising book
debt statements filed by Quess Corp Limited with such banks, are in agreement with the unaudited books of
account of the Company, Quess Corp Limited and Bluspring Enterprises Limited for the respective guarters.

Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risk is included In note 37

= - -
—
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23, Trade payables
tAmount in INR millions)
: As at
Particulars 31 March 2025
Undisputed
Total outstanding dues to others 74146
741.46

The Group's exposure to currency and liguldity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in note 37

23. (i) Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2025: {Amount in INR millions)

Chutstanding for the following periods frem due date of tran,

Particulars
Less than . More than 3
1 year WEArs

Undlsputed Trade Payables -As at 31 March 2025 73616 2E5 053 102 4146

24, Other current financial liabilities
Amount in INR millions)

: o As at
Particulars 31 March 2025
Capital creditors 17178
Lnclaimed dividend 214
Other Payables
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,344.65
Provision for bonus and incentive 8277
Provision for expenses 89172

2,494.06

The Group's exposure to currency and liquldity risk refated to other current financial labilities is disclosed in note
37

25. Current tax liabilities (net)
{Amount in INR millions)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Provision for tax (net of advance tax) [refer note 8] 12.26

112.26
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26. Current provisions
(Amount In INR milllons)

As at
31 March 2025

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 44) 11.45

Other provisions

Provision for disputed claims® (refer note 40.2) 2210
133.55

27. Other current liabilities
{amount in INR milllons)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025
Uneamed revenue 102.48
Advance received from customers 20.55
Balances payable to government authorities 559,52
Security deposits 0.59
68318

Anrat Revort 20t w2 ‘_E-
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28. Revenue from operations tAmount in INR millions)

Particulars For the period ended 10 February 2024 to
31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Sale of Services

a) Business Process Management 2393003
b) Tech and Digital 875724
3268727

i} Disaggregation of revenue

The above break up presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by each of the business
segments. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

if) Trade receivables and unearned revenue

The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for dellverables as either a receivable or as unbilled
revenue. Invoicing in excess of earnings are classified as unearned revenue.
Trade receivables and unbilled revenues are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheel.
The following table provides information about receivables, unbilled revenue and unearned revenue from
contracts with customers.

tAmount in INR millions)

. As at
Particulars

31 March 2025

Trade receivables

- Billed (refer note 11 (i) 435227
- Unbilled [refer note 11 {ii}) 1193.90
Unearned revenue (refer note 27) 102.48
Advance from customer (refer note 27) 20.59

The following table discloses the movemeant in unbilled revenue balances for the financial year ended 31 March
2025:
{Amaunt in INR milllons)

Particulars For the period ended 10 February 2024 to
31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Balance as at 10 February 2024° 2312.41
Add: Revenue recognised during the financial year 126130
Less; Invoiced .dunng the year and therefore recognised as trade (2,375.26)
recaivables - billed

Less:iExpected credit |oss allowance recorded during the financial (610)
year ’
Add: Translaticn exchange difference 1.56
Balance as at the 31 March 2025 1193.20

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiaries consolidated
with the Company. [Refer note 46)

Aiweal Repars 2021 2020 ”_g-
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The following table discloses the movement in unearned revenue balances for this financial year ended 31 March
2025

(Amount in INR millions)
For the period ended 10 February 2024 to

Particulars 31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Balance as at the 10 February 2024 94.39
Less: Revenue recognised during the financial year (94.39)
Add; Invoiced during the financial year 102.54
Less: Translation exchange difference {0.07)
Balance as at the 31 March 2025 102.48

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiaries consolidated
with the Company. (Refer note 48)

i) Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance abligation disclosure provides the amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize
these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has nat disciosed
the: value of remaining performance obligations for:

(i contracts with an original expected duration of one year or less and

(i) contracts for which the Group recognises revenue at the amount to which it has the right to invoice for
services performed (typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis).

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as of 31 March 2025,
other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned above, is INR 20,66 million. Qut of this, the Company
expects to recognise revenue of around 29.14% within the next one year and the remaining thereafter.

29. Other income
{Amount In INR milllons)

For the period ended 10 February 2024 to 31

i Mareh 2025 (Financial Year)

a) Interest Income
Interest income under the effective interest rate method on:
Deposits with banks 6070

Interest on tax refunds received 21.36

b} Other non-operating income

Forelgn exchange gain 20567
Profit on sale of property, plant and eguipment and intangibie assets 12.55
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 5.44
Miscellaneous income 13.40
Profit on sale of investment 1968
MNet gain on financial assets-FVYTPL 3807

192.26

S
1
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30. Cost of material and stores and spare parts consumed
(Amount in INR millions)

For the period ended 10 February 2024 to

Particulars 31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Inventory at the beginning of the financial year -
Add: Purchases 14.26
Less: Inventory at the end of the financial year

Cost of materials and stores and spare parts consumed 14.26

31. Employee benefits expense
fAmount in INR millions)

Particulars For the period ended 10 February 2024 to

31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Salaries and wages 2117841
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,231.52
Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plan
(refer note 44) Sra%
Expenses related to compensated absences 41.89
Staff weifare expenses 571.91
Expense on employee stock option scheme (refer note 45) 51.75
23162.57

32. Finance costs

{amaount in INR millions)

For the period ended 10 February 2024 to

Particulars 31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Interest expense on flnancial liabilities at amortised cost nN2.99
Interest cost on defined benefit plan {refer note 44) 2592
Interest expense on lease liabilities 344,53
Other borrowing costs omn

483.56

33, Depreciation and amortisation expense
{Amaount in INR millions)

For the period ended 10 February 2024 to

Particulars 31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment [refer note 3(a)] 58536
Depreciation of rights-of-use-assets [refer note 3(h)] 137610
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 246.29

2,20775
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34. Other expenses
tamount in INR millions)

For the period year ended 10 February

Fattictiars 2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

Sub-contractor charges 993,21
Recruitment and training expenses 8785
Rent 8814
Power and fuel 291.08
Repairs and maintenance

- buildings 21776
- plant and machinery 668.86
- others 643.55
Legal and professional fees 488.88
Rates and taxes 4258
Printing and stationery 9.57
Stores and tools consumed 133
Travelling and conveyance 384.96
Communication expenses 25834

Loss allowance on Trade Receivable (billed and unbilled) net

[refer note 37(i)] 182,30
Equipment hire charges 24.46
Insurance 8954
Database access charges 2378
Bank charges 1798
Bad debts written off 6.57
Business promotion and advertisement expenses 214.87
Loss on sale of fixed assets, net 338
Foreign exchange loss, net 548
Technology support senvices 13:99
Miscellaneous expenses 2404

4,782.38

341 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable in the first yvear of incorporation of the Company.
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35. Exceptional items
fAmount in INR millions)

Bapiisifiara For the period year ended 10 February
2024 to 31 March 2025 (Financial year)

zain on sale of business division net of transaction cost

(Refer note 35.1) tB2.55)
Gain on sale of customer contracts (Refer note 35.2) {6.10)
Demerger related expanse [Refer note 35.3) 54.20
Professional services (Refer note 35.3) 2122
Impairment on other advances and receivables (Refer note

18227
35.4)

27879

351 On 06 February 2024, the Board of Directors of Alldigi Tech Limited (Alidigi), a8 subsidiary of the Company,
approved the sale of its Labour Law Compliance (LLC) Division on a going concem basis by way of slump sale,
subject to closing adjustments as defined in Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated 06 February 2024, Alldigi
has completed the sale of its LLC division on 30 April 2024 for a net sales consideration of INR 212.50 million with
net assets transferred aggregating to INR 4170 million. The gain of INR 170.80 million was included under
exceptional item. Additionally, Alldigi has made a provision of INR 8 million towards indemnification of liability
arising on account of non-collection of trade receivables as at 31 March 2025 in accordance with the said BTA and
included under exceptional item.

35.2 During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, Alldigi has transferred few of its customer contracts pertaining
to payroll compliance business ta the buyer of (LLC) division, pursuant to the request of those customers in order to
avail all their statutory compliance services from one service provider and recorded a gain of INR 610 millian, which
is disclosed as exceptional item.

35.3 During the finacial year ended 31 March 2025, the Company incurred charges for professional services,
certain amployee benefits expense and Stamp duty aggregating to INR 26542 million which is disclosed as
exceptional items.

35.4 During the financlal year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has written off certain receivables and other
assets amounting to INR 182.27 million pursuant to management decision to discontinue certain projects:

.
—
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8. Taxes

A, Amount recognised in profit or loss {Amount in INR millions)

For the period ended 10 February 2024 to

Particulars
31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Current tax:

In respect of the current financial year (586.75)
Tax related to prior years 719
Deferred tax:

Attributable to:

Crrigination and reversal of temporary differences 682

Income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (572.74)

B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
(Amount in INR milliens)

For the period ended 10 February 2024 to

Particulars
31 March 2025 (Financial Year)

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans

Before tax [53.64)
Tax expense 702
Net of tax (46.62)

C. Amounts recognised directly in equity

Mo tax expense has been recognised directly in equity.

D. Reconciliation of effective tax rate {Ameunt In INR millions)
; For the pericd ended 10 February 2024 to
Particulars
31 March 2025 (Financial Year)
Profit before tax 1,8950.22
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate of 25168% (490.83)
Effect of:
Non-deductible expenses (13.67)
80JJA Tax (utilised) incentives 370
Difference in enacted tax rate (17.81)
Tax on dividend from subsidiary (126.66)
Adjustments related to prior years 720
Others’ 65.32
Income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss (572.74)
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*Others includes the tax impact of INRE 41.09 million on profit before tax for the financial year from 10 February 2024
to March 31, 2024, which is not taxable as the Company Is liable to pay income tax from April 1, 2024 (appointed
date} in accordance with the scheme of arrangement approved by NCLT.

E. The following tables provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of 31 March 2025

incame 1ax aksels \nst) tAmount in INR millions)

As at
Particulars i

31 March 2025
Income tax assets 20010
Income tax liabilities Nn2.26
Met income tax assets as at 31 March 2025 87.84

F. Deferred tax assets (net) and Deferred tax liabilities (net) (AmGURt A INR milions)

As at

Particulars
31 March 2025

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Deferred tax assets:

Impairment loss allowance on financial assets mig
Frovision for employee benefits 131.05
Property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets 3202
Prowvision for disputed claims 597
Frovision for Bonus 2062
Others” 120.83

42167

Deferred tax assets (net)

‘majorly pertains to deferred tax assets recegnised on carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation

The movement of deferred tax aggregating to INR 13.84 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2025
comprises of INR 6.82 million credited to statement of profit and loss, INR 7.02 million recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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G. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Movement of deferred tax assets / liabilities presented in the balance sheet
tAmount in INR millions)

Balance as at Recognised in Recognised Balance as at

Particulars
10 February 2024* profit or loss in ©Cl 31 March 2025

Deferred tax assets:
Expected credit loss allowance 61.83 4835 . 94.68
on financial assets

Pravision for employvee benefits 105,21 18,82 702 14307
Property, plant and equipment 51.65 (19.63) - 43.82
and intangible assets

Provision for disputed claims 760 (163) - 5.97
Provision for Bonus 2316 12.54) : 2062
Others*™ 158.37 {(37.55) - 113.51
Deferred tax assets (net) 407.82 6.82 7.02 421.67

“Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiaries consolidated with the
Company. (Refer note 46)

“*Majorly consists of deferred tax on Right of use assets net of related lease liability.

H. Unrecognised deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

The Group does not have unrecognised deferred tax liabilities and unrecognised deferred tax assets.
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36. Financial instruments - fair value and risk management

Financial instruments by category ameunt in INR milllons)

As ot 31 March 2025

Particulars :
Amartized

Cost

FVTQC)

Financial Assets:

MNon-current inestments” & - 15.47 -
Loans ] - = 136
Current Investments* 10 81726

Trade receivabies n 554617
Cash and cash equivalents including other bank balances 12 and 13 184413
Other financial assets ¥ and 15 Nn215
Total financial assets 827.26 15.47 8103.81
Financial Liabilities:

Lease liabilites 24} - - 290913
Borrowings 20 and 22 - - 63012
Trade payables 23 74145
Oither financial abilities 24 - - 2494086
Total financial liabilities - - 6ITATT

*classified as FVTOCI upon initial designation
*mandatorily classified as FVTPL on initial recognition

Accounting classification and fair value

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Fair value hierarchy

The section explains the judgment and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments

that are:

@) recognised and measured at fair value
b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified

its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Ind AS,
{Ameunt in INR millions)

--
Particulars
I March 2025
il

As at Level 3

Mon-current investmeants 15.47 . . 15.47
Current investments 10 B27.26 B27.26 - -
Total 84273 82726 - 15.47
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Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This comprises of iInvestmeant in
mutual funds that have guoted price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant Iinputs reguired to fair value an
Instrument are cbservable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or maore of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable market data, the instrument is included In
level 3.

Fair valuation method

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

A Financial assets:

1} The Group has not disclosed the fair values for loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents including
other bank balances., unbilled revenue and other financial assets because their carnying amounts are a
reasonable approximation of their fair value,

2) Current investments: The fair values of investments in mutual fund units disclosed as current investments is
based on the net asset value ("MAV") as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published
statements as at the reporting date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual

fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

B Financial liabilities:

1) Beorrowings: Significant portion of non-current borrowings carries floating rate of interest, the fair value of these s
not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be signiflcantly different from their carrying amounts as
there is no significant change in the underlying credit risk of the Companies In the Group since the date of
inception of the loans. Balance portion of Non-Current borrowing Is insignificant at group fevel hence not fair
valued.

The current borrowings which includes cash credit and overdraft facilities and working capital lean, are classified
and subsequently measured in the financial statements at amortised cost. Considering that the interest rate on
the loan is reset on a monthly/quarterly basis, the carrying amount of the loan would be a reasonable
approximation of its fair value.

2) Trade payables and other financial liabilities: Fair values of trade payables and other financial liabilities are
measured at carrying value, as most of them are settled within a short period and so their fair values are assumed
to be almost equal to the carrying values,

3) Financial liability: The fair value of financial liability has been determined by discounting consideration payable
on commitment to sell. The probability of the estimate within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used
in the management's estimates of fair value of the put option.

= 2
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Reconciliation of level 2 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for level 3 fair values:

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Particulars

Other non-current Investments (unguobed)

Balance as at 10 February 2024° 15.47
Met change in falr value recegnised In other comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 March 2025 1547

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiarles consolidated with the
Company. (Refer note 456)

* Financial liability inciudes contractual commitments to acguire non-controlling interest, which has been accountad separately
other than put option,

* Consideration payable with respect to Mon-controlling interests put option is reclassified to "other current financial liabilities" as it
is repayabile on demand,

37. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

« Credit risk
« Liguidity risk; and
« Market risk

The Company was incorporated on 10 February 2024 and core business of the Company acquired from Quess
Corp Ltd{"Quess") which was operating as division of Quess till 31 March 2025, This Financial risk management is
extracted from GQuess to the extent it is applicable till 31 March 2025, Subsequent to the periced end, Board of
Directors of the Company approved its Risk Management policy.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors of Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework. The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group's activities, The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a
disciplined and canstructive cantral environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how management manitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the audit committee.

(i} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual ocbligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables (both billed and unbilled)
from customers, loans and other financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent
losses in financial assets, The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. The carrying amount of financial asset represents the
maximum credit exposure,
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Credit risk on current investments, cash and cash eqgulvalents and other bank balances and bank deposits is limited
as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies, Other financial assets represent security deposits given to
suppliers, lessors and others. Credit risk associated with such deposits Is relatively low. Loans are given to
subsidiaries and associates and are tested for impairment where there is an indicator.

Trade receivables (including billed and unbilled)

Trade receivables (including billed and unblilied) are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue from
customers primarily located in India. The Company has established a credit policy under which each customer is
analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered,

Expected credit loss assessment for customers are as follows:

The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivable "billed and
unbilied”. The Company's customers are bifurcated into two groups - Government and Non-Government customers.
For Non-Government customers, the Company derives the loss rates based on historical credit loss exprerience,
which is adjusted for forward looking information over the expected collection period. Exposure to customers is
diversified and there is no single customer contributing more than 10% of trade receivable billed and unbilled. For
government customers, given the insignificant credit risk, provision is recorded to reflect allowances for time value
based on historical pattern of collections. Further, specific provision is recorded for customer specific disputes.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables (billed and unbilled) is as follows:

[(Amaunt in INR milllons)

S s Far the financial year ended
RS 31 March 2025

Balance as at 10 February 2024° 249.0
Add: Impairment loss recognised under expected credit loss model 183.57
Less: Bad debts written off (62.50)
Balance as at the end of the financial year 370.08

* Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiaries consolidated with the
Caompany. (Refer note 46)

i) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will enceunter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with Its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity
Is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's
reputation.

Management monitors rolling forecast of the Group's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis
of expected cash flows. The Group's abjective is to maintain a balance between cash outflow and inflow. Usually,
the excess of funds is invested In fixed deposits and other financial instruments. This is generally carried out in
accordance with practice and limits set by the Group. The limits vary to take into account the liguidity of the market
in which the Group operates.

= 2
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Financing arrangement
The Group maintains the line of credit as explained in note 22.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 31 March

2025, The amounts are gross and undiscounted contractual cash flows and include contractual interest payments
and exclude netting arrangements.

As at 31 March 2025

Refar

Mot no

Particulars

Borrowings® 200and 22 &3012 57935 5077

Trade payables 23 F41.46 741,45

Lease labilites 3 (e 290913 118503 111715 958,46 95910
Other financial liahilities 24 249406 2459406

* Current maturities of long-term borrowings are Included under borrowings and excluded from other financial llabilities

The Group has a strong focus on liguidity and maintains a robust cash position to ensure adequate cover for
responding to potential short-term market dislocation. Cash generated through operating activities remains the
primary source for liguidity along with undrawn borrowing facilities and levels of cash and cash eguivalents.

As disclosed in note 20 and note 22, the Group have secured bank loans that contains lean covenants. A future
breach of covenants may require the Group to repay the loans earlier than indicated in the above table, Except for
these financial liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows included in maturity analysis could occur significantly
earlier,

iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all
market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt,
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptabla
parameters, while optimising the return,

a) Currency risk

The functional currency of Company and its domestic subsidiaries are Indian Rupees (IMR). The functional currency
of the overseas subsidiaries are its respective local currencies. The Group is not significantly exposed to currency
risk and therefore disclosures required under "Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures” have not been given.

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rizsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's borrowing comprises of vehicle loans, working capltal loans, finance
lease obligations, loan from related parties and debentures which carries variable rate of interest.

(a) Interest rate risk exposura

The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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fAmount in INR millions)

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

Variable rate borrowings 573.57
Fixed rate borrowings 56.55
Total borrowings 63012

Total borrowings considered above Includes current maturities of long-term borrowings.

(b) Sensitivity {Amount in INR milllans)

BT aridoein Impact on profit after tax Equity, net of tax

1% increase 1% decrease 1% Increase 1% decrease

Variable rate borrowings 15.74) 574 (4.29) 429

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporing
period was outstanding for the whole year. & 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

{c) Price risk
(a) Price risk exposure

The Group's exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Group in the mutual fund units and
classified as fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated balance sheet. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in mutual fund units, the Group diversifies its portfolic. Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the limits set by the Group. The majority of the Group's mutual fund investments are publicly
traded and are listed on the recognised stock exchanges. The exposure of the Group's mutual fund investments
to security price changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

{Amount in INR millions)

. As at
Farccitiars 31 March 2025
Investments in mutual fund units 82726

(b) Sensitivity {Amount in INR millions)

Particulars Impact on profit after tax Equity, net of tax

increase decrease increase % decrease

31 March 2025 8.27 (8.27) 619 (6.19)

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the amount of mutual funds outstanding at the end of the reporting
periad was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase ordecrease is used when reporting price risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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38. Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Group monitors the return on capital as well as the level of
dividends on its equity shares. The Group's objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so
as to maximise shareholders value.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to "equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as aggregate of borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's policy is to keep the ratio below 2.00. The Group's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows:

{Amount In INR milllons)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2025

Gross delt 3.539.25
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1.835.56
Adjusted net debt 1.703.69
Total equity 8,319.46
Net debt to equity ratio 0.20

39. Capital commitments
{Amount in INR millions)

As at
31 March 2025

Particulars

Estimated amount ef contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and net provided for 15716

15716

40. Contingent liabilities
(Amount in INR millions)

As at

Particulars
HERIE 31 March 2025

Provident fund (refer note 40.1)° 13766
Direct tax matters (refer note 40.3) 2605
Other claims {refer note 40.2, 40.4, 40.5 and 40.6} 8575

245.46
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‘Orders ! notices were recelived in the name of Conneqgt Business Solutions Limited (formerly a subsidiary of Quess
Corp Limited, which was merged into GQuess during the financial year 2023-24). Pursuant to the approved scheme
of arrangement, these matters will now be handled by the Company.

404, (i) The Company received a show cause notice ('notice’) dated 26 December 2022 under Section 14B and
Section 7Q respectively of the Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act1952 ("EPF Act”), Act
for belated remittances of provident fund(PF) made during the pericd from 14 April 2018 to 26 December 2022
show causing as to why the damages and interest should not be levied amounting to INR 2875 million (including
damages of INR 18.86 million and interest of INR 9.89 million). The Company had time and again submitted letters/
responses to the Employees' Provident Fund Organisation highlighting the difficulties being faced by them as
regards the non-generation of the Universal Account NumberiUAN) non-seeding of UAN with Aadhaar during
onboarding process of the new employees which caused the delay in the timely payment of the necessary
Provident Fund dues for the period 14 April 2018 to 26 December 2022,

The Company filed writ petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Telangana on 05 Qctober 2023 & awaiting Court
proceedings to commence,

The Company has disclosed INR 2875 million as a contingent liability. The management is of the view that the
above claims shall be contested by the Company and no provision is reguired to be made at this stage, pending
outceme of the matter.

(il The Company has received an order dated 25 September 2023 from the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner - Pune 1{RPFC) stating that the Company has paid allowances by way of 'conveyance' and 'incentive’
genearally to all employees but has excluded the same for computation of contributions under the EPF Act for the
period of September-15 to August-2022. Accordingly, PF dues on the aforesaid allowance's under section 74 has
been orderad by RPFC and directed to deposit an amount of INR. 86.20 million against the alleged PF remittances.
The Company's contention is that the incentive has been paid by the Company to its employees in accordance with
an incentive scheme which prescribes the rates at which it is earned by the employees on the basis of additional
targets achieved by them. The said incentive, therefore, would not gualify as basic wages in terms of the law laid
down in the authorities.

Company filed a writ petition with the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay challenging the order and seeking stay. The
honouratie High court dated 23 Movember 2023 granted a stay on order and directed that no coercive action
should be taken by the RPFC up to the next date of hearing.

Amount paid under protest is INR 35.44 million till date.

The Company has disclosed INR 86.90 million as a contingent liability. The management is of the view that the
above claims shall be contested by the Company and no provision is required to be made at this stage, pending
outcome of the matter.

iii) During the previous years, the Company has received an order from the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner
(RPFC) stating that the Company has paid allowances by way of ‘conveyance' and 'incentive’ generally to all
employess but has excluded the same for computation of contributions under the Act for the FY 2014415,
Accordingly, PF dues on the aforesald allowances ufs 74 of EPF Act has been ordered by RPFC and the Company
is directed to deposit an amount of INR. 22.01 milllon against the alleged PF remittances. The Company's
contention is that incentive has been paid by the Company to its employees in accordance with an incentive
scheme which prescribes the rates at which it is earned by the employees on the basis of additional targets
achieved by them. The said incentive, therefore, would not gualify as basic wages in terms of the law laid down by
the authorities.
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The Company has already filed writ petition in respect of similar matter against RPFC Pune-l and outcome of the
matter is pending. The Company has disclosed INR 22.01 million as a contingent liability, Hence, the management is
of the view that the above claims shall be contested by the Company and no provision is reguired to be made at
this stage, pending outcome of the matter,

40.2. Alldigi Technologies Limited (“Alldigi®) received a demand from the Tamil Nadu Electricity Beoard for an
amount of INR 10,90 millien in January 2008 relating to reclassification disputes on the tariff category applicable to
Alldigi in tweo of its delivery centres with retrospective effect from 2005, During the previous years, the Hon'ble
High Court of Madras vide its order dated 12 January 2022 directed Alldigi to approach the Electricity Regulatory
Commission to get the grievances settled and instructed the Commission to conclude the plea in line with
applicable provisions laid down by the Commission in this regard, While the procedural approach as directed by
the Hon'ble High Court was in progress, Alldigi got demand notices from the Board towards disputed claim of INR
10.90 million for the above cited period and additional demand for the enhanced period from July 2007 to July
2010 amounting to INR 11.20 million along with Belated Payment Surcharge ("BPSC") on the principal amount and
was demanded to be settled within the stipulated time frame, failure to which the supply will get disconnected. In
order to avoid unfoerseen situation that may adversly impact the business, Alldigi proposed to pay the dues in
installments under protest and simultansously proceed with the legal resclutions in the manner directed by the
Haon'ble Madras High Court, bearing strong grounds. Accordingly, Alldigi made necessary provision for the liability
of INR 2210 million towards the prolonging disputes, barring BPSC. The BPSC amounting to INR 4570 millien has
been considered by the Group as contingent liakility and the Group is of the view based on opinion from legal

experts that it will succeed in its proceedings before the said Commissionarate,
Alldigl paid under protest INR 67.80 million till date.

40.3. The Company is subject to Tax proceedings and claims before High courts, ITAT & at Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) for the pericds FY 2009-10 to 201516, FY 201718 & FY 2019-2020 amounting to INR 26.05
million. The amounts included above represent the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available
information. The uncertainties and possible reimbursements are dependent on the outcome of the different legal
processes which have been invoked by the Company or the claimants as the case may be and therefore cannot be
predicted accurately. The Company engages reputed professional advisors to protect its interests and has been
advised that it has strong legal positions against such dispute, The Company’s Management does not reasonably
expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect
on the Company's results of operations or financial conditions. The Company has accrued appropriate provision
wherever required.

40.4 Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of
cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending
with various forums/authorities. The Group is contesting the demand and the Management believes that its position
will likely be upheld, The Management believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have material
adverse effect on the Group's financial position and results of operations,

40.5. Brainhunter Systems Limited (Subsidiary of the Company) received a Notice of Assessment from the Ontaric
Ministry of Finance for Employer Health Tax (EHT) related to the calendar years 2012-2015, amounting to INR 34.20
million, Management believes the assessment lacks substantial merit and filed a Motice of Objection. The Company
subsequently entered into a compliance agreement with the Ministry, agreeing to pay the amount in instaliments
under protest. The Company later submitted additional arguments, referencing case law to support its position that
the workers in guestion were not employees. However, the senior appeals officer of the Ministry of Finance
rejected the Company's position, concluding that the workers were providing services under a contract of service.
A Motice of Appeal was filed with the Ontario Superior Court of Justice.

=
)
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Separately, for the 2017 calendar year, an EHT assessment of INRE 1.B9 million was issued, which the Company paid
under protest. A MNotice of Objection was filed, and after the Ministry upheld the assessment, the Company

proceeded to file a Motice of Appeal,

As of the 31 March 2025, The Company has been paid a total of INR 40.05 millien under protest and has disclosed
the same as a contingent liabllity. Hence, the management is of the view that the above claims shall be contested by
the Company and no pravision is required to be made at this stage, pending outcome of the matter,

40.6. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its consolidated financial
statements. The Group does not expect outcome of these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its

financial position,

41. Earnings per share
tamount in INR million except number of shares and per share data)

For the financial year ended

SR 31 March 2025
Nominal value of equity shares (INR per share) 10.00
Profit after tax for the purpose of earnings per share (INR In million) 115577
Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic 148 620544
earnings per shara

Basic earnings per share (INR) 778
Weighted average number of shares used in computing diluted 148,751,027

earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share (INR) 772

42. Segment reporting

A. Pursuant to the Scheme of arrangement, Quess Corp Limited has transferred the Demerged Undertaking 1to
the Company. This undertaking includes subsidiaries primarily involved in Business Process Outsourcing
services and Information Technology services. Demerged Undertaking 1 was mainly consisting of Global
Technology solutions of Quess Corp Limited.

Operating segment
The Group's business is concentrated in various service offerings like BPO services and technology solutions
and accordingly primary segment information is presented on the following service offerings:

Reportable segment

Business Process Management Intelligent Customer Experience, Intelligent Finance and Accounting
Services, Al driven Tallored Industry Specific Operations including
Collections for Banking and Financial Services sector

Technology and Digital Digital Engineering. Enterprise Solutions, Infra and Cloud Services,
Enhanced Employee Experience and Cyber Security.
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Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting
the financial statements of the Group as a whole. The Group has a corporate center, which provides various
accounting and administrative support function. Segment information for this activity has been aggregated under
"Unallocated”. Revenue identiflable to business segments have been disclosed under the respective business
segment. Segment costs include employee benefit expense, cost of material consumed, recruitment and training
expenses, stores and tools consumed, sub-contractor charges and operating expenses that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to respective segments, Assets and liabilities in relation to segments are categorized based on
items that are individually identifiable to that segment. Certain assets and llabilities are not specifically allocable to
individual segments as these are used interchangeably. The Group therefore believes that it Is not practicable to
provide segment disclosures relating to such assets and liabllities and accordingly these are separately disclosed
as "Unallocated’.

Operating segment information for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:

(Amaunt in INR millions)

: Business Process Tech and
Particulars ) Unallocated
Management Digital
Segment revenue 23,930.03 8,757.24 - 32,687.27
Segment result 4,017.87 1,088.61 - 5106.48
Other income - - 192.26 192.26
Depreciation and amortisation expensea g - (2,207.75) (2,20775)
Finance costs - - (483.56) (483.56)
Unallocated corporate expenses Z * (378.42) (378.42)
Exceptional items - s (27879) (278.79)
Profit /{loss) before tax 4,017.87 1,088.61 (3.156.26) 1.950.22
Tax expense - - (572.74) (572.74)
Profit /{loss) before tax 4,017.87 1,088.61 (3.729.00) 1,377.48
Segment assets 10,314.82 3,289.68 3,613.51 17.218.01
Segment liabilities 612465 94170 1.029.25 8,085.60
Capital expenditure 671.72 25062 : 922,34

B. Geographic information
The geocgraphical information analyses the Group's revenue and nan-current assets by the Company's country of
domicile (iLe. India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been
based on the gecgraphical location of customers and segment assets which have been based on the
geographical location of the assets.

Ee————
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(Armaunt in INR milllions)

Geographic information

For the financial year 10 February As at

2024 to 31 March 2025 31 March 2025

India

Gther countries:

- Canada

- United States of America

- Rest of the world

Total

23,066.66 3.429.41
393861 161.84
4,354.19 27108
1.327.80 23710

32,687.27 4,099.43

*Mon-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

The Group has disclesed the investments in equity accounted investees as the geographic information of non-
current assets because they are regularly provided to the CODM.

C. Major customer

Mane of the customers of the Group has revenue which is more than 10,00 % of the Group's total revenue,

43, Related party disclosures

i. Name of related parties and description of relationship:

Fairfax Financial Haldings Limited

Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited

FFHL Group Ltd.

Fairfax (Barbados) International Corp.

Isaac Enterprises LLP {(formerly known as "lsaac

Entities having significant influence/ joint control®

Enterprises Private limited")

Brainhunter Systems Limited
Mindwire Systems Limited

Subsidiaries (including step subsidiaries)

MFXchange Holdings, Inc.

MFXchange US, Inc.

Alldigi Tech Limited {formerly known as “Allsec
Technologies Limited”)

Alldigi Tech Inc, USA (formerly known as "Allsectech
Inc. LISA")

Alldigitech Manila Inc. Phillppines ({(formerly known as
“Allsectech Manila, Inc")

Heptagon Technologles Private Limited

Quess Corp (USA) Inc.

Quess GTS Canada Holding Inc.
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Careworks foundation

Iris Realty LLP

|Izaac Healthcare Services LLP

Fairbridge Capital Private Limited

Themas Cook (India) Limited

Net Resources Investments Private Limited
HWIC Asia Fund Class A Shares

Bluspring Enterprises Limited

Vedang Cellular Services Private Limited
Monstercom (India) Private Limited
Manster.com.SG PTE Limited

Manster.com HK Limited

Agensi Pekearjaan Monster Malaysia Sdn. Bhd
Trimax Smart Infraprojects Private Limited
Terrier Security Services (India) Private Limited
Agency Pekerjaan Quess Recruit SDN. BHD
Quess Corp Limited

Quess (Philippines) Corp.

Quesscorp Holdings Pte. Ltd

Quessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Quess Corp Lanka (Private) Limited
Quesscorp Singapore Pte Limited

Quess Corp Vietnam LLC

Excelus Learning Solutions Private Limited
Quess International Services Private Limited
Quess Selection & Services Pte Limited
Quess Malaysia Digitial SDB.BHD
Quesscorp Management Consultancies
Quesscorp Manpower Supply Services LLC
Billion Careers Private Limited

Quess Corp NA LLC

Stellarslog Technovation Private Limited
Quess Recruit, Inc

Quess Foundation
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Key executive management personnel

Ajit lsaac Chairman

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
(w.ef 1st April 2025)

Gurmeet Chahal

Suraj Prasad Chief Financial Officer (w.ef. 1st April 2025)

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (wef

Meeraj Manchanda
29 March 2025}

* As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, promoters and promoters groups are considered to be persons acting in concert.
Further as per SEB| Regulations "Persons acting in concert" are considered to exercise joint control over the
Company

ii, List of subsidiaries (including step-subsidiaries), associates and joint venture

MNature of | Country of Holdings by Group as at

Name of the entity

relation domicile 21 March 2025
Brainhunter Systems Lid. 1 Subsidiary Canada 100.00%
Mindwire Systems Limited 2 Subsidiary Canada 100.00%
Quess Corp (USA) Inc. Subsidiary LUSA 100.00%
MFXchange Holdings, Inc, 3 Subsidiary Canada 100.00%
MFXchange US, Inc. 4 Subsidiary LSA 100.00%
Quess GTS Canada Holding Inc.Quess Subsidiary Canada 100.00%
Alldigi Technologies Limited Subsidiary India 73.38%
Alldigitech Inc., USA 5 Subsidiary USA 100.00%
Alldigitech Manila Inc., Philippines 5 Subsidiary  Philippines 100.00%
Heptagon Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary India 100.00%

1. Digitide Solutions Limited holds 19% shareholding and MFXchange Holdings, Inc. holds 81% shareholding.
2. Wholly owned subsidiary of Brainhunter Systems Lta.

3. Digitide Solutions Limited holds 56% shareholding and Quess Corp (USA) Inc. holds 44% shareholding.
4, Wholly ewned subsidiary of MEXchange Holdings Inc.

5. Whoelly owned subsidiaries of Alldigi Technologies Limited

S
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iii. Related party transactions during the financial year

(Amount in INR millions)

Nature of transaction For the financial year ended

3 - Name of related party
and relationship 31 March 2025

Revenue from operations

Entity controlled by promoters  Fairbridge Capital Private Limited Quesscorp 0.87

and promoter group o
Limited 2906
Terrier Security Services {India) Private Limited 145
Monster.com (India) Private Limited 3.69
Billion Career Private Limited 364
QDIG Senvices Limitad 1.02
Vedang Cellular Services Private Limited 287
Quess Corp NA LLC 33
GQuess Corp Holdings Pte Ltd 1721

Other Expenses

Entity controlled by promoters  qyessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 2.48

and promater group
Guesscorp Lanka Private Limited 022
Terrier Security Services (India) Private Limited 119.32
Maonster.com (India) Private Limited 065
Quesscorp Manpower Supply Services LLC 256.00
Bluspring Enterprises Limited 42,26
Billion Carriers Private Limited 066

iv. Balance receivable from and payable to related parties as at the balance sheet date
(Amaount in MR milliens)

Mature of balances For the financial year ended

31 March 2025

Name of related party

and relationship

Trade receivables - billed {gross of loss allowance)

Entity controlled by promoters Monster.com (India) Private Limited 762
ana pramoter group Quessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 010
Fairbridge Capital Private Limited 016
Terrier Security Services (India) Private Limited 0.03

Trade receivables - unbilled (gross of loss allowance)

Entity controlled by promoters Quessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 0.05

and promoter grou
i ki Monster.com (India) Private Limited 0.01
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(Amount in INR millicns)

For the financial year ended

31 March 2025

Trade Payables

Entity controlled by promoters Quess Corp NA LLC

and promoter group
Terrier Security Services (India) Private Limited
Bluspring Enterprises Limited
Guesscorp Manpower Supply Services LLC

Quessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn, Bhd,

Other Current Financial Liabilities

Entity controlled by promoters Terrier Security Services {India) Private Limited
and promaoter group
Cuesscorp Manpower Supply Services LLC

Quesscorp Limited

v. Compensation of key managerial personnel

0.40
ni1s
6.69
9.34
0.09

15.49
1.99
701

(Bmount in IMR millicns)

For the financial year ended 10 February 2024

Particulars

to 31 March 2025

Salaries and other employes benefits to whole-time directors and executive officers 108.59

108.59

‘Managerial remuneration does not include cost of employee benefits such as gratuity, compensated absences and provision

for these are based on an actuarial valuation carried out for the Company as a whole

Mote : Transactions between the Remaining Undertakings of Quess Corp Limited, Demarged Undertakings 1

(Digitide Selutions Limited) and 2 (Bluspring Enterprises Limited), which were transferred pursuant 1o the demerger,

have not been disclosed as related party transactions, as these transactions occurred within the same legal entity

prior to the effective date of the business combination.

Quess Corp Limited was holding 100% eguity in the Demerged undertaking 1 (Digitide Solutions Limited) and
hence considered a holding Company of the Demerged undertaking 1 (Digitide Solutions Limited),
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44. Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

(Amount in INR millions)

. As at
Particulars

31 March 2025

Net defined benefit liability, gratuity plan 39183
Liability for compensated absences m.45
Total employee benefit liability 503.29
Current (refer note 26) mM.45
Non-current {refer note 21) 39183

503.29

For details about employee benefit expenses, see note 31

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (Plan A}, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Plan
A entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous services, to gratuity at the rate of 15
days wages far every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages

last drawn by the employee concerned.

These defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate
risk and market {(investment) risk.

A. Funding

The Group's gratuity scheme for core employees is administered through third party with the Life Insurance
Corporation of India. The funding requirements are based on the gratuity funds actuarial measurement framework
set out in the funding policies of the plan. The funding is based on a separate actuarial valuation for funding
purpose for which assumptions are same as set out below. Employees do not contribute to the plan.
The Group has determined that, in accordance with the terms and conditions of gratuity plan, and in accordance
with statutory reguirements (including minimum funding requirements) of the plan, the present value of refund or

reduction in future contributions is not lower than the balance of the total fair value of the plan assets less the total
present value of obligations.

The Group expects to pay INR 335.92 million contributions to its defined benefit plans in FY 2025-2026,

B. Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability/ asset

The fallowing table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined
benefit llability/ asset and its components:

Ee————
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(Amount in INR millicns)
As at
31 March 2025

Particulars

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Obligation at the beginning of the financial year 428.43
Current service cost g87.09
Interast cost 36.42

Past service cost -
Benefit settied (60.85)

Actuarial {gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- Changes in experience adjustments 18.71

Changes In demographic assumptions 244
- Changes In financial assumptions 306
Obligation at the end of the financial year 543.30

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Plan assets at the beginning of the financial year, at fair valug® 121.93
Disposals 10.35)
Interest income on plan assets 10,50
Remeasurement - actuarial gain/{loss) 0.99
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income 12.43)
Contributions 81.63
Benefits settled {60.85)
Plan assets as at the end of the financial year, at fair value 151.47
MNet defined benefit liability 3931.83

" Includes balances transferred on account of Scheme of Arrangement and balances of subsidiaries consolidated with the

Company. (Refer note 456}
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C. Information on funded and non-funded net defined benefit liability

(Amount in INR millions)

For this financial year

el i ended 31 March 2025
Funded 15147
MNon-funded 24036
Total net defined benefit liability 391.83

D. i) Expense recognised in profit or loss
tAmaunt in INR millions)

For this financial year
ended 31 March 2025

Particulars

Current service cost 87.09
Interest cost 36.42
Past service cost

Interest income (10.50)

Net gratuity cost 113.01

ii) Remeasurement loss recognised in other comprehensive income
(Amount in INR millicns)

For this financial year

Particulars

ended 31 March 2025
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 522
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset 1.44

53.64

E. Plan assets

{Amournt in INR millicns)

As at

Particulars
31 March 2025

Funds managed by insurer 15147

151.47
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F. Defined benefit obligation - Actuarial Assumptions

For this financial year

el i ended 31March 2025
Discount rate 6.4 % to 6.59 %
Future salary growth SHto9%
Aftrition rate 125%1t0B0 %
Average duration of defined benefit obligation {in years) 1to 17 years

G. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, the defined benefit obligation would be as shown below:

{Amount in INR millions)

As at 31 March 2025

Core emplovees

Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 328.84 45143
Future salary growth (1% movement) A48 50 32927
Attrition rate (1% - 50% movement) 37263 39751

{Amount in INR millions)

As at 31 March 2025

Associate emplovees

Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 3.49 3.58
Future salary growth (1% movement) 3.58 3.49

Attrition rate (10% - 50% movement) 3.32 3.83
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45. Share-based payments
A. Description of share based payment arrangement
Special Purpose Stock Option Plan 2025 (equity settled)

As per the Composite Scheme of Arrangement, the unvested Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) granted to
transferred employees (who were transferred as part of business undertaking from Quess Corp Limited), shall
stands cancelled on the Effective Date of the Composite Scheme and In lieu thereof and as per terms of the
Composite Scheme of Arrangement, the Company will grant new RSUs to eligible transferred employes, subject
to fair value adjustments. Subseguent to 31 March 2025, the Company has adopted a Special Purpose Stock
Ownership Plan 2025 ("Special SOP 2025), based on the principles of the Quess Stock Ownership Plan 2020
("QSOP 20207 of Quess Corp Limited (‘Demerged Company’) on terms and conditions no less favorable than
those provided under the QS0P 2020, to create, offer, Issue and allot upto 26.68,102 rastricted stock units to
eligible transferred emplayees.

Accordingly, Quess Corp Limited has transferred the opening ESOP Reserve (Stock optlons outstanding
account), refating to the cancelled RSUs of these employees to the Company. Further, ESOP expenses in respect
of these employees pertaining to QS0P 2020 Scheme, has been apportioned on a reascnable basis between
the Company, Quess Corp Limited and Bluspring Enterprises Limited (Resulting Company -2).

B. Measurement of fair values

Special Purpose Stock Option Plan 2025
The fair value of Employee Stock Options has been measured using Black Scholes Model of pricing.

The fair value of the options and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-
settled share based payment plans are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2025

Waighted average share price at grant date (INR)" 126.98
Exercise price (INR) 10.00
Risk free rate of interest (adjusted for dividend yield) 4.98% -737%
Expected volatility# 20.00% -39.00%
Expected life of the option 4 - 9 years
Weighted average fair value at grant date (INR)* 127.95

“Adijusted based on the valuation of Quess Corp Limited, Digitide Solutions Limited, and Bluspring Enterprises, as carried out by

external valuer pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, with reference to the valuation report dated 16 April 2025.

# The expected price volatility s based on the historic volatility of Quess Corp limited (based on the remaining life of the

options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information

Ma options have expired during the current year and previous year.
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C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans were as follows:

Special Purpose Stock Option Plan 2025

For the financial vear ended 31 March 2025
Core emplovees

Number of share Weighted average

aptions exercise price
Balance as at 10 February 2024* 367,521 10,00
Add: Granted during the financial year 767,996 10.00
Less: Exercised during the financial year (117.8786) 10.00
Less: Lapsed/forfeited during the financial year (218,2808) 10.00
Add: Due to fair value adjustment on account of

: 1,869,269 10.00

Scheme of Arrangement#
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,668,102 10.00
Options vested and exercisable as at the end of

16,353

financial year

‘Includes balances transferred on account of Schame of Arrangement. (Refer note 46)

# Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and subseguent to 31 March 2025, the Company determined an RSU entitliement
ratio of 3.34 new RSUs for every RSU cancelled in Quess Corp Limited. This entittement ratio is based on a valuation assessment
carried out by the external valuer,

The options outstanding as at 31 March 2025 have an exercise price of INR 10,00 and a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 4.74 years

D. Expense recognised in standalone statement of Profit and Loss

For details about the related employee benefits axpense, refer note 31.
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46. Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Quess Corp Limited ("Demerged Company”), Digitide Solutions
Limited ("Resulting Company 1") and Bluspring Enterprises Limited ("Resulting Company 2") and their respective
shareholders and creditors (referred as "Scheme of Arrangement”):

The Company received a certified true copy of the Hon'ble MNational Company Law Tribunal, Bengaluru Bench
(“MCLT") order dated 17 March 2025, approving the Scheme of Arrangement between Quess Corp Limited
(“Demerged Company”), Digitide Sclutions Limited ("Resulting Company 1"/"the Company), Bluspring Enterprises
Limited (*Resulting Company 27, and their respective shareholders and creditors (Scheme of Arrangement’), with
an appointed date of 1 April 2024. The certified true copy of the Order was filed with the Registrar of Companies en
31 March 2025 (the “Effective Date™). The Company considered the recelpt of NCLT approval as an adjusting event
and accounted for it in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 1032 “Business Combinations”.

Pursuant to the approval of the Scheme, the Company recorded the assets (including its related investments in
subsidiaries) and liabilities pertaining to Transferred Businesses 1 (as defined in Scheme of Arrangement) at their
carrying values appearing in the books of accounts of Quess Corp Limited, retrospectively from the appointed date.
Consequently, the difference between the face value of new equity shares reguired to be issued (net of existing
share capital) and the net assets of Transferred Businesses 1 has been credited to Capital Reserve,

In accordance with the Scheme, till the Effective Date, Demerged Company carried out the activities of Transferred
Businesses 1in trust for the Company. These Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent Company have been
prepared as of and for the financial year from 10 February 2024 (Date of Incorporation) to 31 March 2025, in
accardance with Appendix C to Ind AS 1032 "Business Combinations™ by using the financial Information maintalned
by the Demerged Company. Common expenses incurred by Demerged Company were apportioned to the
Company based on reasonable basis.

The subsidiaries of the Company were consolidated from the date of original acquisition by the Demerged
Company. The profit or loss from date of original acquisition of subsidiaries till 10 February 2024 is included in the

DOther Equity.
{Amount in INR millions)

Assets

Mon-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 123754 1624.59
Right-cf-use assets 2.542.54 2.996.87
Capital work-in-progress 0.45 26.07
Goodwill Be0.05 212170
Other intangible assets 63.06 28776
Intangible assets under development 20.59 20.59
Financial assets -

Investments 3.89597 15.50
Loans -

Other financial assets F0273 784.84
Defarred tax assets (net) 2763 40598
Income tax assets (net) - B8
Other non-current asseats 176.96 259070
Total non-current assets 85752 8764.41
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(Amount in INR milliens)

Current assets

Inventornies

Financial assets
Investments

Trade recelvables

-Billed

-Unbilied

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash
and cash eguivalents above
Loans

Other financial assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets (A)

Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings

Trade payables

Lease labilities

Other financial liabllities
Current tax liakillties (net)
Provisions

Cther current labillties

Total non-current llabilities

Total liabilities (B)

Excess of assets over liahilities (C)= (A)-(B)
Equity shares to be issued (D}

Other reserves arising out of consoclidation (E)
MCI arising out of consolidation {F)

ESOP reserve on account of demerger (G)

Capital reserve on account of demerger
(H=(C-{DHENF-S)
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222765
1.590.44
75135

21.32

33.01
074
335.99
4,970.50
14,542.02

17.58
189777
217.56

20329

845.88
155.60
237

218788

76.86
38214
456073
6,693.65
7,848.37
1,489.49

n7o3

6.241.85

56279

3,205.25
202787
1.692.97

24.06

0.47
4874
501.03

8,06318
16,827.59

17.58
219829
321N

253758

1,234.06
453.33
1125.64
265318
14.26
m.52
544.76
613675

8,674.33

8153.26
1,480.49
(460.73)

765.62
17.03

6,241.85
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47. Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of consolidated financial

statements

Mamo of antity

Parent

DAgatice Sodutions Limitoed

Subsidiaries - Indlan

Brainfunter Systams Lid,

|Refer Mote 471)

Alidigh Tech Limitad
[Fermerly known as
Altsec Technologles
Limited)

Heptagon
Technologies Private
Limited

Subsidiaries - Foreign

Quess Corp (LUSA) Inc

MFXchange Haoldings,
i

MFXchanoe US, Inc

Quess GTS Canada
Hobdings Ing

Subtotal

Adlustment arlsing ol
of consolidation

MNan-contralling
Interests in
subsidiaries

Total

BG.48%

4.20%

32.45%

0.00%

23B%

4.52%

0.0:0%

-D02%

100%

4.515.37

3350

259455

{0.32)

190.40

36128

{1.95)

7.994.599

(3,839.05)

B02.94

4.958.89

St in profit or loss

ted profit

{mEce

41274%

NI7%

324.97%

-1.36%

1.39%

20.09%

CB0%

059%

100%

{1.210.56)

3270

948 .50

397

(4.08)

{58.77)

[2.64)

{1.73]

[292.59)

[705.54)

221N

[776.42)

G.48%

26.03%

170.60%

0.00%

M.44%

14.05%

0.00%

-0.50%

00

{051 40315%
{2.03) 0. 21%
{13.33) I3
3 4.32%
{0.89) 165%
29 16.60%
(LB8%
0.04 0.56%
[7.81) 00%
3332
.89
2342

(1.211.07

3066

93517

3.97

14.96)

(49.86)

{264

{1.69)

{300.40)

(672.42)

219.82

(753.00)

474 During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company acguired 100% interest in Brainhunter Systems (Canada)
Limited ("B5L") from ICICI Bank, India. Prior to acquisition of BSL by the Company, equity shares of BSL were
originally owned by Zylog Systems Limited ("Z5L") and were pledged in favour of ICIC] Bank as security for loans
availed by Z5L from ICIC| Bank. Z5L defaulted on loan repayments and ICICI Bank invoked the pledge and sold the
shares to the Company.

During the year ended March 21, 2015, the Company received a notice from the official liquidator of 251, alleging
that the acquisition of the equity shares of BSL by the Company was not in accordance with law and therefore void-
ab-initic, as such sale and transfer of the equity shares of BSL had taken place subsequently to an order passed by
the Honorable Madras High Court appointing the official liguidator for ZSL ligquidation.
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Further, the Company has also received letter from the RBI stating its inability to take on record the transfer of
equity shares of BSL until the winding up proceedings of Z5L have been completed and resolved. The Company
obtained a legal opinion dated May 2, 2016, which specifies that the case does not have merit and the sale is
honafide hased on the following analysis:

a. There is an adequate precedent that upholds the principle that a secured creditor can independently exercise
his rights outside winding up proceedings;

b. ICIC| Bank has enforced its security to realize its rights as a secured creditor and the sale is in compliance
with Canadian Law; and

c. That the sale of equity shares of B5L is not prejudicial to the parties and that the same has been undertaken
In accordance with the provisions of the law.

The Company also obtained an opinion dated March 14, 2016, from Canadian legal counsel, which has
confirmed that the acquisition is appropriate from a Canadian jurisdiction perspective.

48. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or its subsidiaries (incorporated in India) to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall
lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company or its subsidiary {Ultimate Beneficiaries). The
Company or its subsidiaries or associates or joint ventures (incorporated in India) has not received any fund from
any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company or its subsidiary shall whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities |dentified by or on behalf of the Company or its subsidiaries
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

49, As per the MCA notification dated August 05, 2022, the Central Government has notified the Companies
{Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022, As per the amended rules, Companies are required to maintain
back-up of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and papers’ (‘books of account’) in electronic mode
that should be accessible in India at all times. Also, the Companies are required to create backup of accounts on
servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

The books of account of the Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India are maintained in electranic
mode on servers physically located in India and are readily accessible in India at all times.

The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India are maintaining backup of books of account on a daily
basis, except for one application where the Company has maintained the backup on weekly basis.

50. The Company and its subsidiaries incorperated in India have used accounting softwares for maintaining its
books of account, which has a feature for recording an audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
threughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the software, except that:

« In respect of one accounting software used by the Company and its one subsidiary Company, audit trail feature
was not enabled at certain table and database level to log any direct data changes,

- In respect of one accounting software used by Parent, for maintaining books of accounts in respect of revenue
processes, audit trail feature was not enabled.

« The Company has also used two other accounting softwares, which is operated by a third-party software
provider, for maintaining the books of account relating to financial reporting process and payroll process. There
Is no reporting on audit trail in the System and Organisation Controls (SOC 1) Type 2 Report of the third-party
software.

Piweal Reopars 2021 2020 ”_E-
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Further, except for the instances noted above, wherein audit trail feauture was not enabled, there were no
instances where audit trail feature was being tampered with in respect of the accounting softwares for which the
audit trail feature was operating.

Additionally the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

51. The Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code"} relating to employee benefits during employment and post-
employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020, The Code has been published in the
Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group
will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will recard any related impact in the period the
Code becomes effective.

52. Other Disclosure

521 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

52.2 The Company does not have more than the permissible number of layers and has ensured compliance
with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements in this regard.,

53. These consclidated financial statements have been prepared as of, and for the financial year from, 10
February 2024 (the date of incorperation) to 31 March 2025. Accordingly, ne comparative figures have been
presented.
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Al FIRST, DIGITALLY NATIVE
VALUE CREATOR

Digitide started with a simple vision: to transform business operations and drive
growth for enterprises across the globe. For over 20 years, we've been at the
forefront of this mission, creating lasting impact through Al-led digital sclutions,
smart business processes, and deep industry expertise.

Our journey began as a partner to businesses looking to enhance operational
efficiency and customer experiences. By combining the power of Al, data
intelligence, and business process services, we've been able to help our

customers master the digital age and stay ahead of the curve.

With a global presence across 40 locations in 5 countries and a team of
55,000 dedicated associates, we deliver transformative solutions that help
businesses adapt, evolve, and thrive in a constantly changing world. We're

more than just a service provider—we're a committed partner driving
meaningful impact every day. We leverage global expertise and local
insights to help customers navigate challenges and seize new opportunities.
With a focus on innovation, collaboration, and results, we continue to pave
the way for the future of business.

\infomdigitide.com digitide-solutions/ digitide.cam
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